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Page 6 Page 8
1 BE IT REMEMBERED that the above-entitled and 1 CHMN. KATZ: Were ready to go on the record.
2 numbered matter came on regularly to be heard before the 2 | have been asked by both our technical people
3 Arizona power Plant and Transmission Line Siting 3 aswell as our court reporter to makesureyou understand
4 committee at the Glendale Civic Center, 5750 west Glenn 4 that the microphoneﬁ arealways live. Soif you want to
5 bprive, Glendale, Arizona, commencing at 1:10 p.m. on the 5 Whisper to your neighbor, doit away from the microphone.
6 28th day of February, 2022. 6 If you're going to cough or sneeze or clear your throat,
7 7 you want to make sure you turn your head away from the
8 BEFORE: PAUL A. KATZ, cChairman 8 microphone so we can get a good record.
o R R LAY | O il of o wiresesto ok
11 Mty Ircorporated cices and o T Thisisthet ingi
Cvia videoconfarende) 11 _ ThlSlsthe t_| me set for_ the hegrl ng in the _
12 KARL (CENTLES. joene ggleg’ulﬂ ic 12 application of Arizona Public Service Company in
13 MARGARET "TOBY" LITTLE, PE, General Public 13 connection with the West Valley Central transmission
(via videoconference) X X
14 14 project. Andthatis CEC Case No. 198.
15 APPEARANCES: 15 And | would ask, first off, the attorneys who
16 For the Applicant: 16 are present and maybe participating in today's hearing to
17 SNELL & WILMER, L.L.P. 17 identify themselves fqr the record, aqd then welll take a
18 éggtga%o\éan Buren Street 18 roll cal of the Committee membership at well.
19 Phoenix, Arizona 85004 19 MR. DERSTINE: Good afternoon, Chairman, Members
20 and 20 of the Committee.
21 PINNACLE WEST CAPITAL CORPORATION 21 Matt Derstine of Snell & Wilmer appearing on
22 %"ggi E:E:%EUE?E? ! Ziﬁggl atory 22 behalf of Arizona Public Service Company. Joining me as
23 Phoenix, Arizona 85004 23 counsel isLindaBenally of the Arizona Public Service
24 24 Company.
25 25 CHMN. KATZ: And last but not least.
Page 7 Page 9
; ::E:::Ci Pei:‘:zt & 1 MR. GOLESTAN: Good afternoon, Mr. Chairman.
’ 2 Sam Golestan from the Peoria City Attorney's Office,
3 M Saman Goleogan | LTV ATTORNEY 3 intervenor on behalf of City of Peoria.
4 8401 wect Montoe Street 4 CHMN. KATZ: And starting to my far left -- to
> Room 280, rizona 85345 5 my far right, excuse me, I'd ask our Committee Members
6 6 who are present here to identify themselves by name for
7 7 therecord.
8 8 MEMBER DRAGO: My name's Len Drago with the
9 9 Arizona Department of Environmental Quality.
10 10 MEMBER HAMWAY : Mary Hamway representing cities
11 11 and towns.
12 12 MEMBER PALMER: Jim Palmer representing
13 13 agriculture.
14 14 MEMBER FRENCH: David French, designee for
15 15 Arizona Department of Water Resources.
16 16 CHMN. KATZ: And before we go to the folks that
17 17 are appearing virtualy, David French is a new Committee
18 18 Member, and he represents the Department of Water
19 19 Resources. |sthat correct?
20 20 MEMBER FRENCH: Correct.
21 21 CHMN. KATZ: And he'lll be hopefully joining us
22 22 for awhile and won't be leaving us too soon.
23 23 | also see Member Little and Mr. Grinnell
24 24 appearing virtually. | don't know if there is anyone
25 25 elsethat isonlinevirtualy at thistime.
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Page 10 Page 12
1 Weéll, it looks like we have seven of us. We do 1 intervention is granted.
2 have aquorum and can probably get started. 2 The other thing is we have atour scheduled to
3 Also, we can take a break every hour and a half 3 leave from this site at approximately 9 am. If there
4 plusor minus afew minutes. 4 are any Committee Membersin favor, | would like to hear
5 And | was wondering if we have any preliminary 5 amation. And if we have a second, we'll have
6 mattersto take care of before we get going, and I'll ask 6 discussion, if necessary. And if not, well take avote.
7 theattorneys. 7 MEMBER HAMWAY : | move wetake thetour. Is
8 MR. DERSTINE: Mr. Chairman, you may have built | 8 that what I'm moving?
9 thisalready into the matters you want to start with and 9 MEMBER PALMER: I'll second that.
10 aswe get going, but | don't know if you want to address 10 CHMN. KATZ: Isthere any discussion?
11 first the application to intervene on behalf of the City 11 (No response.)
12 of Peoria 12 CHMN. KATZ: All in favor, please say "aye."
13 CHMN. KATZ: Thank you for reminding me of that. |13 (A chorus of "ayes.")
14 And we also will decide -- it's my understanding 14 CHMN. KATZ: Anyone opposed?
15 that we are going to likely take atour first thing 15 (No response.)
16 tomorrow morning, which will likely take ahalf aday; is |16 CHMN. KATZ: We will then have that tour
17 that correct? 17 tomorrow morning.
18 MR. DERSTINE: Yes. APS -- | think our view is 18 I've just got to get my notebook put together
19 that that would be beneficial to the Committee. Wehave |19 here,
20 prepared aroute tour. We have marked it as an exhibit. 20 And | have received from both APS as well from
21 We can cover that in some detail this afternoon or 21 the City of Peoriathe summary of witness statements and
22 tomorrow morning. But | think we have made arrangements |22 thelist of withesses. And | believe that we have all of
23 to have suitable transportation to meet us here tomorrow 23 the exhibits available aswell. And if we areready to
24 morning at 9 am., which isthe scheduled start time. 24 begin, | would invite you, Mr. Derstine or Ms. Benally,
25 Andwell proceed on the tour, and we would expect that |25 whoever is going to take charge. Y ou should feel freeto
Page 11 Page 13
1 that would take us up to the scheduled lunch break, and 1 begin.
2 then the hearings would resume at 1 p.m. tomorrow. 2 (Off the record for audio issue.)
3 CHMN. KATZ: Thank you. | know that there has 3 CHMN. KATZ: If you areready, APS, fed free
4 been amotion or application by the City of Peoriato 4 for make afocused opening statement.
5 intervenein these proceedings. | also understand from 5 MR. DERSTINE: | will. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
6 our prehearing conference last week and some 6 I'll try to be asfocused as| can.
7 communications that APS has no objection to the 7 Good afternoon, Chairman, Members of the
8 intervention; isthat correct? 8 Committee.
9 MR. DERSTINE: That's correct. 9 Phoenix ishot. And I'm not just speaking about
10 CHMN. KATZ: Do any of the Committee Members |10 our balmy summertime temperatures. Phoenix ishot in
11 want to hear any arguments from counsel regarding the 11 termsof growth. Population growth, business growth.
12 intervention, or are we comfortable in moving forward and |12 The city of Phoenix grew at the fastest rate of all big
13 alowingtheintervention? And if we're comfortable 13 citiesinthe United States. Over the past year, it's
14 moving forward, | would need a motion and a second. 14 now the fifth biggest city in the country, surpassing
15 MEMBER PALMER: Mr. Chairman, | would movethat |15 Philadelphia.
16 we grant intervention to the City of Peoria. 16 The metropolitan area of Phoenix has grown to
17 MEMBER HAMWAY: And | second. 17 4.9 millionresidents. Andthe West Valley isabig part
18 CHMN. KATZ: Any discussion? 18 of that metropolitan growth. The West Valley's
19 (No response.) 19 populationis currently 1.7 million, and projections are
20 CHMN. KATZ: All those on the Committee who are |20 that the West Valley will reach 2.1 million by 2030.
21 infavor of alowing the intervention, please say "aye." 21 That rapid population growth is following
22 (A chorus of "ayes.") 22 business growth. The business growth is attracting folks
23 CHMN. KATZ: Any opposed? 23 totheValley. The state of Arizonaleadsthe nationin
24 (No response.) 24 job growth. The Phoenix Metropolitan areais abig part
25 CHMN. KATZ: No oneis opposed, so the 25 of that overal statewide job growth, job creation. And
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Page 14 Page 16
1 once again ahbig part of the job growth, business growth 1 What does the project involve? What are the
2 in Metropolitan Phoenix, is occurring in the West Valley. 2 components? What needs to be built?
3 The West Valley is one of the top markets for 3 First, APS will be expanding the existing
4 datacenters, semiconductor manufacturing, logistics, 4 Contrail Substation, which is currently the 69kV
5 healthcare, and high-tech industries. A lot of that 5 substation that isin place on the Microsoft datacenter
6 growth in logistics you're seeing along the Loop 303 6 campus. And that substation will be expanded, the bays
7 corridor. The Loop 303 corridor is now being referred to 7 and the transformers needed for the 230kV
8 asthe West Valley Empire, taking the name from the 8 interconnections.
9 Inland Empire where we saw so much growthintheInland | 9 The other piece of the project isto construct
10 Empirein Southern California. 10 three separate double-circuit 230kV transmission lines
11 There's millions of square feet of industrial 11 that are set out in the application. And you'll seethe
12 and commercial space that are under development in the 12 routesfor those three lines on the map on the right
13 West Valley. You simply need to drive around the West |13 screen.
14 Valley, which we will do tomorrow, to see all of the 14 What are the benefits of the project?
15 development projects and the agriculture fields that are 15 First off, it allows us to serve the Microsoft
16 now being developed into industrial parks, logistics 16 datacenter. Theload for the datacenter is significant.
17 centers, commerce centers throughout the West Valley. 17 | think it'sin the neighborhood of 245 megawatts. In
18 This dide shows a couple of articles that we're 18 addition, these three connection points, the three
19 taking about and alerting folks to the growth that's 19 separate double-circuit 230kV lines, allow usto serve
20 happening in the West Valley. Thefirst one says: 20 that high load while, at the same time, eliminating the
21 Here'swhy the West Vadley is exploding with economic 21 need for diesel generation and the environmental
22 growth. 22 considerations and concerns that diesel generation
23 The center article says: Herewe grow. The 23 carrieswithit.
24 West Valley ontherise. 24 The project does in many ways what the Northern
25 The third one says: Loop 303 corridor becomes 25 Parkway isdoing. The project connects the 230kV system
Page 15 Page 17
1 global center for devel opment. 1 on the east, which the El Sol-White Tanks line, and the
2 That's what's happening in the Valley today. 2 230kV system on the west. The Northern Parkway is
3 It won't come as a surprise to this Committee to 3 connecting the parkway systems on the east to the freeway
4 say that you can't grow without power. This growth 4 systemson thewest. This project allows APSto
5 that's occurring in the West Valley can't occur without 5 interconnect its 230kV systemsthat sit on either side of
6 infrastructure, without the transmission lines and 6 the West Valley, and that provides us with significant
7 substations that are needed to support and sustain that 7 reliability benefits.
8 growth. APS hasaduty to serve customers with reliable 8 As| mentioned, the project involves
9 and adequate power within its service territory, and that 9 double-circuit 230kV lines. Thefirst circuit will be
10 serviceterritory covers much of the West Valley. 10 used to serve the Microsoft load, but there's additional
11 Different customers have different needs. Not 11 capacity on that line to serve other datacentersthat are
12 every commercia customer isgoing to need a230kV line. |12 being sited or arein the early stages of planning or
13 Not every project needs to come before this Committee. 13 consideration for the West Valley.
14 But, asaways, the challengeisto site the new 14 The second circuit will then also be available
15 facilities needed for the growth and to do that in away 15 to servethe future load growth, al the industrial and
16 that minimizes the impacts on the surrounding community. |16 commercial customersthat are moving to the West Valley.
17 And that's what this case is about. 17 What was the planning process? What was done to
18 This project, the West Valley Central Project, 18 prepare us for the hearing today?
19 addressestwo needs. First isthe need to provide 19 It was an 18-month effort that involved
20 adequate, reliable power to a new Microsoft datacenter 20 environmental and engineering analysis combined with
21 that is being constructed and developed in El Mirage. 21 public outreach and stakeholder engagement over those 18
22 The second need that this project addressesis 22 months. Analysisfrom an engineering and environmental
23 the need for 230kV infrastructure to support the 23 standpoint covered a 41-square-mile area on the map you
24 industrial and the commercial growth that | just 24 seeoutlined. And throughout that 18-month time frame,
25 mentioned. 25 the early analysis brought about numbered links. And you
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Page 18 Page 20
1 seethose numbered links | think there on the map on the 1 of generally for the Committee and the viewers virtually.
2 right, the routes that are on the application. 2 Having those two routes that sit on the northern
3 Those smaller numbered links were then used to 3 border and the southern border of the City of Peoriaand
4 develop preliminary routes and those routes were 4 areditting on either side of aresidential subdivision
5 presented to the public, and we sought feedback from 5 that sitskind of in anarrow path between those two
6 stakeholder and residents in the area concerning those 6 routeswithin the City of Peoriajurisdiction.
7 possibleroutes. And, ultimately, Routes A, E, and G 7 The City of Peoria has come to APS and asked the
8 were selected as the final routes for this project. 8 company to evaluate whether a portion of the northern
9 I mentioned the public outreach. The public 9 route can be placed underground as it fronts along the
10 outreach campaign was detailed and thoughtful. We 10 City of Peoria. Again, the Routes E and G that you see
11 engaged in numerous stakeholder briefings with the 11 there are not being sited in the City of Peoria, but they
12 variousjurisdictions that are shown -- in the project 12 are on Olive and Northern Avenue, cross and outside of,
13 area, shown on the right screen. 13 to our understanding, the City of Peoriaitself, but they
14 Newsdletters went out at several stages of the 14 follow along the jurisdiction of the border of the City.
15 process to encourage folksto join usfor initially a 15 So the City has asked APS to evaluate whether a
16 virtua open house and then, later in the process, two 16 segment of Route G that borders on Northern Avenue can be
17 live-stream open houses in which we discussed theroutes |17 placed underground. APS has agreed to do that. That
18 that were being presented to the public for comment and 18 work isunder way. | think what we can say today is that
19 consideration. The outreach included social media ads 19 APS has agreed to underground that segment that borders
20 that were used to publicize the virtual open house and 20 on the City of Peoriaif it can be undergrounded.
21 thelive-stream open house as well as the project itself. 21 The current plan and the plan all along has been
22 And customer emails. To the extent customers 22 to placethe northern line, the Route G, double-circuit
23 within this project area have provided APS with an email |23 230kV line within the City of Glendale landfill, whichis
24 address, they received direct emails concerning the 24 on the south side of Northern.
25 project and the different open houses and milestones of 25 And so the issue here is can that double-circuit
Page 19 Page 21
1 the project. 1 230kV line be safely and reliably constructed underground
2 Through that public outreach, we gained feedback 2 inaduck bank within the retaining wall of the landfill
3 and input from the various jurisdictions. Luke Air Force 3 and not be impacted by landfill operations where they're
4 Base, which is another stakeholder, on theright. Those 4 compacting trash and whatever else ends up in the
5 diagonal red and yellow lines are the Accident and 5 landfill.
6 Protection Zones for Luke which we had to work aroundand | 6 Can we put the duck bank there? Can we maintain
7 make sure we weren't creating conflicts with. Aswell as 7 it? Canwereach it for repairs? And will it not be
8 the Maricopa County Department of Transportation, which | 8 degraded or impacted by the landfill operations? That
9 isunder way in terms of constructing the Northern 9 evauation is under way, but we've committed to do that
10 Parkway. Aswell as developers and residentsin the 10 work, do that analysis and share it with the City. If it
11 area 11 can bedone, APSis committed to do it.
12 In Exhibit Jto the application, you'll see 12 CHMN. KATZ: And which segment have you already
13 lettersaswell as| think we have separately marked one 13 agreed or --
14 or two of these, letters from Luke Air Force Base, City 14 MR. DERSTINE: It's Route G, the southern piece
15 of Glendale, City of El Mirage, City of Peoria, Plains 15 aong Peoria, where we're agreeing to do that.
16 Energy, Woolf Logistics. 16 Olivewasinitially also considered. So you
17 Those letters, some, Luke, in particular, 17 have the landfill on the sound end there along Northern.
18 indicates support for our final route selection, but all 18 And then you have a number of transmission lines and the
19 of them praise APS and its consultants for the siting 19 substation on Olive to the north. The problem with
20 process, the manner in which we engaged those 20 undergrounding on Olive as opposed to Northern as an
21 stakeholders and asked for their feedback and considered |21 aternative isthat there are a number of underground
22 their feedback. 22 conflicts along Olive and other issues with trying to
23 We do have the City of Peoriais here. The City 23 underground the line on Olive.
24 of Peoria has concerns with having routes E and G. 24 So the opportunity is there on Northern. And,
25 Kevin, if you can identify those on the map kind 25 as| mentioned, we're studying that and investigating
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Page 22 Page 24
1 whether that can be done, whether we can safely and 1 which will take the 230kV lines underground along the
2 reliably underground that circuit for the length of the 2 Peoria segment and then bring the line back up once we've
3 City of Peoria. Itisour understanding that is the 3 moved to the west past the boundary of the city of
4 desire and the wish of the City, And we've agreed to do 4 Peoria.
5 itif wecandoit. And, importantly, the cost to 5 So the alternative optionality for Route G will
6 underground will be paid by Microsoft. Again, if we can 6 be overhead construction or utilization of the riser
7 do that and underground the circuit there. 7 structures, which is a different type of structure, and
8 | think the Committee probably knows more than 8 we'll show what you that looks like as part of the
9 me about the technicalities and the issues for 9 approva and the request for Route G.
10 undergrounding a circuit and the cost for undergrounding |10 We're requesting a ten-year term, which isthe
11 the circuit, other than our new Member French, sat 11 standard ACC and Committee term for the first circuit.
12 through along hearing in which the intricacies and the 12 But because that second circuit will be used to support
13 hurdles and obstacles of undergrounding were discussed 13 growth in the future and we don't know how quickly that
14 and evidence was presented to the Committee. So you 14 growth is going to come and how quickly we're going to
15 folks understand those issues. But, again, APS has 15 need that second 230kV circuit, we're asking for alonger
16 agreedtodoitif we can doit. 16 term, a20-year term, for the second circuit. And we're
17 So how are we going to present this case to you? 17 happy to discuss that with you further, and you can drill
18 We have awitness panel. You see the four witnesses 18 down on the need and the justification for that.
19 across from mein the hearing room. We have Mr. Wiley |19 So that'sit. That'sthe case. | appreciate
20 and Mr. Duncan on behalf of APS, and we have Mr. Simpson |20 your attention and letting me give you an overview of the
21 and Ms. Darr. Mr. Simpson represents the environmental |21 project and how we're going to present it to you.
22 consulting firm that was engaged to perform much of the |22 Thisisan important project. It's an important
23 siting studies and environmental analysis. And Ms. Darr |23 project for Microsoft. It's an important project for
24 was responsible for the outreach campaign. Sothoseare |24 West Valley growth, the logistics centers, the commercial
25 our witnesses. 25 and industrial businesses. All the growth that you're
Page 23 Page 25
1 We will also the utilize the witness slides and 1 seeing aong the Loop 303 corridor and throughout the
2 various exhibits that will be projected herein the 2 West Valley, this project is needed to support that
3 hearing room. We'l also have aflyover simulation, in 3 growth, and we look forward to presenting the case to
4 which the Committee will have an opportunity, asyou have | 4 you.
5 inevery case, to see the routes through a simulated 5 Thanks.
6 format and see where A, E, and G are, what isthe 6 CHMN. KATZ: Mr. Golestan.
7 surrounding geography, what is around there along those 7 MR. GOLESTAN: Mr. Chairman, Members, City of
8 routes. But | think you'll be best informed by the route 8 Peoriawould like to reserve itstime for opening
9 tour which we've scheduled for tomorrow morning. 9 statement at the beginning of itsintervention.
10 And then you'll also hear from the City of 10 CHMN. KATZ: That'sfine.
11 Peoriain terms of whatever witnesses and exhibits they 11 Let mejust ask you, Mr. Derstine, are you going
12 wish to introduce. 12 tobecalling al of these folks as a panel or one at a
13 So that's the case. 13 time?
14 At the end of the case, APS will request that 14 MR. DERSTINE: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. That is
15 you grant usthe CEC for this project. The CEC will 15 our intention, to call them asapand. And so they're
16 request approval to construct the double-circuit 230kV 16 ready to be sworn, and I'll introduce them as a panel
17 lineson Routes A, E, and G. The steel monopole 17 whenyou're ready.
18 structures, the heights of those structures, will range 18 CHMN. KATZ: Let mejust ask, | can do the oath,
19 from 130 to 195 feet. But included in the request of the 19 which would be swearing you in, or | can do an
20 approval, certainly for Route G, will be an option to 20 affirmation. Isthere any preference? If you al agree
21 underground along Peoria Avenue on Route G. 21 oneway or the other, we'll do it that way or take you
22 And the only additional -- although the 22 separate.
23 undergrounding portion is not, as the Committee knows, 23 MR. DUNCAN: I'd prefer an oath.
24 within the jurisdiction of the Committee, we do need you |24 MR. SIMPSON: | think we all do. Wetaked
25 to call out and approve the use of the riser structures 25 about that.
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1 (David Wiley, Kevin Duncan, Randall Simpson, and | 1 chair of the IEEE Power Energy Society from 2017 to 2018.
2 Kristin Darr were duly sworn, en masse, by the Chairman.) | 2 Q. Mr. Wiley, the dides that you're using for your
3 CHMN. KATZ: Our three witnesses have been 3 background here are part of alarger PowerPoint deck that
4 sworn, and you may begin your examination. 4 you and the other witnesses are using to augment your
5 MR. DERSTINE: Can we have thewitnessslidesor | 5 testimony inthe hearing. The PowerPoint slides are
6 our witness presentation slides cued up on the right 6 marked for us as APS Exhibit 6.
7 screen. 7 Y ou assisted in the presentation of the
8 8 PowerPoint dides, APS-6, concerning the topics that
9 DAVID WILEY, KEVIN DUNCAN, RANDALL SIMPSON, | 9 you'll carry in your testimony, correct?
10 AND KRISTIN DARR, 10 A. (Mr.Wiley) Yes, that's correct.
11 called as witnesses as a panel on behalf of Applicant, 11 Q. Andyour testimony and the dlides that you were
12 having been previously sworn by the Chairman to speak the |12 responsible for preparing include the APS service
13 truth and nothing but the truth, were examined and 13 territory and transmission system, the purpose and need
14 tedtified asfollows: 14 for the project, overview of the Contrail Substation, and
15 15 the APS Ten-Year Planfiling. Do | havethat right?
16 DIRECT EXAMINATION 16  A. (Mr.Wiley) Yes.
17 BY MR. DERSTINE: 17 Q. Doyou have any corrections to the slides that
18 Q. Mr. Wiley, we're going to start with you. 18 cover thetopicswhich | just identified?
19 Can you state your name for the record and your 19 A. (Mr.Wiley) | do not.
20 address, please. 20 Q. Sotheinformation within those slides on those
21 A. (Mr.Wiley) My nameisDavid Wiley. My address |21 topicsistrue and correct to the best of your knowledge?
22 152121 West Cheryl Drive, Phoenix, Arizona 85021. 22  A. (Mr.Wiley) Yes, itis.
23 Q. Mr. Wiley, your dide saysyou'rethe 23 Q. Mr. Duncan, good afternoon.
24 supervision for transmission planning and engineering. 24 A. (Mr.Duncan) Good afternoon.
25 Inthat capacity, were you involved with the development |25 Q. You have been before the Committee asthe
Page 27 Page 29
1 of the West Valley Central Project? 1 project manager on anumber of projects. At least
2 A. (Mr.Wiley) That'scorrect. 2 certainly in 2021, you and | have had the pleasure of
3 Q. Usingyour background slides, why don't you 3 being here before the Committee. But thiswas not
4 summarize your education and your professional experience | 4 initialy your project. Someone else was managing it
5 for the Committee. 5 through much of the 18-month time frame.
6 A. (Mr.Wiley) Certainly. | received my 6 But it's your project now, and you're
7 bachelor'sin electrical engineering in 2013 from Arizona | 7 knowledgeable and responsible for the project and
8 State University. | then received my master'sin 8 presenting it to the Committee today, correct?
9 electrical engineering with an emphasisin power systems | 9 A. (Mr. Duncan) Yes.
10 in 2014, aso from Arizona State University. 10 Q. Using your background slides, why don't you
11 I've been with APS for seven years, four of 11 remind the Committee of your educational background and
12 which | was an engineer within the transmission planning |12  your work experience.
13 and engineering group. Thelast three years, |'ve been 13 A. (Mr.Duncan) Certainly.
14 supervisor of the transmission planning and engineering |14 So | earned my Master of Business Administration
15 group. And | am alicensed professional engineerinthe |15 from Benedictine University and hold a bachelor's degree
16 state of Arizona. 16 inurban planning from the University of Utah.
17 I've held avariety of rolesin the industry. 17 | have 20 years of combined professional
18 On an interconnectionwide level, I've served asamember |18 experience, with 14 of those years as an environmental
19 onvarious WECC committees. | currently serveasthe APS |19 planner, consultant, and six years of experience at APS.
20 representative on the Reliability Assessment Committee. | 20 | have testified in front of this Committee
21 On aregional level, | currently serve asthe 21 seven previoustimesin Cases 143, 157, 160, 163, 165,
22 chair of WestConnect's Planning Management Committee. | |22 190, and the amendments for Cases 120 and 131.
23 wasthe APS subject matter exert for the 11th BTA. 23 Q. Inyour role asthe project manager, you were
24 Alsoonalocal level, | testified in the Line 24 involved with and supervised the CEC application for the
25 Siting Case 193. And | served as the Phoenix Chapter 25 West Valley Central Project; isthat correct?
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1 A. (Mr.Duncan) Thatiscorrect. 1 numerous energy infrastructure projects. Most of the
2 Q. Asyou st heretoday, do you have any 2 work that I've done professionally is either transmission
3 corrections to the CEC application which isAPS 3 linerelated, power plant-related, substation-related.
4 Exhibit 1? 4 | do have afew other projectsin there for
5 A. (Mr.Duncan) No, | do not. 5 other types of industry, but the bulk of my career has
6 Q. Similar tothe questionsthat | had with 6 been spent in energy infrastructure projects, and I've
7 Mr. Wiley, you aso participated in the preparation of 7 worked on a number of those facilities.
8 didesthat you'll useto support and augment your 8 In that capacity, I've been the business unit
9 testimony before the Committee, and those witnessslides | 9 director for the groups that I've worked with. I've also
10 are marked as APS Exhibit 6. 10 been asenior project manager and also advisor on other
11 The topicsthat you'll cover and the slidesin 6 11 projects.
12 that you were responsible for include the project 12 Specifically related to line siting cases here
13 description and development, the proposed routes, 13 in Arizona, I've been the project manager for a number of
14 corridor and right-of-way for the project, structures 14 projects, and I'vetetified in those projects as well.
15 that will be utilized to construct the project, as well 15 Some of those casesincluded Case No. 116, 122, 127, 131,
16 asapplication and notice issues. 16 and 187. And Cases 122 and 127 were cases that APS did
17 Did | cover al the topicsthat you're going to 17 immediately adjacent to the west side of this project.
18 cover with the Committee? 18 So I'veworked alot inthisarea. I'm very
19 A. (Mr.Duncan) Yes, youdid. 19 familiar with the issues and the growth in the West
20 Q. Okay. Doyou haveany correctionsto the slides 20 Valey. Those projects were permitted in early 2000
21 that address those topics? 21 period but have many of the sameissues that we
22 A. (Mr.Duncan) No, | do not. 22 encountered thereto consider. And it gave mealot of
23 Q. Istheinformation presented in APS Exhibit 6, 23 insight and knowledge in the working relationships with
24 the PowerPoint slides on the topics that we've just 24 the communities aswell as Luke Air Force Base, in
25 identified, true and correct to the best of your 25 particular, where we've worked with them before.
Page 31 Page 33
1 knowledge? 1 Q. Mr. Simpson, you assisted in the preparation of
2 A. (Mr.Duncan) Yes, they are. 2 the dlidesthat we used to support your testimony. That
3 Q. Mr. Simpson. 3 entire deck ismarked as APS-6, but you, in particular,
4 A. (Mr.Simpson) Thank you. 4 areresponsible for the content in the dlides that
5 Q. Will you state your name and address for the 5 addressthe siting and environmental studies for the
6 record. 6 project; isthat correct?
7 A. (Mr.Simpson) My nameis Randall Lee Simpson, 7 A. (Mr.Simpson) That iscorrect.
8 and I'm aproject manager with Burns & McDonnell. 8 Q. Theinformation that's presented in the slides
9 Q. Burns& McDonnell was engaged by APSto perform | 9 that address the topics of the siting studies and the
10 varioustasksin support of the West Valley Central 10 environmental studies are true and correct to the best of
11 project, including the siting studies and environmental 11 your knowledge?
12 analysis. Do | havethat right? 12 A. (Mr.Simpson) Yes, itis.
13 A. (Mr. Simpson) That is correct. 13 Q. Ms. Darr, would you state your name and
14 Q. Using your background dlides from Exhibit 6, why |14 addressfor the record.
15 don't you take a minute to summarize your educationand |15 A. Yes, certain. My nameisKristin Darr. My
16 your professional experience. 16 businessaddressis 24 West Camelback Road, Suite A479,
17 A. (Mr.Simpson) Yes. And to fulfill that first 17 Phoenix, Arizona 85013.
18 question, my business addressis 1850 North Central 18 Q. Thisisyour first opportunity to testify before
19 Avenue, Phoenix, Arizona 85004. 19 the Siting Committee, but you have considerable amount of
20 Q. Thank you. 20 experience handling stakeholder and public involvement as
21 A. (Mr.Simpson) | received two degreesfrom North |21 the owner of your own public relations and outreach
22 Dakota State University. One degreeisin landscape 22 company, Creative Central -- or Central Creative. Did |
23 architecture in 1993, and the first degree was 23 getitright?
24 environmental designin 1992. 24 A. (Ms. Darr) Yes, Centra Creative.
25 I've spent the last 30 years as a consultant for 25 Q. Guotit.
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1 Introduce yourself to the Committee and give 1 City of Phoenix Water Department, City of Phoenix Streets
2 them an understanding of your educational backgroundand | 2 Department, Arizona Department of Transportation, Flood
3 your experience, please. 3 Control District of Maricopa County, City of Mesa, City
4 A. (Ms.Dar) Certainly. 4 of Scottsdale, and the Bureau of Reclamation throughout
5 I'm the founder and principal of Central 5 the Western United States. But most notably, |
6 Creative, LLC, which islocated herein Phoenix, Arizona. | 6 facilitated negotiations related to the closure of the
7 I have 30 years of experience in stakeholder and 7 Navajo Generating Station and also facilitated the public
8 publicinvolvement, ten of which I spent working for 8 meetings on the tribal lands for that project, | guess
9 larger engineering firms, and then | went out on my own 9 youwould call it.
10 intheyear 2000. SoI'mherecomingupon22yearsin |10 Q. Thank you for that. So the portions of the
11 business. 11 witness dlides that address stakeholder engagement,
12 | have abachelor's -- Bachelor of Arts degree 12 public outreach, you assisted in the preparation of those
13 from Metropolitan State University in Denver, and | 13 dlides. Dol havethat right?
14 received that degreein 1991. 14 A. (Ms. Dar) Yes.
15 My business focuses compl etely on the 15 Q. Doyou haveany corrections to those slides that
16 stakeholder and public involvement needs associated with |16 are contained in APS Exhibit 67
17 the planning, design, construction, and operation of 17 A. (Ms. Dar) | do not.
18 infrastructure. | work in the areas of energy 18 Q. Theinformationin the slidesthat address
19 generation, distribution, and transmission; 19 stakeholder and public engagement are true and correct to
20 transportation; water; wastewater; recreation; and other |20 the best of your knowledge?
21 flood control -- | think I've got them all. 21 A. (Ms. Darr) Yes.
22 | am acertified public participation specialist 22 MR. DERSTINE: Mr. Chairman, that'sit for the
23 with the International Association of Public 23 introduction of our witness panel. | think Ms. Benally
24  Participation. 24 isnow ready, when you're ready, to proceed with our
25 In this particular study area, in the last five 25 first witness.
Page 35 Page 37
1 vyears, | have been responsible for stakeholder and public | 1 CHMN. KATZ: That'sfine.
2 involvement for the Arizona Department of Transportation, | 2 MS. BENALLY': Thank you, Mr. Derstine.
3 Interstate 11 Environmental Impact Statement, Maricopa | 3
4 County Department of Transportation Transportation System | 4 DIRECT EXAMINATION
5 Plansfor 2035 and then updated for 2040. That's their 5 BY MS.BENALLY:
6 long-range transportation plan. | worked withMCDOTand | 6 Q. Mr. Wiley, areyou prepared to start?
7 with all of these stakeholders on the design concept for 7 A. (Mr.Wiley) Yes, | am.
8 Northern Parkway. 8 MS. BENALLY': Good afternoon, Mr. Chairman and
9 I'm currently working on the Maricopa 9 Committee Members and Mr. Wiley.
10 Association of Governments Regional Transportation Plan, |10 Q. BY MS.BENALLY: Let'sstart your testimony this
11 whichinvolves all of these stakeholders. 11 afternoon with an overview of the APS service territory
12 Within the last five years, | have been on call 12 and the transmission system that it operates.
13 tothe City of Peoria's Engineering Division to assist 13 A. (Mr.Wiley) Certainly.
14 with public information for their construction projects. 14 APS has been serving the state of Arizonafor
15 I'm currently on call with the City of 15 over 125 years. We have approximately 1.3 million
16 Glendale's Engineering Department, again, for public 16 customers, and we reached an all-time peak demand of
17 information related to construction, their construction 17 7,700 megawatts on July 30, 2020.
18 projects. 18 APS has nearly 500 substations, roughly 300,000
19 | al'so conducted public involvement for the 19 transformers, and more than 550,000 poles and structures.
20 Glendale Transportation Master Plan. 20 We have approximately 6,000 miles of
21 I have worked in various areas surrounding the 21 transmission lines, 11,000 miles of overhead distribution
22 study areafor EPCOR Water, and I've been on call to 22 lines, and 22,000 miles of underground cable.
23 Southwest Gas Corporation for 12 years and have worked |23 APS serves 11 of Arizonds 15 counties, covering
24 dl acrossthe Valley, including in the West Valley. 24 aserviceterritory of approximately 35,000 square miles.
25 Some of my other clients of note would be the 25 If you take alook at the map on the right-hand
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1 screen, it isan outline of the state of Arizona. Those 1 Dysart Substations.
2 areasoutlined in white are APS's service territory. We 2 Lastly, there are five substations under
3 servethe areanear Holbrook in Navajo County, Flagstaff | 3 development to serve the datacenter load. These
4 onup to the Grand Canyon in Caconino County, theVerde | 4 substations are currently served off of a69kV network
5 Valley areain Yavapai County, Payson and the surrounding | 5 but will be transitioning to the 230kV system. These
6 townsin Gila County, the areas east of Parker in LaPaz 6 include the Contrail Substation, Three Rivers, Broadway,
7 County, Yumain Yuma County, Casa Grande and the 7 Runway, and Stratus Substations.
8 surrounding areasin Pinal County, and the southern 8 Q. Mr. Wiley, I'm going to have you go back to your
9 portion of Cochise County near Douglas. 9 prior map and just, in your testimony, illustrate a
10 We zoom in alittle hit closer to the Phoenix 10 comment that Mr. Derstine made in his opening statements.
11 Metropolitan area. APS serves the downtown Phoenix area, |11 Would you point out the 101 and the 303 and then
12 the north Phoenix, Paradise Valley, and Scottsdalearea, |12 the Contrail Substation for the Committee.
13 aswel asthe West Valley. 13 A. (Mr.Wiley) Certainly.
14 The gold star on thisimage represents the area 14 The 101 is running north-south in this location,
15 surrounding the project. 15 and the 303 running north-south in this location.
16 Q. Withthat high-level overview that you just 16 I'd also like to take the opportunity to point
17 provided, would you please describe the transmission 17 out thetwo lateral 230 lines that Mr. Derstine spoke
18 facilities and the substations in the area surrounding 18 about during his opening comments.
19 the new datacenter customer that you just pointed outto |19 We have one 230 corridor running north-south in
20 the Committee that's located on the map that's on the 20 thislocation and another 230 corridor running
21 right sidethat's designated by a star. 21 north-south to the west. This project will be connecting
22 A. (Mr.Wiley) Certainly. 22 thesetwo lateral 230 lines with the new lines for this
23 So to orient you on the map on the right-hand 23 project.
24 screen, we have the 1-17 running north-south, running 24 Q. Thank you.
25 through the middle of the diagram, and we havethel-10 |25 So let's now transition to the purpose and need
Page 39 Page 41
1 freeway running east-west towards the bottom of the 1 for thisproject.
2 diagram. The area of the project islocated in this 2 A. (Mr.Wiley) Certainly.
3 general areahere. 3 The purpose of this purpose isto serve anew
4 Surrounding the project area are two 500/230kV 4 datacenter for Microsoft. At full buildout, the expected
5 substations. Thereisone north of the project, the West 5 load of this datacenter is expected to be 245 megawatts.
6 Wing 500/230kV substation, and one south of the project | 6 To put thisinto perspective, the combined loads of the
7 substation, the Rudd 500/230kV Substation. 7 cities of Glendale, Peoria, El Mirage, Surprise, Sun
8 In addition, there are six 230/69kV substations 8 City, and the Town of Y oungtown combined are
9 serving asimports to the subtransmission network. These | 9 approximately 1,100 megawatts. This datacenter load is
10 arethe Surprise, El Sol, White Tanks, Freedom, Palm 10 approximately aquarter of the combined load of all of
11 Valey, and Trilby Wash Substations. In addition, there |11 thosecities.
12 isone planned substation, TS-2, that was sited in Case 12 So to serve this anticipated load necessitates
13 122 13 service from the 230kV network. Someiinitial load can be
14 On thismap here, you'll see alittle bit closer 14 served by the underlying 69kV subtransmission network,
15 zoomed-in view of the project area. 15 but the load-serving capability of thissystemis
16 To orient you on this map, you will see the 303 16 limited. To meet the long-term needs of the customer as
17 running north-south and, again, the I-10 running 17 well asthe continued growth in the surrounding area,
18 east-west towards the bottom of the page. 18 230kV serviceisrequired.
19 You'll seethe Contrail Substation located in 19 Soif | point your direction to the map on the
20 thisarearight here. Thisisthe substation for which 20 right-hand screen, again, I'll point out the Loop 303
21 thelines of this project will be connecting into and 21 running north-south. We see Luke Air Force Base towards
22 serving the load for the datacenter. 22 the center of the screen along with the Accident
23 There are four 69/12kV substations serving the 23 Prevention Zone, and we have Olive Avenue running
24 load in the greater area surrounding the subject site. 24  east-west towards the middle of the screen.
25 These substations are Litchfield, Falcon, Farney, and 25 This project consists of three separate 230kV
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1 lines. Onelineoriginates at the planned TS-2 1 diesel backup generation on site.
2 Substation, generally following Olive Avenuerunningup | 2 MEMBER GRINNELL: Mr. Chairman.
3 and around the Accident Prevention Zone, and terminating | 3 CHMN. KATZ: Yes, Mr. Grinnell.
4 inthe Contrail Substation. The second and third lines 4 MEMBER GRINNELL: Forgive my ignorance. Did you
5 arecreated by looping in the existing El Sol to White 5 say the Microsoft datacenter? Isthat the right
6 Tanksline. Thislocation hereisan existing 6 datacenter?
7 transmission corridor, which, among other lines, contains | 7 MS. BENALLY': That iscorrect.
8 the El Sol to White Tanksline. 8 MEMBER GRINNELL: Whereisthat going to be
9 This project would cut thislinein and out, 9 located or where is the proposed location for that?
10 cutting in here, looping in the Contrail Substation, and 10 MR. WILEY: Yes. Thank you for the question.
11 looping back into the existing transmission corridor. 11 The Microsoft campus is shown as shaded in
12 Thiseffectively makes two new connections into Contrail, |12  purple on this map, and the yellow represents the
13 aContrail to El Sol line, and a Contrail to White Tanks 13 substation that islocated within Microsoft's campus.
14 line. 14 MEMBER GRINNELL: Okay. I've got the same map.
15 These three separate lines meet the reliability 15 Thank you.
16 needs of our customer, and they also follow best 16 Q. BY MS. BENALLY: Mr. Wiley, so the location that
17 practices when serving loads of this magnitude. 17 you pointed out of the location of the Microsoft
18 With three separate connections, there is no 18 datacenter isat Dysart Road and Olive Avenue; is that
19 lossof load for single contingencies. Single 19 correct?
20 contingencies such astheloss of acommon transmission |20 A. (Mr. Wiley) Yes, that is correct.
21 structure are considered credible planning events per 21 Q. Andasyou testified, the project or the three
22 NERC transmission planning standards. 22 connections that you described are to bring 230kV lines
23 Q. Mr. Wiley, let me have you pause there just a 23 tothislocation; isthat correct?
24 second. You mentioned the TS-2 Substation. Although [24 A. (Mr. Wiley) Yes, that's correct.
25 that'sapart of this project or one of the terminus 25 Q. Arethereany additional transmission system
Page 43 Page 45
1 pointsfor thelinefrom Contrail to TS2, TS-2 is 1 benefitsin addition to or beyond serving the Microsoft
2 previoudy certificated in another case; isthat correct? 2 datacenter that you just described?
3 A. (Mr.Wiley) That'scorrect, Case 122. 3 A. (Mr.Wiley) Yes, thereare.
4 Q. Okay. Thank you. 4 The area surrounding this project is a key
5 If you are complete in covering the connections, 5 location for economic development. One developer in this
6 arewe ready to moveto reliability of the datacenter 6 areahad noted that they're anticipating to build an
7 customer requirements? 7 incidental 12 to 14 million square feet of industrial
8 A. (Mr.Wiley) Yes. 8 space. Andthisisin addition to the Microsoft
9 Q. Sowiththat, then, would you help us gain some 9 datacenter.
10 perspective regarding a datacenter's reliability needs. 10 The City of Glendale has noted that economic
11 | preface my question understanding that youarenotan |11  development has surpassed their expectations for the
12 expert, necessarily, inthisarea. Soif you would just 12 area. Thetarget wasto construct afew million square
13 offer testimony in that regard. 13 feet over the next 10 to 20 years. They have already had
14 A. (Mr. Wiley) Certainly. 14 14 million square feet of buildings with either active
15 Datacenters do require ahigh level of 15 permits or that were recently completed.
16 reliability. Typical standards within the datacenter 16 The proposed project could eliminate the need to
17 industry are to have what's called five 9's of 17  build future 230kV lines. Asnoted in our application,
18 reliability. Thisis99.999 percent reliable service. 18 weare planning to build these lines as double-circuit
19 Thisreliability can be achieved in a couple 19 capable. So asthe development in this area progresses
20 different ways. Oneisto have backup diesel generators |20 and the load demands in the area increase, we can string
21 onsite. Another way isto build in redundancy in the 21 or add asecond 230kV line to the existing structures.
22 transmission system that is serving the datacenter. 22 Q. Mr.Wiley, pardon mefor interrupting you. The
23 By having three separate connections on this 23 illustration that you have up on the right-hand screenis
24 project, our customer's needs are met and also allows 24 titled Woolf Logistics Center Existing and Proposed
25 them to meet their green energy goals by not having 25 Developments.
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1 To orient the Committee, would you describe the 1 A. (Mr.Wiley) Yes. ForthisCEC, APSis
2 general location of what you have on the map beforeyou | 2 requesting authorization for an overhead transmission
3 moveinto describing what you have up there on the 3 corridor. However, we are evaluating undergrounding a
4 screen. 4 small portion along Olive Avenue.
5 A. (Mr.Wiley) Certainly. 5 Q. AlongOlive Avenue?
6 You'll see on the left-hand side of the diagram, 6 A. (Mr.Wiley) | apologize. Along Northern
7 thisisthe Loop 303. We have Olive Avenue running 7 Avenue. That would be in thislocation here near the
8 east-west on the map and near Litchfield Road running 8 Glendalelandfill, and that islink -- | believe that
9 north-south. 9 says625.
10 Q. Andisitfair to say, then, that to the west of 10 APSis currently performing engineering analysis
11 that map and not shown on the screen is the datacenter 11 to determine the feasibility and constructability of
12 site? 12 undergrounding at this location.
13 A. (Mr.Wiley) The datacenter site would beto the 13 Q. Andisitcorrect, then, that APS has -- based
14 east of thismap. 14 onthe outcome of that study, if it isfeasibleto
15 Q. Okay. Thank you. It'stothe east. 15 underground it, APS has agreed to underground that
16 A. (Mr.Wiley) Correct. 16 segment of the line that will be further discussed in an
17 Q. And on thismap, would you describe the 17 exhibit that we have upcoming; is that correct?
18 development that isanticipated. AsMr. Derstine 18 A. (Mr.Wiley) Yes, that is correct.
19 indicated in his opening, there was quite a bit of 19 Q. Areyou ableto speak to APS's standard
20 development, and you just indicated that aswell withthe |20 construction approach to building transmission lines?
21 City of Glendale and other entities. 21 A. (Mr.Wiley) Our standard approach to building
22 Would you describe that a bit further using the 22 transmission linesisto build them overhead. Thisis
23  map. 23 for 69kV lines and above. That would be our standard.
24 A. (Mr.Wiley) Certainly. 24 Wedo have select areas where we have undergrounded
25 At the date that this aerial imagery was taken, 25 facilities, but our typical standard isto build
Page 47 Page 49
1 you'll seethat the large portion of thisis agricultural 1 overhead.
2 land. Aswe go on our site tour tomorrow, you will see 2 Q. Let'snow move to the planned energization dates
3 that some of thisland has already been developed and 3 for thecircuits. Asyou indicated, these are going to
4 thereare existing facilitiesin place. Some notable 4 bedouble-circuit capable. Would you provide the
5 sitesinclude Red Bull and Ball Corp and Mark Anthony 5 estimated date to energize thefirst line.
6 Brewing. So athough you see agricultural areas here, 6 A. (Mr.Wiley) Yes. Thefirstlineisexpected to
7 theseare existing facilities for these different 7 beenergized in 2024, and that isfor al three of the
8 companies. 8 lines.
9 Y ou also see anumber of other parcelsin the 9 Q. Andwhenisthe estimated inservice date for the
10 area. These either have active projects or are 10 second circuit?
11 anticipated to become active in the near term. 11 A. (Mr. Wiley) The second circuit on all three of
12 Q. Isthere anything further you would like to 12 theselinesis continuing to be evaluated. We do not
13 provide regarding that map, or are you ready to moveon |13 show the need or it has not been included in our current
14 tothe next set of questions? 14 Ten-Year Plan.
15  A. (Mr. Wiley) I'mready to move on. 15 Q. Wouldyou explain to the Committee why APSis
16 Q. Okay. Great. Thank you, Mr. Wiley. 16 reguesting a 20-year term for the second circuit.
17 So I'd like to have you speak alittle bit to 17 A. (Mr.Wiley) Certainly. Asl previously spoke,
18 thethree connections that you described earlier in your 18 the area surrounding this project is akey location for
19 testimony. 19 economic development. And with that economic devel opment
20 You explained, as | noted, that there are three 20 comesthe need to have increased |oad-serving capability.
21 connections. Each one of these three connectionsis a 21  When the need does arise, we can add on a second circuit
22 double-circuit-capable 230kV line. Did | get that right? |22 to the existing structures.
23  A. (Mr.Wiley) Yes, that's correct. 23 It is best practice to build new 230kV
24 Q. AndisAPS considering undergrounding any 24 infrastructure capable of adding the double circuit or a
25 segment of the transmission lines? 25 second circuit when a second circuit is probable in the
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1 future. And athough we do notincludeitinour 1 growth in the surrounding area.
2 Ten-Year Plan, we do expect the probable need to bein 2 Q. Thankyou.
3 the 10- to 20-year horizon. 3 MEMBER GRINNELL: Mr. Chairman.
4 Q. Andthat testimony is premised on the 4 CHMN. KATZ: Yes, Member Grinnell.
5 anticipated load growth that you described earlier that 5 MEMBER GRINNELL: Can| get alittle clarity on
6 istothewest of the project site aswell as along the 6 something maybe | misunderstood.
7 Loop 303 that Mr. Derstine included in his opening 7 It was mentioned in -- Mr. Derstine had
8 remarks. Isthat agenerally accurate description? 8 mentioned the ten-year application, and | believe the
9 A. (Mr.Wiley) Yes. Generaly, to the west and 9 lady spoke of a20-year. Arewelooking at two different
10 someto the north aswell. 10 reguests?
11 Q. Solet'snow transition to your next slide. 11 CHMN. KATZ: It's my understanding, and I'll let
12 CHMN. KATZ: If | might interrupt, one of our 12 Mr. Derstine or Ms. Benally clarify it, it's going to be
13 Committee Members hasindicated that they werewaitingto |13 double-circuit, but the first circuit will be built
14 be admitted to the meeting viaZoom. | don't know if 14 within the next ten years. If the development down the
15 that's Mr. Gentles. 15 road requires a second circuit along the same route using
16 MEMBER GENTLES: Yes, Mr. Chairman, I'mon. |16 the same poles, I'm assuming, that would be added. It
17 ThisisMember Gentles. Thank you. 17 might befive years, it might be ten years, but it could
18 CHMN. KATZ: | figured it wasyou. Okay. 18 bel5or 20 years.
19 That'sfine. Thank you. 19 Isthat substantially correct, Mr. Wiley?
20 Q. BY MS.BENALLY: So, Mr. Wiley, you testifiedto |20 MR. WILEY: Yes, Chairman Katz, that is correct.
21 thetransmission lines, the three connections, the fact 21 MEMBER GRINNELL: Thank you.
22 that they are going to be 230kV double-circuit lines. 22 Q. BY MS. BENALLY: Sothefirst circuit inthe APS
23 Can you describe the substation that these three 23 proposal isten years. The second circuit is 20 years.
24 connections will terminate at. 24 And, Mr. Wiley, the 20 yearsis based on the
25 A. (Mr.Wiley) Thelineswill be terminating into 25 anticipated load growth that APS is evaluating and has
Page 51 Page 53
1 the Contrail Substation, and that islocated on 1 studied; isthat correct?
2 Microsoft's campus shown on this diagram. Microsoft's 2 A. (Mr.Wiley) That'scorrect.
3 campusisagain outlined or highlighted in purple, and 3 And then | did want to point out on the
4 the substation is shown in yellow. 4 right-hand screen, we have a photograph of the Contrail
5 At full buildout, this substation will contain 5 Substation asit istoday being served off of the 69kV
6 three 230kV lines, three 230/69kV transformers, and seven | 6 network.
7 69/34.5kV transformers. 7 Q. Doyou have anything further you'd like to
8 Q. Whatisthe status of the development of the 8 testify regarding the substation, Mr. Wiley?
9 Contrail Substation? 9 A. (Mr.Wiley) No, I donot.
10 A. TheContrail Substation is energized today off 10 Q. Okay. Sothen let'smoveto the Ten-Year Plan.
11 of the 69kV subtransmission network. Thissubstationwas |11 The line siting statute that applicants have to
12 energized in May of 2020. Today the substation is fed 12 comply with requiresthat a Ten-Y ear Plan filing for any
13 viatwo 69kV feeds, one from the El Sol Substationand |13 project that comes before this Committee has to be filed
14 onefrom the Falcon Substation. 14  with the Arizona Corporation Commission. Wasthis
15 This provides Microsoft enough load-serving 15 project included in APS's Ten-Y ear Plan filing at the
16 capability for their first phase of their operations. 16 ACC.
17 But, again, the 69kV subtransmission network islimited |17 A. (Mr. Wiley) Yes, it was.
18 intheir load-serving capability. So to achieve their 18 The project wasfirst included in APS's
19 long-term needs, 230kV construction is expected or 19 supplemental filing for its 2019 filing, which was on
20 planned to beginin 2023. 20 June 12th of 2019.
21 Q. Mr. Wiley, when you state "to meet their 21 The project has a'so been included in al
22 long-term needs,” when you say "their," you'rereferring |22 subsequent filingsfor our Ten-Year Plan. These include
23 tothedatacenter in this particular instance? 23 the January 31st, 2020; January 29th, 2021; and January
24 A. (Mr.Wiley) That'scorrect, to serve the 24 314, 2022, filings.
25 datacenter of 230 megawatts, as well as the continued 25 Q. Thank you.
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1 Does that conclude this part of your testimony, 1 you provide examples of those instances that you are
2 Mr. Wiley? 2 awareof?
3 A. (Mr.Wiley) Yes, it does. 3 A. (Mr.Wiley) Thatiscorrect. APSstypical
4 MS. BENALLY: Mr. Chairman, Mr. Wiley is 4 practice and standard is to build 230kV infrastructure
5 availablefor cross-examination at this point if that is 5 overhead or above ground. We do have a couple of select
6 thedirection you would like to proceed. 6 areasthat 230kV isunderground, but that is certainly
7 CHMN. KATZ: Mr. Golestan, if you wanted to 7 not normal or standard for APS.
8 cross-examine this witness, you're more than welcometo. | 8 Q. Sure. Could you opine on those areas at al?
9 MR. GOLESTAN: With the understanding, 9 A. (Mr.Wiley) Oneareawould be near Arizona
10 Mr. Chairman that should there be any subseguent 10 State University near what they call A Mountain along Rio
11 testimony, the City reservesits right to cross-examine 11 Saado.
12 him on other subjects as they come up. 12 Q. Areyouaware of any othersin the Phoenix Metro
13 CHMN. KATZ: That's correct. 13 area?
14 14 A. (Mr.Wiley) Thereisone other location that
15 CROSS-EXAMINATION 15 I'maware of up in the northeast portion of the Valley.
16 BY MR. GOLESTAN: 16 | don't have the particular cross streets, but | can
17 Q. Good afternoon, Mr. Wiley. A couplethings| 17 providethat.
18 want to talk about that you've mentioned so far. 18 Q. And, toyour knowledge, in those cases that
19 First isthat you've indicated that the primary 19 you'vejust cited where the 230kV lines were
20 purpose of this CEC isfor providing -- meeting the needs |20 undergrounded, what was the rationale for undergrounding
21 of the Microsoft datacenter, right? 21 inthose cases?
22 A. (Mr.Wiley) Yes, that's correct. 22 A. (Mr.Wiley) | do not have the specifics of
23 Q. Anddoyou know where that datacenter islocated |23 those cases.
24 intermsof jurisdictionally, what city that in or town? 24 MR. GOLESTAN: | don't have any further
25 A. (Mr. Wiley) It'slocated in El Mirage. 25 questionsfor thiswitness at thistime, Mr. Chairman.
Page 55 Page 57
1 Q. SonopartofitisinPeoriaasfar asyou 1 CHMN. KATZ: Any redirect?
2 know? 2 MR. DERSTINE: No, Mr. Chair.
3 A. (Mr.Wiley) Correct, itisnotin Peoria 3 CHMN. KATZ: You may proceed with your next
4 Q. Okay. You mentioned that at least initidly, a 4 witness on the panel.
5 69KV line could be sustainable but not obviously long 5 MR. DERSTINE: Mr. Chairman, we're at 90
6 term. I'mjust curious, how long could a 69kV line meet 6 minutes. Do you want to take a break at this point?
7 the needs of the datacenter? 7 CHMN. KATZ: We started alittle bit late. We
8 A. (Mr.Wiley) I'll frameitinterms of 8 can either break now or in about 10 or 15 minutes.
9 load-serving capability. Where it would serve 9 Do you recall, Carolyn, what time we started?
10 approximately 95 megawatts off of the 69 subtransmission |10 THE REPORTER: We started about 10 after.
11 system, the full buildout of the Microsoft datacenter is 11 CHMN. KATZ: We could either break now or in
12 245 megawatts. 12 about ten minutes. But if you think it'sa good time to
13 Q. Okay. Therewas adiscussion about economic 13 break, wecandoit.
14 development. Let mesay this: Asfar asyou know, there |14 MR. DERSTINE: We're going to transition to a
15 areno other direct and immediate purposes, obviously, of |15 new witness, so this might be alogical placeto take a
16 thistransmission line? Again, the primary purposeis 16 break.
17 the Microsoft datacenter? 17 CHMN. KATZ: I'mfine. I'm showing it's 2:30.
18 A. (Mr.Wiley) The primary purposeisthe 18 I'd liketo begin within the next ten minutes or so, so
19 Microsoft datacenter. However, this does allow usto 19 don't wander off too far. 1'd like to stay on track and
20 continue to serve the growing area as the economic 20 get as much done today aswe can. We'll take a short
21 development in the area continues to grow. 21 break.
22 Q. Andyou mentioned that while the standard is 22 (A recess was taken from 2:30 p.m. to 2:47 p.m.)
23 overheading -- excuse me -- keeping these lines above 23 CHMN. KATZ: We're ready to pick back up, and
24  ground, there have been instances in which the lines at 24 Mr. Dergtine is going to be questioning our next witness.
25 issue here, the 230kV lines, are undergrounded. Could 25 MR. DERSTINE: Ms. Bendlly, as | indicated

Coash & Coash, Inc.

(14) Pages 54 - 57

602-258-1440 www.coashandcoash.com





Arizona Public Service Company - West Valley Central
Docket No. L-00000D-22-0030-00198 - L SC Case No. 198

Evidentiary Hearing - Volume |

Page 58 Page 60
1 beforethe break, will be proceeding with this next 1 the 69 system up to the 95 megawatts, does that create
2 chapter -- 2 any sort of issues or constraints on the 69kV system?
3 CHMN. KATZ: Okay. 3 A. (Mr.Wiley) Yes, it would. The 69kV
4 MR. DERSTINE: -- with Mr. Duncan. But before 4 subtransmission system is alooped or network system. So
5 wedo that, Mr. Chairman, with your permission, | wanted | 5 the 95 megawatts would be not only the ability to serve
6 tocircleback with Mr. Wiley on two questions that 6 Microsoft but also the surrounding growth in the area.
7 Mr. Golestan asked him prior to the break. 7 To say that maybe adlightly different way, if
8 CHMN. KATZ: Sure. 8 we were serving Microsoft up to 95 megawatts, we would
9 9 not have additional capacity to serve additional
10 REDIRECT EXAMINATION 10 customersinthe area.
11 BY MR. DERSTINE: 11 MR. DERSTINE: I'll make Mr. Wiley availableif
12 Q. Mr. Wiley, Mr. Golestan had asked if there were 12 counsel has any further follow-up on those two items |
13 any examples of where APS has undergrounded 230 13 just covered on redirect.
14 facilities. You indicated there were two that you were 14 CHMN. KATZ: | just had aquestion. | know the
15 awareof. Dol havethat right? 15 Committee aready knows the answer to this, but I'd like
16 A. (Mr.Wiley) Yes, that's correct. 16 toputit on therecord.
17 Q. Oneissome proximity to ASU or A Mountain? Is |17 Undergrounding costs about twice the amount -- |
18 that one of them? 18 mean 10 times, excuse me, the cost of putting the lines
19 A. (Mr. Wiley) Yes, correct. 19 above ground, 10 to 15 times higher, correct?
20 Q. And the second, you indicated, wasin the 20 MR. WILEY: Chairman Katz, we evaluate each 230
21 Northwest Valley? 21 underground specifically asthey are all very specific
22 A. (Mr.Wiley) Northeast Valley, and that's the 22 designs. We have seen costs as high as 10 times that of
23 Desert Ridge area. 23 overhead cost.
24 Q. Atthebresk, did you get any additional 24 CHMN. KATZ: But it's significantly higher than
25 information on the reason why the 230 line near 25 overhead codt, correct?
Page 59 Page 61
1 A Mountain or ASU was underground? 1 MR. WILEY: Yes. And we have seen that up to 10
2 A. (Mr.Wiley) | wasnot ableto find anything for 2 timesas much.
3 thelinelocated near ASU in Tempe. 3 CHMN. KATZ: And isone of the reasons that APS
4 Q. What about the line that you now indicated isin 4 requires either agovernmental entity or aprivate
5 some proximity to Desert Ridge? 5 company or perhaps a home owners association to fund the
6 A. (Mr.Wiley) Yes. That linewasinitially built 6 cost of undergrounding?
7 overhead. It was converted to underground sometime after | 7 MR. WILEY : It isone of the things that we take
8 theinitial construction. And the driver for that was a 8 into consideration, correct.
9 third-party funded the undergrounding of that overhead 9 CHMN. KATZ: Thank you.
10 circuit. 10
11 Q. So, presumably, the desire to spend the not 11 RECROSS-EXAMINATION
12 small dollarsit would cost to underground was drivenby |12 BY MR. GOLESTAN:
13 thedesire to remove an overhead line and improve the 13 Q. Mr. Wiley, good afternoon. Just following up on
14 aesthetics of that area? 14 those couple series of questions.
15  A. (Mr. Wiley) Yes, that's correct. 15 When factoring the cost, | assume one of the
16 Q. AndAPSdid not pay those costs, it was paid by 16 thingsthat APS would -- let me rephrase.
17 somethird party? 17 One factor in the undergrounding cost would be
18 A. (Mr.Wiley) Yes, correct. 18 probably the length of the transmission line that needs
19 Q. Andthento circle back with you on the question 19 to be undergrounded; isthat fair?
20 concerning how long the datacenter could be served off of |20 A. (Mr. Wiley) Yes, that's correct.
21 the69kV line, you indicated, | think, looking at my 21 Q. Couldyou elaborate on any other factors that
22 notes, that in terms of load, the 69 could serve up to 95 22 would be considered for undergrounding in terms of costs
23 megawatts? Did | have that right? 23 that may increase or decrease the cost.
24 A. (Mr.Wiley) Yes, that's correct. 24 A. (Mr.Wiley) | just want to make sure |
25 Q. Okay. Inserving the Microsoft datacenter from 25 understand the question. So in addition to length, what
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1 other costs are considered? 1 A. (Mr.Duncan) Yes,itis.

2 Q. What else could contribute to the final cost of 2 Q. Andasthe project manager, you're responsible

3 undergrounding in terms of -- what variables? One 3 for overseeing and coordinating all aspects of this

4 variableisthe length. 4 particular project; isthat right?

5 A. (Mr.Wiley) Sure. And with thelength, we have 5 A. (Mr.Duncan) Yes.

6 added polesand cables. Y our cable length increases. 6 Q. Sowiththat, let'smoveinto an overview of the

7 That increases cost. There's an additional cost for 7 project. | believe you have amap that you would like to

8 trench and conduit. But in addition to length, we also 8 use. Please orient the Committee where you feel

9 havethedip or riser structures. Those are very 9 appropriate to do so.
10 gpecific designs and much more costly than your standard |10 A. (Mr. Duncan) Yes. This map has been shown to
11 overhead structure. 11 the Committee earlier and | think that has been described
12 Q. Areyouaware of the length of the underground 12 pretty well, but I'm just going to quickly orient again
13 portions of either of those other two lines that you had 13 for those so we can be clear.
14 just talked about, the ASU line or Desert Ridge line, for |14 The State Route 303 is north-south here on the
15 lack of abetter terminology right now? 15 west edge of the study area.
16 A. (Mr.Wiley) Yes. | unfortunately don't have 16 The existing El Sol to White Tanks transmission
17 those lengths readily available. 17 linethat serves astwo of our points are interconnection
18 Q. Socan'tcompareittowhat potentially it would 18 ishereonthe eastern side of the study area.
19 behere. We don't have that datafor comparison? 19 And then under construction, Northern Parkway
20 A. (Mr.Wiley) Not readily available. 20 hereiseast to west across the center.
21 Q. Okay. You think you mentioned that the Desert 21 And, again, Luke Air Force Base here partially
22 Ridgeline near Desert Ridge was undergrounded and funded |22 inside and outside of our study area along with the
23 by athird party. Areyou aware of the funding mechanism |23 Accident Potential Zones extending here into the middle.
24 for the line that was undergrounded near ASU? 24 So, Ms. Benally, do you want me to go ahead and
25 A. (Mr.Wiley) | am not familiar with the line, 25 tointo the next part of the description?

Page 63 Page 65

1 how it came to be undergrounded near ASU. That hasbeen | 1 Q. Yes. If youwould describe the three proposed

2 therefor sometime, and | didn't find anything quickly 2 connections.

3 onthat. 3 A. (Mr.Duncan) Absolutely.

4 MR. GOLESTAN: Okay. Thank you. 4 So, as described, there are three segments to

5 CHMN. KATZ: That wasfine. Asagenera rule, 5 thisproject. ThereisRoute A, which begins -- and all

6 though, | will have usdo it in direct, cross, and 6 threeroutes connect into the Contrail Substation, which

7 redirect without recross. But it was a new subject 7 isshown here at the center of the map in yellow.

8 matter, and we're not all that formal, so I'm fine with 8 But this route begins just west of the Route 303

9 what we've done so far. But it would go the same when 9 north of Olive Avenue at the planned TS-2 Substation.
10 Peoriaputson itswitness. It will usualy be one shot 10 Route A continues west along Olive Avenue following the
11 by either Ms. Benally or Mr. Derstine unlesstheredirect |11 railroad and then going up north here to Peoria Avenue to
12 goes beyond the scope of the cross. 12  whereitisoutside or just at the edge of the Accident
13 With that being said, we can continue with our 13 Potential Zones until it proceeds south directly into the
14 next witness. 14 Contrail Substation.
15 MS. BENALLY: Thank you, Chairman Katz. 15 Route E is shown herein purple. It begins at
16 16 the corridor that | described a moment ago, which isthe
17 DIRECT EXAMINATION 17 El Sol to White Tanks 230kV transmission linethat is
18 BY MS.BENALLY: 18 going north and south and proceeding west along Olive
19 Q. Mr. Duncan, are you prepared? 19 Avenueinto the Contrail Substation.
20 A. (Mr.Duncan) Yes, | am. 20 And Route G a'so begins at a different location
21 Q. Soyou have already been introduced to the 21 onthe El Sol to White Tanks 230kV transmission line and
22 Committee, so let's move into your testimony. 22 proceeds west along Northern Avenue to where it then
23 You stated earlier that you are the project 23 turns north into the Contrail Substation.
24 manager for the West Valley Central Connection 230kV |24 Q. Thank you for describing those three
25 Project; isthat right? 25 connections, Mr. Duncan.
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1 In your experience, you indicate you've 1 thearea
2 testified in anumber of cases. These projects evolve 2 We felt that this study areawould include all
3 over aperiod of time. They sort of have alife cycle, 3 reasonable and feasible alternatives that would still
4 if youwill, at the very onset up to the point where 4 meet the project purpose and need. Many potential
5 we're at today where we're before a Committee with the 5 preliminary aternatives were devel oped and presented to
6 project. 6 stakeholders and to the public for consideration.
7 Would you talk about how this particular project 7 Through regular communication with
8 evolved. 8 jurisdictions, Luke Air Force Base, large land
9 A. (Mr.Duncan) Absolutely. 9 developers, smaller developers, and the public, along
10 So you are correct that projects, especially in 10 with preliminary environmental engineering and forestry
11 rapidly developing areas such as our study areafor this 11 reviews, many preliminary alternatives were eliminated.
12 project, oftentimes dlightly evolve asthe project moves |12 Detailed environmental and engineering reviews
13 forward. 13 were performed on the remaining alternatives and
14 So this project, at the time of its origination, 14 consideration was once again given to jurisdictional and
15 was based on the combination of APS demand forecasting |15 stakeholder constraints, including large land devel opers.
16 and a specific customer request. In this case, 16 And thisresulted in the identification of the proposed
17 Microsoft. 17 routesthat we present today.
18 With the customer request, we identified what we |18 Q. Thisline siting process that you provided an
19 refer to asthe service requirements or what theminimum |19 overview of, isthat typical for line siting projects?
20 that we need to provide to be able to serve them per 20 A. (Mr.Duncan) Yes,itis.
21 their requirements, including redundant 230kV service. 21 Q. You'veoutlined the genera planning process
22 Asthe project developed through the siting 22 that the company used for this project.
23 process, which Mr. Simpson will speak about when he 23 I'd like to now move to the proposed routes that
24 testifies, additional needs wereidentified as major 24 you mentioned sort of were the outcomes for this project.
25 projectsthat Mr. Wiley spoke about began developing 25 Andwhat I'd like to refer you to, | believe you havein
Page 67 Page 69
1 throughout the study area. It's created aneed to refine 1 front of you an exhibit that islabeled APS-7. It'sa
2 the project description as additional elements were 2 one-page map that istitled APS Requested Corridor Map
3 anticipated to be needed. 3 dated February 2022. Do you have that in front of you?
4 Q. Mr.Duncan, earlier you indicated the study 4 A. (Mr.Duncan) Yes, | do.
5 area. Just for the record, would you identify on the 5 MS. BENALLY: Mr. Chairman, thisis an exhibit
6 right-hand side where the map iswhat the study areais. 6 that was placed at each seat of the Committee Members,
7 A. (Mr.Duncan) Yes, | will, and | apologize for 7 shared with Peoriacounsel. I'll proceed discussing it
8 not doing that earlier. 8 if the Committee Members have it available to them. If
9 The study areaisindicated by the dashed black 9 not, wewill makeit available.
10 linethat follows the outside of the area whereit's full 10 CHMN. KATZ: | don't have one.
11 resolution versus alighter resolution along the extreme 11 MS. BENALLY': We are providing a copy,
12 edge. Thisareais consistent with the study area that 12 Chairman Katz.
13 wasidentified for the full range of alternatives that 13 CHMN. KATZ: That'sfine. You don't need to
14 were studied. 14 wait for meto get it to begin.
15 Q. Let'snow moveto the next stage of the process, 15 MS. BENALLY: APSalso did provideit to Tod, so
16 if youwill. What was the siting process used for this 16 it should be made available to our Committee Members who
17 project? 17 areappearing virtually.
18 A. (Mr.Duncan) Sure. 18 CHMN. KATZ: It's marked Exhibit A. Isit
19 I'm going to provide a high-level review of this 19 Exhibit A to your application?
20 information, but Mr. Simpson will provide an indepth 20 MS. BENALLY:: It's Exhibit A to APS-7.
21 discussion of this. 21 CHMN. KATZ: Okay.
22 But as an overview, it begins with the 22 MS. BENALLY: And APS-7 isthe proposed form of
23 identification of alarge study area encompassing 23 CEC.
24 potentia routing alternatives that would meet the 24 CHMN. KATZ: Right. And at the break, I'll have
25 service requirements of the customer and future demandin |25 to have somebody show me how to use theiPad. | got the
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1 exhibit list, but | don't -- anyway, go ahead. 1 Q. Thank you, Mr. Duncan.
2 MS. BENALLY: Okay. Thank you. 2 The map that you have up on the right, it's
3 Q. BY MS. BENALLY: Sowiththat map in front of 3 pretty far fromme, so | can't see what'sthere. Isthat
4 you as areference, would you describe the proposed 4 the APS-7 with the underground segment that's identified?
5 routesfor the project. 5 A. (Mr.Duncan) No,itisnot. Thatisthe
6 A. (Mr.Duncan) Justto clarify, Ms. Benally, did 6 exhibit without the underground segment shown onit.
7 you want me to continue with the description of the 7 MS. BENALLY': Could | ask our AV team to load
8 length or just move to the description of the corridors? 8 APS-7 Exhibit A.
9 Q. Let'sdothedescription of the lengths and then 9 MR. DUNCAN: That isthe correct version.
10 move to the corridor. 10 Q. BY MS.BENALLY: Whenyou say that isthe
11 A. (Mr. Duncan) Very good. 11 correct version, Mr. Duncan, what are you referring to?
12 So the total length of the proposed routesin 12 A. (Mr.Duncan) | am referring to the map shown
13 combination with each other is about 12 miles. 13 right indicates the potentially underground segment.
14 Route A is7.1 milesin length. Route Eis2.1 14 Thereishatching. It'shard to see. It's not
15 milesinlength. 15 coming through very well in the projection, but it isin
16 CHMN. KATZ: A ishow long again? 16 thisarea
17 MR. DUNCAN: 7.1. 17 Q. Okay. Thank you. Itisvery chalengingto
18 CHMN. KATZ: Thank you. 18 see
19 MR. DUNCAN: Route Eis2.1 miles. And RouteG |19 The copies that have been made available to the
20 is2.75 miles. 20 Committee Members are just slightly better to see that
21 Chairman, | can point out that the mileageis 21 hatched section.
22 shown here on thistable that's on the left dlide. 22 So Mr. Wiley testified that APS is evaluating,
23 CHMN. KATZ: Okay. 23 asl| mentioned, a short segment of Route G. Would you
24 MR. DUNCAN: The proposed routes may span 24 point out Route G on the map, please, that's up on the
25 private, municipal, and state-owned land. The proposed |25 screen.
Page 71 Page 73
1 routesavoid Luke Air Force Base operations and 1 A. (Mr.Duncan) Yes.
2 restrictions. 2 Route G, again, begins at the existing El Sol to
3 The eastern routes provide the most direct and 3 White Tanks 230kV transmission line, proceeds west and
4 compatible connection from the El Sol to White Tanks 4 then north to the Contrail Substation. Thisis Route G.
5 transmission line to the Contrail Substation. 5 Q. Okay. Thank you.
6 Q. BY MS.BENALLY: Isthereanything further that | 6 So with that, as | mentioned earlier, Mr. Wiley
7 you would like to cover on the length of the routes? 7 testified that APSisexploring or investigating the
8 A. (Mr.Duncan) No, thereis not. 8 feadibility of undergrounding a very short segment of
9 Q. Sonow, then, let's move to the corridor and 9 Route G. Would you point out that section on the map,
10 right-of-way. | guessit'sat this point that you'll be 10 please.
11 using APS-7; isthat correct? 11 A. (Mr.Duncan) Yes. Itisessentially from the
12 A. (Mr.Duncan) Yes. 12 corridor to apoint just about where I'm pointing right
13 Q. Andisthe map that you havein front of you, 13  now.
14 APS-7, wasthat prepared by you or under your direction? |14 Q. Okay. Thank you.
15 A. (Mr.Duncan) Yes,itwas. 15 Is there anything else you would like to discuss
16 Q. Sowiththat, what isthe size corridor and the 16 regarding the corridor and the right-of-way?
17 right-of-way that APSisrequesting for these 17 A. (Mr.Duncan) No, thereisnot.
18 connections? 18 Q. Okay.
19 A. (Mr.Duncan) Sowe arerequesting a 19 MS. BENALLY': At this point, Mr. Chairman, we
20 variable-width corridor between 300 to 1,200 feet wideto |20 would like to move into the virtua tour if that is what
21 accommodate specific areas of constraint while still 21 you deem appropriate at this point.
22 providing the flexibility for afinal design. 22 CHMN. KATZ: It'sfine. Whenever you think it's
23 The anticipated right-of-way width for the 23 an appropriate timeto present it, you may fed freeto
24  proposed route is between 100 to 120 feet if built 24 doso.
25 overhead. 25 MS. BENALLY: Thank you.
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1 Mr. Derstine -- 1 context. We're not able to do that with every piece of
2 CHMN. KATZ: Sorry to interrupt. 2 development out there, but | think that will help you to
3 Thiswill probably help some of the members that 3 understand some of the features as you view the imagery.
4 will be unable to actually go on the actual physical tour 4 Also the, we used Autodesk 3D Studio Max, which
5 tomorrow. 5 isapopular CAD and rendering software. We used Chaos
6 MS. BENALLY: Mr. Derstineisgoing towork with | 6 Group V-Ray software and Adobe After Effects, and those
7 our witness Mr. Simpson to do the virtual tour. 7 arethingsthat are used to actually produce the video
8 CHMN. KATZ: That'sfine. 8 itsalf.
9 9 I know that sounds maybe alittle unfamiliar,
10 DIRECT EXAMINATION 10 but they're fairly standard industry software that alot
11 BY MR. DERSTINE: 11 of graphic artists and entertainment industry uses. And
12 Q. Mr. Simpson, | think you are going to -- do you 12 it's something that we've used before. But that's just
13 haveyour laptop plugged in to project and run the 13 some context in how it was created.
14 virtual tour? 14 So with that, | will go ahead and get started.
15  A. (Mr. Simpson) | think we're ready. 15 Wedo have the ahility to pause or rewind if you want to.
16 Q. Let'sstart by having you provide the Committee 16 | will betrying to stop quite afew timesjust to be
17 anunderstanding of what they're going to see on the 17 surel highlight some of the featuresin the study area.
18 virtual tour and how it was prepared in terms of the -- 18 But if there's any need to rewind or replay this, we can
19 whatever the software, the mapping, the technology that's |19 certainly do that.
20 used to prepare avirtual tour of thistype. 20 So before we get started, just to orient you to
21 A. (Mr.Simpson) What we're about to present is 21 thestudy area, as we discussed, Route A isshown in
22 dsimilar to some of the virtual toursyou may haveseenin |22 green, just likeitisin al the mapsthat are included
23 thepast. We're going to be reviewing each of the 23 onthe application.
24 routes, A, E, and G, and we'll be doing so using some 24 | guessthat startswhen | hit the laser. |
25 aeriad imagery. And the flyover will be alittle bit 25 won't do that again.
Page 75 Page 77
1 above ground as though you were flying in ahelicopter or | 1 So the green Route A is the route that connects
2 something. It will take us through the course of each 2 the TS-2 Substation along the Loop 303 and Olive Avenue.
3 route. 3 Thatisgoing to travel to the west, and that is going to
4 I will be stopping at some select points to 4 eventually connect with the Contrail Substation, which is
5 explain some of the key featuresin the study area. And 5 essentialy just to the east of Dysart Road and Olive
6 it'simportant to cover that because you're going to see 6 Avenue intersection.
7 some of these names of facilities not only in the 7 And you can see again that that route travelsto
8 application but in some of our testimony and perhaps be 8 thenorth up along Peoria Avenue, and that's by and large
9 ableto recall them tomorrow when we're in the -- doing 9 aresult of the Accident Potential Zones. We're going to
10 theactua physical route tour. 10 talk alot about that in our testimony.
11 And | would really highly recommend anybody 11 Route E is shown here in the purple color, and
12 attending that route tour. Y ou heard alot about the 12 that istheroute that travels from the El Sol-White
13 growth that's out there. Some of the things that are out 13 Tankstransmission line corridor back towards the west to
14 theretoday aren't showing in thisvideo simply because |14 the Contrail Substation. And welll talk about some of
15 it'shappening so fast. Thisimagery isfrom 2021, so 15 thefeaturesthere.
16 it'spretty current, but it's probably about eight months 16 And then the blue route is the Route G, and that
17 or so behind. And when you see the tour tomorrow, you're |17 also starts at the 230kV Contrail -- or, excuse me --
18 going to seethingsthat aren't even on our aerial maps 18 230kV El Sol-White Tanks line and also heads back to the
19 inthe application or in the video. 19 Contrail Substation.
20 As Mr. Derstine mentioned, we used a series of 20 So we'll do them in that order, and hopefully
21 software packagesto produce thevideo. Theimagery is |21 that will give you a pretty good sense of what's
22 from asource called Nearmap Aerial Imagery. Asl 22 happening out there and gives you some perspective on
23 mentioned, it'sfrom 2021. We did do some enhancements |23 some of the discussions so far today.
24  tothat so that some of the larger buildings and things 24 CHMN. KATZ: Member Grinnell, | don't know if
25 intheareahave some vertical reliefs so we have some 25 you wanted to say something.
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1 MEMBER GRINNELL: I just had aquick question. | 1 aong Olive Avenue follows an existing 69kV line along
2 Does APS own or are they responsible for all the 2 thislocation. The video doesn't show that, but you'll
3 substationsin this project? 3 seeonour tour alinethat is existing along this exact
4 MR. WILEY: APSwill be both the owner and the 4  path.
5 operator of these substations. 5 And we're continuing easterly now. You can see
6 MEMBER GRINNELL: Very well. Thank you. 6 alot of agricultural land inthisarea. Thisisan
7 MR. SIMPSON: All right. We'll begin with Route | 7 agricultural processing facility where they bring some of
8 A. You do see acompassin the right-hand corner. And 8 thecropsin for processing.
9 that will orient you to the direction of travel. And it 9 The areathat isjust to the right here, when we
10 will change over the course of the video, but that will 10 areout there on the tour, you'll see that that recently
11 giveyou some sense of the direction we're actually 11 brokeground. And there'sanew industrial facility
12 looking at. 12 that'sbeing built there. And that's going to be a
13 So we're now approaching the TS-2 Substation 13 frequent occurrence through thisarea. So thisisno
14 area whichisshowningreeninthisarea. Andthisis 14 longer going to be agricultural and redly isin
15 the northwest corner of Olive Avenue, which isright 15 transition as we speak.
16 here, and then you see the Loop 303 right here on the 16 So we're going to continue along Olive Avenue
17 eastern edge of that. So this substation was sited in a 17 till we get approximately the Reems Road intersection,
18 prior case. Thereisalarge transmission line that 18 and we'll take a pause and talk about a couple of things
19 feedsinto thisthat was a so the subject of aprior 19 inthat location.
20 case. 20 Q. BY MR.DERSTINE: Mr. Simpson, can | have you
21 You'll seethat inthefield on this particular 21 pauseit thereaminute. You mentioned that there'sa 69
22 imagery again. Thevertical structureslike that don't 22 linethat'sin place on Olive Avenue, but we're not
23 aways show up, but you're going to seethat onthetour |23 seeingit. So the structures that we're seeing there on
24 tomorrow. 24 the simulation, are those the simulated 230kV structures
25 So one of the reasons the route crosses the 25 for this project?
Page 79 Page 81
1 freeway whereit doesis because the design of the 1 A. (Mr.Simpson) Yes, that iscorrect. So these
2 substation is such it will accommodate the existing line 2 werethe structures, the approximate conceptual
3 entering the substation as well asthisfutureline. So 3 structuresthat were included in Exhibit G, and they're
4 thefuturelineisgoing to exit towards the north end of 4 aso the same structures that you see in our simulations
5 that new substation that will be built. It will cross 5 that wereincluded in Exhibit E. Soit'sjust projected
6 over top of the Loop 303 freeway and then turn 6 inthisvideo the same way it was to create those other
7 immediately south until it intersects with Olive Avenue. 7 graphics.
8 And then it will turn east, and we're going to go to that 8 CHMN. KATZ: Arethese lines going to be running
9 areanow. 9 inparalle tothe 69kV lines, or are they al going to
10 CHMN. KATZ: Now, isthe TS-2 Substation already |10 be integrated onto the same pole structure?
11 built, or isit part of the project to be built? 11 MR. SIMPSON: The proposal isto integrate
12 MR. SIMPSON: Itisnot built. That land was 12 indemnify. So what you will seeisthe 69kV lineswill
13 recently acquired by APS through negotiationswiththe |13 be built on these 230kV structures. And we have examples
14 prior landowner. That happened about midway through this |14 of what those structures would look like in Exhibit G.
15 project. At that point, APS was able to complete a 15 Andthat is also exactly how we permitted the lines on
16 preliminary layout of that substation, which allowed us 16 the other side of the freeway that we've talked about.
17 tofinetuneor route alittle bit asit comes out of the 17 It hasthat same configuration. You'll see some of that
18 TS-2 Substation. 18 built out that way tomorrow.
19 So it was al done as a part of that prior case 19 Q. BY MR.DERSTINE: Mr. Simpson, am | correct,
20 | mentioned. And part of that transmission line is now 20 then, that although we're not seeing the 69kV line here,
21 outthere. We'll seethat this particular substation is 21 that by collocating the existing 69 with the new 230
22 not built, but other substations related to that project 22 structures that the span, the separation between
23 werealso built. 23 structures will be increased, meaning we're going to see
24 So now, aswe travel easterly along Olive 24 less polesaong Olive Avenuein this area?
25 Avenue, onething that you'll noteis this entire length 25 A. (Mr.Simpson) That iscorrect. These polesare
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1 approximately 150 feet in height asthey'remodeled. And | 1 my experience goes with those large of large buildingsin
2 the span length that's modeled here is approximately 750 | 2 thisarea.
3 feet. That canvary alittle bit based on terrain and 3 One other thing | want to point out here, it's
4 other features, but we use that standard dimensioning to 4 not prominent in the imagery, but we will refer to the
5 represent this conceptually. And a69kV facility, you 5 Reems Road Channel Flood Control Facility. And that is
6 might only be able to span between, you know, 150 and 300 | 6 located along Reems Road on the west side. There'sa
7 feet, so you're amost doubling the length that these 7 large impoundment right here that is essentially designed
8 spanscan go. Soyou're going to have maybe half asmany | 8 to prevent flooding for the residential developmentsto
9 orless69kV structures, so it does help with that in 9 the north/northwest of here. We are going to be spanning
10 termsof the footprint of the project. 10 over top of that. We will not impact that directly. But
11 Q. |takeitthe new structures, the new poles, are 11 it doesconvey water from that areato the south.
12 taller than the existing 69kV poles? 12 Continuing easterly along Olive Avenue, again,
13 A. (Mr.Simpson) That's correct. The 69kV may 13 you seealot of agricultural land. They're making some
14 range, you know, in height up to 65 feet tall, give or 14 improvementsin the roadways and water and sewer along
15 take. Andas| mentioned, these structures at full 15 thisarea so that more development could comein along
16 buildout could be as high as 150 feet. 16 the south side of theroad. We're expecting some other
17 Q. Thank you for that. 17 developmentsto start soon there.
18 Proceed. 18 One key feature | want to point out is the
19 A. (Mr. Simpson) So continuing east along Olive 19 Plains Energy propane gas facility that is located along
20 Avenue, were coming up on another very interesting part |20 therailroad tracks that parallel Olive Avenue. Plains
21 of the study area. Thisisthe Reems Road intersection 21 Energy reached out to us very early. They were one of
22 with Olive Avenueright here. Theressomeagricultural |22 thefirst peopleto get in touch with us. They wanted to
23 facilitiesin thislocation. 23 make sure that we understood how their facility worked
24 What you're seeing built right here in this area 24 and where their pipelines were going. They wanted us to
25 on the northeast corner of Reems Road and Olive Avenueis |25 be on the south side of Olive Avenue, which also made
Page 83 Page 85
1 the APSFalcon Substation. The image here shows that 1 sensethere because of the 69 line that's there.
2 about half built. When we go out there tomorrow, we're 2 And they have pipelines that run both on the
3 going to be stopping inthisarea. That substationisa 3 north and south side of Olive here. They travel east to
4 69kV substation, and it's now fully built out and 4 Dysart Road. They then turn south and go for a couple of
5 operating. And that substation was added in thisareato 5 milesto the Morton Salt facility. The gasis offloaded
6 serveal the growth that is occurring north and south of 6 atthisfacility. It travelsthrough the pipelines, and
7 Olive Avenue and this area along Reems Road. 7 it'sstored in the salt caverns at the Morton Salt
8 This giant white building on the left-hand side 8 facility south of here along Dysart Road.
9 isowned by Mark Anthony Brewing. They have another | 9 So they had to relocate some of those lines, and
10 facility planned adjacent to the Falcon Substation. That |10 | believe they're expanding them to accommodate the road
11 isthe brewer of the beverages White Claw and MikesHard |11 widening that's going here. So they wanted to make sure
12 Lemonade, and they have some other facilities. 12 that we understood that and that we stayed on the south
13 To the north of that, you have the Red Bull 13 side of the road where they would not be impacted by the
14 energy drink facility and the Ball Corporation that 14 project.
15 actualy manufacturers cans for those facilities. 15 Continuing along to the east, we are now going
16 And in addition to that, you're going to see 16 to behitting what is essentially the turning point of
17 over onthe east side of those buildings more new 17 the Burlington Northern Santa Fe Railroad. And that
18 buildings that have been started. So there's cold 18 railroad you can see here turns and heads north. And,
19 storage facilities, more industrial warehouses of that 19 eventualy, it'sgoing to tiein up by Grand Avenue, well
20 nature. Andit's quite impressive to seethese 20 outside of our study area. But that's where thisline
21 buildings. They're not afew thousand square feet. They |21 originates, isalong Grand Avenue. And thisline
22 canrangein size up to amillion square feet of 22 higtorically was built to serve agricultural needs, so it
23 buildings. And when you travel along the 303 now, you |23 wasbringing in farm chemicals and farm fertilizers,
24 will see many, many of those types of buildingsout in 24  things of that nature. And then they would take the farm
25 thisarea. It'sreally unprecedented, at least asfar as 25 products out from there.
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1 Now thisrail line is becoming a key part of 1 So now we're going to turn north on Litchfield
2 theselargelogistics centers and industrial facilities, 2 Road, and we will continue until the intersection of
3 sothey'rebringing raw productsin and bringing finished | 3 Litchfield Road and Peoria Avenue. And that's coming up
4 products out that way. So you may see new train traffic 4 now. Sowell turn and we'll head east along Peoria
5 onthisparticular set of tracks that really was pretty 5 Avenue.
6 dow for years. Thereweren't alot of trains on there, 6 And, again, one thing you'll note hereisthe
7 but you'll see moretrainsif you spend enough time out 7 significant amount of industrial, light industrial,
8 there. But they consider that to be areally valuable 8 commercial-type development that is along the north side
9 component of thiswhole development and why wereseeing | 9 of Peoria. Thereisanother large residence here. I've
10 alot of the types of projects out here. 10 seen sometraffic pulling in there that | think this
11 So we'll cross Olive Avenue and head to the 11 residenceright also be part of the facilities that are
12 north along therailroad, and we'll eventually get to the 12 acrossthe street from it, maybe an owner of that
13 intersection of Litchfield Road. Again, over here, 13 facility. But I've seen some traffic going back and
14 you'll see some agricultural facilities. There'sa 14 forth between there one day. I'm speculating alittle
15 nursery. And you'll see some residences here. These 15 hit, but | think that house was built there probably by
16 residences do have frontage along that 69kV line. 16 the owners of that business.
17 One of the potential advantages of thisrouteis 17 And, again, as we travel east, you're going to
18 APSisconsidering underbuilding that route all theway |18 see agricultural development on the south side. And it's
19 dong here, which may allow them to remove that 69kV line |19 fairly wide open south of Peoria. But thisisalso an
20 that existstoday in front of those residences and put it 20 areawhere we've sat down with the developer called
21 onthese new structures so that there would be some 21 Dermody Properties. It was previously owned by John F.
22 potentia visua benefit. Asaresult of this project, 22 Long up until the end of thisyear. And John F. Long has
23 it would take that line directly from the frontage of 23 conveyed that property through a saleto Dermody. It
24 those homes and move it away from there. 24  encompasses about 910 acres, and they have plansto
25 That was largely aresult of some discussions 25 develop it similarly asthat Woolf Logistics Park.
Page 87 Page 89
1 with Luke Air Force Base more close to their Accident 1 And the name of that development is called
2 Potential Zones. It wasn't as aresult of these 2 Copperwing Logistics Center, | think. And we understand
3 residences, but | did want to point that out. 3 that that could include alarge array of industrial and
4 So we're going to continue north, as| 4 commercial business park-type devel opments south of the
5 mentioned, along therailroad tracks. Y ou're going to 5 road in the near future.
6 seeawood recycling facility here. There'snot alot of 6 Some of the data they shared with us we can't
7 permanent facilities in here or anything, but there are 7 specificaly talk about as it was considered
8 some out structures and some equipment that sits out in 8 confidential, but they do have some projectsthat are
9 thisarea. They essentially take wood waste from home 9 going to be brought forward fairly soon, and they're
10 developments and things that are being built, and they 10 moving through the City of El Mirage for that.
11 mulchthat up. They storeit, they compost it, turn it 11 So continuing east, again, you're going to see
12 into avaluable product. Andyou can seesomeof thatin |12 more of thelight industrial and commerce park on the
13 theright hand side here. Y ou can see where the mulch 13 north side.
14 pilesare. 14 We're going to get to the point where we have a
15 The areato the left is another agriculture use 15 residentia subdivision, which is called the Dysart
16 facility. They storealot of irrigation pipe here. 16 Ranchettes. And that particular subdivisionislocated
17 There are some buildings that are associated with the 17 onthe north side of Peoria. These arelarge lot homes,
18 agricultural facilitiesinthearea. Thereisa 18 sothey'relow density areas, but this community has been
19 residencewhich | believeis probably worker housing for |19 part of EI Mirage for anumber of years. And we've had
20 that particular facility here. 20 communications about that property with the City of
21 And similar to that, across the road along 21 El Mirage and spent quite a bit of time talking to them
22 Litchfield Road is another large farm operation, lots of 22 about some of the concerns, the visual concerns, across
23 agricultural out structures, and then there are some 23 that street.
24 isolated residencesin herethat | believe are probably 24 And in our studies, we've kind of acknowledged
25 worker housing for that farm. 25 the potential for impacts there, but we've worked quite
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1 closdly with the City of El Mirage to make sure we're 1 Avenuedl the way across from TS-2 over to the Contrail

2 doing what we can to stay far away from them and consider | 2 Substation?

3 theimpacts of those residences. That is called the 3 A. (Mr.Simpson) Yeah. Andwe will talk very

4 Dysart Ranchettes Subdivision. 4 detailed about the Accident Potential Zones with Luke as

5 At 127th Avenue, we're going to turn and head 5 weéll astheir airspace management concerns.

6 south. And, again, onething | wanted to point out over 6 But, really, the only viable way that you could

7 hereisthefairly new City of El Mirage complex that was | 7 get to the -- around the Accident Potential Zones, the

8 built by the City of El Mirage. It includes a park 8 only way that Luke Air Force Base would support the

9 caled Gateway Park, aYMCA, police department, thenew | 9 project isto avoid crossing through their Accident
10 city hall. And | believethere's acouple other 10 Potential Zones, which extend approximately 2 miles from
11 facilitiesin there associated with the recreation inside 11 theend of the runway.

12 that park. 12 Depending on what activity is happening with
13 Thiswas akey part of our studies because 13 Luketomorrow, you may seejets either landing or taking
14 El Mirage wanted to preserve the frontage along theroad |14 off inthat area. 1've been out there at times where
15 over on El Mirage Road and also east on Peoria here, 15 there'salot of air traffic. | was out there this
16 because they recently had buried a number of smaller 16 morning. They were taking off to the north. And you can
17 distribution power lines that served that area. So it 17 seeexactly how they travel through that and where they
18 wasreally important for them that we didn't continue 18 raise up and where they come down. And you can kind of
19 further east and they wanted usto stay to the west, 19 see how the operational concerns that they express play
20 whichiskind of what we've done here. 20 out. AndI'm hoping that we see some of that tomorrow
21 So at this point, we followed the future 127th 21 becausel think it'sareally good visual for people for
22 Avenueaignment. Thisis part of the development that |22 seethe concern there.
23 I've mentioned, the Copperwing Logistics Center. And |23 We met with Luke Air Force Base many, many
24 that really, at full buildout, would include all of this 24 times. They werethefirst people we talked to and some
25 land that you see between Peoria Avenue and then way off |25 of thelast people we talked to. And we did alot of

Page 91 Page 93

1 inthe horizon where it connects with Contrail. So a 1 technical studiesto resolve their concerns and get their

2 very largetract of land with some pretty intense 2 support, and thisis the route that they supported

3 development proposed there. 3 exclusively.

4 So, currently, we'll travel through the 4 Q. Andthat'sbecause we removed -- essentially

5 agricultural areas. Y ou can see some of the roads that 5 adjusted the alignment off of Olive Avenue to the north

6 servethe agricultural areas at some places. 6 toavoid those Accident Potential Zones and stay out of

7 And then we continue south crossing over top of 7 thered and the yellow area that's shown in those boxes

8 Olive Avenue. And thenit tiesinto the Contrail 8 onour corridor map which is on the right screen.

9 Substation, which is shown herein the yellow. You've 9 MEMBER HAMWAY : So | have aquick question. You
10 seenthe picture that Mr. Wiley showed you what that 10 saidthat Luke supported A exclusively? So they don't
11 substation lookslike. That isbuilt out. It'swalled 11 support G or F or whatever --

12 up. The69kV facilitiesareal inthere. Andthe230kV |12 MR. SIMPSON: They do. It had less bearing on
13 facilitieswould be built at the north end of that. 13 their operations because it was far enough east. They
14 Thislarge white building to the right isthe 14 had some opinions on that, and they did review them to
15 Microsoft datacenter. And their entire campus, as 15 make sure they weren't going to have an impact. So their
16 Mr. Wiley pointed out, is quite large and includes this 16 letter mentionsthose routes. But we had a-- we had

17 whole quarter section of land. So thisisjust part of 17 considered alot of other routes. And in our Exhibit B,
18 what you're going to seein the future. 18 we have anumber of other routes that we did study.

19 Q. Mr. Simpson, | wanted to -- I'm looking at 19 So when | say "exclusive,”" they didn't want to

20 Figure 1, which isthe map, the static map that wehad on |20 support any of the other routes because they would have
21 thescreenspreviously. 21 impacted the Accident Potential Zonesto a greater

22 Is there a reason why we turned up and followed 22 degree. Sothat wasthe reason that, after many meetings
23 therailroad and then moved up along Litchfield, and now |23 and alot of technical studies, thisisthe only route

24 we're up on Peoria Avenue, and then we're going to come |24 that they would support.

25 back to the south? Why didn't we just stay on Olive 25 MEMBER LITTLE: Mr. Chairman.
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1 CHMN. KATZ: Yes, Member Little. 1 MR. SIMPSON: Mostly in the yellow.
2 MEMBER LITTLE: | have aquestion. You 2 And if we could go back to the video, | can
3 mentioned crossing the propane lines where they turn 3 actually show you in alittle bit better context what
4 south from that facility to the salt caverns. The 4 that's going to be.
5 transmission line will actually go over the buried 5 So the yellow box that is shown hereisthe
6 propanelines; isthat correct? 6 walled areawithin the recently built Contrail 69kV
7 MR. SIMPSON: In that area, there will be some 7 substation.
8 paralleling of the propanelines. Y ou know, we haven't 8 The 230kV substation is going to expand out here
9 done aspecific design there. Wewere provided drawings | 9 inthenorth. So you can see some of the equipment in
10 from them so we know roughly where the propanelinesare |10 here. You see those white structures. And | think if |
11 located, but we haven't done afinal design to know 11 play thisalittle bit longer, it will actually disappear
12 exactly where the propane lines will bein relation to 12 there.
13 thetransmission line. But what we generally agreed is 13 So, again, keep in mind thisimagery was taken
14 that we will be far enough and separated from them enough |14 at an earlier date. So when you go out here today,
15 where we won't have a direct impact on them. 15 you're actually going to see a complete security fence
16 MEMBER LITTLE: | thought you said that they 16 around the whole Microsoft property. It'skind of a
17 turned south to go down to the salt caverns, though, at 17 metal screen fence around the entire property. And then
18 some point. 18 insidethat, you're going to see the wall that APS has
19 MR. SIMPSON: Yeah. Soyou'reright. | mean, 19 built specifically in this darker dirt colored area,
20 justtoillustrate on this graphic, so, technically, 20 whichisactually rock | believe that constitutes the
21 vyeah, there would have to be a crossing of the lines 21 entire substation that we built out.
22 overhead to go north here because the Plains Energy 22 And I'll let Mr. Wiley explain any more.
23 facility issitting in this area here, and then the 23 CHMN. KATZ: Andinthat view, whereisthe
24 pipelinesturn and they go all the way down hereroughly |24 Microsoft facility going to be built?
25 tothisarea 25 MR. SIMPSON: Right here. The first phase of it
Page 95 Page 97
1 MEMBER LITTLE: Okay. 1 isthislarge white building.
2 MR. SIMPSON: Soyou areright. Therewould be, | 2 Again, well try to get you by that facility on
3 | think technically, both a parallel situation and then 3 thetour so you can seethescaleof it, butitisa
4 onecrossing to get -- 4 very, very large building. AndthisisPhasel. | can't
5 MEMBER LITTLE: Okay. 5 becertain, but | believe the earthwork you're seeing
6 MR. SIMPSON: So the ideawould be, again, 6 hereright now is another phase. And you've got worker
7 locating those structures so they are not in conflict 7 parking and construction activity, marked storage yards
8 with thelines, and then they would spanthemto get over | 8 and things of that nature down here.
9 top of them. 9 But it really isthis complex between the
10 CHMN. KATZ: And | just had aquestion. | know |10 substation, and the Microsoft datacenter is a quarter
11 that little yellow box within the purple square is the 11 section of land, which isroughly 160 acres.
12 existing Contrail Substation. But there's also that 12 So that completes the route segment A.
13 TS-20 230kV substation. Isthat on the property of the 13 We will now goto G.
14 little -- | mean, where -- who is -- whereis that going 14 So as | mentioned, thisis the route shown in
15 to beor what isthat going to be? I'm sorry. 15 purple. Thisisgoing to be along Olive Avenue. I'll
16 MR. SIMPSON: So the Contrail Substation was 16 let the video catch up here alittle bit. We'll pause,
17 initially named such because it wasthe 69kV line. The |17 and I'll get you oriented again.
18 TS-20ismore of asystem reference that stands for 18 Excuse me. | said Route G. ThisisRoute E.
19 Transmission Substation No. 20. So early in planning, 19 CHMN. KATZ: The purple?
20 that hasageneric name. So we had that on there because |20 MR. SIMPSON: Yes.
21 it'sreferenced in other documents. But it's ultimately 21 So afew key points about the takeoff point
22 Contrail isgoing to be a69 and 230kV substation 22 here. Wetak alot about the existing White
23 combined. 23 Tanks-El Sol 230kV line. So that line exists at
24 CHMN. KATZ: Soisit going to be expanded 24  approximately 111th Avenue and Olive Avenue. And there
25 within that purple area? Isthat the idea? 25 isamagjor transmission line corridor located at this
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1 intersection. One of them isthe 230 line well be 1 Q. That'sinthe City of Peoria?
2 connecting in, and it looks similar to the one that we're 2 A. (Mr. Simpson) Correct.
3 proposing. 3 Q. Andthat Suncliff Subdivision, that's where the
4 But the other two lines are larger lattice 4 council member lives who has expressed some interest in
5 structure linesthat you see traversing rural areas more 5 opposition to the project who may show up today at public
6 commonly. We do have in the urban area many that were | 6 comment. Do | have that right?
7 built years ago. 7 A. (Mr.Simpson) | believe so.
8 What you'll notice hereisthisisavery well 8 Q. Andthat Suncliff Subdivision, how old isthat
9 established transmission line corridor that's been here 9 inrelation to the transmission lines that surround it
10 for many decades. And right behind this, when thevideo |10 and that you've identified?
11 starts up again and thislabel will go away, you'll be 11 A. (Mr. Simpson) | went back and reviewed alot of
12 ableto seethe El Sol Substation. 12 thehistorical datafor thisarea. And onething that's
13 So thisareathat'sin vacant land is all zones 13 really great about the resources we have today, | was
14 for utilitiesin the general plans. This happensto be 14 ableto pull aerial imagery up that was well over 20
15 the Town of Youngtown on the north side of Olive Avenue. |15 yearsold.
16 Thisresidential subdivision hereisalsoin Youngtown. 16 And it appears as though the subdivision was
17 It'scaled AguaFriaRanch. That'slocated onthenorth |17 approved sometime around the early part of the year 2000
18 sideof Olive Avenue. 18 or so. Could have been even earlier than that. But it
19 And then this subdivision is the Suncliff 19 lookslike construction on that subdivision started about
20 Subdivision, which isinside the boundaries of the City 20 2001, and then it was pretty well under way in 2002 and
21 of Peoria. Anditison the south side. And this 21 then continued to build out.
22 corridor, much like we talked about the south end of 22 Soit'san interesting area. It'sfairly
23 Olive Avenue, aso has a number of 69kV lines built 23 industrialized. We're going to talk about thisin a
24  currently and front along thisroadway on the north side. |24 minute. There'savery large scale sand and gravel
25 Many of them connect back directly into that El Sol 25 operation to the west side. There's quite a bit of
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1 Substation. Sothisareais heavily influenced by prior 1 industria facilities along Olive as you continue to the
2 utility development projects, and you'll see that in some 2 west. You havethe substation facilities, the
3 of our future testimony aswell as the route tour. 3 transmission lines. Itisabit of aunique areain that
4 Q. BY MR.DERSTINE: Mr. Simpson, let mehaveyou | 4 the community looks like it was approved within avery
5 pausetherejust a second. 5 well developed industrial setting to begin with. And it
6 In terms of -- so the purple patch is the 6 lookslikethat's how it started.
7 proposed interconnection point with the existing White 7 MEMBER HAMWAY : So real quickly, was the 69kV
8 Tankstransmission line and then the El Sol Substationis | 8 linethere before the development of the community or
9 abit tothewest on Olive Avenue. Do | have that right? 9 dfter?
10 A. (Mr.Simpson) Yeah. Thelabel with the blue 10 MEMBER LITTLE: 230kV.
11 dot is showing approximate areathat could be one of the |11 MR. SIMPSON: | can't speak to that --
12 connections. | think the requested corridor that APSis 12 MEMBER HAMWAY : What I'm saying isthe 69 is
13 asking for, that line actually runs along this area, and 13 there now, right?
14 then it turns and goesinto the El Sol. So 14 MR. SIMPSON: Yeah, it isthere now. | can't
15 theoretically, that interconnection could be made 15 say for sureif it would have been, but my guessis
16 coming -- you know, virtually anywhere from thenorth |16 because the El Sol Substation has been there along time,
17 side of Olive Avenue back toward the El Sol Substationor |17 that some of the 69 lines that connect there would have
18 into thetransmission line. 18 beenthereasoalongtime.
19 And, again, they've evaluated | think each one 19 MR. GOLESTAN: That's speculation on that,
20 asfeasible, but they need time into more detailed 20 Mr. Chairman.
21 studies once theroute is approved, and then they can 21 CHMN. KATZ: Again, he can render his opinion,
22 makeafinal determination on that. 22 I'mnot going to -- it's hot going to influence us, and
23 Q. And then the subdivision on the south side of 23 wedon't follow strict rulings of evidence. | do
24  Olive Avenue, that's the Suncliff Subdivision? 24 understand -- | don't want you guessing.
25 A. (Mr.Simpson) That's correct. 25 MR. SIMPSON: Yeah. And I think again APS could
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1 find the construction datafor that. | went onto Google 1 And then we have a short section about half mile
2 Earth, and you can see transmission facilities in those 2 between El Mirage and the 127th Avenue alignment that
3 images. Ittellsquiteastory. | think that's how | 3 essentialy isthe turning point again where thisline
4 kind of determined what this area was like. 4 would turn and also head south and get to the Contrail
5 MEMBER HAMWAY: And what'sthenameof that | 5 Substation.
6 community? 6 Again, I'll orient you. We have Olive Avenue
7 MR. SIMPSON: Suncliff Subdivision. Onesignon | 7 here, we have the Microsoft Phase 1 facility located
8 thenorth side says Suncliff. The sign on the south side 8 here, and then the yellow isthe Contrail Substation
9 saysHorizonsat Suncliff. So | think that was probably 9 built out with 69kV and the future 230 to be added.
10 asecond phase that developed later. 10 MEMBER LITTLE: Mr. Chairman.
11 MEMBER HAMWAY: Okay. Thank you. 11 CHMN. KATZ: Yes, Member Little.
12 Q. BY MR.DERSTINE: Do you wanttotakeusalong |12 MEMBER LITTLE: Soit looks like there's going
13  now what will be the route on Olive. 13 to be onelong span from Olive Avenue south to the
14 A. (Mr.Simpson) Yeah. So continuing west now 14 substation itself where the two circuits are going to be
15 toward the Contrail Substation, again, we're following 15 parallel to one another or on the same poles? Y eah,
16 thedirect path of an existing 69kV substation -- or 69kV |16 right there.
17 transmission line. We talked about the El Sol substation |17 MR. SIMPSON: I'll let Mr. Wiley maybe address
18 thatislocated here. Again, you can seetransmission 18 that. | don't think that you're going to see the
19 lines. There'stwo separate 69kV transmission linesthat |19 facilities consolidate here. | think you're going to
20 tieinfrom here. And thenthey continueto gowesterly |20 have some parallel sections of line from Route A and G.
21 dongthe north side of Olive. One of them doescrossto |21 MEMBER LITTLE: But they'll be on the same
22 the south side and goes through the sand and gravel 22  right-of-way?
23 operation. 23 MR. SIMPSON: Yes.
24 You'll see aswe travel through this area, many 24 MEMBER LITTLE: Okay.
25 areas have been previously mined, and there are some 25 MR. WILEY: Again, we haven't gone to fina
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1 areasthat are still actively being mined. You'll seea 1 design yet, we would potentially have both of these
2 seriesof pitsand spoil piles and active mining 2 circuits double-circuited on the same structures at this
3 operations all through that area. 3 location for this single span that we're talking about
4 Thisisthe Agua Fria River corridor. You'll 4 here. However, we wouldn't be double-circuiting the
5 also hear us mention that quite abit. The area of the 5 entireway, just the single span here.
6 AguaFriaRiver corridor to the north isfairly well 6 MR. SIMPSON: So now we'll be moving on to
7 intact. It'sstill got alot of its national appeal and 7 Route G, which isthe route that is shown in the light
8 feel toit asfar as vegetation and terrain goes. 8 blueor cyan color.
9 Everything south of Olive Avenue all the way well past 9 So we're about a mile south of Route E, and this
10 Northern Avenueis very heavily mined. It's got many, 10 isasimilar takeoff point in that the transmission
11  many years, decades of mining activity, soitlooksvery |11 corridor that we talked about before that contains two
12 different than the north side, very industrialized. 12 230kV linesand a 345kV line. Two large lattice
13 This particular complex here is afast food 13 structures and one single-pole structure is the takeoff
14 restaurant and agas station. And, again, there's quite 14 point at thislocation as well.
15 ahit of setback here where the existing 69 line runs 15 The homes that are located behind the takeoff
16 along the north side of Olive, so we don't have any 16 point areaso | believe part of the same development
17 direct impactsto those areas. And you can tell wed 17 that thiswas originally connected to. | mean, they're
18 probably be spanning, for the most part, the residential 18 not exactly connected, but thisisalso | believe called
19 areaswithout having alot of structures right adjacent 19 theHorizons over thisway. The Suncliff Horizons
20 tothem. 20 Subdivisionislocated right here, so that's north of the
21 And, again, we continue to go west. Wegetto a 21 Northern Parkway corridor.
22 point where you can see the sand and gravel operationis |22 You'l still see some signage out here that
23 both sides of the roads, and then there's a number of 23 dtill says Northern Avenue at this section, but you can
24 industria facilities located along the northwest corner 24 seegoing all the way down to the west, thisis the new
25 of El Mirage and Olive Avenue. 25 Northern Parkway. Y ou can see where new construction has
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1 been taken place, and that's afully built out freeway 1 you'relooking essentially right into the landfill.
2 heading to the west. 2 Q. Aml seeingdirt or aretaining wall or what am
3 Thisfacility right here isthe City of Glendae 3 | seeing?
4 landfill. And thisistheir northern cell, which is now 4 A. (Mr. Simpson) Y ou do seethe south cell because
5 under development. They are putting in and installing 5 it'swell elevated above grade. Some views, you will see
6 linersfor the landfill, and that consists of both the 6 predominantly the wall and then just the skyline above
7 synthetic liner and also | believe asoil clay liner. | 7 that.
8 can see some evidence of both those going in there. It's 8 Again, it depends on where you're at. When you
9 hardto look over the wall that's there, but if you find 9 get closeto the intersection of that roadway entering
10 strategic areas, you can get up high enough and look in 10 thesubdivision, it'sin alow spot, so you see less of
11 there. 11 thelandfill there. But asyou go back into it, you
12 Their development plans for that started 12 start to see more of it when you come from the north to
13 changing over a couple years from the south cell. 13 the south.
14 They're dtill landfilling the south cell. But you'll 14 Q. Andthenin that open desert areato the east of
15 notice the work now is trending north, and the south cell |15  the Suncliff Subdivision, did you say that that's an
16 isgetting closer to completion, where that particular 16 existing transmission line corridor?
17 landfill areais approximately 2- to 300 feet tall, so 17 A. (Mr. Simpson) Thatiscorrect. That isthe
18 it'squitelarge. Very visiblein the landscape. 18 230/345kV corridor that's been there for decades.
19 And when you look at what the north cell is 19 Q. Soby theimagery picked it up, | would be
20 doing, it's actually below grade right now because this 20 looking at what, lattice towersin that areato the east
21 waslocated in aprior premined area. So it's starting 21 of the Suncliff Subdivision?
22 below grade but will eventually build up over thecoming |22 A. (Mr. Simpson) Two lattice structures and a
23 yearsasthey landfill it. So that landfill will 23 single-pole structure similar to the one that we're
24 eventualy extend all the way to the south side of 24  proposing.
25 Northern Parkway. And we'll again get apretty good look |25 Q. And then to the west of the Suncliff
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1 at that tomorrow. 1 Subdivision, what is that open areathere?
2 Q. BY MR.DERSTINE: Could| haveyou pausethere, | 2 A. (Mr.Simpson) Thisareahereis part of the
3 Mr. Simpson. Just orient me and the Committeeto someof | 3 sand and gravel operation that we talked about on the
4 thekey features there. 4 north side. There'sactually acorner of thisright
5 So using your cursor, the Suncliff Subdivision 5 adjacent to the subdivision that is a materials yard,
6 isthere where you're moving the mouse cursor; isthat 6 landscape materials. So contractors who deliver rock can
7 right? 7 comein there, load their trucks up, haul material out to
8 A. (Mr.Simpson) That iscorrect. 8 their landscape jobs. Individual homeowners can also go
9 Q. Sotheentrancein and out of the Suncliff 9 inthere and purchase and load rock there. It's a pretty
10 Subdivision onto Northern or what will become the 10 busy facility. | was by there thismorning. It wasa
11 Northern Parkway iswhere? Right there? 11 pretty busy facility, everybody picking up their loads
12 A. (Mr.Simpson) Yes. 12 for theday.
13 Q. Andif I'mdriving out of the Suncliff 13 The area around that is an area of previously
14 Subdivision, what am | seeing as | look to the south? 14 mined areas and active mining areas. So | don't know the
15 A. (Mr. Simpson) Essentially, you'relooking 15 full nature of how long that sand and gravel activity
16 directly at the landfill. Soyou'll see both the view 16 will bethere, but the general plans show that areafor
17 wall that | think was built both for security and 17 future mixed-use devel opment, so probably
18 aesthetics around the edge of the landfill. 18 commercial/light industrial, similar to alot of the
19 And then depending upon whereyou'reat, youdo |19 other areas.
20 pick up some elevation as you drive into the subdivision. |20 And then the landfill | believeis going to be
21 Soyou'll see quite ahit of the south cell of the 21 therefor many, maybe years. Landfills move pretty slow.
22 landfill. And asyou get lower to the intersection, 22 They grow and, you know, it's economically beneficial for
23 you'll seealittle bit less of that becauseit'sa 23 themto utilize all the space they can. So | suspect
24 little bit of alow spot in the road right here. But, 24 that will betherealongtime. It's also been there
25 essentially, where you are on the road right there, 25 approximately 20 years. So it started about 20 years ago
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1 according to the aerial imagery. 1 thesegment of Route G; isthat correct?
2 Q. Andwhereisthe proposed location for the 2 A. (Mr.Simpson) That'sright. That'sthe area
3 double-circuit 230kV line? Will it be on the north side 3 noted on the existing corridor map, APS-7. Mr. Duncan
4 or south side of Northern Avenue there? 4 pointed that out in histestimony afew minutes ago. But
5 A. (Mr.Simpson) We're proposing it be on the 5 that isthe exact segment opposite of thisresidential
6 south side, and that islargely because of the City of 6 areawherethere's going to be consideration for
7 Glendale, anditisanindustrial zoned area. And the 7 undergrounding.
8 City of Glendale was supportive of us being along that 8 CHMN. KATZ: I'm alittle bit -- I'm looking at
9 facility. Inessence, their only concern was that we 9 that map, Exhibit 7, thecyan line. And| seewhereit's
10 weren't too far into the landfill so that we could affect 10 contemplated at No. 12 on that map of that being
11 their operations or affect how much usable spacethey had |11 undergrounded. But where the heck does that connect to?
12 for thelandfill. 12 | mean, | saw the other segment E, | think it was,
13 So there's -- inside the wall, the retaining 13 connecting to the El Sol Substation. Where does thisend
14 wall that'sinside the landfill, there is a strip of land 14 upgoing? Becauseit's showing it deadends where it
15 that's native material, so thetransmission linewouldbe |15 might be undergrounded.
16 located, in essence, inside that wall on areas that 16 MR. SIMPSON: Yeah. In essence, again, if you
17 hadn't previously been mined or don't look like they'll 17 were able to capture those structures in the aerial
18 bedirectly part of the landfill. 18 imagery, you would actually see the transmission
19 MEMBER HAMWAY : So these housing developments |19  structure that exists there today. So the connection
20 areinEl Mirage or they'rein Glendale? | guess what 20 pointisgoing to be with the transmission linethat is
21 I'mlooking at -- who approved the zoning for these 21 currently built in this area.
22 housing devel opments? 22 And we do have some photos of this area, and we
23 MR. SIMPSON: The ones on the north sideis all 23 havethoseincluded in our application. And aswe get
24  City of Peoria, and we do have a map that shows the 24 through more parts of the testimony, we can elaborate on
25 jurisdiction, so its current jurisdiction. And we also 25 that. And thiswill also be a stop on our tour tomorrow.
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1 have amap that shows what is the long-term planning 1 And | think when you physically are able to observe this,
2 areas, which shows how each of the cities plan in their 2 it'sgoing to be much easier to understand.
3 genera plan, which most of the land and beyond thisarea | 3 CHMN. KATZ: Soit will be connecting to
4 isgoing to be City of Glendale and then some El Mirage. | 4 existing power or transmission lines. It won't be
5 But this particular area where these residences 5 heading into a substation.
6 hereisPeoria. So, again, | don't know the full nature 6 MR. SIMPSON: Correct. Yeah.
7 of that, but it looks to me like when this development 7 MEMBER PALMER: Mr. Chairman.
8 dtarted, it was approved adjacent to all these prior 8 CHMN. KATZ: Yes.
9 industrial uses. 9 MEMBER PALMER: It might clarify, if you look,
10 MEMBER HAMWAY : Right. 10 that dashed bluelineisan existing transmission
11 Q. BY MR.DERSTINE: How far to thewest doesthe |11 corridor that these lines are connecting to.
12 City of Peoriajurisdiction go? Doesit extend beyond 12 MEMBER HAMWAY: So just a point of
13 thesand and gravel operation or doesit end at the 13 clarification. So | seethe existing 230kV power line as
14 subdivision? 14 it'sheading south. So it goes right now through this
15 A. (Mr. Simpson) | believethat it includesthis 15 areathat APSisthinking about undergrounding?
16 materialsyard, so | would say another maybe 1,000 feet, |16 MR. SIMPSON: There are three lines that go
17 approximately, to the west. And then it turns and goes 17 north and south right at the point where they are
18 north back up to Olive Avenue and then heads back tothe |18 considering undergrounding as the line would travel west.
19 east. Sothisiskind of an edge of the City of Peoria 19 MEMBER HAMWAY : So they're only going to
20 and extendsinto other jurisdictions. 20 underground one of them? They're not going to
21 Q. Youmentioned that the planisto put the 21 underground everything? Maybe?
22 Route G, the double-circuit 230kV lines behind thewall |22 MR. WILEY: To clarify, the transmission
23 within the boundary of the City of Glendale landfill. 23 corridor isthe areain the center of the screen where
24 That's also the location that APS has agreed to 24 that bluedot is. That'swhere there are existing
25 investigate and explore as the location to underground 25 facilities. Where we would be undergrounding is from
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1 that location heading west along Northern Avenue. So 1 eastern boundary of Suncliff; isthat correct?
2 thiswould be anew transmission line. We are not 2 A. (Mr.Wiley) Yes, that's correct.
3 undergrounding the existing lines in the transmission 3 Q. Andthen our new double-circuit 230kV lineswill
4 corridor that's there today. 4 then betraveling west along Northern -- that will become
5 So thislocation right here is where you have 5 the Northern Parkway within the boundary of the Glendale
6 severa transmission lineslocated here today. 6 landfill?
7 MEMBER HAMWAY': So that isthisline here on 7 A. (Mr.Wiley) Yes, that iscorrect.
8 thismap that'sthat -- 8 Q. Andthenat some point, asit travelsto the
9 MR. SIMPSON: Yeah. 9 west, it then will head up to the Contrail Substation,
10 MEMBER HAMWAY : What you're pointing toright |10 and Mr. Simpson can show us that on the flyover as he
11 now isthisdotted line that Mr. Palmer wastalking 11 completes Route G.
12 about? 12 MEMBER LITTLE: Mr. Chairman, | have one more
13 MR. SIMPSON: That's correct. 13 question.
14 MR. WILEY: Perhapsif we could pull up APS-7, |14 CHMN. KATZ: Certainly.
15  Exhibit A. 15 MEMBER LITTLE: I know you told us before and |
16 MR. SIMPSON: Let me do one quick thing. 16 apologize, but can you tell me again why it's not
17 MR. WILEY: Thelocation that we were just 17 feasibleto underground any portion of the line that goes
18 seeingisthislocation right here on thismap. Thisis 18 aong Olive Avenue on the north end of that subdivision?
19 theexisting transmission corridor. Thisisthe location 19 MR. DERSTINE: | don't know that we spoke to
20 where we would potentially be undergrounding. Andthis |20 that, but | think Mr. Wiley can address that.
21 hatched arearight here is where those residents are for 21 Q. BY MR.DERSTINE: Intermsof looking at
22 the Suncliff development. 22 undergrounding on Northern versus Olive, why isthe
23 MEMBER HAMWAY : But you said therewerethree |23 consideration being given to undergrounding that portion
24 lines? 24 on Olive -- | mean on Northern Avenue as opposed to the
25 MR. WILEY : In thistransmission corridor, 25 Route E dong Olive Avenue?
Page 115 Page 117
1 correct. 1 MEMBER LITTLE: Correct. Thank you.
2 MEMBER HAMWAY: So | guess arethere existing | 2 MR. WILEY: We did look at the possihility of
3 linesand the transmission corridor running through those | 3 undergrounding along Olive Avenue near the El Sol
4 people's areawhere you're thinking of undergrounding the | 4 Substation. However, constructability was not an option
5 new 2307 5 there dueto the existing facilities in the area, some of
6 MR. WILEY: Yes. There'sexisting lines here 6 which were existing electrical facilities. Other include
7 today. | believe there's three of them. We will be 7 water facilities.
8 adding one coming off to the west, and we would be 8 Q. BY MR.DERSTINE: So you'rereferring to
9 undergrounding the portion that connects into those 9 underground conflicts that would prevent you from placing
10 existing lines. 10 the duct bank and the new proposed double-circuit 230
11 MEMBER HAMWAY : And how long isthat corridor? |11 lines underground along Olive?
12 Ordid you say? 12 A. (Mr.Wiley) Yes, that is correct.
13 MR. SIMPSON: Potentially up to 2,000 feet is 13 MEMBER LITTLE: Thank you.
14 what the requested corridor ask is. A quarter milewould |14 MR. SIMPSON: And just for reference, | was able
15 be 1,320 feet. So 2,000, you're getting closer to a 15 toidentify in Exhibit A on page A-13, A-13, thereisa
16 third of amile. 16 picture of the corridor that you've been asking about.
17 MEMBER HAMWAY : Okay. 17 And it shows at the top of that page and has a picture of
18 Q. BY MR.DERSTINE: Andto clarify for Member |18 thelocation of the transmission lines right due east of
19 Hamway, the existing lattice structures, the230 andthe |19 the Suncliff Subdivision. And it says, asalabel,
20 345 transmission lines serve as the eastern boundary 20 230/345kV Transmission Line Corridor. So that's
21 running north and south and long the Suncliff 21 Exhibit A, page A-13. And that will give you avery good
22 Subdivision. Isthat right, Mr. Wiley? 22 ideawhat the existing corridor in relationship to the
23  A. (Mr.Wiley) Yes, that's correct. 23 back side of that subdivision is.
24 Q. And they will be interconnecting to an existing 24 MEMBER HAMWAY: A-13?
25 230kV linethat's connecting north and south as the 25 MR. SIMPSON: Yes.
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1 Q. BY MR.DERSTINE: If I'mlooking at A-13, 1 A. (Mr.Simpson) We have stops at these exact
2 Mr. Simpson, whichisin the CEC application which is 2 locations, and it will give a great perspective of the
3 marked as APS Exhibit 1, there's a photo that showstwo | 3 total environment of that area.
4 separate lattice structure lines with amonopole linein 4 Q. Wadl, weve peppered you with alot of questions
5 themiddle. It'sthetop photo. Am | looking at the 5 onRoute G. Do you want to take us back to the flyover
6 right image? 6 simulation and take us down that route.
7 A. (Mr.Simpson) Thatiscorrect. And | am 7 CHMN. KATZ: And we've been going alittle bit
8 viewing north in that particular image, and | am located 8 over an hour and ahalf. | don't know whether it might
9 approximately halfway between Olive Avenue and Northern | 9 be ancther time to break.
10 Avenue. And the subdivision, as| mentioned, isonthe |10 MR. SIMPSON: We're just about done on the route
11 left-hand side of that photo. So | took thisin 11 tour here. | think | can close this out in about two
12 particular just to illustrate existing conditions in the 12 minutes.
13 area 13 CHMN. KATZ: That'sfine. Well then takea
14 Q. Lookingagainat A-13 whichisin Exhibit A to 14 break and hopefully maybe get back started about 4:30 or
15 the CEC application marked as APS Exhibit 1, the bottom |15 4:35 and go to alittle bit past 5:00. We need to
16 photo on that same page, the legend saysit's El Sol 16 definitely take a break between that and the time of
17 230/69kV Substation. Do you seewhat I'm looking at? |17 public comment, which is 5:30.
18 A. (Mr.Simpson) Yes. 18 MR. SIMPSON: Thank you.
19 Q. Sowherewould | seethat photo of the El Sol 19 CHMN. KATZ: Go ahead.
20 230/69kV substation? | assume that's on Olive Avenue? |20 MR. SIMPSON: Yeah. Just to -- since we have
21 A. (Mr.Simpson) Correct. The photo that's on the 21 theaeria imagery, I've backed the video up. So the
22 bottom of page A-13isthe El Sol 230/69kV substation, |22 Suncliff Subdivision sits here. That transmission
23 and | am standing right on Olive Avenue looking north 23 corridor that we've been talking about is along this open
24 into that substation when | took that photo. 24 space on the back side of it. So we have atakeoff point
25 Q. Andwherewereyou standing in relation to the 25 here, and then the El Sol Substation sits up here, so you
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1 Suncliff Subdivision looking north and taking that photo 1 potentialy take off there. We're in the corridor here.
2 of the El Sol Substation? 2 Sothat imageisjust on the east side of that Suncliff
3 A. (Mr.Simpson) | amimmediately north of the 3 Subdivision.
4 subdivision. I'm on the north side of theroad. The 4 All right. Back into the Route G. We'l go
5 subdivision ison the side of the road, so I'm probably a 5 back to where we left off. And well just move through
6 couple hundred feet from that. But | am due -- 6 that east to west. We're going to follow Northern
7 immediately across the street on the north end side of 7 Parkway easterly for about 2 miles. And, again, we're
8 Olive Avenue looking north. 8 going to be on the south side of the road initially
9 Q. Soifl wasleavingthe Suncliff Subdivision 9 starting off. And then, eventually, you'll go through
10 heading onto Olive Avenue, so I'm leaving Suncliffsand |10 the Glendale landfill. You'll get moreinto the sand and
11 turning onto Olive Avenue, if I'm stopped therewaiting |11 gravel mines.
12 for traffic to pass on Olive Avenue and I'm looking 12 Then at that point, you're going to turn and go
13 north, isthat in part what | would be staring at out my 13 north back to the north side of Northern Parkway. And
14 windshield? 14 that's so that we can avoid al these interchanges and
15 A. (Mr.Simpson) Yes. There'sastoplight at that 15 crossing over the road there where we'd potentially bein
16 intersection. So if you were stopped looking north, you |16 theright-of-way, but we're essentially going to be on
17 would seethis. You'd actually see the complete 17 thenorthern side of Northern Parkway here, which you can
18 substation. I'vejust captured one part of that view, 18 see, hereagain, isquite abit of industrial
19 but -- and then to the right of that, you would also see 19 development. And thisindustrial development goes all
20 thetransmission line corridor that's in the photo above 20 theway from Northern Parkway all the way back up to
21 it 21 Olive Avenue or to the Contrail Substation area. So
22 Q. And both of theimages that we're looking at on 22 welll continue along that area, and you'll see the
23 A-13 of the CEC application, the Committee will havean |23 additional development there.
24  opportunity to seeit out on the route tour tomorrow 24 So from Northern Parkway turning north along the
25 morning? 25 future 127th Avenue corridor, again, heading towards
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1 Contrail right here, you can see quite a bit of 1 finished a discrete area of testimony, but I'm open to
2 industrial development. 1'd characterize thisasa 2 doing whatever counsel would --
3 little heavy industrial. The buildings that you look at 3 CHMN. KATZ: I'm happy to do that. | just know
4 inthese new logistics parks are pretty nice, very well 4 that we did that with our first witness but not with
5 organized, landscaped, the buildingsare nice. Theseare | 5 Duncan, | don't think.
6 much heavier industrial, manufacturing, pipe, concrete, 6 MR. GOLESTAN: Yes, Mr. Chairman, | think that's
7 things of that nature. So they're much more of an 7 right. I'mflexible. | have no strong preference.
8 industria feel, if you will. 8 MR. DERSTINE: The only thing | would mention,
9 This particular area over here was al'so 9 Mr. Duncan had not completed histestimony. The flyover
10 previously owned by John F. Long. And now thisproperty |10 did comeininthe middle of histestimony, but he has a
11 isalso conveyed to Dermody Properties for development as |11 number of other topicsto cover. | don't think we'll get
12 apart of that overall Copperwing Logistics Center. | 12 through them today, but we will make Mr. Duncan
13 don't know that they have specific plans yet to develop 13 available--
14 thisarea, but they showed it in their master plan. They 14 CHMN. KATZ: The question is, is Mr. Wiley going
15 showed this as part of that devel opment. 15 to be doing anything else?
16 So we're continuing north again. We get back up 16 MR. DERSTINE: The only other thing Mr. Wiley
17 tothe Contrail Substation that existstoday. And so 17 will be doing is covering noise impacts as part of the
18 thisisthe same point of intersection for al three 18 environmental impact discussion.
19 routes. Again, you can see that we have the Microsoft 19 CHMN. KATZ: Mr. Golestan, what do you feel most
20 facility over here and the Contrail Substation in yellow 20 comfortable doing? We have a panel, but sometimes we're
21 here. Sothiswill bethe convergence point for each of 21 going quickly from one to the other, and other times we
22 thethree segments that we reviewed. 22 haveindepth discussion.
23 Q. BY MR.DERSTINE: Doesthat concludethe flyover |23 MR. GOLESTAN: And Mr. Duncan started. | know
24 simulation, Mr. Simpson? 24 Mr. Simpson came in with the flyover. | know Mr. Wiley
25 A. (Mr.Simpson) Yes, it does. 25 interjected once or twice when an opinion was asked.
Page 123 Page 125
1 CHMN. KATZ: I'm showing that it's about 4:25. 1 | guess where are we with Mr. Simpson? Arewe
2 I'dliketo take maybe aten-minute break. But let'stry 2 going back to Mr. Duncan? Because | can wait until
3 toget started promptly by 25 to 5 and then maybe go to 3 tomorrow to do all the cross-examination if that makes
4 5:00 or maybe five or ten after. 4 more sense.
5 And if any of the members of the public have 5 CHMN. KATZ: What might be easiest isjust to
6 been following, if you end up coming herein person at 6 finish with the whole panel.
7 5:30, you'll need tofill out asign-in form. Those of 7 MR. GOLESTAN: I'm okay either way,
8 you who might want to address us virtually, you'll be 8 Mr. Chairman.
9 ableto do that. 9 CHMN. KATZ: Why don't you talk amongst
10 Depending on how many folks we have, if wedon't |10 yourselves because you have a better idea of how you're
11 havealot of people wanting to address usin the public 11 going to be presenting your respective witnesses.
12 comment time frame, we probably won't set any time 12 | wasjust trying to iron things out. But why
13 limits. Butif we have quite afew folks, we'll probably 13 don't you go ahead, Mr. Derstine, with your next set of
14 limit each speaker to three minutes. And if wehaveany |14 questions.
15 governmental entities such as acounty supervisor or city |15 MS. BENALLY': Thank you, Chairman Katz.
16 council, they will be given priority to go first whether 16 CHMN. KATZ: Sorry.
17 they're herein person or online. 17 MS. BENALLY': That'squite al right. | havea
18 Let'stake ashort recess. 18 few more questions for our witness Mr. Duncan. And |
19 (A recess was taken from 4:25 p.m. to 4:40 p.m.) 19 don't believe, based on the questions I'm looking at,
20 CHMN. KATZ: Theone question that | haveto ask |20 that I'll complete his testimony tonight. I'll
21 iswedid have cross-examination after | believe 21 transition back to Mr. Derstine after afew questions of
22  Mr. Wiley'stestimony. Do we want to go through the 22 Mr. Duncan to just kind of lay some framework.
23 whole panel or how do we want to do this? 23
24 MR. DERSTINE: | thought it would make senseto |24
25 make each witness available for cross as they kind of 25
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1 DIRECT EXAMINATION 1 A. (Mr.Duncan) Justamoment.
2 BY MS. BENALLY: 2 Yes, | haveit.
3 Q. Whatl'dliketodo, Mr. Duncan, is begin with 3 Q. Wouldyou describewhat APS-21lisandif itisa
4 theproject cost. | believe you've got adide on that; 4 supplement to the Exhibit G's that were included in APS's
5 isthat correct? 5 application which is marked as APS-1.
6 A. (Mr.Duncan) Yes, that iscorrect. 6 A. (Mr.Duncan) Yes. Thisiswhat isreferredto
7 Q. Sowouldyou take the Committee through the 7 asatypica 230kV riser structure. Thisisastructure
8 tablesyou have up on the screen. 8 that isused to transition with an overhead line, in this
9 A. (Mr.Duncan) Yes. | will refer to the tables 9 case, 230kV, to an underground conduit.
10 onthescreen. So the table on the screen breaks down 10 And, I'm sorry, repeat your second question.
11 thecost by route. 11 Q. Would you describe how many structures that APS
12 So I'm just going to read the combined cost. 12 would be using of thistypeif it was proceeding with
13 But the anticipated right-of-way cost for the three 13 undergrounding the line.
14 combined routesis approximately $11.8 million. Andthe |14 A. (Mr. Duncan) Two of these structures would be
15 expected cost for construction of the combined routesis |15 required, oneto transition it from overhead to
16  $39.7 million. 16 underground west of the Suncliff Substation. And then
17 Q. Mr. Duncan, do the costs that you have up on the 17 another structure would be required -- I'm sorry --
18 left-hand screen include any costs for the potential 18 Subdivision, not Substation.
19 undergrounding of the line? 19 A second structure would be required adjacent to
20 A. (Mr.Duncan) No. These are overhead 20 theWhite Tanksto El Sol 230kV transmission lineto
21 construction costs. 21 transition from underground to overhead since that line
22 Q. Thank you. 22 isanoverhead line.
23 Do you have anything further that you're going 23 Q. Mr. Duncan, the other question | had asked was
24  to be covering on thistable for the Committee? 24 whether the APS structure, the typical 230kV riser that's
25 A. (Mr.Duncan) No, | do not. 25 ontheright-hand side there, that is a supplement, if
Page 127 Page 129
1 Q. Thenlet'smoveto transmission structures. 1 you will, to your Exhibit G in APSs application; is that
2 Would you describe to the Committee what 2 right?
3 structureswe'll be using to build the project. 3 A. (Mr.Duncan) Yes,itis.
4 A. (Mr.Duncan) Canthedlideontheright side -- 4 Q. Andthen, findly, was APS-21 prepared by you or
5 that'sokay. Thank you. 5 under your direction?
6 So the proposed lines will use steel monopoles 6 A. (Mr.Duncan) Yes.
7 that are similar to existing structuresin the vicinity 7 Q. Andisthisparticular structure also within the
8 of theproject. Mr. Simpson spoke about in the virtual 8 height limitations that you described of your monopole
9 tour the structures near the TS-2 Substation as well as 9 structures of 155 to 195 feet?
10 some of the structuresin the existing corridor on the 10 A. (Mr.Duncan) Yes. Thisstructure would be
11 eastern sidethat our structures will be similar in 11 consistent with those heights.
12 designto. 12 Q. Okay. Thank you.
13 The new structures will be double-circuit- 13  A. (Mr.Wiley) Ms. Bendlly, if | may make one
14 capable 230kV structures with a double-circuit 69kV 14 clarifying statement.
15 underbuilt design. 15 Q. Yes, please, Mr. Wiley.
16 The anticipated height of for the new structures 16 A. (Mr.Wiley) Therewill betwo structures for
17 isapproximately 155 feet. However, structuresmay be, |17 each circuit. So each 230kV line would require one of
18 for site-specific reasons, up to 195 feet tall. And 18 these structures to go down and another to come back up.
19 typical span lengths will be between 500 to 1,200 feet. 19 Weare planning this to be double-circuit capable, so
20 Q. Earlierintheday, infact, this afternoon, 20 there would be two structures to go down and then two
21 therewastestimony that APSis evaluating the 21 structuresto come up when that second circuit is
22 feasibility of undergrounding a short segment on Route G. |22  energized in the future.
23 A. (Mr.Duncan) Yes. 23 MEMBER HAMWAY: Two like this?
24 Q. Thereisan exhibit that's been prepared as 24 MR. WILEY: Four total, two on each side of the
25 APS-21. Doyou havethat in front of you? 25 underground segment.
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1 MEMBER HAMWAY:: If you didn't undergrounditand | 1 g0 back to present cross-examination questions not only
2 you had spans of 1,200 feet and you said it was like a 2 to Mr. Duncan, but the additional testimony provided by
3 2,000 area, soif you didn't underground it, you would 3 Mr. Wiley aswell asthe testimony that was given by
4 haveless equipment? 4 Mr. Simpson in connection with the flyover simulation.
5 MR. WILEY: That is correct. 5 We could do that tomorrow morning if that's acceptable.
6 MEMBER HAMWAY : Makes sense. 6 CHMN. KATZ: That'sfine. If you're both in
7 MR. SIMPSON: And the spans are likely to be 7 agreement, that'sfine.
8 closer to 700 to 800 feet. We modeled them at 750inour | 8 MR. DERSTINE: Can | inquire of how much time
9 imagery. You would need adifferent type of structureto | 9 the AV crew needsto switch over to the public comment
10 gpan that length, but 750 feet isrealistic. 10 section? How much additional time do we have to do some
11 MEMBER HAMWAY : So you would need two? 11 work today?
12 MR. SIMPSON: Correct. One at the start of the 12 AUDIO TECH MOELLER: Mr. Chairman, probably
13 corridor and then one past the subdivision. 13 about 15 minutesto do so.
14 MEMBER HAMWAY : Okay. 14 CHMN. KATZ: | want to make sure Carolynis
15 Q. BY MS.BENALLY: Thank you for that 15 rested enough to deal with the public comments.
16 clarification, Mr. Wiley. 16 How much longer do you think we should go? It's
17 Q. Soif I understood you correctly, the first 17 fivetob.
18 circuit that APSis requesting aten-year term for. 18 THE COURT REPORTER: Can we go off the record.
19 If that short segment on Route G is 19 CHMN. KATZ: Yes.
20 undergrounded, two structures of this type would be 20 (A recess was taken from 4:54 p.m. to 4:56 p.m.)
21 required; isthat right? 21 CHMN. KATZ: Okay. WEell go back on the record,
22 A. (Mr.Wiley) Yes, that's correct. 22 and you may go ahead with what you're planning to do with
23 Q. Andinthefuture, for the second circuit which 23 thetour and Exhibit 19.
24 APS has requested a 20-year term, two additional 24 MR. DERSTINE: Thank you.
25 structures will be needed if that segment is 25 Mr. Chairman, looking ahead to tomorrow and the
Page 131 Page 133
1 undergrounded; isthat correct? 1 short time that we have available today, | had mistakenly
2 A. (Mr.Wiley) Yes, that's correct. 2 indicated that we'd start testimony tomorrow morning and
3 MEMBER HAMWAY : And what kind of spacingis | 3 counsel would be able to proceed with cross-examination
4 there between these? Arethey right next to each other? 4 tomorrow morning, but | overlooked the fact that we're
5 MR. WILEY: | don't have that information. 5 going to have plans to make aroute tour tomorrow
6 MEMBER HAMWAY : | just was curious. It doesn't | 6 morning.
7 matter. 7 Q. BY MR.DERSTINE: So, Mr. Simpson, why don't you
8 MS. BENALLY: Mr. Chair, if you'll give me just 8 and| cover that.
9 amoment to confer with counsel. 9 APS Exhibit 19 isaroute tour itinerary and a
10 CHMN. KATZ: Sure. 10 map. So could you discuss what tomorrow morning looks
11 MR. DERSTINE: One second, Mr. Chairman. Were |11 like. Take usthrough, one, where well get on the
12 going to confer between counsel. 12 transportation. Two, where the tour will proceed and the
13 MS. BENALLY: Mr. Chairman, at thispoint | will |13 stopswe'll make along the way and how much time you
14 conclude this part of the testimony for Mr. Duncan. 14 anticipate that will take. And then any safety
15 However, tomorrow morning -- or maybe tomorrow afternoon |15  precautions that the Committee and the parties need be
16 when he returns, then we will pick up with the 16 awareof.
17 application and notice, the statutory requirementsof the |17 A. (Mr. Simpson) Just give us a second to get that
18 CEC application. 18 graphic up.
19 CHMN. KATZ: Okay. 19 We will conduct the route tour similar to how we
20 MS. BENALLY': Thank you. 20 didthe aeria overflight video tour today. There are
21 Mr. Derstine. 21 some exceptions just because of road access, so we're
22 MR. DERSTINE: Mr. Chairman, Mr. Golestanand | |22 trying to make this somewhat seamless and where we can
23 just conferred, and | think counsel's preference for the 23 park safely and turn around safely and things of that
24  City isto defer his cross-examination until Mr. Duncan |24 nature.
25 has completed tomorrow, and then he'll have achanceto |25 Aswas mentioned earlier, we do have afairly
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1 large and nice passenger van that | believe accommodates | 1 include one or more of our witnesses in terms of

2 over 20 people. 2 questionsthat may come up on the route tour. But,

3 MS. DARR: 27. 3 obviousdly, the court reporter will be along on the route

4 MR. SIMPSON: 27. Soitisfairly roomy. It 4 tour. Andas| understand the protocol from past route

5 looksto beafairly nice van that should be comfortable 5 tours, although it's been awhile since I've been on a

6 if wewant to get as many peoplein there aswe can. | 6 route tour, I'm happy to go on aroute tour again.

7 know there may be some concerns about social distancing | 7 There's no questions, comments, or anything that occurs

8 or masking. We can discuss how we want to do that one | 8 on the route tour unless or until we are on the record.

9 way or another. 9 Do | have the right understanding, Mr. Chairman?
10 I know there may be various participants coming 10 CHMN. KATZ: That's correct. I've only been on
11 along onthetour. Onething I'm concerned about is 11 oneroute tour, and it was the Coolidge Expansion Project
12 having too many vehiclesin a caravan-type situation, and |12 acouple weeks ago. And we had one bus for the Committee
13 that's because there'salot of traffic on Olive Avenue 13 and ancther one for the staff and the lawyers because we
14 and Northern Parkway. Andtherearealot of four-way |14 want to avoid any communications. But | wouldn't have a
15 stopswithout traffic lights. And depending upon when 15 problem having the Committee, the two, three, or four of
16 you'reout there, it can get really congested on the 16 us, together with the attorneys. | just want to make
17 roads. Sol'dliketo have fewer vehicles. If people 17 surethat wereall comfortable.

18 arewilling to drive separately and try utilize the space 18 MR. DERSTINE: So | guess to the extent that the
19 inthevanto some degree. But that's purely because of 19 Committeeiswilling to allow counsel for the partiesto
20 safety. Insome of the areas we need to park in, we 20 join onthe same bus, | guessit's with the understanding
21 won't be able to park immediately adjacent to theroute. |21 that -- the admonition that there's no communication on
22 Well haveto park off the route and walk 100 feet, 200 22 the bus between counsel or the parties and members of the
23 feetin some casesand bein aspace wherewe canview |23 Committee unless or until we are on the record, and that
24 theroute. Soif we could do that in away that not only 24 happens at the designated stops on thetour. Do | have
25 issafebut efficient, that would be helpful. And, 25 that right?

Page 135 Page 137

1 again, I'm open to any suggestions. | know there'salot 1 CHMN. KATZ: Right. | mean, we could discuss

2 of different opinions about wanting jumpinavanwith25 | 2 the weather or the pretty sights that we're seeing that

3 peopleat this day and age. 3 have nothing to do with the project. But | don't want us

4 MEMBER HAMWAY': You said "other participants." | 4 to violate the Open Meeting Law. We won't have the

5 Who are you thinking of? 5 entire Committee present on the tour because people are

6 MR. SIMPSON: | believe that the Chairman had 6 appearing virtually.

7 left that open if other parties as aresult of the City 7 MR. DERSTINE: And Mr. Simpson will -- the stops

8 of Peoriaintervention wanted to attend, perhaps even 8 that you have planned for us, do they allow for

9 members of the public following along the route tour, 9 participants who are on the route tour to exit the bus
10 they would have that opportunity. 10 and then stand safely in alocation on the side of the
11 MEMBER HAMWAY : Members of the publicwouldn't |11 road or whatever the designated stop is and the Madam
12  beonthevan. 12 Court Reporter to set up and then take down whatever
13 MR. SIMPSON: No. 13 information is communicated in a particular or give stop?
14 MEMBER HAMWAY : But the attorney for Peoria |14 MR. SIMPSON: Yes. Thetwo stops maybe I'm a
15 might be. 15 little concerned about are at the Suncliff Subdivision
16 MR. SIMPSON: Yeah. If we're going to have 16 north and south. We may need to have our discussion away
17 people following along, we're going to need to manage 17 from the actual roadway, so we may have to walk to the
18 that in away that it's safe for people to do so. 18 roadway, take in the sights, then walk back a waysto
19 MR. DERSTINE: So the van, it sounds like, is 19 have any discussion because the roads are so busy that
20 large enough to accommodate all the members of the 20 youdo get alot of noise, and it may be difficult for
21 Committee who wish to go on the route tour. We haveroom |21 thereporter to hear and record that. And that's, again,

22 to accommodate representatives of the City of Peoria, 22 asokind of abit of a safety concern.

23 counsel, paraprofessionals, | think aswell as, if any, 23 We're going to be able to be on sidewalks and
24  representatives of the City as a part of the case. And 24 stay on sidewalks. But having alarge group of people
25 then we would have counsel for APS, and thenwemight |25 standing in a huddle along the edge of a sidewalk, |
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don't want somebody to step off aroadway accidentally
when they're trying to hear.

So the other thing is parking areas. We'll be
able to get off and be alittle bit more on our own. So
we meant to just kind of play it by ear. | wasout there
this morning. | wish we had been on the tour then. It
wasn't very busy at al thismorning. But | don't know.
I've been out there when it's very, very busy.

MR. DERSTINE: And so | guess one accommodation
that we can make is that, you know, we can give
instructions on the record. To the extent Madam Court
Reporter is set up in the bus, the Chairman can give
directionswhat we'll do at any given stop. We'll exit
the bus, and maybe that involves setting up on the side
at the stop and taking down what | anticipate is that you
or arepresentative of APS will narrate and point out
points of interest, what the Committee should consider
and see at any given stop. If there's some limited
questions and answers that can take place at that moment,
that can be done.

But, in general, there's not alot of testimony
or Q and A that occurs at any given stop. It's a matter
of taking on the record, pointing out what's important to
see at that given location, answering any questions from
the Committee that are relevant to that. And then we get
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the area where we have the Falcon Substation and all that
development going on in that vicinity.

And then we've got two stops near the
intersection of the railroad tracks. So one, well be
able to see what's happening near the Olive intersection,
the next one at the Litchfield Road intersection.

And then our next stop will be along Peoriaand
127th Avenue, which is near the Dysart Ranchettes
Subdivision.

And then we will come down El Mirage Road, we
will turn to the east, and then we will go to the
Suncliff Subdivision. And although this star kind of
looks like it's on the north side, the only areato park
here is actually going to be pulling into the
subdivision. We have a spot identified where we can pull
over, and then we'll walk back to the edge of the road
and be able to do that safely again.

And then we would continue back out the
subdivision. We'll come over here to 111th Avenue.
Well drive along the existing transmission line
corridor. And then once again, we'll stop at the south
end of the Suncliff Subdivision. And once again, the
only real safe place to park there isinside the
subdivision. And then we'll walk back out to the street
for review.
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back on the bus and we move to the next stop.

And then once we're back herein the hearing
room, welll return to the record, get back on the record,
and if there's amore detailed discussion that the
Members of the Committee would have about things that
they saw at a given stop or things that they saw on the
tour, that can happen at that time. Does that make
sense?

MR. SIMPSON: Y eah, | think so.

Q. BY MR.DERSTINE: Do you want to take us through
the tour and what you plan to show the Committee on the
route tour.

A. (Mr. Simpson) So what this map shows is the
anticipated locations of the stops. And we have |
believe nine -- one, two, three, four, five, six, seven,
eight, nine.

So we will be starting with the TS-2 Substation,
and we'll be traveling to the east --

MS. DARR: We're actually starting here.

MR. SIMPSON: We're gathering at this facility,
and then we'll drive to the TS-2 Substation is the first
stop. So welll get you oriented to the substation and
the route, and then we'll head to the west.

Weve got a stop planned at Reems Road. That's
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At that point, we'll continue west along
Northern Parkway. We will turn north, and we'll come
into Butler Drive. And that is going to take usto the
south edge of the Microsoft datacenter property. And
well be able to look at the industrial devel opment
that's along that corridor.

Well turn back out, head east, turn north on
El Mirage, and then take Alice Road to the Contrail
Substation.

And that will be the final stop, and we'll be
immediately adjacent to the Contrail Substation on the
east side.

Q. BY MR.DERSTINE: Ms. Darr, you've made
arrangements for transportation. What time will the bus
or van be here? What can you tell us about the thingsto
bring on the route tour?

A. (Ms. Darr) Weve arranged for the vehicle to be
hereat 9. And that'sall theinformation that | have.

MR. DERSTINE: And | spoke briefly to the AV
team. | think Peak Audio will broadcast a screen that
indicates that the hearing is adjourned while the route
tour takes place. And then the plan isto reconvene
after lunch at 1 p.m. if that's acceptable to you,

Mr. Chairman and Members of the Committee.

CHMN. KATZ: It's acceptable.
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1 Any of the Committee Members that are going to 1 pretty fast. Sowewill have those vests for you. We
2 beon thetour have any objection? 2 will talk through safety. We need to be very careful as
3 (No response.) 3 we'reentering and exiting the van not just for traffic
4 CHMN. KATZ: We'refine. 4 but our footing. Well try to park in areas where there
5 MEMBER GENTLES: Mr. Chair. 5 isstablefooting, but there are some areasthat are
6 CHMN. KATZ: Yes, sir. 6 challenging terrain.
7 MEMBER GENTLES: | will not be on the tour 7 So to avoid any safety issues for any Member of
8 tomorrow, so what time should we reconveneviaZoom? | 8 the Committee or staff or attorneys, let'sjust be
9 CHMN. KATZ: 1:00. 9 patient and be as careful as possible. Andwe will go
10 MS. DARR: 1:30. 10 through these details again prior to heading out.
11 CHMN. KATZ: 1:30. 11 CHMN. KATZ: Sounds good.
12 MEMBER GENTLES: 1:30itis. Thank you, Sir. 12 MR. DERSTINE: Unless there's anything else or
13 CHMN. KATZ: That goes for anybody elsethat's |13 questions, Mr. Chairman, | think wear ready to adjourn,
14 appearing virtually tomorrow and won't be here to take 14 give Madam Court Reporter abreak, and give the AV team a
15 thetour. Sowell resumeat 1:30. Our tour will 15 chance to switch us over to the public comment feed.
16 probably take about three hoursin the morning, and then |16 CHMN. KATZ: And just one last comment. Anybody
17 welll break for lunch and get ourselves ready to go. 17 that might be herein this room that wishes to address us
18 MR. SIMPSON: Mr. Derstine, | know there'sbeen |18 needsto signinonasign-inform. | think they're
19 alot of discussion about the datacenter, and | expect 19 available. We have a microphone set up there, but we'll
20 there'ssome curiosity about what that is. Youdon'tget |20 steer you to theright place.
21 realy get adirect feel fromit at this stop even though 21 If you're appearing virtualy, you'll need to
22 we'revery close because you see the substation. You 22 login, and I'll get an idea of how many we have, and
23 will seeif from this stop. 23 welll get an idea as to whether we need to limit time.
24 But when we leave, I'm going to exit back out 24 Thank you. We arein recess.
25 onto Olive and head west so that we will driveright past |25 (A recesswas taken from 5:14 p.m. to 5:33 p.m.)
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1 thedatacenter. And everybody will be ableto get a 1 CHMN. KATZ: Sorry for the slight delay. We're
2 front row seat of that facility. So | think that will 2 going to go back on the record, so I'd ask everyone to
3 just provide enough context so everyone can understand 3 et seated and take your places.
4 what relationship that isto the substation. 4 We're going to first take -- there are four
5 MR. DERSTINE: All right. Thanks. 5 individuals would have been kind enough to show up here
6 MS. DARR: Mr. Derstine, | just wanted to note 6 in person, and we're going to take care of them first.
7 for everyone that we will also have breakfast here at 8 7 | believe we have acity council person present
8 foryou. 8 from the City of Peoria. | don't know if there's another
9 MR. DERSTINE: And then for members of APS, 9 person who works with the City that may want to address
10 safety isawaysanimportant, critical consideration. 10 us. Andwell take care of the folks, though, that are
11  What instructions do you have for the Members of the 11 hereinthe room that have traveled to this hearing
12 Committee and those who will be participating on thetour |12 first, and then we'll go through the list of the several
13 interms of footwear or what we should be wearing. Are |13 people who are appearing virtualy.
14 we wearing safety vests? Why don't you tell us what's 14 I'd ask you to try to keep your comments really
15 the protocol. 15 focused. | sometimeslimit it to three minutes. | don't
16 MR. DUNCAN: I'd be happy to, Mr. Derstine. 16 know that we need to do that, but | don't want
17 So prior to us heading onto the bus, | will take 17 long-winded speeches no more than three to five minutes
18 acouple minutesto do aprejob brief, talk through 18 per person.
19 safety. | would recommend sturdy shoes. Weregoingto |19 So | think Mr. Derstine is going to read the
20 beon unstable surfaces. | will be providing reflective 20 namesone at atime of the folks that wish to address us
21 vestsfor everyonethat's on the bus. | can't make you 21 inperson. Andwell ask you to stand by the microphone
22 wear it, but | will ask that you wear it so that we're as 22 or where that music stand is so we can get everybody in
23 visibleaspossible. 23 theroom to hear you.
24 Many of these stops are in agricultural areas, 24 MR. DERSTINE: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
25 and from previous encounters, these farmers like to go 25 | think that looking at the sign-in sheet for
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1 the members of the public who are here in the hearing 1 acrossthe street and in between those two major streets
2 room, the first name on the list is Denette Dunn, Peoria 2 Olive and Northern.
3 City Council. Theaddress| haveis 11311 West Lawrence | 3 I've heard alot about farm area. There are
4 Lane, Peoria, Arizona. 4 areasover there that are farm, but not in that immediate
5 Ms. Dunn. 5 Suncliff area. There'sthe Glendale landfill on the
6 CHMN. KATZ: And just for those who are 6 other side and, aswe heard earlier, the rock quarry and
7 participating, it isn't a question-and-answer situation. 7 some of that off of Northern.
8 It'sasituation in which you are going to expressto 8 Thefirst notificationsthat | believe went out
9 us--themicrophoneis-- it won't be question and 9 werein October of 2020 stating that this was taking
10 answer. Wetake very seriously any written comments 10 placeinthe middle of the pandemic. And thiswasfrom a
11  we'vereceived in advance or the course of this hearing 11 paper that | had seen come across actually today. | saw
12 aswell aswhat you have to say. 12 the date October 2020. And it's concerning to me that
13 Please feel free to go ahead and, again, 13 theinformation was released back then in the middle of a
14 announce your name on the record, please. 14 pandemic. And to date, again, all the conversations that
15 MS. DUNN: My name is Denette Dunn. 15 | have had with my constituents over many different areas
16 CHMN. KATZ: Yes, maam. Fill usin. 16 overthelast -- likel said, emails, social media, and
17 MS. DUNN: So | am the City Council member for |17 in private conversations during the last week or so, it's
18 the Pine District where some of these lines are being 18 concerning to me that if it's been that long, how comel|
19 discussed. 19 didn't know and how come they didn't know.
20 And so one of the things -- actually, | have 20 And so that -- | am addressing those concerns
21 about three or four points here. | wasfirst made aware 21 because| think we could have done a much better job
22 of this February 1st when | met with your government 22 getting the word out to the community.
23 relations manager, Clay Allsop, and he gave me the 23 So with that, I'd like to thank you for your
24 details of the project. And so thiswas February 1st, 24 timeand letting me speak today.
25 2022. Andthiswasthefirst timel was given the 25 CHMN. KATZ: We thank you very much for being
Page 147 Page 149
1 detailsof this. | had not received any notification to 1 here. Theonly comment | would make, it's not question
2 my knowledge to my household prior or after that. 2 and answer, but this Committee will be expecting APS to
3 Also, | had spoken to many of the Peoria Pine 3 advise us asto what outreach they had to al the
4 Digtrict residents and have since made them aware of the | 4 affected jurisdictions, including the City of Peoria.
5 linesiting project via personal conversations, social 5 The other thing | would note is that the Peoria
6 media, and emailsto them. To date, every resident that 6 City manager, whenever the Notice of Hearing went out,
7 I've spoken with has conveyed to me that they had not 7 was served with that notice, and it was his or her
8 been notified of this project aswell. And | do know 8 responsibility to then notify counsel aswell asthe city
9 that we had somebody that was supposed to be gettingthe | 9 council of the pending hearing. So we don't serve
10 word out to the community. But, again, everybody that |10 everybody in acity or town or county. So serve usually
11 I've spokentointhat area has told methat they were 11 the city manager or the county manager and rely upon them
12 not even aware of this project. 12 to communicate with the appropriate peoplein their
13 So far, | also do not believe that PUSD, Peoria 13 jurisdiction.
14 Unified School Digtrict, or the elementary school Country |14 We can now go to our next person who would like
15 Meadows were notified or made aware of these plansfor |15 to addressus.
16 these 230kV lines. 16 MR. DERSTINE: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. The
17 If you go down the corridor on 111th between 17 next name on thelist of individuals who would like to
18 Olive and Northern, you'll see that there are many, many |18 provide public comment here within the hearing room is
19 of these, the big lines with the three 230kV lines. And 19 Irene Charlez. It says City of Peoria. The addressis
20 | don't know all the correct terminology. I've been 20 8401 West Monroe street, Peoria, Arizona 85345.
21 getting a crash course here this last month. 21 MS. CHARLEZ: I'm not speaking.
22 So | am asking that the Members that are going 22 CHMN. KATZ: Okay. That'sfine. The other
23 ontour tomorrow, that they do take a trip and maybe 23 thingtoo isthat we now -- | thought we had only about
24 drive down 111th and see just how congested itisalready |24 four or five people virtual. There are 13. So unless
25 there. Again, with Country Meadows School being right |25 you're speaking on behalf of a governmental entity, well
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1 leave all the other public comments to about three 1 Microsoft cloud services are designed to be
2 minutes. 2 secure, reliable, and flexible platforms to support any
3 Please call the next one. 3 kind of government and business entity. |I'm personally
4 MR. DERSTINE: Mr. Chairman, before we get to 4 familiar with the critical applicationsin services used
5 the online members of the public, we have herein the 5 by the government of the State of Arizona utilizing Azure
6 hearing room John Kelly, Triadvocates. The address | 6 cloud services, including those in use by the Arizona
7 have hereis 40 North Central Avenue, Phoenix, Arizona | 7 Department of Education and the Arizona Department of
8 85004. 8 Transportation. These arejust afew of the examples of
9 MR. KELLY: Mr. Chairman, for the record, my 9 critical infrastructure that this project supports.
10 nameisJohn Kelly with Triadvocates. I'm here on behalf |10 But thisinfrastructure is dependent on other
11 of our client Microsoft. Triadvocates has been 11 formsof infrastructure, including broadband
12 representing Microsoft for nearly 20 yearsin the state 12 communications, water, and energy. Microsoft is
13 of Arizona. We're the lobbying firm that represents 13 investing in thisinfrastructure not only for its own use
14 them. I'm heretonight to convey some commentsandto |14 but for the community at large.
15 also provide context to aletter of support that | 15 In 2020, Microsoft announced its commitment to
16 believe was submitted for the record from Brian Janice, |16 be carbon negative, water positive, and zero waste by
17 who isthe Microsoft general manager for energy, 17 2030. Thisdatacenter project is aliving monument to
18 sustainability, cloud operations, and innovation. 18 that commitment. For example, the datacenter uses modern
19 Three years ago, Microsoft announced a major 19 cooling approaches which dramatically reduce energy and
20 economic development initiative for theregion. Itsplan |20 water use. And I've talked about the renewable energy
21 isto construct three hyperscale computing sites, wealso |21 piece. And Microsoft has also invested in water
22 cal them datacenters, with two locationsin Goodyear and |22 infrastructure and approaches with the Colorado River
23 onein El Mirage. The construction of these datacenters |23 Indian Tribe and the Gila River water storage to address
24 represents amulti, multi, multi-million dollar 24 thecurrent water crisis.
25 investment over anumber of years. 25 Microsoft is collaborating closely with APS on
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1 The project before you, the West Valley Central 1 thedesign of the West Valley Connection Project and will
2 Connection Project, isavital element of the El Mirage 2 continue to work closely with APS on the community on the
3 datacenter project. And the design being proposed is 3 fina design.
4 regarded as very advantageous to the project goals, which | 4 On behalf of Microsoft, | want to thank you for
5 include, obvioudly, reliability of the power resources 5 your time and regquest your favorable consideration of
6 combined with Microsoft's sustainability commitments. 6 this. Thank you for your time.
7 The Microsoft hyperscal e operation centers will 7 CHMN. KATZ: Thank you very much for being here.
8 yield enormous benefits to the region, including, but not 8 MR. DERSTINE: Mr. Chairman, | think that is all
9 limited to, millions of dollarsin state and local tax 9 of the public comment that we have here in the hearing
10 revenues, including income, TPT, and property taxes; many |10 room.
11 hundreds jobs through construction and operation of the |11 CHMN. KATZ: That'sfine.
12 datacenter; something that's already been conducted, a 12 MR. DERSTINE: | think we're ready for the --
13 $100 million investment in renewable energy generation |13 CHMN. KATZ: We can go ahead with those who are
14 whichisgoing to be used as part of the energy profile; 14 appearing virtually. And we havealist. | can't read
15 and the establishment of a Greater Phoenix Datacenter 15 ital that well, but if someone wantsto call off the
16 Community Advisory Board, which oversees contributions |16 names. And | would be asking, when you do render your
17 from the Community Empowerment Fund. The Advisory Board |17 comments, you need to state your first and your last name
18 isinthe process of announcing its most recent round of 18 and then make your comments.
19 community grantsto local nonprofit organizations. 19 And while both the City Council representative
20 The demand for Microsoft cloud services has 20 and the Microsoft representative went about a minute over
21 never been higher. Microsoft delivers over 200 unique 21 thethree minutes, I'm going to be alittle bit more
22 cloud services, including the ones you're probably most |22  strict because we have 13 or 14 of you, and we want to
23 familiar with, Office 365, Dynamics 365, and the 23 make sure everybody gets a chance to speak.
24 Microsoft Azure platform that provides instrumental 24 MR. DERSTINE: Mr. Chairman, if we could get the
25 infrastructure for our digital world. 25 address for the members of the public who are going to
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1 speak, | think we're required to have that information. 1 talking about internally with the City, their
2 There are certain conditions or situations where we may 2 representative. When the manager gets served, it'sup to
3 berequired to give notice to folks who provided public 3 the City manager to notify the City attorney or to notify
4 comment. 4 engineering, City planning and zoning and so forth. But
5 CHMN. KATZ: Okay. Well, state your -- aswe 5 they're not responsible to notify the members of the
6 recognize you, state your full name and your current 6 general public. That is APS'sresponsibility.
7 either business or home address. 7 Enough said. Go ahead with our next individual.
8 Who do we want to have calling out those names? 8 AV TECH MOELLER: Mr. Chairman, next we have
9 MR. DERSTINE: Jason or someoneonthe AV team, | 9 CarenImig.
10 areyou ableto read off the name and ask that the member |10 CHMN. KATZ: Ms. Imig, please introduce
11 of the public state their name and address? 11 yourself.
12 AV TECH MOELLER: Sure. I'll go through those, |12 MS. IMIG: Hi. My name's Caren Imig. I'm the
13 Mr. Chairman. 13 City of Peoria's community business manager. And | am
14 First we have -- well, Fire Tablet isthe first 14 just hereto listen to the public comment and gauge what
15 onthelist. 15 our public is saying about this project so we can be
16 CHMN. KATZ: If you're present, feel freeto 16 aware of how to better serve them. And | have no public
17 again state your first and last name and your residential 17 comment.
18 or business address. 18 CHMN. KATZ: Thank you very much. And, again, |
19 MS. JAMES: My nameis Vicki James. | live at 19 am appreciative of you appearing here today.
20 10201 North 99th Avenue just south of Peoria. 20 Who's our next individua ?
21 I'm highly concerned that no one was notified 21 AV TECH MOELLER: Mr. Chairman, next we have
22 about what APS plansto do and that APSisbuying putting |22 Chris Hallett.
23 dl thisin near an elementary school in a popul ated 23 MR. HALLETT: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Chris
24 neighborhood. 24 Hallett, City of Peoria emergency services director. |
25 Again, they're saying that it's up to the City 25 work with Caren and severa otherson thiscall. Same
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1 of Peoriato notify everyone. However, APSdoesn'thave | 1 capacity. No comment. Just hereto observe. Thank you.
2 aproblem, you know, sending out their newsletters with 2 CHMN. KATZ: Thank you very much.
3 theirinvoices or with their bills each month. Why 3 Next individual .
4 couldn't that have been in there? APS doesn't have the 4 AV TECH MOELLER: Mr. Chairman, next we have Eva
5 greatest reputation with residents here in the West 5 Osuna.
6 Valleyasitis. Sol think that maybe it needsto fall 6 CHMN. KATZ: Please go ahead.
7 more on APS's shoulders to make sure the notificationsgo | 7 MS. OSUNA: Hello. My nameis Eva Osuna, and |
8 out. Andlikel said, none of usreceived any of the 8 live at 8592 West Malipi in south Peoria.
9 notifications. 9 I'm of the same opinion that | was not notified.
10 So I'm really concerned with that. It'slike 10 Never heard of this project until about afew days ago.
11 you'retrying to sneak something in behind theresidents |11 And it's been arush to learn all about it and find out
12 backs. 12 wheredid it go wrong, because we should have been
13 Thank you for allowing me to speak. 13 notified. APSisahuge entity. SoisMicrosoft. I'm
14 CHMN. KATZ: And, again, thisisn't questionand |14 not against economic development, but we should have been
15 answer, but | want to point out, itis APS's 15 notified so we could have given input along the way.
16 responsibility to provide notice to people within the 16 I'm very interested. | was there this afternoon
17 affected areas and to their customer base. And there 17 inperson and listened to the person that wasin charge
18 will betestimony in these proceedings in terms of 18 of your stakeholder meetings and getting ahold of the
19 whether or not that outreach was done. And if the 19 public. | would be very interested to find out who that
20 Committee findsthat it was proper and adequate outreach, |20 input came from because she said it came from residents.
21 therewon't be concern. If we find that there was 21 | would be very interested to find out who the input came
22 inadeguate notice given to the affected communities, we |22 from because | certainly did not get the notice and was
23 may not issue their certificate of environmental 23 not given the opportunity to give input on this.
24 compliance, but that's a bridge we'll cross. 24 The other issue for meisif you can do
25 When | made the comment about Peoria, | was 25 underground at Northern -- and | think it wasline G, I'm
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1 not sure-- if you can do underground at Northern, then 1 CHMN. KATZ: Okay. Thank you.
2 really work hard to do underground over by the elementary | 2 AV TECH MOELLER: Mr. Chairman, next we have
3 school and 111th Avenue neighborhood, which also there's | 3 Kelly K.
4 apublic park there. You should really try to make an 4 MS. K: Hello. And | work with Chris Hallett
5 effort to put everything underground. If we're going to 5 and Caren Imig. I'm here with the City of Peoria, so,
6 haveto take this project, then makeit as safe as 6 again, just listening in and appreciate the opportunity
7 possible. 7 todoso.
8 Thank you very much for your time and letting me 8 CHMN. KATZ: Thank you very much.
9 speak. 9 AV TECH MOELLER: Mr. Chairman, next we have L
10 CHMN. KATZ: Thank you very much for taking your |10 Mattox.
11 time out today. 11 CHMN. KATZ: Mr. or Mr. Mattox.
12 AV TECH MOELLER: Mr. Chairman, next we have |12 MS. MATTOX: Good evening. I'm Lisa Mattox. |
13 Gwen Garrett. 13 also work with the group from City of Peoria. Just here
14 CHMN. KATZ: Gwen Garrett. 14 tounderstand community concerns and listen to comments.
15 MS. GARRETT: Yes. My nameis Gwen Garrett. My |15 No comment from me this evening.
16 addressis 9165 North 97th Drivein Peoria. | don't have |16 CHMN. KATZ: That'sfine.
17 acomment, but | am just very concerned with all the 17 And next, please.
18 commentsthat no one has received notification. I'mnot |18 AV TECH MOELLER: Mr. Chairman, next we have Me
19 an APScustomer, so | wouldn't have received anything |19  Shell.
20 directly from them, but | am concerned with what's going |20 FEMALE SPEAKER: Hello. I'm just listening in.
21 oninmy community. 21 | liveinthe neighborhood, and | was notified | think
22 Thank you for this opportunity to speak. 22 back in October of 2020. Thisismy first call. | just
23 CHMN. KATZ: Thank you for your patience. 23 wantedtolistenin. That'sall.
24 Next, please. 24 AV TECH MOELLER: Mr. Chairman, next we have
25 AV TECH MOELLER: Mr. Chairman, next we have |25 Rebecca Osuna
Page 159 Page 161
1 Jean. 1 MS. OSUNA: Good evening. My name is Rebecca
2 CHMN. KATZ: Jean. Someonesigned inas--is 2 Osuna. | live at 8439 West Purdue Avenue in Peoria,
3 itJean? IsthereaJean present? It's aperson that 3 Arizona.
4 only gave afirst name. 4 | myself, being a Peoriaresident since 1965,
5 (No response.) 5 things have always been pretty forthright in knowing
6 CHMN. KATZ: No. We'l come back to that 6 what's happening in the City of Peoria. | have to say
7 individua at the end of the proceedings. 7 thelast couple years, there's been deeply serious
8 Who is the next individual ? 8 information that's gone out to certain people and not to
9 AV TECH MOELLER: Mr. Chairman, next wehaveKat | 9 others. And thisisjust another example of that, that
10 Gatrost. 10 we have not known that this was going to take place.
11 CHMN. KATZ: Please go ahead. 11 So I'm very concerned that children especialy,
12 MS. GATROST: Hello, Mr. Chairman. My nameis |12 having been an educator for 30 years, | have rea
13 Kat -- Katherine Gatrost. My addressis 8940 West Olive |13 concerns about all of this going up around an elementary
14 Ave, Unit No. 6, Peoria, Arizona 85345. 14 school. Sothat'swhy I'm hereto voice that. And then,
15 I concur with Eva Osuna. Not against economic 15 of course, I'm concerned for the neighborhood as well.
16 development. | was therethis afternoon. Just wasn't 16 Thank you.
17 notified. Andif you could put it underground, that 17 CHMN. KATZ: Thank you kindly.
18 would be great, especially by the elementary schools, by |18 AV TECH MOELLER: Mr. Chairman, that isthe last
19 the park areathat line G right around Northern and Olive |19 person that I've seen on thelist, unless I've missed
20 area 20 someone.
21 Soif APS could look at that with Microsoft, 21 CHMN. KATZ: We have someone that signed in as
22 that would be fantastic. Just overhead power lineby the |22 Jean. Isthat person available?
23 eementary school and the park area, just concerning for |23 (No response.)
24 kids. But if they're able to put it underground, that 24 CHMN. KATZ: And | don't see any new parties
25 would be great. 25 that have joined us here.
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1 | just want anybody that's listening to

2 understand that aswe go forward, APSis going to have a

3 detailed presentation of the notice that they attempted

4 togivetodl of the affected cities, towns, and

5 jurisdictions. And some of you may have been missed.

6 But we'll haveto wait and see what they have to say.

7 But | do appreciate all of your concerns, and the

8 Committee will take them into consideration.

9 Everybody have agood evening. We're going on a
10 tour tomorrow of the route, leaving from the Civic Center
11 hereat 9:00 or shortly past 9 in the morning, and welll
12 resumeintheroom at the Civic Center at 1:30. So
13 you're welcometo join ustomorrow at 1:30.

14 If you want to take the tour, you're going to

15 haveto follow in aprivate vehicle, and we'll have to

16 see how many people might be interested in doing that

17 because we might have some traffic and safety issues that

18 we need to address.

19 MEMBER GRINNELL: Mr. Chairman.

20 CHMN. KATZ: Yes, Mr. Grinnell.

21 MEMBER GRINNELL: | apologize. | just got a

22 chat message from Me Shell regarding her address. She

23 wanted torelay that. So | think if you have that on

24 your chat, you can forward that to the recorder here.

25 CHMN. KATZ: If we have that in the chat, we
Page 163

1 will certainly make sure that her address gets recorded.

2 MR. DERSTINE: For therecord, the chat is

3 indicating amember of the public identified his or

4 herself asMe Shell. The address was 11233 West Alice

5 Avenue, according to the chat.

6 CHMN. KATZ: Okay. Thank you.

7 Does the Committee have any other concerns

8 before we recessfor the evening? If so, please speak

9 up. If not, those of you who are staying in City of
10 Glendale this evening, enjoy yourselves. Those of uswho
11 aregoing home, drive safely and make sure we're back
12 hereready to go either for breakfast at 8:00 or our tour
13 at 9:00.

14 Thank you. We arein recess.
15 (The hearing recessed at 6:01 p.m.)
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STATE OF ARIZONA %
COUNTY OF MARICOPA )

BE IT KNOWN that the foregoing proceedings were
taken before me; that the foregoing pages are a full,
true, and accurate record of the proceedings, all done to
the best of my skill and ability; that the proceedings
were taken down by me in shorthand and thereafter reduced
to print under my direction.

I CERTIFY that I am in no way related to any of the
parties hereto nor am I in any way interested in the
outcome hereof.

I CERTIFY that I have complied with the ethical
obligations set_forth_ in ACJA 7-206(F)(3) and
ACJA"7-206(3)(1)(g) (1) and (2). _Dated at Phoenix,
Arizona, this 6th day of march, 2022.

_CAROLYN T, SULLIVAN
Arizona Certified Reporter
No. 50528

I CERTIFY that_COASH & COASH, INC., has complied
with the ethical obligations set forth 1in
ACJA 7-206(3) (1) (9) (1) through (6).

COASH & COASH, INC,
Arizona Registered Firm
No. R1036
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		Reems (7)

		refer (4)

		reference (3)

		referenced (1)

		referred (2)

		referring (4)

		refine (1)

		reflective (1)

		regard (1)

		regarded (1)

		regarding (6)

		region (2)

		regional (2)

		regular (1)

		related (4)

		relation (3)

		relations (2)

		relationship (2)

		relationships (1)

		relay (1)

		released (1)

		relevant (1)

		reliability (9)

		reliable (4)

		reliably (2)

		reliefs (1)

		relocate (1)

		rely (1)

		remaining (1)

		remarks (1)

		remind (1)

		reminding (1)

		remove (2)

		removed (1)

		render (2)

		rendering (1)

		renewable (2)

		repairs (1)

		repeat (1)

		rephrase (1)

		replay (1)

		reporter (8)

		represent (1)

		representative (5)

		representatives (2)

		representing (3)

		represents (6)

		reputation (1)

		request (7)

		Requested (4)

		requesting (6)

		requests (1)

		require (2)

		required (7)

		requirements (5)

		requires (3)

		reserve (1)

		reserves (1)

		residence (3)

		residences (7)

		resident (2)

		residential (7)

		residents (7)

		residents' (1)

		resolution (2)

		resolve (1)

		Resources (4)

		respective (1)

		response (7)

		responsibility (3)

		responsible (9)

		restaurant (1)

		rested (1)

		restrictions (1)

		result (5)

		resulted (1)

		resume (3)

		retaining (3)

		return (1)

		returns (1)

		revenues (1)

		review (3)

		reviewed (2)

		reviewing (1)

		reviews (2)

		rewind (2)

		Ridge (5)

		right (84)

		right-hand (8)

		right-of-way (8)

		Rio (1)

		rise (1)

		riser (5)

		River (4)

		Rivers (1)

		Road (37)

		roads (4)

		roadway (5)

		roadways (1)

		rock (4)

		role (1)

		roles (1)

		roll (1)

		room (12)

		roomy (1)

		roughly (4)

		round (1)

		route (91)

		routes (33)

		routing (1)

		row (1)

		Rudd (1)

		rule (1)

		rulings (1)

		run (2)

		running (17)

		runs (2)

		Runway (2)

		rural (1)

		rush (1)



		S

		safe (4)

		safely (7)

		safety (9)

		Salado (1)

		sale (1)

		Salt (5)

		Sam (1)

		same (19)

		sand (7)

		Santa (1)

		sat (2)

		saw (5)

		saying (3)

		scale (2)

		scheduled (4)

		school (7)

		schools (1)

		scope (1)

		Scottsdale (2)

		screen (21)

		screens (1)

		seamless (1)

		seat (2)

		seated (1)

		second (29)

		section (7)

		sections (1)

		secure (1)

		security (2)

		seeing (13)

		segment (19)

		segments (2)

		select (3)

		selected (1)

		selection (1)

		semiconductor (1)

		sending (1)

		senior (1)

		sense (7)

		separate (9)

		separated (1)

		separately (2)

		separation (1)

		series (3)

		serious (1)

		seriously (1)

		serve (26)

		served (9)

		serves (3)

		Service (15)

		services (6)

		serving (9)

		set (9)

		setback (1)

		setting (2)

		seven (5)

		several (4)

		sewer (1)

		shaded (1)

		share (1)

		shared (2)

		sheet (1)

		Shell (3)

		shoes (1)

		short (8)

		shortly (1)

		shot (1)

		shoulders (1)

		show (11)

		showed (3)

		showing (5)

		shown (20)

		shows (8)

		side (59)

		sides (1)

		sidewalk (1)

		sidewalks (2)

		sights (2)

		sign (3)

		sign-in (3)

		signage (1)

		signed (2)

		significant (3)

		significantly (1)

		Similar (10)

		similarly (1)

		simply (2)

		Simpson (107)

		simulated (2)

		simulation (5)

		simulations (1)

		Single (4)

		single-pole (2)

		sit (3)

		site (9)

		site-specific (1)

		sited (4)

		sites (2)

		siting (14)

		sits (4)

		sitting (2)

		situation (4)

		situations (1)

		six (3)

		size (2)

		skyline (1)

		slide (6)

		slides (24)

		slight (1)

		slightly (3)

		slow (2)

		slowly (1)

		small (2)

		smaller (3)

		sneak (1)

		sneeze (1)

		Snell (1)

		social (4)

		Society (1)

		software (5)

		soil (1)

		Sol (26)

		Sol-White (3)

		somebody (3)

		Someone (6)

		sometime (2)

		sometimes (2)

		somewhat (1)

		soon (3)

		Sorry (6)

		sort (3)

		sought (1)

		sound (1)

		sounds (3)

		source (1)

		south (50)

		Southern (4)

		Southwest (1)

		space (7)

		spacing (1)

		span (10)

		spanning (2)

		spans (3)

		speak (14)

		speaker (2)

		speaking (3)

		specialist (1)

		specific (6)

		Specifically (4)

		specifics (1)

		speculating (1)

		speculation (1)

		speeches (1)

		spend (2)

		spent (4)

		spoil (1)

		spoke (7)

		spoken (3)

		spot (3)

		square (8)

		stable (1)

		staff (2)

		stage (1)

		stages (2)

		stakeholder (12)

		stakeholders (4)

		stand (3)

		standard (11)

		standards (2)

		standing (3)

		standpoint (1)

		stands (1)

		star (3)

		staring (1)

		start (10)

		started (15)

		starting (5)

		starts (3)

		state (22)

		state-owned (1)

		stated (1)

		statement (4)

		statements (2)

		States (2)

		statewide (1)

		static (1)

		stating (1)

		Station (2)

		status (1)

		statute (1)

		statutory (1)

		stay (6)

		stayed (1)

		staying (1)

		steel (2)

		steer (1)

		step (1)

		still (7)

		stop (17)

		stoplight (1)

		stopped (2)

		stopping (2)

		stops (9)

		storage (3)

		store (2)

		stored (1)

		story (1)

		strategic (1)

		Stratus (1)

		street (6)

		Streets (3)

		strict (2)

		string (1)

		strip (1)

		strong (1)

		structure (17)

		structures (52)

		studied (2)

		studies (10)

		Studio (1)

		study (20)

		studying (1)

		sturdy (1)

		subdivision (45)

		subject (4)

		subjects (1)

		submitted (1)

		subsequent (2)

		substantially (1)

		Substation (104)

		substation-related (1)

		substations (15)

		subtransmission (6)

		suggestions (1)

		suitable (1)

		Suite (1)

		summarize (2)

		summary (1)

		summertime (1)

		Sun (1)

		Suncliff (27)

		Suncliffs (1)

		supervised (1)

		supervision (1)

		supervisor (2)

		supplement (2)

		supplemental (1)

		support (15)

		supported (2)

		supportive (1)

		supports (1)

		supposed (1)

		sure (23)

		surfaces (1)

		surpassed (1)

		surpassing (1)

		surprise (3)

		surround (1)

		surrounding (14)

		suspect (1)

		sustain (1)

		sustainability (2)

		sustainable (1)

		swearing (1)

		switch (2)

		sworn (4)

		synthetic (1)

		system (15)

		systems (4)



		T

		table (3)

		tables (2)

		Tablet (1)

		takeoff (5)

		talk (12)

		talked (10)

		talking (6)

		tall (3)

		taller (1)

		Tanks (14)

		Tanks-El (1)

		target (1)

		tasks (1)

		tax (1)

		taxes (1)

		team (4)

		TECH (13)

		technical (3)

		technicalities (1)

		technically (2)

		technology (1)

		tells (1)

		Tempe (1)

		temperatures (1)

		ten (7)

		ten-minute (1)

		ten-year (10)

		term (9)

		terminate (1)

		terminating (2)

		terminology (2)

		terminus (1)

		terms (15)

		terrain (3)

		territory (6)

		testified (9)

		testifies (1)

		testify (2)

		testimony (30)

		Thanks (2)

		theoretically (1)

		thinking (3)

		third (5)

		third-party (1)

		though (6)

		thought (3)

		thoughtful (1)

		thousand (1)

		three (43)

		throat (1)

		throughout (5)

		tie (2)

		ties (1)

		till (1)

		times (9)

		titled (2)

		Tod (1)

		today (30)

		today's (1)

		together (2)

		told (2)

		tomorrow (34)

		tonight (2)

		took (2)

		top (7)

		topics (9)

		total (3)

		touch (1)

		tour (59)

		tours (2)

		toward (2)

		towards (7)

		towers (1)

		Town (4)

		towns (3)

		TPT (1)

		track (1)

		tracks (4)

		tract (1)

		traffic (9)

		train (1)

		trains (2)

		transformers (4)

		transition (8)

		transitioning (1)

		transmission (69)

		transportation (13)

		trash (1)

		travel (10)

		traveled (1)

		traveling (2)

		travels (4)

		traversing (1)

		trench (1)

		trending (1)

		Triadvocates (3)

		tribal (1)

		Tribe (1)

		Trilby (1)

		trip (1)

		trucks (1)

		true (4)

		truth (2)

		try (7)

		trying (6)

		TS-2 (13)

		TS-20 (2)

		TS2 (1)

		tune (1)

		turn (17)

		turned (2)

		turning (4)

		turns (4)

		twice (2)

		two (41)

		type (5)

		types (3)

		Typical (7)



		U

		ultimately (2)

		unable (1)

		under (10)

		underbuilding (1)

		underbuilt (1)

		underground (41)

		undergrounded (13)

		undergrounding (30)

		underlying (1)

		understood (3)

		unfamiliar (1)

		unfortunately (1)

		Unified (1)

		unique (2)

		unit (2)

		United (2)

		University (7)

		unless (6)

		unprecedented (1)

		unstable (1)

		up (72)

		upcoming (1)

		updated (1)

		upon (3)

		urban (2)

		usable (1)

		use (10)

		used (16)

		uses (3)

		Using (12)

		usually (2)

		Utah (1)

		utilities (1)

		utility (1)

		utilization (1)

		utilize (3)

		utilized (1)

		utilizing (1)



		V

		V-Ray (1)

		vacant (1)

		Valley (39)

		Valley's (1)

		valuable (2)

		van (8)

		variable (1)

		variable-width (1)

		variables (1)

		variety (1)

		various (7)

		vary (1)

		vegetation (1)

		vehicle (2)

		vehicles (2)

		Verde (1)

		version (2)

		versus (2)

		vertical (2)

		vests (3)

		via (4)

		viable (1)

		vicinity (2)

		Vicki (1)

		video (12)

		view (7)

		viewers (1)

		viewing (1)

		views (1)

		violate (1)

		virtual (10)

		virtually (12)

		visible (2)

		visual (3)

		vital (1)

		voice (1)

		vote (1)



		W

		wait (3)

		waiting (2)

		walk (5)

		wall (10)

		walled (2)

		wander (1)

		wants (1)

		warehouses (1)

		Wash (1)

		waste (2)

		wastewater (1)

		Water (14)

		way (31)

		ways (3)

		wear (3)

		wearing (2)

		weather (1)

		WECC (1)

		week (2)

		weeks (1)

		welcome (2)

		weren't (4)

		West (79)

		WestConnect's (1)

		westerly (1)

		Western (1)

		what's (10)

		Whenever (2)

		whisper (1)

		white (18)

		Who's (1)

		whole (5)

		wide (2)

		widening (1)

		width (1)

		Wiley (128)

		Wiley's (1)

		willing (2)

		Wilmer (1)

		windshield (1)

		Wing (1)

		wish (5)

		wishes (1)

		within (22)

		without (7)

		witness (20)

		witnesses (10)

		wondering (1)

		wood (2)

		Woolf (3)

		word (2)

		work (14)

		worked (9)

		worker (3)

		working (3)

		works (1)

		world (1)

		written (1)

		wrong (1)



		Y

		yard (2)

		yards (1)

		Yavapai (1)

		year (4)

		years (35)

		yellow (11)

		yield (1)

		YMCA (1)

		Youngtown (3)

		Yuma (2)



		Z

		zero (1)

		Zone (2)

		zoned (1)

		Zones (11)

		zoning (2)

		zoom (3)

		zoomed-in (1)
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IN THE MATTER OF THE APPLI CATI ON
OF ARl ZONA PUBLI C SERVI CE

COVPANY,
REQUI REMENTS OF ARI ZONA REVI SED

LS CASE NO. 198 VOLUME | 02/ 28/ 2022

BEFORE THE ARI ZONA PONER PLANT
AND TRANSM SSI ON LI NE SI TI NG COW TTEE

DOCKET NO.

L- 00000D- 22- 0030- 00198
I N CONFORVANCE W TH THE

LS CASE NO. 198

STATUTES 40-360, ET SEQ, FOR A
CERTI FI CATE OF ENVI RONMENTAL
COVPATI BI LI TY FOR THE WEST
VALLEY CENTRAL TRANSM SSI ON
PRQIECT, WH CH CONSI STS OF THE

DOUBLE- Cl RCUI T CAPABLE 230

KI LOVOLT (KV) TRANSM SSI ON LI NES
NEEDED TO | NTERCONNECT THE

EXI STI NG CONTRAI L SUBSTATI ON
LOCATED AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER
OF OLI VE AVENUE AND DYSART RQAD
IN EL M RAGE, MARI COPA COUNTY TO
EXI STI NG 230 KV SUBSTATI ONS AND
TRANSM SSI ON LI NES | N THE AREA.

)
)
)
)
)
)
)
g
CONSTRUCTI ON OF THREE NEW )
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)

At :
Dat e:
Fil ed:

d endal e, Ari zona
February 28, 2022
March 7, 2022

REPORTER S TRANSCRI PT OF PROCEEDI NGS5

VOLUME |
(Pages 1 through 164)

COASH & COASH, | NC.
Court Reporting, Video & Videoconferencing
1802 North 7th Street, Phoeni x, AZ 85006
602- 258- 1440 st af f @oashandcoash. com

By: Carolyn T. Sullivan, RPR
Arizona CR No. 50528

COASH & COASH, | NC. 602- 258- 1440
www. coashandcoash. com Phoeni x, AZ
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| NDEX TO EXAM NATI ONS
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02/ 28/ 2022
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DAVI D W LEY, KEVI N DUNCAN, RANDALL SI MPSQON,

KRI STI N DARR

Di rect Exam nation by M. Derstine
Di rect Exam nation by Ms. Benal ly
Cross- Exam nati on by M. ol estan
Redi rect Exam nation by M. Derstine
Recr oss- Exam nation by M. ol estan

Direct Exam nation by Ms. Benally
Direct Exam nation by M. Derstine
Direct Exam nation by Ms. Benally

Di rect Exam nation by M. Derstine
Di rect Exam nation by Ms. Benal ly

Di rect Exam nation by M. Derstine
Direct Exam nation by M. Derstine (

Cross- Exam nati on by M. Col estan
Redi rect Exam nation by M. Derstine

| NDEX TO EXHI BI TS
NO. DESCRI PTI ON

APS-1 Application for Certificate of
Envi ronnmental Conpatibility

APS-2 Wtness Summary of David WI ey
APS-3 Wtness Summary of Kevin Duncan

APS-4 Wtness Summary of Randal |
Si npson

APS-5 Wtness Summary of Kristin Darr
APS-6 Wtness Presentation Slides

APS-7 Proposed CEC with Corridor Mp
and Narrative - Proposed Routes

APS-8 Affidavit of Publication of
Noti ce of Hearing

COASH & COASH, | NC.
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351
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69
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221
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APS- 10 Proof of Wbsite Posting 223 356

APS-11 Proof of Service to Affected 223 356
Juri sdictions

APS- 12 Proof of Posting: Photos of 222 356
Noti ce of Hearing signs posted
at site and map

APS- 13 Sunmary of Public Qutreach 352 356
Efforts Suppl enment to Tabl es
J-2 and J-3

APS- 14 Whol f Logistics Center letter 279 356
dated February 17, 2022

APS- 15 Luke Air Force Base letter 279 356
dat ed January 21, 2022

APS-16 M crosoft |etter dated 279 356
February 17, 2022

APS-17 City of Surprise letter dated 279 356
January 24, 2022

APS-18 City of El Mrage letter dated 279 356
January 25, 2022

APS-19 Route Itinerary and Map 133 356

APS- 20 Conmi ssion Staff |etter dated 343 356
February 23, 2022

APS- 21 Typi cal 230kV Riser Structure 127 356
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2022, and Response dat ed
February 24, 2022
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| NDEX TO EXHI BI TS ( Cont . )

Bet ween Mari copa County, the
City of EI Mrage, the City of
d endale and the City of Peoria
for Inmprovenents to Northern
Par kway from SR 303 to US 60
(Gand Avenue)

Peori a- 2

Nort hern Parkway: Agua Fria
R ver to 99th Avenue
Scopi ng and Desi gn Report

Peori a- 3

FY 2022-2025 MAG Transportation
| npr ovenent Program (Tl P)
Decenber 1, 2021

Peori a-4

Map of area

CHW-1 Edited Draft of CEC

CHWN- 2 Fi nal

form of CEC
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APS-23 Letter to State Historic 316
Preservation O fice dated
January 27, 2022, Response
dat ed February 16, 2022
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Corridor Description
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LS CASE NO. 198 VOLUME | 02/ 28/ 2022

BE | T REMEMBERED t hat t he above-entitled and
nunbered matter cane on regularly to be heard before the
Ari zona Power Plant and Transm ssion Line Siting
Commttee at the A endale G vic Center, 5750 West d enn
Drive, dendale, Arizona, comrencing at 1:10 p.m on the

28t h day of February, 2022.

BEFORE: PAUL A KATZ, Chairman

LEONARD DRAGO, Departnent of Environnental Quality
DAVI D FRENCH, Arizona Departnent of \WAter Resources
JAMVES PALMER, Agriculture Interests
MARY HAMAMAY, | ncorporated Cities and Towns
RI CK GRI NNELL, Counti es
(vi a vi deoconf erence)
KARL CGENTLES, CGeneral Public
(vi a vi deoconf erence)
MARGARET "TOBY" LITTLE, PE, General Public
(vi a videoconf erence)

APPEARANCES:
For the Applicant:

SNELL & WLMER, L.L.P.

M. J. Matthew Derstine
400 East Van Buren Street
Suite 1900

Phoeni x, Ari zona 85004

and

Pl NNACLE WEST CAPI TAL CORPORATI ON
Ms. Linda Benally

Seni or Attorney, Regul atory

400 North Fifth Street

Phoeni x, Arizona 85004

COASH & COASH, | NC. 602- 258- 1440
www. coashandcoash. com Phoeni x, AZ
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APPEARANCES: (Cont.)
For Gty of Peori a:

OFFI CE OF THE PEORI A CI TY ATTORNEY
M. Saman ol est an

Assistant City Attorney

8401 West Monroe Street

Room 280

Peoria, Arizona 85345
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www. coashandcoash. com

02/ 28/ 2022

602- 258- 1440
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LS CASE NO. 198 VOLUME | 02/ 28/ 2022

CHWN. KATZ: W're ready to go on the record.

| have been asked by both our technical people
as well as our court reporter to nake sure you under stand
that the m crophones are always live. So if you want to
whi sper to your neighbor, do it away fromthe m crophone.
If you're going to cough or sneeze or clear your throat,
you want to nmake sure you turn your head away fromthe
m crophone so we can get a good record.

I would ask all of our witnesses to speak
reasonably sl owy.

This is the tinme set for the hearing in the
application of Arizona Public Service Conpany in
connection with the Wst Valley Central transm ssion
project. And that is CEC Case No. 198.

And | would ask, first off, the attorneys who
are present and maybe participating in today's hearing to
identify thenselves for the record, and then we'll take a
roll call of the Commttee nenbership at well.

MR. DERSTINE: Good afternoon, Chairman, Menbers
of the Commttee.

Matt Derstine of Snell & WI ner appearing on
behal f of Arizona Public Service Conpany. Joining ne as
counsel is Linda Benally of the Arizona Public Service
Conpany.

CHWN. KATZ: And | ast but not | east.

COASH & COASH, | NC. 602- 258- 1440
www. coashandcoash. com Phoeni x, AZ
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LS CASE NO. 198 VOLUME | 02/ 28/ 2022

MR. GOLESTAN: Good afternoon, M. Chairman.
Sam Gol estan fromthe Peoria Cty Attorney's Ofice,

i ntervenor on behalf of City of Peoria.

CHWN. KATZ: And starting to ny far left -- to
ny far right, excuse nme, |I'd ask our Conmittee Menbers
who are present here to identify thensel ves by nane for
t he record.

MEMBER DRAGO My nane's Len Drago with the
Ari zona Departnent of Environnental Quality.

MEMBER HAMMY: Mary Hamnay representing cities
and t owns.

MEMBER PALMER: Ji m Pal mer representing
agriculture.

MEMBER FRENCH: David French, designee for
Ari zona Departnent of Water Resources.

CHWN. KATZ: And before we go to the fol ks that
are appearing virtually, David French is a new Conm ttee
Menber, and he represents the Departnent of Water
Resources. |s that correct?

MEMBER FRENCH: Correct.

CHWN. KATZ: And he'll be hopefully joining us
for a while and won't be | eaving us too soon.

| also see Menber Little and M. Ginnell
appearing virtually. | don't know if there is anyone
else that is online virtually at this tine.
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Well, it |looks |Iike we have seven of us. W do
have a quorum and can probably get started.

Al so, we can take a break every hour and a half
plus or mnus a few m nutes.

And | was wondering if we have any prelimnary
matters to take care of before we get going, and I'll ask
t he attorneys.

MR. DERSTINE: M. Chairman, you nay have built
this already into the matters you want to start wth and
as we get going, but I don't know if you want to address
first the application to intervene on behalf of the Gty
of Peori a.

CHWN. KATZ: Thank you for rem nding ne of that.

And we also will decide -- it's ny understandi ng
that we are going to likely take a tour first thing
tonorrow norning, which will likely take a half a day; is
that correct?

MR. DERSTINE: Yes. APS -- | think our viewis
that that would be beneficial to the Conmttee. W have
prepared a route tour. W have narked it as an exhibit.
We can cover that in sone detail this afternoon or
tonmorrow norning. But | think we have nmade arrangenents
to have suitable transportation to neet us here tonorrow
norning at 9 a.m, which is the scheduled start tine.

And we'll proceed on the tour, and we woul d expect that
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that woul d take us up to the schedul ed | unch break, and
then the hearings would resune at 1 p.m tonorrow.

CHWN. KATZ: Thank you. | know that there has
been a notion or application by the City of Peoria to
intervene in these proceedings. | also understand from
our prehearing conference | ast week and sone
conmuni cations that APS has no objection to the
intervention; is that correct?

MR. DERSTINE: That's correct.

CHWN. KATZ: Do any of the Commttee Menbers
want to hear any argunments from counsel regarding the
intervention, or are we confortable in noving forward and
allowng the intervention? And if we're confortable
nmoving forward, | would need a notion and a second.

MEMBER PALMER: M. Chairman, | woul d nove that
we grant intervention to the City of Peori a.

MEMBER HAMMY: And | second.

CHWN. KATZ: Any di scussion?

(No response.)

CHWN. KATZ: Al those on the Commttee who are

in favor of allowing the intervention, please say "aye.
(A chorus of "ayes.")
CHWN. KATZ: Any opposed?
(No response.)
CHWN. KATZ: No one is opposed, so the
COASH & COASH, | NC. 602- 258- 1440
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intervention is granted.

The other thing is we have a tour scheduled to

| eave fromthis site at approximately 9 a.m |If there
are any Commttee Menbers in favor, | would |like to hear
a notion. And if we have a second, we'll have
di scussion, if necessary. And if not, we'll take a vote.
MEMBER HAMMY: | nove we take the tour. |Is
that what |'m novi ng?
MEMBER PALMER: 1'Il| second that.

CHWN. KATZ: |Is there any discussion?

(No response.)

CHWN. KATZ: Al in favor, please say "aye."

(A chorus of "ayes.")

CHWN. KATZ: Anyone opposed?

(No response.)

CHWN. KATZ: We will then have that tour
t onmor r ow nor ni ng.

|'ve just got to get ny notebook put together
her e.

And | have received fromboth APS as well from
the Gty of Peoria the summary of w tness statenents and
the list of witnesses. And | believe that we have all of
the exhibits available as well. And if we are ready to
begin, I would invite you, M. Derstine or Ms. Benally,
whoever is going to take charge. You should feel free to
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begi n.

(Of the record for audi o issue.)

CHWN. KATZ: |If you are ready, APS, feel free
for make a focused openi ng statenent.

MR DERSTINE: | will. Thank you, M. Chairman.
I'lIl try to be as focused as | can.

Good afternoon, Chairman, Menbers of the
Commi ttee.

Phoeni x is hot. And |I'm not just speaking about
our balnmy summertine tenperatures. Phoenix is hot in
terms of growth. Popul ation growth, business grow h.

The city of Phoenix grew at the fastest rate of all big
cities in the United States. Over the past year, it's
now the fifth biggest city in the country, surpassing
Phi | adel phi a.

The netropolitan area of Phoeni x has grown to
4.9 mllion residents. And the West Valley is a big part
of that netropolitan growh. The West Valley's
popul ation is currently 1.7 mllion, and projections are
that the West Valley wll reach 2.1 mlIlion by 2030.

That rapid population growth is foll ow ng
busi ness grow h. The business growh is attracting fol ks
to the Valley. The state of Arizona | eads the nation in
job growth. The Phoenix Metropolitan area is a big part
of that overall statewde job growth, job creation. And
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once again a big part of the job growth, business growh
in Metropolitan Phoenix, is occurring in the West Vall ey.

The West Valley is one of the top markets for
dat acenters, sem conductor nanufacturing, |ogistics,
heal t hcare, and high-tech industries. A lot of that
growh in logistics you' re seeing along the Loop 303
corridor. The Loop 303 corridor is now being referred to
as the West Valley Enpire, taking the nane fromthe
| nl and Enpire where we saw so nmuch growth in the Inland
Enmpire in Southern California.

There's mllions of square feet of industrial
and comrerci al space that are under devel opnment in the
West Valley. You sinply need to drive around the West
Val |l ey, which we will do tonorrow, to see all of the
devel opnment projects and the agriculture fields that are
now bei ng devel oped into industrial parks, |ogistics
centers, comrerce centers throughout the West Vall ey.

This slide shows a couple of articles that we're
tal ki ng about and alerting folks to the growh that's
happening in the West Valley. The first one says:

Here's why the West Valley is exploding with econom c
gr ow h.

The center article says: Here we grow. The
West Valley on the rise.

The third one says: Loop 303 corridor becones

COASH & COASH, | NC. 602- 258- 1440
www. coashandcoash. com Phoeni x, AZ





© 00 ~N oo o b~ w N P

N RN N NN R R R R R R R R R
g N W N P O © O N o o0 M W N L O

LS CASE NO. 198 VOLUME | 02/ 28/ 2022 15

gl obal center for devel opnent.

That's what's happening in the Valley today.

It won't cone as a surprise to this Commttee to
say that you can't grow wi thout power. This growth
that's occurring in the West Valley can't occur w thout
infrastructure, w thout the transm ssion |ines and
substations that are needed to support and sustain that
growh. APS has a duty to serve custoners with reliable
and adequate power within its service territory, and that
service territory covers much of the West Vall ey.

D fferent custoners have different needs. Not
every commercial custoner is going to need a 230kV |1 ne.
Not every project needs to cone before this Commttee.
But, as always, the challenge is to site the new
facilities needed for the growth and to do that in a way
that mnimzes the inpacts on the surrounding conmunity.
And that's what this case is about.

This project, the West Valley Central Project,
addresses two needs: First is the need to provide
adequate, reliable power to a new Mcrosoft datacenter
that is being constructed and devel oped in El Mrage.

The second need that this project addresses is
the need for 230kV infrastructure to support the
i ndustrial and the commercial growth that | just
nment i oned.

COASH & COASH, | NC. 602- 258- 1440
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What does the project involve? Wat are the
conponents? Wat needs to be built?

First, APS will be expanding the existing
Contrail Substation, which is currently the 69kV
substation that is in place on the Mcrosoft datacenter
canpus. And that substation wll be expanded, the bays
and the transforners needed for the 230kV
I nt er connecti ons.

The other piece of the project is to construct
t hree separate doubl e-circuit 230kV transm ssion |ines
that are set out in the application. And you'll see the
routes for those three lines on the map on the right
screen.

What are the benefits of the project?

First off, it allows us to serve the M crosoft
datacenter. The load for the datacenter is significant.
| think it's in the nei ghborhood of 245 negawatts. In
addition, these three connection points, the three
separate double-circuit 230kV lines, allow us to serve
that high load while, at the sane tine, elimnating the
need for diesel generation and the environnental
consi derations and concerns that diesel generation
carries with it.

The project does in nany ways what the Northern
Parkway is doing. The project connects the 230kV system

COASH & COASH, | NC. 602- 258- 1440
www. coashandcoash. com Phoeni x, AZ





© 00 ~N oo o b~ w N P

N RN N NN R R R R R R R R R
g N W N P O © O N o o0 M W N L O

LS CASE NO. 198 VOLUME | 02/ 28/ 2022 17

on the east, which the El Sol -Wite Tanks |ine, and the
230kV systemon the west. The Northern Parkway is
connecting the parkway systenms on the east to the freeway
systens on the west. This project allows APS to

i nterconnect its 230kV systens that sit on either side of
the West Valley, and that provides us with significant
reliability benefits.

As | nentioned, the project involves
doubl e-circuit 230kV lines. The first circuit will be
used to serve the Mcrosoft |oad, but there's additional
capacity on that line to serve other datacenters that are
being sited or are in the early stages of planning or
consi deration for the West Vall ey.

The second circuit wll then al so be avail abl e
to serve the future load growh, all the industrial and
commerci al custoners that are noving to the West Vall ey.

What was the planni ng process? Wat was done to
prepare us for the hearing today?

It was an 18-nonth effort that invol ved
envi ronmental and engi neeri ng anal ysis conbined with
publ i c outreach and st akehol der engagenent over those 18
nmont hs. Anal ysis from an engi neeri ng and environnent al
st andpoi nt covered a 4l1-square-nile area on the map you
see outlined. And throughout that 18-nonth tine frane,
the early anal ysis brought about nunbered |inks. And you
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see those nunbered links | think there on the map on the
right, the routes that are on the application.

Those snal |l er nunbered |inks were then used to
devel op prelimnary routes and those routes were
presented to the public, and we sought feedback from
st akehol der and residents in the area concerni ng those
possible routes. And, ultimately, Routes A E, and G
were selected as the final routes for this project.

| nmentioned the public outreach. The public
out reach canpai gn was detail ed and thoughtful. W
engaged i n nunerous stakehol der briefings with the
various jurisdictions that are shown -- in the project
area, shown on the right screen.

Newsl etters went out at several stages of the
process to encourage folks to join us for initially a
virtual open house and then, later in the process, two
| i ve-stream open houses in which we discussed the routes
that were being presented to the public for coment and
consi deration. The outreach included social nedia ads
that were used to publicize the virtual open house and
the live-stream open house as well as the project itself.

And custoner emails. To the extent custoners
wthin this project area have provided APS with an emi l
address, they received direct enmails concerning the
project and the different open houses and m | estones of
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t he project.

Through that public outreach, we gai ned feedback
and i nput fromthe various jurisdictions. Luke Air Force
Base, which is another stakeholder, on the right. Those
di agonal red and yellow |lines are the Acci dent and
Protection Zones for Luke which we had to work around and
make sure we weren't creating conflicts wwth. As well as
the Maricopa County Departnent of Transportation, which
is under way in terns of constructing the Northern
Par kway. As well as devel opers and residents in the
ar ea.

In Exhibit J to the application, you'll see
letters as well as | think we have separately narked one
or two of these, letters fromLuke Air Force Base, Cty
of dendale, City of EIl Mrage, City of Peoria, Plains
Energy, Wolf Logistics.

Those letters, sone, Luke, in particular,

i ndi cates support for our final route selection, but all
of them praise APS and its consultants for the siting
process, the manner in which we engaged those

st akehol ders and asked for their feedback and consi dered
t heir feedback.

We do have the Cty of Peoria is here. The Cty
of Peoria has concerns wth having routes E and G

Kevin, if you can identify those on the nap kind

COASH & COASH, | NC. 602- 258- 1440
www. coashandcoash. com Phoeni x, AZ





© 00 ~N oo o b~ w N P

N RN N NN R R R R R R R R R
g N W N P O © O N o o0 M W N L O

LS CASE NO. 198 VOLUME | 02/ 28/ 2022 20

of generally for the Conmttee and the viewers virtually.

Havi ng those two routes that sit on the northern
border and the southern border of the Gty of Peoria and
are sitting on either side of a residential subdivision
that sits kind of in a narrow path between those two
routes within the Cty of Peoria jurisdiction.

The Gty of Peoria has conme to APS and asked the
conpany to eval uate whether a portion of the northern
route can be placed underground as it fronts along the
City of Peoria. Again, the Routes E and G that you see
there are not being sited in the Gty of Peoria, but they
are on Adive and Northern Avenue, cross and outside of,
to our understanding, the City of Peoria itself, but they
follow along the jurisdiction of the border of the Cty.

So the Gty has asked APS to eval uate whether a
segnent of Route G that borders on Northern Avenue can be
pl aced underground. APS has agreed to do that. That
work is under way. | think what we can say today is that
APS has agreed to underground that segnent that borders
on the City of Peoria if it can be under grounded.

The current plan and the plan all al ong has been
to place the northern line, the Route G double-circuit
230kV line within the City of Gendale landfill, which is
on the south side of Northern.

And so the issue here is can that double-circuit
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230kV line be safely and reliably constructed underground
in a duck bank within the retaining wall of the |andfill
and not be inpacted by landfill operations where they're
conpacting trash and whatever else ends up in the
landfill.

Can we put the duck bank there? Can we nmaintain
it? Can we reach it for repairs? And will it not be
degraded or inpacted by the landfill operations? That
eval uation is under way, but we've conmmtted to do that
wor k, do that analysis and share it with the Cty. If it
can be done, APS is conmmtted to do it.

CHWN. KATZ: And which segnent have you al ready
agreed or --

MR. DERSTINE: It's Route G the southern piece
al ong Peoria, where we're agreeing to do that.

Adive was initially also considered. So you
have the landfill on the sound end there al ong Northern.
And t hen you have a nunber of transm ssion |ines and the
substation on Aive to the north. The problemwth
under grounding on Aive as opposed to Northern as an
alternative is that there are a nunber of underground
conflicts along Aive and other issues with trying to
underground the line on Aive.

So the opportunity is there on Northern. And,
as | nentioned, we're studying that and i nvestigating
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whet her that can be done, whether we can safely and
reliably underground that circuit for the length of the
City of Peoria. It is our understanding that is the
desire and the wish of the City, And we've agreed to do
it if we can do it. And, inportantly, the cost to
underground wll be paid by Mcrosoft. Again, if we can
do that and underground the circuit there.

| think the Commttee probably knows nore than
me about the technicalities and the issues for
undergrounding a circuit and the cost for undergroundi ng
the circuit, other than our new Menber French, sat
through a long hearing in which the intricacies and the
hurdl es and obstacl es of undergroundi ng were di scussed
and evidence was presented to the Commttee. So you
f ol ks understand those issues. But, again, APS has
agreed to do it if we can do it.

So how are we going to present this case to you?
We have a wtness panel. You see the four w tnesses
across fromne in the hearing room W have M. W/l ey
and M. Duncan on behalf of APS, and we have M. Sinpson
and Ms. Darr. M. Sinpson represents the environnental
consulting firmthat was engaged to perform nuch of the
siting studies and environnental analysis. And Ms. Darr
was responsi ble for the outreach canpaign. So those are
our W tnesses.
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W will also the utilize the witness slides and
various exhibits that will be projected here in the
hearing room W'I|l also have a flyover simulation, in
whi ch the Commttee will have an opportunity, as you have
in every case, to see the routes through a sinul at ed
format and see where A, E, and G are, what is the
surroundi ng geography, what is around there al ong those
routes. But | think you'll be best infornmed by the route
tour which we've schedul ed for tonorrow norning.

And then you'll also hear fromthe Cty of
Peoria in terns of whatever w tnesses and exhibits they
W sh to introduce.

So that's the case.

At the end of the case, APS w il request that
you grant us the CEC for this project. The CEC wi |
request approval to construct the double-circuit 230kV
lines on Routes A, E, and G The steel nobnopole
structures, the heights of those structures, wll range
from130 to 195 feet. But included in the request of the
approval, certainly for Route G wll be an option to
under ground al ong Peori a Avenue on Route G

And the only additional -- although the
under groundi ng portion is not, as the Conmttee knows,

W thin the jurisdiction of the Commttee, we do need you
to call out and approve the use of the riser structures
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which will take the 230kV |ines underground al ong the
Peoria segnment and then bring the |line back up once we've
noved to the west past the boundary of the city of

Peori a.

So the alternative optionality for Route G w ||
be overhead construction or utilization of the riser
structures, which is a different type of structure, and
we'll show what you that | ooks |ike as part of the
approval and the request for Route G

We're requesting a ten-year term which is the
standard ACC and Commttee termfor the first circuit.
But because that second circuit wll be used to support
growh in the future and we don't know how qui ckly that
growh is going to conme and how quickly we're going to
need that second 230kV circuit, we're asking for a | onger
term a 20-year term for the second circuit. And we're
happy to discuss that with you further, and you can dril
down on the need and the justification for that.

So that's it. That's the case. | appreciate
your attention and letting ne give you an overview of the
project and how we're going to present it to you.

This is an inportant project. It's an inportant
project for Mcrosoft. 1It's an inportant project for
West Valley growh, the |l ogistics centers, the conmerci al
and i ndustrial businesses. Al the growh that you're
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seeing along the Loop 303 corridor and throughout the
West Valley, this project is needed to support that
growt h, and we | ook forward to presenting the case to
you.

Thanks.

CHWN. KATZ: M. (ol estan.

MR. GOLESTAN. M. Chairman, Menbers, Gty of
Peoria would like to reserve its tine for opening
statenent at the beginning of its intervention.

CHWN. KATZ: That's fine.

Let nme just ask you, M. Derstine, are you going

to be calling all of these fol ks as a panel or one at a

time?

MR. DERSTINE: Thank you, M. Chairman. That is
our intention, to call themas a panel. And so they're
ready to be sworn, and I'll introduce them as a panel

when you're ready.
CHWN. KATZ: Let ne just ask, | can do the oath,

whi ch woul d be swearing you in, or | can do an

affirmation. |Is there any preference? |If you all agree
one way or the other, we'll do it that way or take you
separ at e.
MR. DUNCAN: |'d prefer an oath.
MR SIMPSON: | think we all do. W tal ked
about that.
COASH & COASH, | NC. 602- 258- 1440
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(David Wl ey, Kevin Duncan, Randall Sinpson, and
Kristin Darr were duly sworn, en nasse, by the Chairman.)

CHWN. KATZ: Qur three w tnesses have been
sworn, and you nay begi n your exam nati on.

MR. DERSTINE: Can we have the wi tness slides or
our Witness presentation slides cued up on the right

SCreen.

DAVI D W LEY, KEVI N DUNCAN, RANDALL SI MPSON,
AND KRI STI N DARR,
call ed as witnesses as a panel on behalf of Applicant,
havi ng been previously sworn by the Chairman to speak the
truth and nothing but the truth, were exam ned and

testified as foll ows:

DI RECT EXAM NATI ON

BY MR DERSTI NE:

Q M. Wley, we're going to start wth you.

Can you state your nanme for the record and your

addr ess, pl ease.

A (M. Wley) M nane is David Wley. M address
is 2121 West Cheryl Drive, Phoenix, Arizona 85021.

Q M. WIley, your slide says you're the
supervision for transm ssion planni ng and engi neeri ng.
In that capacity, were you involved wth the devel opnent
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of the West Valley Central Project?

A (M. Wley) That's correct.

Q Usi ng your background slides, why don't you
sumari ze your educati on and your professional experience
for the Commttee.

A (M. Wley) Certainly. | received ny
bachelor's in electrical engineering in 2013 from Ari zona
State University. | then received ny naster's in
el ectrical engineering with an enphasis in power systens
in 2014, also from Arizona State University.

|'ve been with APS for seven years, four of
which | was an engineer within the transm ssion pl anni ng
and engi neering group. The last three years, |'ve been
supervi sor of the transm ssion planni ng and engi neeri ng
group. And | ama licensed professional engineer in the
state of Arizona.

|'ve held a variety of roles in the industry.
On an interconnectionw de |level, |'ve served as a nenber
on various WECC conmttees. | currently serve as the APS
representative on the Reliability Assessnent Conmtt ee.

On a regional level, | currently serve as the
chair of West Connect's Pl anni ng Managenment Conmttee. |
was the APS subject matter exert for the 11th BTA

Also on a local level, |I testified in the Line
Siting Case 193. And | served as the Phoeni x Chapter
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chair of the | EEE Power Energy Society from 2017 to 2018.
Q M. Wley, the slides that you're using for your
background here are part of a | arger Power Poi nt deck that
you and the other w tnesses are using to augnent your
testinony in the hearing. The PowerPoint slides are
mar ked for us as APS Exhibit 6.
You assisted in the presentation of the

Power Poi nt slides, APS-6, concerning the topics that

you'll carry in your testinony, correct?
A (M. Wley) Yes, that's correct.
Q And your testinony and the slides that you were

responsi ble for preparing include the APS service
territory and transm ssion system the purpose and need
for the project, overview of the Contrail Substation, and
the APS Ten-Year Plan filing. Do | have that right?

A (M. Wley) Yes.

Q Do you have any corrections to the slides that
cover the topics which | just identified?

A (M. Wley) | do not.

Q So the infornmation wthin those slides on those

topics is true and correct to the best of your know edge?

A (M. Wley) Yes, it is.

Q M . Duncan, good afternoon.

A (M. Duncan) Good afternoon.

Q You have been before the Commttee as the
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proj ect manager on a nunber of projects. At |east
certainly in 2021, you and I have had the pl easure of
bei ng here before the Commttee. But this was not
initially your project. Soneone else was nanhaging it
t hrough much of the 18-nonth tinme frane.

But it's your project now, and you're
know edgeabl e and responsi ble for the project and
presenting it to the Conmttee today, correct?

A (M. Duncan) Yes.

Q Usi ng your background slides, why don't you
rem nd the Conmttee of your educational background and
your wor k experience.

A (M. Duncan) Certainly.

So | earned ny Master of Business Adm nistration
from Benedi ctine University and hold a bachel or's degree
in urban planning fromthe University of U ah.

I have 20 years of conbi ned professiona
experience, with 14 of those years as an environnent al
pl anner, consultant, and six years of experience at APS.

I have testified in front of this Commttee
seven previous tines in Cases 143, 157, 160, 163, 165,
190, and the amendnents for Cases 120 and 131.

Q In your role as the project manager, you were
i nvol ved with and supervi sed the CEC application for the
West Valley Central Project; is that correct?
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A (M. Duncan) That is correct.
Q As you sit here today, do you have any

corrections to the CEC application which is APS

Exhi bit 17?
A (M. Duncan) No, | do not.
Q Simlar to the questions that | had wth

M. WIley, you also participated in the preparati on of
slides that you'll use to support and augnment your
testi nony before the Commttee, and those w tness slides
are marked as APS Exhi bit 6.
The topics that you'll cover and the slides in 6
that you were responsi ble for include the project
descri pti on and devel opnent, the proposed routes,
corridor and right-of-way for the project, structures
that will be utilized to construct the project, as well
as application and notice issues.
Did I cover all the topics that you're going to
cover with the Cormttee?
A (M. Duncan) Yes, you did.
Q Ckay. Do you have any corrections to the slides
t hat address those topics?
A (M. Duncan) No, | do not.
Q Is the information presented in APS Exhibit 6,
t he Power Point slides on the topics that we' ve just
identified, true and correct to the best of your
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know edge?

A (M. Duncan) Yes, they are.

Q M. Sinpson

A (M. Sinpson) Thank you.

Q WIll you state your nane and address for the
record.

A (M. Sinpson) M nane is Randall Lee Sinpson,

and |''ma project nmanager with Burns & McDonnel |

Q Burns & McDonnell was engaged by APS to perform
various tasks in support of the West Valley Central
project, including the siting studies and environnental
analysis. Do | have that right?

A (M. Sinpson) That is correct.

Q Usi ng your background slides from Exhibit 6, why
don't you take a mnute to sumrari ze your education and
your professional experience.

A (M. Sinpson) Yes. And to fulfill that first
question, ny business address is 1850 North Central
Avenue, Phoeni x, Arizona 85004.

Q Thank you.

A (M. Sinpson) | received two degrees from North
Dakota State University. One degree is in |landscape
architecture in 1993, and the first degree was
environmental design in 1992.

|'ve spent the |ast 30 years as a consultant for
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nunmer ous energy infrastructure projects. Mst of the
work that |1've done professionally is either transm ssion
line-rel ated, power plant-related, substation-rel ated.

I do have a few other projects in there for
ot her types of industry, but the bulk of ny career has
been spent in energy infrastructure projects, and |'ve
wor ked on a nunber of those facilities.

In that capacity, |'ve been the business unit
director for the groups that |1've worked with. |1've also
been a senior project manager and al so advi sor on ot her
proj ects.

Specifically related to line siting cases here
in Arizona, |'ve been the project manager for a nunber of
projects, and |I've testified in those projects as well.
Sonme of those cases included Case No. 116, 122, 127, 131,
and 187. And Cases 122 and 127 were cases that APS did
i medi ately adjacent to the west side of this project.

So I've worked a lot in this area. |'mvery
famliar with the issues and the growh in the Wst
Val l ey. Those projects were permtted in early 2000
peri od but have many of the sane issues that we
encountered there to consider. And it gave ne a | ot of
i nsi ght and knowl edge in the working rel ationships with
the communities as well as Luke Air Force Base, in
particul ar, where we've worked with them before.
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Q M. Sinpson, you assisted in the preparati on of
the slides that we used to support your testinony. That
entire deck is marked as APS-6, but you, in particular,
are responsi ble for the content in the slides that
address the siting and environnental studies for the
project; is that correct?

A (M. Sinpson) That is correct.

Q The information that's presented in the slides
t hat address the topics of the siting studies and the
environnental studies are true and correct to the best of
your know edge?

A (M. Sinpson) Yes, it is.

Q Ms. Darr, would you state your nane and
address for the record.

A Yes, certain. M nane is Kristin Darr. M
busi ness address is 24 West Canel back Road, Suite A479,
Phoeni x, Arizona 85013.

Q This is your first opportunity to testify before
the Siting Conmttee, but you have consi derabl e anount of
experi ence handling stakehol der and public invol venent as
t he owner of your own public relations and outreach
conpany, Creative Central -- or Central Creative. D d I

get it right?

A (Ms. Darr) Yes, Central Creative.
Q Got it.
COASH & COASH, | NC. 602- 258- 1440
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I ntroduce yourself to the Commttee and give
t hem an under st andi ng of your educati onal background and
your experience, please.

A (Ms. Darr) Certainly.

' mthe founder and principal of Central
Creative, LLC, which is |ocated here in Phoenix, Arizona.

I have 30 years of experience in stakehol der and
public involvenent, ten of which | spent working for
| arger engineering firns, and then I went out on ny own
in the year 2000. So |I'm here comng up on 22 years in
busi ness.

| have a bachelor's -- Bachelor of Arts degree
from Metropolitan State University in Denver, and I
recei ved that degree in 1991.

My busi ness focuses conpletely on the
st akehol der and public invol venent needs associated with
t he pl anni ng, design, construction, and operation of
infrastructure. | work in the areas of energy
generation, distribution, and transm ssi on;
transportation; water; wastewater; recreation; and other
flood control -- I think |I've got them all

| ama certified public participation speciali st
with the International Association of Public
Parti ci pati on.

In this particular study area, in the last five
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years, | have been responsi ble for stakehol der and public
i nvol venent for the Arizona Departnent of Transportation,
Interstate 11 Environnental |npact Statement, Maricopa
County Departnent of Transportation Transportation System
Pl ans for 2035 and then updated for 2040. That's their

| ong-range transportation plan. | worked with MCDOT and
wth all of these stakehol ders on the design concept for
Nor t her n Par kway.

I|'"mcurrently working on the Maricopa
Associ ati on of Governments Regional Transportation Plan,
whi ch i nvol ves all of these stakehol ders.

Wthin the last five years, | have been on cal
tothe Cty of Peoria s Engineering D vision to assi st
wth public information for their construction projects.

I"mcurrently on call with the Gty of
d endal e' s Engi neering Departnent, again, for public
information related to construction, their construction
proj ects.

| al so conducted public involvenment for the
d endal e Transportation Master Pl an

I have worked in various areas surroundi ng the
study area for EPCOR Water, and |'ve been on call to
Sout hwest Gas Corporation for 12 years and have worked
all across the Valley, including in the West Vall ey.

Sone of ny other clients of note would be the
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City of Phoenix Water Departnent, Gty of Phoenix Streets
Departnent, Arizona Departnent of Transportation, Fl ood
Control District of Maricopa County, Cty of Mesa, Cty
of Scottsdale, and the Bureau of Reclamati on throughout
the Western United States. But nost notably, |
facilitated negotiations related to the closure of the

Navaj o Generating Station and also facilitated the public

meetings on the tribal lands for that project, | guess
you would call it.
Q Thank you for that. So the portions of the

w t ness slides that address stakehol der engagenent,
public outreach, you assisted in the preparation of those
slides. Do | have that right?

A (Ms. Darr) Yes.

Q Do you have any corrections to those slides that
are contained in APS Exhi bit 6?

A (Ms. Darr) | do not.

Q The information in the slides that address
st akehol der and public engagenent are true and correct to
t he best of your know edge?

A (Ms. Darr) Yes.

MR DERSTINEE M. Chairman, that's it for the

i ntroduction of our witness panel. | think Ms. Benally
i's now ready, when you're ready, to proceed with our
first wtness.
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CHWN. KATZ: That's fine.
MS. BENALLY: Thank you, M. Derstine.

DI RECT EXAM NATI ON
BY MS. BENALLY:

Q M. WIley, are you prepared to start?

A (M. Wley) Yes, | am

MS. BENALLY: Good afternoon, M. Chairnman and
Conmm ttee Menbers and M. WI ey.

Q BY MS. BENALLY: Let's start your testinmony this
afternoon with an overview of the APS service territory
and the transm ssion systemthat it operates.

A (M. Wley) Certainly.

APS has been serving the state of Arizona for
over 125 years. W have approximately 1.3 mllion
custoners, and we reached an all-tine peak denmand of
7,700 negawatts on July 30, 2020.

APS has nearly 500 substations, roughly 300, 000
transforners, and nore than 550, 000 pol es and structures.

We have approximately 6,000 m | es of
transm ssion lines, 11,000 mles of overhead distribution
l'ines, and 22,000 m | es of underground cabl e.

APS serves 11 of Arizona's 15 counties, covering
a service territory of approxinately 35,000 square m | es.

If you take a | ook at the nmap on the right-hand
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screen, it is an outline of the state of Arizona. Those
areas outlined in white are APS s service territory. W
serve the area near Hol brook in Navajo County, Flagstaff
on up to the Grand Canyon in Coconi no County, the Verde
Val |l ey area in Yavapai County, Payson and the surroundi ng
towns in Gla County, the areas east of Parker in LaPaz
County, Yuma in Yuma County, Casa Grande and the
surrounding areas in Pinal County, and the southern
portion of Cochi se County near Dougl as.

W zoomin a little bit closer to the Phoeni x
Metropolitan area. APS serves the downtown Phoeni x area,
t he north Phoeni x, Paradi se Vall ey, and Scottsdal e area,
as well as the West Valley.

The gold star on this imge represents the area
surroundi ng the project.

Q Wth that high-1level overview that you just
provi ded, woul d you pl ease descri be the transm ssion
facilities and the substations in the area surroundi ng
t he new dat acenter custonmer that you just pointed out to
the Commttee that's |ocated on the map that's on the
right side that's designated by a star.

A (M. Wley) Certainly.

So to orient you on the map on the right-hand
screen, we have the |1-17 running north-south, running
t hrough the m ddle of the diagram and we have the |-10
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freeway runni ng east-west towards the bottom of the
diagram The area of the project is located in this
general area here.

Surroundi ng the project area are two 500/ 230kV
substations. There is one north of the project, the Wst
W ng 500/ 230kV substati on, and one south of the project
substation, the Rudd 500/ 230kV Substati on.

In addition, there are six 230/ 69kV substations
serving as inports to the subtransm ssion network. These
are the Surprise, EIl Sol, Wite Tanks, Freedom Palm
Val l ey, and Tril by Wash Substations. |In addition, there
I's one planned substation, TS-2, that was sited in Case
122.

On this map here, you'll see a little bit closer
zooned-in view of the project area.

To orient you on this map, you will see the 303
runni ng north-south and, again, the I-10 running
east-west towards the bottom of the page.

You'll see the Contrail Substation |ocated in
this area right here. This is the substation for which
the lines of this project will be connecting into and
serving the |l oad for the datacenter.

There are four 69/ 12kV substations serving the
load in the greater area surrounding the subject site.
These substations are Litchfield, Falcon, Farney, and
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Dysart Substati ons.

Lastly, there are five substations under
devel opnent to serve the datacenter |oad. These
substations are currently served off of a 69kV network
but will be transitioning to the 230kV system These
include the Contrail Substation, Three Rivers, Broadway,
Runway, and Stratus Substations.

Q M. Wley, I'"'mgoing to have you go back to your
prior map and just, in your testinony, illustrate a
comment that M. Derstine made in his opening statenents.

Woul d you point out the 101 and the 303 and then
the Contrail Substation for the Comm ttee.

A (M. Wley) Certainly.

The 101 is running north-south in this |ocation,
and the 303 running north-south in this | ocation.

I'd also |like to take the opportunity to point
out the two lateral 230 lines that M. Derstine spoke
about during his opening conments.

We have one 230 corridor running north-south in
this location and another 230 corridor running
north-south to the west. This project will be connecting

these two lateral 230 lines with the newlines for this

pr oj ect .
Q Thank you.
So let's nowtransition to the purpose and need
COASH & COASH, | NC. 602- 258- 1440
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for this project.
A (M. Wley) Certainly.

The purpose of this purpose is to serve a new
dat acenter for Mcrosoft. At full buildout, the expected
| oad of this datacenter is expected to be 245 negawatts.
To put this into perspective, the conbined | oads of the
cities of dendale, Peoria, EIl Mrage, Surprise, Sun
City, and the Town of Youngtown conbi ned are
approxi mately 1,100 negawatts. This datacenter load is
approxi mately a quarter of the conbined | oad of all of
t hose cities.

So to serve this anticipated | oad necessitates
service fromthe 230kV network. Sone initial |oad can be
served by the underlying 69kV subtransm ssi on networKk,
but the | oad-serving capability of this systemis
limted. To neet the |ong-term needs of the custoner as
well as the continued growh in the surroundi ng area,
230kV service is required.

So if I point your direction to the nap on the
ri ght-hand screen, again, |I'll point out the Loop 303
runni ng north-south. W see Luke Air Force Base towards
the center of the screen along with the Acci dent
Prevention Zone, and we have A ive Avenue running
east-west towards the m ddl e of the screen.

This project consists of three separate 230kV

COASH & COASH, | NC. 602- 258- 1440
www. coashandcoash. com Phoeni x, AZ





© 00 ~N oo o b~ w N P

N RN N NN R R R R R R R R R
g N W N P O © O N o o0 M W N L O

LS CASE NO. 198 VOLUME | 02/ 28/ 2022 42

lines. One line originates at the planned TS-2
Substation, generally following Aive Avenue runni ng up
and around the Accident Preventi on Zone, and term nating
in the Contrail Substation. The second and third |ines
are created by looping in the existing El Sol to Wite
Tanks line. This location here is an existing

transm ssion corridor, which, anong other |ines, contains
the EIl Sol to White Tanks |i ne.

This project would cut this line in and out,
cutting in here, looping in the Contrail Substation, and
| oopi ng back into the existing transm ssion corridor.
This effectively makes two new connections into Contrail,
a Contrail to EIl Sol line, and a Contrail to Wite Tanks
i ne.

These three separate lines neet the reliability
needs of our custoner, and they also foll ow best
practices when serving |oads of this magnitude.

Wth three separate connections, there is no
| oss of load for single contingencies. Single
conti ngenci es such as the | oss of a conmmpn transm ssi on
structure are considered credible planning events per
NERC transm ssi on pl anni ng st andards.

Q M. Wley, |let ne have you pause there just a
second. You nentioned the TS-2 Substation. Although
that's a part of this project or one of the term nus
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points for the line fromContrail to TS2, TS-2 is
previously certificated in another case; is that correct?
A (M. Wley) That's correct, Case 122.
Q Ckay. Thank you.

If you are conplete in covering the connections,
are we ready to nove to reliability of the datacenter
cust onmer requirenents?

A (M. WIley) Yes.

Q So with that, then, would you hel p us gain sone
per spective regarding a datacenter's reliability needs.
| preface ny question understanding that you are not an
expert, necessarily, in this area. So if you would just
offer testinony in that regard.

A (M. Wley) Certainly.

Dat acenters do require a high | evel of
reliability. Typical standards within the datacenter
industry are to have what's called five 9's of
reliability. This is 99.999 percent reliable service.

This reliability can be achieved in a couple
different ways. One is to have backup di esel generators
on site. Another way is to build in redundancy in the
transm ssion systemthat is serving the datacenter.

By having three separate connections on this
project, our custoner's needs are net and al so all ows
themto neet their green energy goals by not having
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di esel backup generation on site.
MEMBER GRI NNELL: M. Chairnman.
CHWN. KATZ: Yes, M. Ginnell.
MEMBER GRI NNELL: Forgive ny ignorance. D d you
say the Mcrosoft datacenter? 1Is that the right
dat acenter?
MS. BENALLY: That is correct.
MEMBER GRI NNELL: Wiere is that going to be
| ocated or where is the proposed |ocation for that?
MR. WLEY: Yes. Thank you for the question.
The M crosoft canpus is shown as shaded in
purple on this map, and the yell ow represents the
substation that is located within Mcrosoft's canpus.
MEMBER GRI NNELL: OCkay. |'ve got the sane nmap.
Thank you.
Q BY M5. BENALLY: M. WIley, so the location that
you pointed out of the location of the M crosoft

datacenter is at Dysart Road and dive Avenue; is that

correct?
A (M. Wley) Yes, that is correct.
Q And as you testified, the project or the three

connections that you described are to bring 230kV |ines

to this location; is that correct?

A (M. Wley) Yes, that's correct.
Q Are there any additional transm ssion system
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benefits in addition to or beyond serving the M crosoft
dat acenter that you just described?

A (M. Wley) Yes, there are.

The area surrounding this project is a key
| ocation for econom c devel opnent. One developer in this
area had noted that they're anticipating to build an
incidental 12 to 14 mllion square feet of industrial
space. And this is in addition to the Mcrosoft
dat acent er.

The Gty of d endale has noted that econom c
devel opnent has surpassed their expectations for the
area. The target was to construct a few mllion square
feet over the next 10 to 20 years. They have al ready had
14 mllion square feet of buildings with either active
permts or that were recently conpl et ed.

The proposed project could elimnate the need to
build future 230kV lines. As noted in our application,
we are planning to build these |ines as double-circuit
capable. So as the developnent in this area progresses
and the | oad denands in the area increase, we can string
or add a second 230kV line to the existing structures.

Q M. WIley, pardon ne for interrupting you. The
illustration that you have up on the right-hand screen is
titled Wholf Logistics Center Existing and Proposed
Devel opnent s.
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To orient the Commttee, would you describe the
general | ocation of what you have on the map before you
nove i nto describing what you have up there on the
screen.

A (M. Wley) Certainly.

You'll see on the |left-hand side of the di agram
this is the Loop 303. W have dive Avenue running
east-west on the map and near Litchfield Road running
nor t h- sout h.

Q And is it fair to say, then, that to the west of
t hat map and not shown on the screen is the datacenter
site?

A (M. Wley) The datacenter site would be to the

east of this map.

Q Ckay. Thank you. It's to the east.
A (M. Wley) Correct.
Q And on this map, woul d you descri be the

devel opnment that is anticipated. As M. Derstine
indicated in his opening, there was quite a bit of

devel opnment, and you just indicated that as well with the
City of dendale and other entities.

Wul d you describe that a bit further using the

map.
A (M. Wley) Certainly.
At the date that this aerial imgery was taken,
COASH & COASH, | NC. 602- 258- 1440
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you'll see that the large portion of this is agricultural
land. As we go on our site tour tonorrow, you wll see
that sone of this |and has al ready been devel oped and
there are existing facilities in place. Sone notable
sites include Red Bull and Ball Corp and Mark Ant hony
Brewi ng. So al though you see agricultural areas here,
these are existing facilities for these different

conpani es.

You al so see a nunber of other parcels in the
area. These either have active projects or are
antici pated to becone active in the near term

Q Is there anything further you would like to
provi de regarding that nmap, or are you ready to nbve on
to the next set of questions?

A (M. Wley) I|I'mready to nove on.

Q Ckay. Geat. Thank you, M. WI ey.

So I'd like to have you speak a little bit to
the three connections that you described earlier in your
testi nony.

You explained, as | noted, that there are three
connections. Each one of these three connections is a
doubl e-circuit-capable 230kV line. Did | get that right?

A (M. Wley) Yes, that's correct.

Q And i s APS consi dering under groundi ng any
segnent of the transm ssion |ines?
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A (M. Wley) Yes. For this CEC, APS is
requesting authorization for an overhead transni ssion
corridor. However, we are eval uati ng undergroundi ng a
smal|l portion along dive Avenue.

Q Along dive Avenue?

A (M. Wley) | apologize. Along Northern
Avenue. That would be in this |location here near the
d endale landfill, and that is link -- | believe that
says 625.

APS is currently perform ng engi neering anal ysis
to determne the feasibility and constructability of
under grounding at this | ocation.

Q And is it correct, then, that APS has -- based
on the outcone of that study, if it is feasible to
underground it, APS has agreed to underground that
segnent of the line that will be further discussed in an
exhi bit that we have upcoming; is that correct?

A (M. Wley) Yes, that is correct.

Q Are you able to speak to APS s standard
constructi on approach to building transm ssion |ines?

A (M. WIley) Qur standard approach to building
transm ssion lines is to build them overhead. This is
for 69kV |lines and above. That woul d be our standard.
We do have sel ect areas where we have under gr ounded
facilities, but our typical standard is to build
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over head.

Q Let's now nove to the planned energi zati on dates
for the circuits. As you indicated, these are going to
be doubl e-circuit capable. Wuld you provide the
estimated date to energize the first line.

A (M. Wley) Yes. The first line is expected to
be energized in 2024, and that is for all three of the
i nes.

Q And when is the estimated inservice date for the
second circuit?

A (M. WIley) The second circuit on all three of
these lines is continuing to be evaluated. W do not
show the need or it has not been included in our current
Ten- Year Pl an.

Q Wul d you explain to the Conmttee why APS is
requesting a 20-year termfor the second circuit.

A (M. Wley) Certainly. As | previously spoke,
the area surrounding this project is a key |ocation for
econom ¢ devel opnent. And with that econom c devel opnent
cones the need to have increased | oad-serving capability.
Wien the need does arise, we can add on a second circuit
to the existing structures.

It is best practice to build new 230kV
infrastructure capabl e of adding the double circuit or a
second circuit when a second circuit is probable in the
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future. And although we do not include it in our
Ten- Year Pl an, we do expect the probable need to be in
the 10- to 20-year hori zon.

Q And that testinony is prem sed on the
anticipated | oad growh that you described earlier that
is to the west of the project site as well as along the
Loop 303 that M. Derstine included in his opening
remarks. |s that a generally accurate description?

A (M. Wley) Yes. Cenerally, to the west and
sone to the north as well.

Q So let's now transition to your next slide.

CHWN. KATZ: If | mght interrupt, one of our
Conm ttee Menbers has indicated that they were waiting to
be admtted to the neeting via Zoom | don't know if
that's M. GCentles.

MEMBER GENTLES: Yes, M. Chairman, |'m on.
This is Menber Gentles. Thank you.

CHWN. KATZ: | figured it was you. Ckay.
That's fine. Thank you.

Q BY M5. BENALLY: So, M. Wley, you testified to
the transm ssion |lines, the three connections, the fact
that they are going to be 230kV doubl e-circuit |ines.

Can you descri be the substation that these three

connections wll term nate at.
A (M. Wley) The lines will be termnating into
COASH & COASH, | NC. 602- 258- 1440

www. coashandcoash. com Phoeni x, AZ





© 00 ~N oo o b~ w N P

N RN N NN R R R R R R R R R
g N W N P O © O N o o0 M W N L O

LS CASE NO. 198 VOLUME | 02/ 28/ 2022 o1

the Contrail Substation, and that is | ocated on

M crosoft's canpus shown on this diagram Mcrosoft's
canpus is again outlined or highlighted in purple, and
t he substation is shown in yellow

At full buildout, this substation will contain
three 230kV lines, three 230/ 69kV transforners, and seven
69/ 34. 5kV transforners.

Q What is the status of the devel opnment of the
Contrail Substation?

A The Contrail Substation is energized today off
of the 69kV subtransm ssion network. This substation was
energi zed in May of 2020. Today the substation is fed
via two 69kV feeds, one fromthe El Sol Substation and
one fromthe Fal con Substati on.

Thi s provides M crosoft enough | oad-serving
capability for their first phase of their operations.
But, again, the 69kV subtransm ssion network is limted
in their |oad-serving capability. So to achieve their
| ong-term needs, 230kV construction is expected or
pl anned to begin in 2023.

Q M. WIley, when you state "to neet their

| ong-term needs,” when you say "their," you're referring
to the datacenter in this particular instance?

A (M. Wley) That's correct, to serve the
dat acenter of 230 negawatts, as well as the continued
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grow h in the surroundi ng area.
Q Thank you.

MEMBER GRI NNELL: M. Chai rnman.

CHWN. KATZ: Yes, Menber Ginnell.

MEMBER GRINNELL: Can | get a little clarity on
sonet hi ng maybe | m sunder st ood.

It was nentioned in -- M. Derstine had
menti oned the ten-year application, and | believe the
| ady spoke of a 20-year. Are we |ooking at two different
request s?

CHW. KATZ: It's ny understanding, and I'Il et
M. Derstine or Ms. Benally clarify it, it's going to be
doubl e-circuit, but the first circuit will be built
wthin the next ten years. |If the devel opnent down the
road requires a second circuit along the sane route using
t he sane poles, |I'massunm ng, that woul d be added. It
m ght be five years, it mght be ten years, but it could
be 15 or 20 years.

Is that substantially correct, M. Wley?

MR. WLEY: Yes, Chairman Katz, that is correct.

MEMBER GRI NNELL: Thank you.

Q BY MS. BENALLY: So the first circuit in the APS

proposal is ten years. The second circuit is 20 years.

And, M. WIley, the 20 years is based on the
anticipated | oad growh that APS is eval uati ng and has

COASH & COASH, | NC. 602- 258- 1440
www. coashandcoash. com Phoeni x, AZ





© 00 ~N oo o b~ w N P

N RN N NN R R R R R R R R R
g N W N P O © O N o o0 M W N L O

LS CASE NO. 198 VOLUME | 02/ 28/ 2022

studied; is that correct?
A (M. Wley) That's correct.

And then | did want to point out on the
ri ght-hand screen, we have a phot ograph of the Contrail
Substation as it is today being served off of the 69kV
net wor k.

Q Do you have anything further you'd like to
testify regarding the substation, M. WIley?

A (M. Wley) No, |I do not.

Q Ckay. So then let's nove to the Ten-Year Pl an.

The line siting statute that applicants have to
conply with requires that a Ten-Year Plan filing for any
project that comes before this Commttee has to be filed
wth the Arizona Corporation Comm ssion. Ws this
project included in APS' s Ten-Year Plan filing at the
ACC.

A (M. Wley) Yes, it was.

The project was first included in APS s
suppl enental filing for its 2019 filing, which was on
June 12th of 20109.

The project has al so been included in all
subsequent filings for our Ten-Year Plan. These include
t he January 31st, 2020; January 29th, 2021; and January
31st, 2022, filings.

Q Thank you.
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Does that conclude this part of your testinony,
M. WIey?
A (M. Wley) Yes, it does.
MS. BENALLY: M. Chairman, M. Wley is
avail abl e for cross-exam nation at this point if that is
the direction you would lIike to proceed.

CHWN. KATZ: M. &olestan, if you wanted to
cross-examne this witness, you're nore than wel cone to.
VMR, GOLESTAN: Wth the understandi ng,

M. Chairman that should there be any subsequent
testinony, the Gty reserves its right to cross-exam ne
hi m on ot her subjects as they cone up.

CHWN. KATZ: That's correct.

CROSS- EXAM NATI ON
BY MR GOLESTAN:
Q Good afternoon, M. Wley. A couple things I
want to tal k about that you've nentioned so far.

First is that you' ve indicated that the prinmary
pur pose of this CECis for providing -- neeting the needs
of the Mcrosoft datacenter, right?

A (M. Wley) Yes, that's correct.

Q And do you know where that datacenter is |ocated
in terns of jurisdictionally, what city that in or town?

A (M. Wley) It's located in EIl Mrage.
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Q So no part of it is in Peoria as far as you
know?

A (M. Wley) Correct, it is not in Peoria.

Q Ckay. You nentioned that at least initially, a

69kV |l ine could be sustainable but not obviously | ong
term |I'mjust curious, how |l ong could a 69kV |ine neet
t he needs of the datacenter?

A (M. Wley) I1'Il frame it in terns of
| oad-serving capability. Were it wuld serve
approxi mately 95 negawatts off of the 69 subtransm ssion
system the full buildout of the Mcrosoft datacenter is
245 negawatts.

Q Ckay. There was a di scussion about economc
devel opnment. Let ne say this: As far as you know, there
are no other direct and i nmmedi ate purposes, obviously, of
this transm ssion |line? Again, the primary purpose is
the M crosoft datacenter?

A (M. Wley) The primary purpose is the
M crosoft datacenter. However, this does allow us to
continue to serve the grow ng area as the economc
devel opnent in the area continues to grow.

Q And you nentioned that while the standard is
over headi ng -- excuse ne -- keeping these |ines above
ground, there have been instances in which the |ines at
i ssue here, the 230kV |lines, are undergrounded. Could
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you provi de exanpl es of those instances that you are
awar e of ?

A (M. Wley) That is correct. APS s typical
practice and standard is to build 230kV infrastructure
over head or above ground. W do have a couple of select
areas that 230kV is underground, but that is certainly
not normal or standard for APS.

Q Sure. Could you opine on those areas at all?

A (M. Wley) One area would be near Arizona

State University near what they call A Mountain along R o

Sal ado.

Q Are you aware of any others in the Phoenix Metro
area?

A (M. Wley) There is one other |ocation that

" maware of up in the northeast portion of the Valley.
| don't have the particular cross streets, but | can
provi de that.

Q And, to your know edge, in those cases that
you've just cited where the 230kV lines were
under gr ounded, what was the rationale for undergroundi ng
in those cases?

A (M. Wley) | do not have the specifics of
t hose cases.

MR. GOLESTAN. | don't have any further
questions for this witness at this tine, M. Chairnan.
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CHWN. KATZ: Any redirect?

MR. DERSTI NE: No, M. Chair.

CHWN. KATZ: You may proceed w th your next
W t ness on the panel.

MR. DERSTINE: M. Chairman, we're at 90
m nutes. Do you want to take a break at this point?

CHWN. KATZ: W started a little bit late. W
can either break now or in about 10 or 15 m nutes.

Do you recall, Carolyn, what time we started?

THE REPORTER W started about 10 after.

CHWN. KATZ: W could either break now or in
about ten mnutes. But if you think it's a good tine to
break, we can do it.

MR. DERSTINE: W're going to transition to a
new wi tness, so this mght be a |logical place to take a
br eak.

CHW. KATZ: I'mfine. I|I'mshowing it's 2:30.

l'd like to begin within the next ten mnutes or so, so

don't wander off too far. 1'd like to stay on track and
get as much done today as we can. W'I|| take a short
br eak.

(A recess was taken from2:30 p.m to 2:47 p.m)
CHWN. KATZ: W're ready to pick back up, and

M. Derstine is going to be questioni ng our next wtness.
MR. DERSTINE: Ms. Benally, as | indicated
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before the break, will be proceeding with this next
chapter --

CHWN. KATZ: kay.

MR. DERSTINE: -- with M. Duncan. But before
we do that, M. Chairman, with your perm ssion, | wanted
tocircle back wwth M. Wley on two questions that
M. Col estan asked himprior to the break.

CHWN. KATZ: Sure.

REDI RECT EXAM NATI ON
BY MR DERSTI NE:
Q M. Wley, M. Golestan had asked if there were
any exanmpl es of where APS has under grounded 230

facilities. You indicated there were two that you were

aware of. Do | have that right?
A (M. WIley) Yes, that's correct.
Q One is sone proximty to ASU or A Mountain? |Is

t hat one of then?

A (M. WIley) Yes, correct.

Q And t he second, you indicated, was in the
Nor t hwest Val | ey?

A (M. WIley) Northeast Valley, and that's the
Desert Ri dge area.

Q At the break, did you get any additi onal
i nformati on on the reason why the 230 |ine near
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A Mountain or ASU was under ground?

A (M. Wley) | was not able to find anything for
the line | ocated near ASU i n Tenpe.

Q What about the line that you now indicated is in
sone proximty to Desert R dge?

A (M. Wley) Yes. That line was initially built
overhead. It was converted to underground sonetine after
the initial construction. And the driver for that was a
third-party funded the undergroundi ng of that overhead
circuit.

Q So, presunmably, the desire to spend the not
small dollars it would cost to underground was driven by
the desire to renpbve an overhead |line and inprove the
aesthetics of that area?

A (M. Wley) Yes, that's correct.

Q And APS did not pay those costs, it was paid by
sone third party?

A (M. WIley) Yes, correct.

Q And then to circle back with you on the question
concerni ng how | ong the datacenter could be served off of
the 69kV line, you indicated, | think, |ooking at ny
notes, that in terms of |oad, the 69 could serve up to 95

nmegawatts? Did | have that right?

A (M. Wley) Yes, that's correct.
Q Ckay. In serving the Mcrosoft datacenter from
COASH & COASH, | NC. 602- 258- 1440
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the 69 systemup to the 95 negawatts, does that create
any sort of issues or constraints on the 69kV systenf

A (M. Wley) Yes, it would. The 69kV
subtransm ssion systemis a | ooped or network system So
the 95 negawatts would be not only the ability to serve
M crosoft but also the surrounding growth in the area.

To say that maybe a slightly different way, if
we were serving Mcrosoft up to 95 negawatts, we woul d
not have additional capacity to serve additional
custoners in the area.

MR, DERSTINE: 1'lIl nake M. Wley available if
counsel has any further followup on those two itens |
just covered on redirect.

CHWN. KATZ: | just had a question. | know the
Comm ttee already knows the answer to this, but I'd |ike
to put it on the record.

Under gr oundi ng costs about twi ce the anount -- |
mean 10 tines, excuse nme, the cost of putting the |ines
above ground, 10 to 15 tines higher, correct?

MR. WLEY: Chairman Katz, we eval uate each 230
under ground specifically as they are all very specific
designs. W have seen costs as high as 10 tines that of
over head cost.

CHWN. KATZ: But it's significantly higher than
over head cost, correct?
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MR. WLEY: Yes. And we have seen that up to 10
times as nuch.

CHW. KATZ: And is one of the reasons that APS
requires either a governnental entity or a private
conpany or perhaps a hone owners association to fund the
cost of under groundi ng?

MR WLEY: It is one of the things that we take
into consideration, correct.

CHWN. KATZ: Thank you.

RECROSS- EXAM NATI ON
BY MR GOLESTAN:

Q M. WIley, good afternoon. Just follow ng up on
t hose coupl e series of questions.

When factoring the cost, | assune one of the
things that APS would -- |l et ne rephrase.

One factor in the undergroundi ng cost woul d be
probably the length of the transm ssion |ine that needs
to be undergrounded; is that fair?

A (M. Wley) Yes, that's correct.

Q Coul d you el aborate on any other factors that
woul d be considered for undergrounding in terns of costs
that may i ncrease or decrease the cost.

A (M. Wley) | just want to make sure |
understand the question. So in addition to | ength, what
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ot her costs are consi dered?

Q What el se could contribute to the final cost of
undergrounding in terns of -- what variables? One
variable is the | ength.

A (M. Wley) Sure. And with the lIength, we have
added pol es and cabl es. Your cable I ength increases.

That increases cost. There's an additional cost for
trench and conduit. But in addition to length, we also
have the dip or riser structures. Those are very

speci fic designs and nuch nore costly than your standard
over head structure.

Q Are you aware of the |length of the underground
portions of either of those other two lines that you had
just tal ked about, the ASU |ine or Desert R dge |line, for
| ack of a better term nology right now?

A (M. Wley) Yes. | unfortunately don't have
t hose | engths readily avail abl e.

Q So can't conpare it to what potentially it would
be here. W don't have that data for conparison?

A (M. Wley) Not readily avail abl e.

Q Ckay. You think you nentioned that the Desert
Ri dge |ine near Desert Ri dge was under grounded and funded
by a third party. Are you aware of the funding nechani sm
for the line that was undergrounded near ASU?

A (M. Wley) | amnot famliar with the |ine,
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how it cane to be undergrounded near ASU. That has been

there for sone tinme, and | didn't find anything quickly

on that.

MR. GOLESTAN: Ckay. Thank you.

CHWN. KATZ: That was fine. As a general rule,
t hough, I wll have us do it in direct, cross, and

redirect without recross. But it was a new subject
matter, and we're not all that formal, so l'mfine wth
what we've done so far. But it would go the same when
Peoria puts on its witness. It will usually be one shot
by either Ms. Benally or M. Derstine unless the redirect
goes beyond the scope of the cross.

Wth that being said, we can continue with our
next w tness.

MS. BENALLY: Thank you, Chairman Kat z.

DI RECT EXAM NATI ON
BY M5. BENALLY:

Q M. Duncan, are you prepared?
A (M. Duncan) Yes, | am
Q So you have al ready been introduced to the

Comm ttee, so let's nove into your testinony.

You stated earlier that you are the project
manager for the West Valley Central Connection 230kV
Project; is that right?
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A (M. Duncan) Yes, it is.
Q And as the project nanager, you're responsible
for overseeing and coordinating all aspects of this

particular project; is that right?

A (M. Duncan) Yes.
Q So with that, let's nove into an overview of the
project. | believe you have a nmap that you would like to

use. Please orient the Conmttee where you feel
appropriate to do so.

A (M. Duncan) Yes. This map has been shown to
the Commttee earlier and I think that has been descri bed
pretty well, but I'mjust going to quickly orient again
for those so we can be cl ear.

The State Route 303 is north-south here on the
west edge of the study area.

The existing EIl Sol to White Tanks transm ssi on
l'ine that serves as two of our points are interconnection
iIs here on the eastern side of the study area.

And t hen under construction, Northern Parkway
here is east to west across the center.

And, again, Luke Air Force Base here partially
i nsi de and outside of our study area along with the
Acci dent Potential Zones extending here into the m ddl e.

So, Ms. Benally, do you want ne to go ahead and
to into the next part of the description?
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Q Yes. |If you would describe the three proposed
connecti ons.
A (M. Duncan) Absolutely.

So, as described, there are three segnents to
this project. There is Route A, which begins -- and all
three routes connect into the Contrail Substation, which
is shown here at the center of the map in yell ow.

But this route begins just west of the Route 303
north of dive Avenue at the planned TS-2 Substati on.
Route A continues west along Aive Avenue foll ow ng the
rail road and then going up north here to Peoria Avenue to
where it is outside or just at the edge of the Accident
Potential Zones until it proceeds south directly into the
Contrail Substation.

Route E is shown here in purple. 1t begins at
the corridor that | described a nonent ago, which is the
El Sol to White Tanks 230kV transm ssion line that is
goi ng north and south and proceedi ng west along dive
Avenue into the Contrail Substation.

And Route G al so begins at a different |ocation
on the EIl Sol to Wiite Tanks 230kV transm ssion |ine and
proceeds west along Northern Avenue to where it then
turns north into the Contrail Substati on.

Q Thank you for describing those three
connections, M. Duncan.
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I n your experience, you indicate you' ve
testified in a nunber of cases. These projects evolve
over a period of tinme. They sort of have a life cycle,
if you will, at the very onset up to the point where

we're at today where we're before a Commttee with the

pr oj ect.
Woul d you tal k about how this particul ar project
evol ved.
A (M. Duncan) Absolutely.

So you are correct that projects, especially in
rapi dly devel opi ng areas such as our study area for this
project, oftentines slightly evolve as the project noves
forward

So this project, at the tine of its origination,
was based on the conbinati on of APS denmand forecasting
and a specific custoner request. |In this case,

M crosoft.

Wth the custoner request, we identified what we
refer to as the service requirenents or what the m ni num
that we need to provide to be able to serve them per
their requirenments, including redundant 230kV servi ce.

As the project devel oped through the siting
process, which M. Sinpson will speak about when he
testifies, additional needs were identified as major
projects that M. WI ey spoke about began devel opi ng
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t hroughout the study area. |It's created a need to refine
the project description as additional elenents were
antici pated to be needed.
Q M. Duncan, earlier you indicated the study
area. Just for the record, would you identify on the
ri ght-hand side where the map is what the study area is.
A (M. Duncan) Yes, | wll, and | apol ogi ze for
not doing that earlier.

The study area is indicated by the dashed bl ack
line that follows the outside of the area where it's full
resolution versus a lighter resolution along the extrene
edge. This area is consistent with the study area that
was identified for the full range of alternatives that

wer e st udi ed.

Q Let's now nove to the next stage of the process,
if you will. Wat was the siting process used for this
proj ect ?

A (M. Duncan) Sure.

I*"mgoing to provide a high-level review of this
information, but M. Sinpson will provide an indepth
di scussion of this.

But as an overview, it begins with the
identification of a | arge study area enconpassing
potential routing alternatives that would neet the
service requirenents of the custonmer and future denmand in
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t he area.

We felt that this study area woul d i nclude al
reasonabl e and feasible alternatives that would still
neet the project purpose and need. WMany potenti al
prelimnary alternatives were devel oped and presented to
st akehol ders and to the public for consideration.

Thr ough regul ar communi cati on with
jurisdictions, Luke Air Force Base, |arge |and
devel opers, snualler devel opers, and the public, along
wth prelimnary environnental engineering and forestry
reviews, many prelimnary alternatives were elim nated.

Det ai |l ed environnmental and engi neering revi ews
were perfornmed on the remai ning alternatives and
consi derati on was once again given to jurisdictional and
st akehol der constraints, including |arge | and devel opers.
And this resulted in the identification of the proposed
routes that we present today.

Q This line siting process that you provided an
overview of, is that typical for line siting projects?

A (M. Duncan) Yes, it is.

Q You' ve outlined the general planning process
t hat the conpany used for this project.

I'd like to now nove to the proposed routes that
you nmentioned sort of were the outcones for this project.
And what I1'd like to refer you to, | believe you have in
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front of you an exhibit that is |abeled APS-7. It's a
one-page nap that is titled APS Requested Corridor Map
dat ed February 2022. Do you have that in front of you?
A (M. Duncan) Yes, | do.
MS. BENALLY: M. Chairman, this is an exhibit

that was pl aced at each seat of the Commttee Menbers,

shared with Peoria counsel. [|'ll proceed discussing it
if the Comm ttee Menbers have it available to them |If
not, we will nake it avail able.

CHWN. KATZ: | don't have one.

MS. BENALLY: W are providing a copy,
Chai rman Kat z.

CHWN. KATZ: That's fine. You don't need to
wait for ne to get it to begin.

MS. BENALLY: APS also did provide it to Tod, so
it should be nade avail able to our Conmm ttee Menbers who
are appearing virtually.

CHWN. KATZ: It's marked Exhibit A Is it
Exhibit A to your application?

MS. BENALLY: It's Exhibit Ato APS-7.

CHWN. KATZ: Okay.

MS. BENALLY: And APS-7 is the proposed form of

CEC.
CHWN. KATZ: R ght. And at the break, I'll have
to have sonmebody show ne how to use the iPad. | got the
COASH & COASH, | NC. 602- 258- 1440
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exhibit list, but I don't -- anyway, go ahead.
MS. BENALLY: Ckay. Thank you.

Q BY M5. BENALLY: So with that map in front of
you as a reference, would you descri be the proposed
routes for the project.

A (M. Duncan) Just to clarify, Ms. Benally, did
you want ne to continue with the description of the
|l ength or just nove to the description of the corridors?

Q Let's do the description of the | engths and then
nove to the corridor.

A (M. Duncan) Very good.

So the total I ength of the proposed routes in
conbi nation with each other is about 12 m |l es.

Route Ais 7.1 mles in length. Route Eis 2.1
mles in | ength.

CHWN. KATZ: A is how | ong again?

MR, DUNCAN: 7. 1.

CHWN. KATZ: Thank you.

MR. DUNCAN: Route Eis 2.1 mles. And Route G
is 2.75 mles.

Chairman, | can point out that the mleage is
shown here on this table that's on the left slide.

CHWN. KATZ: Okay.

MR. DUNCAN. The proposed routes nay span
private, municipal, and state-owned | and. The proposed
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routes avoid Luke Air Force Base operations and
restrictions.

The eastern routes provide the nost direct and
conpati bl e connection fromthe EIl Sol to Wite Tanks
transm ssion line to the Contrail Substation.

Q BY M5. BENALLY: 1Is there anything further that

you would like to cover on the |l ength of the routes?

A (M. Duncan) No, there is not.
Q So now, then, let's nove to the corridor and
right-of-way. | guess it's at this point that you'll be

using APS-7; is that correct?

A (M. Duncan) Yes.

Q And is the map that you have in front of you,
APS-7, was that prepared by you or under your direction?

A (M. Duncan) Yes, it was.

Q So with that, what is the size corridor and the
right-of-way that APS is requesting for these
connecti ons?

A (M. Duncan) So we are requesting a
vari abl e-w dth corridor between 300 to 1,200 feet wde to
accommodat e specific areas of constraint while still
providing the flexibility for a final design.

The anticipated right-of-way wdth for the
proposed route is between 100 to 120 feet if built
over head.
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Q Thank you, M. Duncan.

The map that you have up on the right, it's
pretty far fromnme, so | can't see what's there. [Is that
the APS-7 with the underground segnent that's identified?

A (M. Duncan) No, it is not. That is the
exhi bit w thout the underground segnent shown on it.

MS. BENALLY: Could | ask our AV teamto |oad
APS-7 Exhi bit A.

MR. DUNCAN: That is the correct version.

Q BY M5. BENALLY: Wen you say that is the
correct version, M. Duncan, what are you referring to?
A (M. Duncan) | amreferring to the map shown

right indicates the potentially underground segnent.

There is hatching. |It's hard to see. It's not
com ng through very well in the projection, but it is in
this area.

Q Ckay. Thank you. It is very challenging to

see.

The copi es that have been nade avail able to the
Commttee Menbers are just slightly better to see that
hat ched secti on.

So M. Wley testified that APS is eval uati ng,
as | nentioned, a short segnent of Route G Wuld you
poi nt out Route G on the map, please, that's up on the
screen.
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A (M. Duncan) Yes.

Route G again, begins at the existing EIl Sol to
Whi te Tanks 230kV transmi ssion |ine, proceeds west and
then north to the Contrail Substation. This is Route G

Q Ckay. Thank you.

So wwth that, as | nentioned earlier, M. WIey
testified that APS is exploring or investigating the
feasibility of undergrounding a very short segnment of
Route G Wuld you point out that section on the nap,
pl ease.

A (M. Duncan) Yes. It is essentially fromthe
corridor to a point just about where |I'm pointing right
NOw.

Q Ckay. Thank you.

Is there anything el se you would like to discuss
regarding the corridor and the right-of-way?

A (M. Duncan) No, there is not.

Q Ckay.

MS. BENALLY: At this point, M. Chairman, we
would i ke to nove into the virtual tour if that is what
you deem appropriate at this point.

CHWN. KATZ: It's fine. \Wenever you think it's
an appropriate tinme to present it, you may feel free to
do so.

MS. BENALLY: Thank you.
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M. Derstine --

CHWN. KATZ: Sorry to interrupt.

This will probably help sone of the nenbers that
will be unable to actually go on the actual physical tour
t onor r ow.

MS. BENALLY: M. Derstine is going to work with
our witness M. Sinpson to do the virtual tour

CHWN. KATZ: That's fi ne.

DI RECT EXAM NATI ON
BY MR DERSTI NE:

Q M. Sinpson, | think you are going to -- do you
have your | aptop plugged in to project and run the
virtual tour?

A (M. Sinpson) | think we're ready.

Q Let's start by having you provide the Commttee
an understandi ng of what they're going to see on the
virtual tour and how it was prepared in terns of the --
what ever the software, the napping, the technology that's
used to prepare a virtual tour of this type.

A (M. Sinpson) Wat we're about to present is
simlar to sone of the virtual tours you may have seen in

the past. W're going to be review ng each of the

routes, A, E, and G and we'll be doing so using sone
aerial inmagery. And the flyover wll be a little bit
COASH & COASH, | NC. 602- 258- 1440

www. coashandcoash. com Phoeni x, AZ





© 00 ~N oo o b~ w N P

N RN N NN R R R R R R R R R
g N W N P O © O N o o0 M W N L O

LS CASE NO. 198 VOLUME | 02/ 28/ 2022 75

above ground as though you were flying in a helicopter or
sonething. It wll take us through the course of each
route.

Il will be stopping at sonme select points to
expl ain sonme of the key features in the study area. And
it's inportant to cover that because you're going to see
sone of these nanes of facilities not only in the
application but in some of our testinony and perhaps be
able to recall themtonorrow when we're in the -- doing
t he actual physical route tour.

And | would really highly recomrend anybody
attending that route tour. You heard a | ot about the
growh that's out there. Some of the things that are out
there today aren't showing in this video sinply because
it's happening so fast. This inmagery is from 2021, so
it's pretty current, but it's probably about eight nonths
or so behind. And when you see the tour tonorrow, you're
going to see things that aren't even on our aerial maps
in the application or in the video.

As M. Derstine nentioned, we used a series of
sof tware packages to produce the video. The imagery is
froma source called Nearmap Aerial Inagery. As |
mentioned, it's from2021. W did do sone enhancenents
to that so that some of the |arger buil dings and things
in the area have sonme vertical reliefs so we have sone
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context. W're not able to do that with every piece of
devel opment out there, but | think that will help you to
under stand sone of the features as you view the inagery.

Al so the, we used Autodesk 3D Studi o Max, which
is a popular CAD and rendering software. W used Chaos
G oup V-Ray software and Adobe After Effects, and those
are things that are used to actually produce the video
itsel f.

I know t hat sounds nmaybe a little unfamliar,
but they're fairly standard i ndustry software that a | ot
of graphic artists and entertai nnent industry uses. And
it's sonething that we've used before. But that's just
sonme context in how it was created.

So wth that, I wll go ahead and get started.

We do have the ability to pause or rewind if you want to.

| will be trying to stop quite a fewtines just to be
sure | highlight some of the features in the study area.
But if there's any need to rewind or replay this, we can
certainly do that.

So before we get started, just to orient you to
the study area, as we discussed, Route A is shown in
green, just like it is in all the maps that are incl uded
on the application.

| guess that starts when | hit the |laser. |
won't do that again.
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So the green Route A is the route that connects
the TS-2 Substation along the Loop 303 and A ive Avenue.
That is going to travel to the west, and that is going to
eventual |y connect with the Contrail Substation, which is
essentially just to the east of Dysart Road and dive
Avenue i ntersection.

And you can see again that that route travels to
the north up al ong Peoria Avenue, and that's by and | arge
a result of the Accident Potential Zones. W're going to
talk a | ot about that in our testinony.

Route E is shown here in the purple color, and
that is the route that travels fromthe El Sol-Wite
Tanks transm ssion |line corridor back towards the west to
the Contrail Substation. And we'll talk about sonme of
the features there.

And then the blue route is the Route G and that
al so starts at the 230kV Contrail -- or, excuse ne --
230kV El Sol -White Tanks |ine and al so heads back to the
Contrail Substation.

So we'll do themin that order, and hopefully
that will give you a pretty good sense of what's
happeni ng out there and gives you sone perspective on
sonme of the discussions so far today.

CHW. KATZ: Menber Ginnell, | don't know if
you wanted to say sonet hi ng.
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MEMBER GRI NNELL: | just had a quick question.

Does APS own or are they responsible for all the
substations in this project?

MR WLEY: APS will be both the owner and the
operator of these substations.

MEMBER GRI NNELL: Very well. Thank you.

MR SIMPSON: Al right. W'Ill begin with Route
A.  You do see a conpass in the right-hand corner. And
that will orient you to the direction of travel. And it
wi || change over the course of the video, but that wl]l
gi ve you sone sense of the direction we're actually
| ooki ng at.

So we're now approaching the TS-2 Substation
area, which is shown in green in this area. And this is
t he northwest corner of dive Avenue, which is right
here, and then you see the Loop 303 right here on the
eastern edge of that. So this substation was sited in a
prior case. There is a large transm ssion |ine that
feeds into this that was al so the subject of a prior
case.

You'll see that in the field on this particul ar
i magery again. The vertical structures |ike that don't
al ways show up, but you're going to see that on the tour
t onor r ow.

So one of the reasons the route crosses the
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freeway where it does is because the design of the
substation is such it wll accomopdate the existing |ine
entering the substation as well as this future line. So
the future line is going to exit towards the north end of
t hat new substation that will be built. It will cross

over top of the Loop 303 freeway and then turn

imMmedi ately south until it intersects with dive Avenue.
And then it wll turn east, and we're going to go to that
area now.

CHWN. KATZ: Now, is the TS-2 Substation already
built, or is it part of the project to be built?

MR SIMPSON: It is not built. That | and was
recently acquired by APS through negotiations wth the
prior | andowner. That happened about m dway through this
project. At that point, APS was able to conplete a
prelimnary | ayout of that substation, which allowed us
to fine tune or route a little bit as it comes out of the
TS-2 Substati on.

So it was all done as a part of that prior case
| nmentioned. And part of that transm ssion line is now
out there. W'Il|l see that this particular substation is
not built, but other substations related to that project
were also built.

So now, as we travel easterly along dive
Avenue, one thing that you'll note is this entire | ength
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along Adive Avenue follows an existing 69kV |line al ong
this location. The video doesn't show that, but you'll
see on our tour a line that is existing along this exact
pat h.

And we're continuing easterly now. You can see
a lot of agricultural land in this area. This is an
agricultural processing facility where they bring sone of
the crops in for processing.

The area that is just to the right here, when we
are out there on the tour, you'll see that that recently
broke ground. And there's a new industrial facility
that's being built there. And that's going to be a
frequent occurrence through this area. So this is no
| onger going to be agricultural and really is in
transiti on as we speak.

So we're going to continue along Aive Avenue
till we get approximately the Reens Road intersection,
and we'll take a pause and tal k about a couple of things
in that | ocation.

Q BY MR DERSTINE: M. Sinpson, can | have you
pause it there a mnute. You nentioned that there's a 69
line that's in place on Aive Avenue, but we're not
seeing it. So the structures that we're seeing there on
the sinmulation, are those the sinmulated 230kV structures
for this project?
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A (M. Sinpson) Yes, that is correct. So these
were the structures, the approxi mate concept ual
structures that were included in Exhibit G and they're
al so the sane structures that you see in our sinulations
that were included in Exhibit EE So it's just projected
in this video the sane way it was to create those ot her
gr aphi cs.

CHWN. KATZ: Are these lines going to be running
in parallel to the 69kV lines, or are they all going to
be integrated onto the same pole structure?

MR. SIMPSON: The proposal is to integrate
i ndemmify. So what you will see is the 69kV lines w |
be built on these 230kV structures. And we have exanpl es
of what those structures would |ook like in Exhibit G
And that is also exactly how we permtted the |ines on
the other side of the freeway that we've tal ked about.

It has that sanme configuration. You'll see sone of that
built out that way tonorrow.

Q BY VR DERSTINE: M. Sinpson, am|l correct,
then, that although we're not seeing the 69kV |Iine here,
that by collocating the existing 69 with the new 230
structures that the span, the separation between
structures wll be increased, neaning we're going to see
| ess poles along Aive Avenue in this area?

A (M. Sinpson) That is correct. These poles are

COASH & COASH, | NC. 602- 258- 1440
www. coashandcoash. com Phoeni x, AZ





© 00 ~N oo o b~ w N P

N RN N NN R R R R R R R R R
g N W N P O © O N o o0 M W N L O

LS CASE NO. 198 VOLUME | 02/ 28/ 2022 82

approximately 150 feet in height as they're nodeled. And
the span |l ength that's nodel ed here is approximately 750
feet. That can vary a little bit based on terrain and
ot her features, but we use that standard di nensioning to
represent this conceptually. And a 69kV facility, you
m ght only be able to span between, you know, 150 and 300
feet, so you're alnost doubling the | ength that these
spans can go. So you're going to have maybe half as many
or |l ess 69kV structures, so it does help with that in
terms of the footprint of the project.

Q | take it the new structures, the new poles, are
taller than the existing 69kV pol es?

A (M. Sinpson) That's correct. The 69kV may
range, you know, in height up to 65 feet tall, give or
take. And as | nentioned, these structures at full

bui | dout could be as high as 150 feet.

Q Thank you for that.
Pr oceed.
A (M. Sinpson) So continuing east along dive

Avenue, we're comng up on another very interesting part
of the study area. This is the Reens Road intersection
wth dive Avenue right here. There's sonme agricultural
facilities in this |ocation.

What you're seeing built right here in this area
on the northeast corner of Reens Road and Aive Avenue is
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the APS Fal con Substation. The inmage here shows that
about half built. Wen we go out there tonorrow, we're
going to be stopping in this area. That substation is a
69kV substation, and it's now fully built out and
operating. And that substation was added in this area to
serve all the growth that is occurring north and south of
Adive Avenue and this area al ong Reens Road.

This giant white building on the |Ieft-hand side
is owned by Mark Ant hony Brewi ng. They have anot her
facility planned adjacent to the Fal con Substation. That
is the brewer of the beverages Wite Caw and M ke's Hard
Lenonade, and they have sone other facilities.

To the north of that, you have the Red Bul
energy drink facility and the Ball Corporation that
actual ly manufacturers cans for those facilities.

And in addition to that, you're going to see
over on the east side of those buil dings nore new
bui | di ngs that have been started. So there's cold
storage facilities, nore industrial warehouses of that
nature. And it's quite inpressive to see these
buil dings. They're not a few thousand square feet. They
can range in size up to a mllion square feet of

bui | di ngs. And when you travel along the 303 now, you

wll see many, many of those types of buildings out in
this area. |It's really unprecedented, at |east as far as
COASH & COASH, | NC. 602- 258- 1440
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nmy experience goes wth those large of large buildings in
this area.

One other thing | want to point out here, it's
not promnent in the inmagery, but we will refer to the
Reens Road Channel Flood Control Facility. And that is
| ocated al ong Reens Road on the west side. There's a
| arge i npoundnent right here that is essentially designed
to prevent flooding for the residential devel opnents to
t he north/ northwest of here. W are going to be spanning
over top of that. W wll not inpact that directly. But
it does convey water fromthat area to the south.

Conti nuing easterly along dive Avenue, again,
you see a lot of agricultural land. They're maki ng sone
i nprovenents in the roadways and water and sewer al ong
this area so that nore devel opnent could cone in al ong
the south side of the road. W're expecting sone ot her
devel opments to start soon there.

One key feature | want to point out is the
Pl ai ns Energy propane gas facility that is | ocated al ong
the railroad tracks that parallel Aive Avenue. Plains
Energy reached out to us very early. They were one of
the first people to get in touch with us. They wanted to
make sure that we understood how their facility worked
and where their pipelines were going. They wanted us to
be on the south side of Aive Avenue, which al so nade
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sense there because of the 69 line that's there.

And t hey have pipelines that run both on the
north and south side of Aive here. They travel east to
Dysart Road. They then turn south and go for a couple of
mles to the Morton Salt facility. The gas is offl oaded
at this facility. It travels through the pipelines, and
it's stored in the salt caverns at the Mdirton Salt
facility south of here al ong Dysart Road.

So they had to rel ocate sone of those |ines, and
| believe they're expanding themto accommopdate the road
w dening that's going here. So they wanted to nake sure
t hat we understood that and that we stayed on the south
side of the road where they woul d not be inpacted by the
pr oj ect.

Continuing along to the east, we are now goi ng
to be hitting what is essentially the turning point of
the Burlington Northern Santa Fe Railroad. And that
rail road you can see here turns and heads north. And,
eventually, it's going to tie in up by G and Avenue, well
out si de of our study area. But that's where this |line
originates, is along G and Avenue. And this |line
historically was built to serve agricultural needs, so it
was bringing in farmchemcals and farmfertilizers,
things of that nature. And then they would take the farm
products out fromthere.
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Now this rail line is becom ng a key part of
these large logistics centers and industrial facilities,
so they're bringing raw products in and bringing finished
products out that way. So you may see new train traffic
on this particular set of tracks that really was pretty
slow for years. There weren't a lot of trains on there,
but you'll see nore trains if you spend enough tine out
there. But they consider that to be a really val uabl e
conmponent of this whol e devel opnent and why we're seeing
a lot of the types of projects out here.

So we'll cross Adive Avenue and head to the
north along the railroad, and we'll eventually get to the
intersection of Litchfield Road. Again, over here,
you'll see sone agricultural facilities. There's a
nursery. And you'll see sone residences here. These
resi dences do have frontage al ong that 69kV |ine.

One of the potential advantages of this route is
APS is considering underbuilding that route all the way
al ong here, which may allow themto renove that 69kV |line
that exists today in front of those residences and put it
on these new structures so that there would be sone
potential visual benefit. As a result of this project,
it would take that line directly fromthe frontage of
those hones and nove it away fromthere.

That was |largely a result of some di scussions
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wth Luke Air Force Base nore close to their Accident
Potential Zones. It wasn't as a result of these
resi dences, but | did want to point that out.

So we're going to continue north, as |
nmentioned, along the railroad tracks. You're going to
see a wood recycling facility here. There's not a | ot of
pernmanent facilities in here or anything, but there are
sone out structures and sone equi pnment that sits out in
this area. They essentially take wood waste from hone
devel opnents and things that are being built, and they
mul ch that up. They store it, they conpost it, turn it
into a val uabl e product. And you can see sone of that in
the right hand side here. You can see where the nul ch
pil es are.

The area to the left is another agriculture use
facility. They store a lot of irrigation pipe here.
There are sone buildings that are associated with the
agricultural facilities in the area. There is a
residence which | believe is probably worker housing for
that particular facility here.

And simlar to that, across the road al ong
Litchfield Road is another | arge farm operation, |ots of
agricultural out structures, and then there are sone
i sol ated residences in here that | believe are probably
wor ker housing for that farm
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So now we're going to turn north on Litchfield
Road, and we will continue until the intersection of

Litchfield Road and Peoria Avenue. And that's conm ng up

now. So we'll turn and we'll head east al ong Peoria
Avenue.

And, again, one thing you'll note here is the
signi ficant anount of industrial, light industrial,

conmmerci al -type devel opnent that is along the north side
of Peoria. There is another |arge residence here. |'ve
seen sone traffic pulling in there that | think this
residence right also be part of the facilities that are
across the street fromit, maybe an owner of that
facility. But |'ve seen sone traffic going back and
forth between there one day. |I'mspeculating alittle
bit, but I think that house was built there probably by
t he owners of that business.

And, again, as we travel east, you're going to
see agricultural devel opnent on the south side. And it's
fairly w de open south of Peoria. But this is also an
area where we've sat down with the devel oper call ed
Der nody Properties. It was previously owed by John F.
Long up until the end of this year. And John F. Long has
conveyed that property through a sale to Dernody. It
enconpasses about 910 acres, and they have plans to
develop it simlarly as that Wolf Logistics Park.
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And the name of that devel opnent is called
Copperwi ng Logistics Center, | think. And we understand
that that could include a | arge array of industrial and
comrer ci al busi ness park-type devel opnents south of the
road in the near future.

Sone of the data they shared with us we can't
specifically talk about as it was consi der ed
confidential, but they do have sone projects that are
goi ng to be brought forward fairly soon, and they're
nmovi ng through the Gty of EIl Mrage for that.

So continui ng east, again, you're going to see
nore of the light industrial and commerce park on the
north side.

We're going to get to the point where we have a
residential subdivision, which is called the Dysart
Ranchettes. And that particul ar subdivision is | ocated
on the north side of Peoria. These are |large | ot hones,
so they're low density areas, but this comunity has been
part of El Mrage for a nunber of years. And we' ve had
conmuni cati ons about that property with the Cty of
El Mrage and spent quite a bit of tinme talking to them
about sonme of the concerns, the visual concerns, across
t hat street.

And in our studies, we' ve kind of acknow edged
the potential for inpacts there, but we've worked quite
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closely with the Cty of El Mrage to nake sure we're
doi ng what we can to stay far away from them and consi der
t he i npacts of those residences. That is called the
Dysart Ranchettes Subdi vi si on.

At 127th Avenue, we're going to turn and head
south. And, again, one thing | wanted to point out over
here is the fairly new Gty of EIl Mrage conpl ex that was
built by the Gty of EIl Mrage. It includes a park
call ed Gateway Park, a YMCA, police departnent, the new
city hall. And | believe there's a coupl e other
facilities in there associated with the recreation inside
t hat parKk.

This was a key part of our studies because
El Mrage wanted to preserve the frontage al ong the road
over on EIl Mrage Road and al so east on Peoria here,
because they recently had buried a nunber of snaller
di stribution power lines that served that area. So it
was really inportant for themthat we didn't continue
further east and they wanted us to stay to the west,
which is kind of what we've done here.

So at this point, we followed the future 127th
Avenue alignnment. This is part of the devel opnent that
|" ve nmentioned, the Copperw ng Logistics Center. And
that really, at full buildout, would include all of this
| and that you see between Peoria Avenue and then way off
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in the horizon where it connects wth Contrail. So a
very large tract of land with some pretty intense
devel opnment proposed there.

So, currently, we'll travel through the
agricultural areas. You can see sone of the roads that
serve the agricultural areas at sone pl aces.

And then we continue south crossing over top of
dive Avenue. And then it ties into the Contrail
Substation, which is shown here in the yellow You' ve
seen the picture that M. W1l ey showed you what that
substation looks like. That is built out. It's walled
up. The 69kV facilities are all in there. And the 230kV
facilities would be built at the north end of that.

This large white building to the right is the
M crosoft datacenter. And their entire canpus, as
M. WIley pointed out, is quite large and includes this
whol e quarter section of land. So this is just part of
what you're going to see in the future.

Q M. Sinpson, | wanted to -- |'m | ooking at
Figure 1, which is the map, the static nmap that we had on
t he screens previously.

Is there a reason why we turned up and foll owed
the railroad and then noved up along Litchfield, and now
we're up on Peoria Avenue, and then we're going to cone
back to the south? Wy didn't we just stay on Aive
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Avenue all the way across from TS-2 over to the Contrail
Subst ati on?

A (M. Sinpson) Yeah. And we will talk very
det ai | ed about the Accident Potential Zones with Luke as
well as their airspace managenent concerns.

But, really, the only viable way that you could
get to the -- around the Accident Potential Zones, the
only way that Luke Air Force Base woul d support the
project is to avoid crossing through their Accident
Pot enti al Zones, which extend approximately 2 mles from
the end of the runway.

Dependi ng on what activity is happening wth
Luke tonorrow, you nay see jets either | anding or taking
off in that area. |1've been out there at tines where
there's a lot of air traffic. | was out there this
norni ng. They were taking off to the north. And you can
see exactly how they travel through that and where they
rai se up and where they cone down. And you can ki nd of
see how the operational concerns that they express play
out. And |I'm hoping that we see sonme of that tonorrow
because | think it's a really good visual for people for
see the concern there.

W nmet with Luke Air Force Base many, nany
times. They were the first people we talked to and sone
of the | ast people we talked to. And we did a |ot of
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technical studies to resolve their concerns and get their
support, and this is the route that they supported
excl usi vel y.

Q And that's because we renoved -- essentially
adjusted the alignnent off of AQive Avenue to the north
to avoid those Accident Potential Zones and stay out of
the red and the yellow area that's shown i n those boxes
on our corridor map which is on the right screen.

MEMBER HAMMY: So | have a quick question. You
sai d that Luke supported A exclusively? So they don't
support G or F or whatever --

MR. SIMPSON:. They do. It had | ess bearing on
their operations because it was far enough east. They
had sone opinions on that, and they did review themto
make sure they weren't going to have an inpact. So their
letter nmentions those routes. But we had a -- we had
considered a |lot of other routes. And in our Exhibit B,
we have a nunber of other routes that we did study.

So when | say "exclusive,"” they didn't want to
support any of the other routes because they woul d have
i npacted the Accident Potential Zones to a greater
degree. So that was the reason that, after many neetings
and a |lot of technical studies, this is the only route
t hat they woul d support.

MEMBER LI TTLE: M. Chairman.
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CHWN. KATZ: Yes, Menber Little.

MEMBER LI TTLE: | have a question. You
menti oned crossing the propane |ines where they turn
south fromthat facility to the salt caverns. The
transm ssion line will actually go over the buried
propane lines; is that correct?

MR SIMPSON: In that area, there wll be sone
paralleling of the propane lines. You know, we haven't
done a specific design there. W were provided draw ngs
fromthem so we know roughly where the propane |lines are
| ocat ed, but we haven't done a final design to know
exactly where the propane lines wll be in relation to
the transm ssion line. But what we generally agreed is
that we wll be far enough and separated fromthem enough
where we won't have a direct inpact on them

MEMBER LI TTLE: | thought you said that they
turned south to go down to the salt caverns, though, at
sone point.

MR. SIMPSON: Yeah. So you're right. | nean,
just to illustrate on this graphic, so, technically,
yeah, there would have to be a crossing of the |ines
overhead to go north here because the Pl ains Energy
facility is sitting in this area here, and then the
pi pelines turn and they go all the way down here roughly
to this area.
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MEMBER LI TTLE: Ckay.

MR SIMPSON:. So you are right. There woul d be,
| think technically, both a parallel situation and then
one crossing to get --

MEMBER LI TTLE: Ckay.

MR. SIMPSON: So the idea would be, again,
| ocating those structures so they are not in conflict
wth the lines, and then they would span themto get over
top of them

CHWN. KATZ: And | just had a question. | know
that little yellow box within the purple square is the
existing Contrail Substation. But there's also that
TS-20 230kV substation. |Is that on the property of the
little -- | mean, where -- who is -- where is that going
to be or what is that going to be? I'msorry.

MR SIMPSON: So the Contrail Substation was
initially nanmed such because it was the 69kV line. The
TS-20 is nore of a systemreference that stands for
Transm ssi on Substation No. 20. So early in planning,
that has a generic nane. So we had that on there because
it's referenced in other docunents. But it's ultimately
Contrail is going to be a 69 and 230kV substati on
conbi ned.

CHW. KATZ: So is it going to be expanded
wthin that purple area? |s that the idea?
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MR SIMPSON:. Mbstly in the yell ow

And if we could go back to the video, | can
actually showyou in a little bit better context what
that's going to be.

So the yellow box that is shown here is the
wal l ed area within the recently built Contrail 69kV
subst ati on.

The 230kV substation is going to expand out here
in the north. So you can see sone of the equipnent in
here. You see those white structures. And | think if |
play this a little bit longer, it wll actually disappear
t here.

So, again, keep in mnd this inagery was taken
at an earlier date. So when you go out here today,
you're actually going to see a conplete security fence
around the whole Mcrosoft property. It's kind of a
nmet al screen fence around the entire property. And then
inside that, you're going to see the wall that APS has
built specifically in this darker dirt col ored area,
which is actually rock | believe that constitutes the
entire substation that we built out.

And 1'Il let M. WIley explain any nore.

CHW. KATZ: And in that view, where is the
M crosoft facility going to be built?

MR. SIMPSON: R ght here. The first phase of it
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is this large white building.
Again, we'll try to get you by that facility on

the tour so you can see the scale of it, but it is a

very, very large building. And this is Phase 1. | can't

be certain, but | believe the earthwork you' re seeing
here right now is another phase. And you' ve got worKker
par ki ng and construction activity, marked storage yards
and things of that nature down here.

But it really is this conplex between the
substation, and the Mcrosoft datacenter is a quarter
section of land, which is roughly 160 acres.

So that conpletes the route segnent A

W wll nowgo to G

So as | nentioned, this is the route shown in

purple. This is going to be along AQive Avenue. |'I|

l et the video catch up here a little bit. W'IIl pause,
and 1'll get you oriented again.
Excuse ne. | said Route G This is Route E

CHWN. KATZ: The purple?

MR, SI MPSON:  Yes.

So a few key poi nts about the takeoff point
here. W talk a |ot about the existing Wite
Tanks-El Sol 230kV line. So that |ine exists at
approximately 111th Avenue and A ive Avenue. And there
is a mgjor transmssion line corridor |located at this
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intersection. One of themis the 230 line we'll be
connecting in, and it looks simlar to the one that we're
pr oposi ng.

But the other two lines are larger lattice
structure lines that you see traversing rural areas nore
conmmonly. W do have in the urban area many that were
built years ago.

What you'll notice here is this is a very wel
established transm ssion |line corridor that's been here
for many decades. And right behind this, when the video
starts up again and this |label will go away, you'll be
able to see the EIl Sol Substation.

So this area that's in vacant land is all zones
for utilities in the general plans. This happens to be
the Town of Youngtown on the north side of Aive Avenue.
This residential subdivision here is also in Youngtown.
It's called Agua Fria Ranch. That's |ocated on the north
side of Aive Avenue.

And then this subdivision is the Suncliff
Subdi vi sion, which is inside the boundaries of the Cty
of Peoria. And it is on the south side. And this
corridor, nmuch |like we tal ked about the south end of
dive Avenue, also has a nunber of 69kV |lines built
currently and front along this roadway on the north side.
Many of them connect back directly into that El Sol
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Substation. So this area is heavily influenced by prior
utility devel opment projects, and you'll see that in sone
of our future testinony as well as the route tour.

Q BY MR DERSTINE: M. Sinpson, let me have you
pause there just a second.

In terns of -- so the purple patch is the
proposed i nterconnection point with the existing Wite
Tanks transm ssion |line and then the EIl Sol Substation is
a bit to the west on Adive Avenue. Do | have that right?

A (M. Sinpson) Yeah. The label with the blue

dot is show ng approxi nate area that could be one of the

connections. | think the requested corridor that APS is
asking for, that line actually runs along this area, and
then it turns and goes into the EIl Sol. So

theoretically, that interconnection could be nade

com ng -- you know, virtually anywhere fromthe north
side of Aive Avenue back toward the EI Sol Substation or
into the transm ssion |ine.

And, again, they've evaluated |I think each one
as feasible, but they need tinme into nore detail ed
studi es once the route is approved, and then they can
make a final determ nation on that.

Q And then the subdivision on the south side of
dive Avenue, that's the Suncliff Subdivision?
A (M. Sinpson) That's correct.
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Q That's in the Cty of Peoria?
A (M. Sinpson) Correct.
Q And that Suncliff Subdivision, that's where the

counci |l nmenber |ives who has expressed sone interest in

opposition to the project who may show up today at public

comment. Do | have that right?
A (M. Sinpson) | believe so.
Q And that Suncliff Subdivision, howold is that

inrelation to the transm ssion lines that surround it
and that you've identified?

A (M. Sinpson) | went back and reviewed a | ot of
the historical data for this area. And one thing that's
really great about the resources we have today, | was
able to pull aerial imagery up that was well over 20
years ol d.

And it appears as though the subdivision was
approved sonetine around the early part of the year 2000
or so. Could have been even earlier than that. But it
| ooks Ii ke construction on that subdivision started about
2001, and then it was pretty well under way in 2002 and
t hen continued to build out.

So it's an interesting area. |It's fairly
industrialized. W're going to talk about this in a
mnute. There's a very large scale sand and gravel
operation to the west side. There's quite a bit of
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industrial facilities along dive as you continue to the
west. You have the substation facilities, the
transmssion lines. It is a bit of a unique area in that
the community | ooks like it was approved within a very
wel | devel oped industrial setting to begin with. And it
| ooks like that's how it started.

MEMBER HAMMY: So real quickly, was the 69kV
line there before the devel opnent of the community or
after?

MEMBER LI TTLE: 230kV.

MR SIMPSON: | can't speak to that --

MEMBER HAMMY: What |'msaying is the 69 is
there now, right?

MR. SIMPSON:  Yeah, it is there now | can't
say for sure if it would have been, but ny guess is
because the EIl Sol Substation has been there a |long tineg,
t hat sone of the 69 |lines that connect there would have
been there also a long tine.

MR. GOLESTAN. That's specul ati on on that,

M. Chai r man.

CHWN. KATZ: Again, he can render his opinion,

" mnot going to -- it's not going to influence us, and
we don't follow strict rulings of evidence. | do
understand -- | don't want you guessi ng.

MR. SI MPSON: Yeah. And | think again APS could
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find the construction data for that. | went onto Google
Earth, and you can see transm ssion facilities in those
images. It tells quite a story. | think that's how I

ki nd of determ ned what this area was |ike.

MEMBER HAMMY: And what's the nanme of that
conmuni ty?

MR, SI MPSON:  Suncliff Subdivision. One sign on
the north side says Suncliff. The sign on the south side
says Horizons at Suncliff. So I think that was probably
a second phase that devel oped | ater.

MEMBER HAMMY: Ckay. Thank you.

Q BY MR DERSTINE: Do you want to take us al ong
now what will be the route on Aive.
A (M. Sinpson) Yeah. So continuing west now

toward the Contrail Substation, again, we're follow ng
the direct path of an existing 69kV substation -- or 69kV
transm ssion line. W tal ked about the El Sol substation
that is |located here. Again, you can see transm ssion
lines. There's two separate 69kV transm ssion |ines that
tiein fromhere. And then they continue to go westerly
along the north side of dive. One of them does cross to
t he south side and goes through the sand and gravel
oper ati on.

You'll see as we travel through this area, nany
areas have been previously mned, and there are sone
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areas that are still actively being mned. You'll see a
series of pits and spoil piles and active m ning
operations all through that area.

This is the Agua Fria River corridor. You'l
al so hear us nention that quite a bit. The area of the
Agua Fria River corridor to the north is fairly well
intact. It's still got a lot of its national appeal and
feel to it as far as vegetation and terrain goes.
Everything south of Aive Avenue all the way well past
Nort hern Avenue is very heavily mned. [It's got nany,
many years, decades of mning activity, so it | ooks very
different than the north side, very industrialized.

This particular conmplex here is a fast food
restaurant and a gas station. And, again, there's quite
a bit of setback here where the existing 69 line runs
along the north side of Aive, so we don't have any
direct inpacts to those areas. And you can tell we'd
probably be spanning, for the nost part, the residenti al
areas wi thout having a lot of structures right adjacent
to them

And, again, we continue to go west. W get to a
poi nt where you can see the sand and gravel operation is
both sides of the roads, and then there's a nunber of
industrial facilities | ocated al ong the nort hwest corner
of EI Mrage and A ive Avenue.

COASH & COASH, | NC. 602- 258- 1440
www. coashandcoash. com Phoeni x, AZ





© 00 ~N oo o b~ w N P

N RN N NN R R R R R R R R R
g N W N P O © O N o o0 M W N L O

LS CASE NO. 198 VOLUME | 02/ 28/ 2022 104

And then we have a short section about half mle
between EIl Mrage and the 127th Avenue alignnment t hat
essentially is the turning point again where this |ine
woul d turn and al so head south and get to the Contrai
Subst ati on.

Again, I'll orient you. W have Adive Avenue
here, we have the Mcrosoft Phase 1 facility | ocated
here, and then the yellowis the Contrail Substation
built out with 69kV and the future 230 to be added.

MEMBER LI TTLE: M. Chairman.

CHWN. KATZ: Yes, Menber Little.

MEMBER LI TTLE: So it |ooks |ike there's going
to be one long span fromdive Avenue south to the
substation itself where the two circuits are going to be
parallel to one another or on the sanme poles? Yeah,

ri ght there.

MR SIMPSON: 1'Il et M. WIey maybe address
that. | don't think that you' re going to see the
facilities consolidate here. | think you're going to
have sone parallel sections of line fromRoute A and G

MEMBER LI TTLE: But they'll be on the sane
ri ght-of -way?

MR SI MPSON:  Yes.

MEMBER LI TTLE: Ckay.

MR. WLEY: Again, we haven't gone to fina
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design yet, we would potentially have both of these
circuits double-circuited on the sane structures at this
| ocation for this single span that we're tal king about
here. However, we wouldn't be double-circuiting the
entire way, just the single span here.

MR SIMPSON: So now we'll be noving on to
Route G which is the route that is shown in the |ight
bl ue or cyan col or.

So we're about a mle south of Route E, and this
is asimlar takeoff point in that the transm ssion
corridor that we tal ked about before that contains two
230kV lines and a 345kV line. Two large lattice
structures and one single-pole structure is the takeoff
point at this |ocation as well.

The honmes that are | ocated behind the takeoff
point are also | believe part of the sane devel opnent
that this was originally connected to. | nean, they're
not exactly connected, but this is also | believe called
the Horizons over this way. The Suncliff Horizons
Subdi vision is located right here, so that's north of the
Nor t hern Par kway corri dor.

You'll still see sone signage out here that
still says Northern Avenue at this section, but you can
see going all the way down to the west, this is the new
Nort hern Parkway. You can see where new construction has
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been taken place, and that's a fully built out freeway
headi ng to the west.

This facility right here is the City of d endal e
landfill. And this is their northern cell, which is now
under devel opnent. They are putting in and installing
liners for the landfill, and that consists of both the
synthetic liner and also | believe a soil clay liner. |
can see sone evidence of both those going in there. It's
hard to | ook over the wall that's there, but if you find
strategi c areas, you can get up high enough and | ook in
t here.

Thei r devel opnent plans for that started
changi ng over a couple years fromthe south cell.

They're still landfilling the south cell. But you'll
notice the work nowis trending north, and the south cell
is getting closer to conpletion, where that particul ar
landfill area is approximately 2- to 300 feet tall, so
it's quite large. Very visible in the | andscape.

And when you | ook at what the north cell is
doing, it's actually bel ow grade right now because this
was | ocated in a prior premned area. So it's starting
bel ow grade but will eventually build up over the com ng
years as they landfill it. So that landfill wll
eventually extend all the way to the south side of
Nort hern Parkway. And we'll again get a pretty good | ook
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at that tonorrow
Q BY MR DERSTINE: Could |I have you pause there,
M. Sinpson. Just orient nme and the Conmittee to sonme of
t he key features there.
So using your cursor, the Suncliff Subdivision

is there where you're noving the nouse cursor; is that

right?

A (M. Sinpson) That is correct.

Q So the entrance in and out of the Suncliff
Subdi vi sion onto Northern or what wll becone the

Nort hern Parkway is where? R ght there?

A (M. Sinpson) Yes.

Q And if I'mdriving out of the Suncliff
Subdi vi sion, what am | seeing as | |l ook to the south?
A (M. Sinpson) Essentially, you' re |ooking
directly at the landfill. So you'll see both the view

wall that | think was built both for security and
aesthetics around the edge of the landfill.
And t hen dependi ng upon where you're at, you do

pi ck up sone el evation as you drive into the subdivision.

So you'll see quite a bit of the south cell of the
landfill. And as you get lower to the intersection,
you'll see a little bit less of that because it's a

little bit of a low spot in the road right here. But,
essentially, where you are on the road right there,
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you're | ooking essentially right into the landfill.

Q Am | seeing dirt or a retaining wall or what am
| seeing?

A (M. Sinpson) You do see the south cell because
it's well elevated above grade. Sone views, you wll see

predom nantly the wall and then just the skyline above
t hat .

Again, it depends on where you're at. Wen you
get close to the intersection of that roadway entering
the subdivision, it's in a |low spot, so you see | ess of
the landfill there. But as you go back into it, you
start to see nore of it when you cone fromthe north to
t he sout h.

Q And then in that open desert area to the east of
the Suncliff Subdivision, did you say that that's an
exi sting transm ssion |line corridor?

A (M. Sinpson) That is correct. That is the
230/ 345kV corridor that's been there for decades.

Q So by the imagery picked it up, | would be
| ooking at what, lattice towers in that area to the east
of the Suncliff Subdivision?

A (M. Sinpson) Two lattice structures and a

singl e-pole structure simlar to the one that we're

pr oposi ng.
Q And then to the west of the Suncliff
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Subdi vi sion, what is that open area there?

A (M. Sinpson) This area here is part of the
sand and gravel operation that we tal ked about on the
north side. There's actually a corner of this right
adj acent to the subdivision that is a materials yard,
| andscape nmaterials. So contractors who deliver rock can

cone in there, load their trucks up, haul material out to

their | andscape jobs. Individual honeowners can al so go
in there and purchase and | oad rock there. |It's a pretty
busy facility. |1 was by there this norning. It was a

pretty busy facility, everybody picking up their | oads
for the day.

The area around that is an area of previously
m ned areas and active mining areas. So | don't know the
full nature of how |l ong that sand and gravel activity
w il be there, but the general plans show that area for
future m xed-use devel opnent, so probably
commercial/light industrial, simlar to a ot of the
ot her areas.

And then the landfill | believe is going to be
there for nmany, nmaybe years. Landfills nove pretty sl ow
They grow and, you know, it's econom cally beneficial for
themto utilize all the space they can. So | suspect
that will be there a long tine. 1It's also been there
approximately 20 years. So it started about 20 years ago
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according to the aerial inagery.

Q And where is the proposed |location for the
doubl e-circuit 230kV line? WIIl it be on the north side
or south side of Northern Avenue there?

A (M. Sinpson) W're proposing it be on the
south side, and that is |argely because of the Gty of
G endale, and it is an industrial zoned area. And the
City of dendale was supportive of us being along that
facility. |In essence, their only concern was that we
weren't too far into the landfill so that we could affect
their operations or affect how much usabl e space they had
for the landfill.

So there's -- inside the wall, the retaining
wall that's inside the landfill, there is a strip of |and
that's native material, so the transm ssion |ine would be
| ocated, in essence, inside that wall on areas that
hadn't previously been mned or don't |ook |like they'l|
be directly part of the landfill.

MEMBER HAMMY: So t hese housi ng devel opnents
are in El Mrage or they're in 3 endale? | guess what
" m | ooking at -- who approved the zoning for these
housi ng devel opment s?

MR. SIMPSON: The ones on the north side is al
City of Peoria, and we do have a map that shows the
jurisdiction, so its current jurisdiction. And we also
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have a map that shows what is the | ong-term pl anni ng
areas, which shows how each of the cities plan in their
general plan, which nost of the | and and beyond this area
is going to be Gty of dendale and then sone El M rage.
But this particular area where these residences
here is Peoria. So, again, | don't know the full nature
of that, but it |looks to ne |ike when this devel opnment
started, it was approved adjacent to all these prior
i ndustrial uses.
MEMBER HAMAMAY: Ri ght.

Q BY MR DERSTINE: How far to the west does the
City of Peoria jurisdiction go? Does it extend beyond
the sand and gravel operation or does it end at the
subdi vi si on?

A (M. Sinpson) | believe that it includes this
materials yard, so | would say anot her naybe 1, 000 feet,
approxi mately, to the west. And then it turns and goes
north back up to Aive Avenue and then heads back to the
east. So this is kind of an edge of the City of Peoria
and extends into other jurisdictions.

Q You nentioned that the plan is to put the
Route G the double-circuit 230kV lines behind the wal
wi thin the boundary of the City of Gendale landfill.
That's al so the | ocation that APS has agreed to
I nvestigate and explore as the |ocation to underground
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the segnent of Route G 1is that correct?

A (M. Sinpson) That's right. That's the area
noted on the existing corridor map, APS-7. M. Duncan
poi nted that out in his testinony a few m nutes ago. But
that is the exact segnent opposite of this residential
area where there's going to be consideration for
under gr oundi ng.

CHW. KATZ: I'ma little bit -- I'm1looking at
that map, Exhibit 7, the cyan line. And | see where it's
contenplated at No. 12 on that map of that being
under grounded. But where the heck does that connect to?
| nmean, | saw the other segnent E, | think it was,
connecting to the El Sol Substation. Were does this end
up going? Because it's showng it deadends where it
m ght be under gr ounded.

MR, SIMPSON:. Yeah. 1In essence, again, if you
were able to capture those structures in the aeri al
i magery, you would actually see the transm ssion
structure that exists there today. So the connection
point is going to be with the transmssion |line that is
currently built in this area.

And we do have sone photos of this area, and we
have those included in our application. And as we get
t hrough nore parts of the testinony, we can el aborate on
that. And this will also be a stop on our tour tonorrow.
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And | think when you physically are able to observe this,
it's going to be nuch easier to understand.

CHWN. KATZ: So it will be connecting to
exi sting power or transmssion lines. It won't be
headi ng into a substati on.

MR. SIMPSON:  Correct. Yeah.

MEMBER PALMER: M. Chairman.

CHWN. KATZ: Yes.

MEMBER PALMER: It mght clarify, if you | ook,

t hat dashed blue line is an existing transm ssion
corridor that these lines are connecting to.

MEMBER HAMMAY: So just a point of
clarification. So |I see the existing 230kV power |ine as
it's heading south. So it goes right now through this
area that APS is thinking about undergroundi ng?

MR. SIMPSON: There are three lines that go
north and south right at the point where they are
consi deri ng undergrounding as the line would travel west.

MEMBER HAMMY: So they're only going to
under ground one of then?? They're not going to
under ground everyt hi ng? Mybe?

MR WLEY: To clarify, the transm ssion
corridor is the area in the center of the screen where
that blue dot is. That's where there are existing
facilities. Were we would be undergrounding is from
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that | ocation headi ng west al ong Northern Avenue. So
this would be a new transm ssion line. W are not
under groundi ng the existing lines in the transn ssion
corridor that's there today.

So this location right here is where you have
several transm ssion |lines |ocated here today.

MEMBER HAMMY: So that is this |line here on
this map that's that --

MR. SI MPSON:  Yeah.

MEMBER HAMMY: What you're pointing to right
now is this dotted line that M. Pal ner was tal king
about ?

MR. SIMPSON: That's correct.

MR. WLEY: Perhaps if we could pull up APS-7,
Exhi bit A

MR. SIMPSON: Let nme do one quick thing.

MR. WLEY: The location that we were just
seeing is this location right here on this nmap. This is
the existing transm ssion corridor. This is the |ocation
where we would potentially be undergrounding. And this
hat ched area right here is where those residents are for
the Suncliff devel opnent.

MEMBER HAMMY: But you said there were three
i nes?

MR. WLEY: In this transm ssion corridor
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correct.

MEMBER HAMMY: So | guess are there existing
lines and the transm ssion corridor running through those
peopl e's area where you' re thinking of undergroundi ng the
new 2307

MR. WLEY: Yes. There's existing |lines here
today. | believe there's three of them W wll be
addi ng one comng off to the west, and we woul d be
under groundi ng the portion that connects into those
exi sting |ines.

MEMBER HAMMY: And how long is that corridor?
O did you say?

MR. SIMPSON: Potentially up to 2,000 feet is
what the requested corridor ask is. A quarter mle would
be 1,320 feet. So 2,000, you're getting closer to a
third of a mle.

MEMBER HAMMY:  Ckay.

Q BY VR DERSTINE: And to clarify for Menber
Hamnvay, the existing lattice structures, the 230 and the
345 transm ssion |lines serve as the eastern boundary
runni ng north and south and | ong the Suncliff
Subdi vision. Is that right, M. Wley?

A (M. Wley) Yes, that's correct.

Q And they wll be interconnecting to an existing
230kV line that's connecting north and south as the
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eastern boundary of Suncliff; is that correct?

A (M. Wley) Yes, that's correct.
Q And then our new double-circuit 230kV lines wll
then be traveling west along Northern -- that will becone

the Northern Parkway wi thin the boundary of the d endal e

landfill?

A (M. Wley) Yes, that is correct.

Q And then at sone point, as it travels to the
west, it then will head up to the Contrail Substation,

and M. Sinpson can show us that on the flyover as he
conpl etes Route G

MEMBER LI TTLE: M. Chairman, | have one nore
questi on.

CHWN. KATZ: Certainly.

MEMBER LI TTLE: | know you told us before and I
apol ogi ze, but can you tell ne again why it's not
feasi bl e to underground any portion of the line that goes
along dive Avenue on the north end of that subdivision?

MR. DERSTINE: | don't know that we spoke to
that, but I think M. WIley can address that.

Q BY MR DERSTINE: In terns of | ooking at

under groundi ng on Northern versus Aive, why is the
consi deration being given to undergroundi ng that portion
on Adive -- | nmean on Northern Avenue as opposed to the
Route E along Aive Avenue?
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MEMBER LI TTLE: Correct. Thank you.

MR WLEY: W did |look at the possibility of
under groundi ng al ong A ive Avenue near the El Sol
Substati on. However, constructability was not an option
there due to the existing facilities in the area, sone of
which were existing electrical facilities. Oher include
water facilities.

Q BY MR DERSTINE: So you're referring to
under ground conflicts that would prevent you from pl aci ng
t he duct bank and the new proposed double-circuit 230
| i nes underground along Aive?

A (M. Wley) Yes, that is correct.

MEMBER LI TTLE: Thank you.

MR, SIMPSON: And just for reference, | was able
to identify in Exhibit A on page A-13, A-13, there is a
pi cture of the corridor that you' ve been aski ng about.
And it shows at the top of that page and has a picture of
the Il ocation of the transm ssion lines right due east of
the Suncliff Subdivision. And it says, as a | abel,

230/ 345kV Transm ssion Line Corridor. So that's

Exhi bit A page A-13. And that will give you a very good
i dea what the existing corridor in relationship to the
back side of that subdivision is.

MEMBER HAMMAY: A- 137

MR SI MPSON:  Yes.
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Q BY MR DERSTI NE: If I"mlooking at A-13,

M. Sinpson, which is in the CEC application which is
mar ked as APS Exhibit 1, there's a photo that shows two
separate lattice structure lines wwth a nonopole line in
the mddle. It's the top photo. AmI |ooking at the

ri ght i mge?

A (M. Sinpson) That is correct. And I am
viewing north in that particular inage, and I am | ocat ed
approxi mately hal fway between A ive Avenue and Northern
Avenue. And the subdivision, as | nentioned, is on the

| eft-hand side of that photo. So | took this in

particular just to illustrate existing conditions in the
ar ea.
Q Looking again at A-13 which is in Exhibit Ato

the CEC application marked as APS Exhibit 1, the bottom
photo on that same page, the | egend says it's El Sol

230/ 69kV Substation. Do you see what |'m | ooking at?

A (M. Sinpson) Yes.

Q So where would | see that photo of the El So
230/ 69KV substation? | assune that's on Aive Avenue?

A (M. Sinpson) Correct. The photo that's on the

bottom of page A-13 is the EIl Sol 230/ 69kV substati on,
and | am standing right on Adive Avenue | ooking north
into that substation when | took that photo.

Q And where were you standing in relation to the
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Suncl i ff Subdivision | ooking north and taking that photo
of the El Sol Substation?

A (M. Sinpson) | amimmediately north of the
subdivision. I'mon the north side of the road. The
subdi vision is on the side of the road, so |I'm probably a
coupl e hundred feet fromthat. But | am due --

i medi ately across the street on the north end si de of
Adive Avenue | ooking north.

Q So if I was |leaving the Suncliff Subdivision
headi ng onto A ive Avenue, so |I'mleaving Suncliffs and
turning onto dive Avenue, if |'m stopped there waiting
for traffic to pass on dive Avenue and |' m | ooki ng
north, is that in part what | would be staring at out ny
wi ndshi el d?

A (M. Sinpson) Yes. There's a stoplight at that
intersection. So if you were stopped | ooking north, you
woul d see this. You' d actually see the conpl ete
substation. |'ve just captured one part of that view,
but -- and then to the right of that, you would al so see
the transm ssion line corridor that's in the photo above
it.

Q And both of the inmages that we're | ooking at on
A-13 of the CEC application, the Commttee will have an
opportunity to see it out on the route tour tonorrow
nmor ni ng?
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A (M. Sinpson) W have stops at these exact
| ocations, and it will give a great perspective of the
total environment of that area.

Q Well, we've peppered you with a | ot of questions
on Route G Do you want to take us back to the flyover
sinmul ati on and take us down that route.

CHWN. KATZ: And we've been going a little bit
over an hour and a half. | don't know whether it m ght
be another tine to break.

MR SIMPSON: We're just about done on the route
tour here. | think | can close this out in about two
m nut es.

CHWN. KATZ: That's fine. W'IIl then take a
break and hopefully maybe get back started about 4:30 or
4:35 and go to a little bit past 5:00. W need to
definitely take a break between that and the tinme of
public comrent, which is 5: 30.

MR, SI MPSON:  Thank you.

CHWN. KATZ: Go ahead.

MR. SI MPSON:  Yeah. Just to -- since we have
the aerial imgery, |'ve backed the video up. So the
Suncl i ff Subdivision sits here. That transm ssion
corridor that we've been tal king about is along this open
space on the back side of it. So we have a takeoff point
here, and then the El Sol Substation sits up here, so you
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potentially take off there. W're in the corridor here.
So that inage is just on the east side of that Suncliff
Subdi vi si on.

Al right. Back into the Route G W'IlIl go
back to where we left off. And we'll just nove through
that east to west. W're going to follow Northern
Par kway easterly for about 2 mles. And, again, we're
going to be on the south side of the road initially
starting off. And then, eventually, you'll go through
the G endale landfill. You'll get nore into the sand and
gravel m nes.

Then at that point, you're going to turn and go
north back to the north side of Northern Parkway. And
that's so that we can avoid all these interchanges and
crossing over the road there where we'd potentially be in
the right-of-way, but we're essentially going to be on
the northern side of Northern Parkway here, which you can
see, here again, is quite a bit of industrial
devel opment. And this industrial devel opnent goes all
the way from Northern Parkway all the way back up to
Adive Avenue or to the Contrail Substation area. So
we'll continue along that area, and you'll see the
addi ti onal devel opnment there.

So from Northern Parkway turning north al ong the
future 127th Avenue corridor, again, headi ng towards
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Contrail right here, you can see quite a bit of

i ndustrial developnent. |'d characterize this as a
little heavy industrial. The buildings that you | ook at
in these new |l ogi stics parks are pretty nice, very well
organi zed, | andscaped, the buildings are nice. These are
much heavi er industrial, nanufacturing, pipe, concrete,
things of that nature. So they're nuch nore of an

i ndustrial feel, if you will.

This particul ar area over here was al so
previ ously owned by John F. Long. And now this property
is al so conveyed to Dernody Properties for devel opnent as
a part of that overall Copperw ng Logistics Center. |
don't know that they have specific plans yet to devel op
this area, but they showed it in their master plan. They
showed this as part of that devel opnent.

So we're continuing north again. W get back up
to the Contrail Substation that exists today. And so
this is the sane point of intersection for all three
routes. Again, you can see that we have the M crosoft
facility over here and the Contrail Substation in yell ow
here. So this will be the convergence point for each of
the three segnents that we revi ewed.

Q BY MR DERSTI NE: Does that conclude the flyover
sinul ation, M. Sinpson?
A (M. Sinpson) Yes, it does.
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CHWN. KATZ: 1'mshowing that it's about 4:25.
l'd like to take maybe a ten-mnute break. But let's try
to get started pronptly by 25 to 5 and then maybe go to
5:00 or nmaybe five or ten after.

And if any of the nenbers of the public have
been followng, if you end up com ng here in person at
5:30, you'll need to fill out a sign-in form Those of
you who m ght want to address us virtually, you'll be
able to do that.

Dependi ng on how many fol ks we have, if we don't
have a | ot of people wanting to address us in the public
conmment tine frane, we probably won't set any tine
limts. But if we have quite a few fol ks, we'l| probably
limt each speaker to three mnutes. And if we have any
governnental entities such as a county supervisor or city
council, they will be given priority to go first whether
they're here in person or online.

Let's take a short recess.

(A recess was taken from4:25 p.m to 4:40 p.m)

CHWN. KATZ: The one question that | have to ask
is we did have cross-exam nation after | believe
M. Wley's testinony. Do we want to go through the
whol e panel or how do we want to do this?

MR. DERSTINE: | thought it would nake sense to
make each w tness avail able for cross as they kind of
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finished a discrete area of testinony, but |I'mopen to
doi ng what ever counsel would --

CHWN. KATZ: |'m happy to do that. | just know
that we did that with our first witness but not with
Duncan, | don't think

MR. GOLESTAN: Yes, M. Chairman, | think that's
right. I'mflexible. | have no strong preference.

MR. DERSTINE: The only thing I would nmention,
M. Duncan had not conpleted his testinony. The flyover

did cone in in the mddle of his testinony, but he has a

nunber of other topics to cover. | don't think we'll get
t hrough them today, but we wll make M. Duncan
avail abl e --

CHWN. KATZ: The questionis, is M. WI ey going
to be doi ng anything el se?

MR. DERSTINE: The only other thing M. WI ey
w |l be doing is covering noise inpacts as part of the
envi ronment al i npact discussion.

CHWN. KATZ: M. ol estan, what do you feel npst
confortabl e doing? W have a panel, but sonmetines we're
goi ng quickly fromone to the other, and other tines we
have i ndepth di scussi on.

MR. GOLESTAN: And M. Duncan started. | know
M. Sinpson cane in with the flyover. | know M. Wl ey
interjected once or twi ce when an opi ni on was asked.
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| guess where are we with M. Sinmpson? Are we
goi ng back to M. Duncan? Because | can wait until
tonorrow to do all the cross-exam nation if that nakes
nor e sense.

CHWN. KATZ: What mght be easiest is just to
finish wwth the whol e panel.

MR. GOLESTAN. |I'm okay either way,

M. Chai r man.

CHWN. KATZ: Wy don't you tal k anpbngst
your sel ves because you have a better idea of how you're
goi ng to be presenting your respective W tnesses.

Il was just trying to iron things out. But why
don't you go ahead, M. Derstine, with your next set of
questi ons.

MS. BENALLY: Thank you, Chairman Kat z.

CHWN. KATZ: Sorry.

MS. BENALLY: That's quite all right. | have a

few nore questions for our wtness M. Duncan. And |
don't believe, based on the questions |I'm |l ooking at,
that 1'lIl conplete his testinony tonight. ['II
transition back to M. Derstine after a few questions of

M. Duncan to just kind of |ay some franework.
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DI RECT EXAM NATI ON
BY M5. BENALLY:

Q Wiat |'d like to do, M. Duncan, is begin with
the project cost. | believe you' ve got a slide on that;
is that correct?

A (M. Duncan) Yes, that is correct.

Q So woul d you take the Commttee through the
t abl es you have up on the screen.

A (M. Duncan) Yes. | wll refer to the tables
on the screen. So the table on the screen breaks down
the cost by route.

So I"mjust going to read the conbi ned cost.
But the anticipated right-of-way cost for the three
conbi ned routes is approximately $11.8 million. And the
expected cost for construction of the conbined routes is
$39.7 mllion.

Q M. Duncan, do the costs that you have up on the
| eft-hand screen include any costs for the potenti al
under groundi ng of the |line?

A (M. Duncan) No. These are overhead
constructi on costs.

Q Thank you.

Do you have anything further that you're going
to be covering on this table for the Commttee?

A (M. Duncan) No, | do not.
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Q Then let's nove to transm ssion structures.

Woul d you describe to the Conmmttee what
structures we'll be using to build the project.

A (M. Duncan) Can the slide on the right side --
that's okay. Thank you.

So the proposed lines will use steel nonopol es
that are simlar to existing structures in the vicinity
of the project. M. Sinpson spoke about in the virtual
tour the structures near the TS-2 Substation as well as
sonme of the structures in the existing corridor on the
eastern side that our structures wll be simlar in
design to.

The new structures will be double-circuit-
capabl e 230kV structures wth a double-circuit 69kV
under bui It desi gn.

The anti ci pated hei ght of for the new structures
is approximately 155 feet. However, structures nmay be,
for site-specific reasons, up to 195 feet tall. And
typical span lengths will be between 500 to 1,200 feet.

Q Earlier in the day, in fact, this afternoon,
there was testinony that APS is evaluating the
feasibility of undergroundi ng a short segnent on Route G

A (M. Duncan) Yes.

Q There is an exhibit that's been prepared as
APS-21. Do you have that in front of you?
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A (M. Duncan) Just a nonent.
Yes, | have it.
Q Wul d you descri be what APS-21 is and if it is a

suppl enent to the Exhibit Gs that were included in APS s
application which is marked as APS-1.

A (M. Duncan) Yes. This is what is referred to
as a typical 230kV riser structure. This is a structure
that is used to transition with an overhead line, in this
case, 230kV, to an underground conduit.

And, |'m sorry, repeat your second questi on.

Q Woul d you descri be how many structures that APS
woul d be using of this type if it was proceeding wth
under groundi ng the |ine.

A (M. Duncan) Two of these structures woul d be
required, one to transition it fromoverhead to
under ground west of the Suncliff Substation. And then
anot her structure would be required -- I'msorry --
Subdi vi si on, not Substati on.

A second structure would be required adjacent to
the White Tanks to El Sol 230kV transm ssion line to
transition fromunderground to overhead since that |ine
is an overhead line.

Q M. Duncan, the other question | had asked was
whet her the APS structure, the typical 230kV riser that's
on the right-hand side there, that is a supplenent, if
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you wll, to your Exhibit Gin APS s application; is that
right?

A (M. Duncan) Yes, it is.

Q And then, finally, was APS-21 prepared by you or

under your direction?

A (M. Duncan) Yes.
Q And is this particular structure also within the
height limtations that you descri bed of your nobnopole

structures of 155 to 195 feet?

A (M. Duncan) Yes. This structure would be
consi stent with those hei ghts.

Q Ckay. Thank you.

A (M. Wley) M. Benally, if | nay nmake one

clarifying statenent.

Q Yes, please, M. WIey.
A (M. Wley) There will be two structures for
each circuit. So each 230kV line would require one of

these structures to go down and another to cone back up.
We are planning this to be double-circuit capable, so
there would be two structures to go down and then two
structures to cone up when that second circuit is
energi zed in the future.

MEMBER HAMMY: Two |i ke this?

MR. WLEY: Four total, two on each side of the
under ground segnent.
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MEMBER HAMMY: | f you didn't underground it and
you had spans of 1,200 feet and you said it was |like a
2,000 area, so if you didn't underground it, you would
have | ess equi prment ?

MR, WLEY: That is correct.

MEMBER HAMAMY: Makes sense.

MR, SIMPSON: And the spans are likely to be
closer to 700 to 800 feet. W nodeled themat 750 in our
i magery. You would need a different type of structure to
span that |length, but 750 feet is realistic.

MEMBER HAMMY: So you woul d need two?

MR. SIMPSON: Correct. One at the start of the
corridor and then one past the subdivision.

MEMBER HAMMY:  Ckay.

Q BY M5. BENALLY: Thank you for that
clarification, M. WIey.

Q So if | understood you correctly, the first
circuit that APS is requesting a ten-year termfor.

If that short segment on Route Gis
under grounded, two structures of this type would be
required; is that right?

A (M. Wley) Yes, that's correct.

Q And in the future, for the second circuit which
APS has requested a 20-year term two additi onal
structures wll be needed if that segnent is
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under grounded; is that correct?
A (M. Wley) Yes, that's correct.

MEMBER HAMMY: And what kind of spacing is
t here between these? Are they right next to each other?

MR WLEY: | don't have that information.

MEMBER HAMMY: | just was curious. It doesn't
matter.

MS. BENALLY: M. Chair, if you'll give ne just
a nonent to confer with counsel.

CHWN. KATZ: Sure.

MR. DERSTINE: One second, M. Chairman. W're
going to confer between counsel.

MS. BENALLY: M. Chairman, at this point | wll
conclude this part of the testinony for M. Duncan.
However, tonorrow norning -- or maybe tonorrow afternoon
when he returns, then we will pick up with the
application and notice, the statutory requirenments of the
CEC application.

CHWN. KATZ: Ckay.

MS. BENALLY: Thank you.

M. Derstine.

MR. DERSTINE: M. Chairman, M. ol estan and |

just conferred, and I think counsel's preference for the

City is to defer his cross-examnation until M. Duncan
has conpleted tonorrow, and then he'll have a chance to
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go back to present cross-exam nation questions not only
to M. Duncan, but the additional testinony provided by
M. Wley as well as the testinony that was given by
M. Sinpson in connection with the flyover sinulation.
We could do that tonorrow norning if that's acceptable.

CHWN. KATZ: That's fine. |If you're both in
agreenent, that's fine.

MR. DERSTINE: Can | inquire of how nuch tine
the AV crew needs to switch over to the public comment
section? How nmuch additional tinme do we have to do sone
wor k t oday?

AUDI O TECH MOELLER: M. Chai rman, probably
about 15 m nutes to do so.

CHWN. KATZ: | want to nake sure Carolyn is
rested enough to deal with the public comments.

How nmuch | onger do you think we should go? 1It's
five to 5.

THE COURT REPORTER: Can we go off the record.

CHWN. KATZ: Yes.

(A recess was taken from4:54 p.m to 4:56 p.m)

CHWN. KATZ: Okay. W'Ill go back on the record,
and you may go ahead with what you're planning to do with
the tour and Exhibit 19.

MR. DERSTI NE: Thank you.

M. Chairman, | ooking ahead to tonorrow and the
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short tine that we have avail abl e today, | had m stakenly
indicated that we'd start testinony tonorrow norning and
counsel would be able to proceed with cross-examn nation
t onorrow norni ng, but | overlooked the fact that we're
goi ng to have plans to nake a route tour tonorrow
nor ni ng.

Q BY MR DERSTINE: So, M. Sinpson, why don't you
and | cover that.

APS Exhibit 19 is a route tour itinerary and a

map. So could you di scuss what tonorrow norning | ooks

i ke. Take us through, one, where we'll get on the
transportation. Two, where the tour will proceed and the
stops we'll make along the way and how nuch tine you

anticipate that wll take. And then any safety

precautions that the Conmttee and the parties need be

awar e of.
A (M. Sinpson) Just give us a second to get that
gr aphi c up.

W will conduct the route tour simlar to how we
did the aerial overflight video tour today. There are
sone exceptions just because of road access, so we're
trying to nake this somewhat seam ess and where we can
park safely and turn around safely and things of that
nat ur e.

As was nentioned earlier, we do have a fairly
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| arge and ni ce passenger van that | believe accommopdat es
over 20 peopl e.

M5. DARR: 27.

MR SIMPSON: 27. So it is fairly roony. It
| ooks to be a fairly nice van that should be confortable
if we want to get as many people in there as we can. |
know t here may be sone concerns about social distancing
or masking. W can discuss how we want to do that one
way or anot her.

I know there may be various participants com ng
along on the tour. One thing |I'm concerned about is
havi ng too many vehicles in a caravan-type situation, and
that's because there's a ot of traffic on Adive Avenue
and Northern Parkway. And there are a |ot of four-way
stops wthout traffic lights. And dependi ng upon when
you're out there, it can get really congested on the
roads. So I'd like to have fewer vehicles. |f people
are wlling to drive separately and try utilize the space
in the van to sonme degree. But that's purely because of
safety. In sone of the areas we need to park in, we
won't be able to park imedi ately adjacent to the route.
W' Il have to park off the route and wal k 100 feet, 200
feet in sone cases and be in a space where we can vi ew
the route. So if we could do that in a way that not only
is safe but efficient, that would be hel pful. And,
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again, |I'mopen to any suggestions. | know there's a | ot
of different opinions about wanting junp in a van with 25
peopl e at this day and age.

MEMBER HAMMY: You said "other participants.”
Wio are you thinking of?

MR SIMPSON: | believe that the Chairnman had
|l eft that open if other parties as a result of the Gty
of Peoria intervention wanted to attend, perhaps even
menbers of the public follow ng along the route tour,

t hey woul d have that opportunity.

MEMBER HAMMY: Menbers of the public wouldn't
be on the van.

MR, SI MPSON: No.

MEMBER HAMMY: But the attorney for Peoria
m ght be.

MR, SIMPSON: Yeah. |If we're going to have
people followi ng along, we're going to need to nanage
that in a way that it's safe for people to do so.

MR. DERSTINE: So the van, it sounds like, is
| arge enough to accommopdate all the nenbers of the
Comm ttee who wish to go on the route tour. W have room
to accommpdate representatives of the Cty of Peoria,
counsel , paraprofessionals, | think as well as, if any,
representatives of the Gty as a part of the case. And
then we woul d have counsel for APS, and then we m ght
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i ncl ude one or nore of our wtnesses in terns of
questions that nmay conme up on the route tour. But,
obvi ously, the court reporter will be along on the route
tour. And as | understand the protocol from past route
tours, although it's been a while since |I've been on a
route tour, |'mhappy to go on a route tour again.
There's no questions, comments, or anything that occurs
on the route tour unless or until we are on the record.
Do | have the right understandi ng, M. Chairnman?
CHWN. KATZ: That's correct. |'ve only been on
one route tour, and it was the Coolidge Expansi on Project
a coupl e weeks ago. And we had one bus for the Commttee
and anot her one for the staff and the | awers because we
want to avoid any conmunications. But | wouldn't have a
probl em having the Conmttee, the two, three, or four of
us, together with the attorneys. | just want to neke
sure that we're all confortable.

MR. DERSTINE: So | guess to the extent that the

Commttee is wlling to all ow counsel for the parties to
join on the sane bus, | guess it's with the understandi ng
that -- the adnonition that there's no communi cati on on

t he bus between counsel or the parties and nmenbers of the
Commttee unless or until we are on the record, and that
happens at the designated stops on the tour. Do | have
that right?
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CHWN. KATZ: R ght. | nean, we could discuss
the weather or the pretty sights that we're seeing that
have nothing to do with the project. But | don't want us
to violate the Open Meeting Law. We won't have the
entire Commttee present on the tour because people are
appearing virtually.

MR. DERSTINE: And M. Sinmpson will -- the stops
t hat you have planned for us, do they allow for
participants who are on the route tour to exit the bus
and then stand safely in a location on the side of the
road or whatever the designated stop is and the Madam
Court Reporter to set up and then take down what ever
information is conmunicated in a particular or give stop?

MR SIMPSON: Yes. The two stops naybe |I'ma
little concerned about are at the Suncliff Subdivision
north and south. W may need to have our di scussi on away
fromthe actual roadway, so we may have to walk to the
roadway, take in the sights, then wal k back a ways to
have any di scussi on because the roads are so busy that
you do get a lot of noise, and it may be difficult for
the reporter to hear and record that. And that's, again,
al so kind of a bit of a safety concern.

We're going to be able to be on sidewal ks and
stay on sidewal ks. But having a | arge group of people
standing in a huddle al ong the edge of a sidewal k, I
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don't want sonebody to step off a roadway accidentally
when they're trying to hear.

So the other thing is parking areas. W'Il| be
able to get off and be a little bit nore on our own. So
we nmeant to just kind of play it by ear. | was out there
this norning. | wish we had been on the tour then. It
wasn't very busy at all this norning. But | don't know.
| ' ve been out there when it's very, very busy.

MR. DERSTINE: And so | guess one accommobdati on
that we can nake is that, you know, we can give
instructions on the record. To the extent Madam Court
Reporter is set up in the bus, the Chairnan can give
directions what we'll do at any given stop. W'IlIl exit
t he bus, and naybe that involves setting up on the side
at the stop and taking down what | anticipate is that you
or a representative of APS will narrate and point out
poi nts of interest, what the Comm ttee shoul d consi der
and see at any given stop. |If there's sone limted
questions and answers that can take place at that nonent,
t hat can be done.

But, in general, there's not a |lot of testinony
or Qand A that occurs at any given stop. It's a matter
of taking on the record, pointing out what's inportant to
see at that given |location, answering any questions from
the Commttee that are relevant to that. And then we get
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back on the bus and we nove to the next stop.

And then once we're back here in the hearing
room we'll return to the record, get back on the record,
and if there's a nore detail ed di scussion that the
Menbers of the Conm ttee woul d have about things that
they saw at a given stop or things that they saw on the
tour, that can happen at that tinme. Does that make

sense?

MR. SI MPSON:  Yeah, | think so.

Q BY MR DERSTINE: Do you want to take us through
the tour and what you plan to show the Conmttee on the
route tour.

A (M. Sinpson) So what this map shows is the
antici pated | ocations of the stops. And we have |
bel i eve nine -- one, two, three, four, five, six, seven,
ei ght, nine.

So we will be starting with the TS-2 Substati on,
and we'll be traveling to the east --

MS. DARR. W' re actually starting here.

MR SIMPSON: W're gathering at this facility,

and then we'll drive to the TS-2 Substation is the first
stop. So we'll get you oriented to the substation and
the route, and then we'll head to the west.

We've got a stop planned at Reens Road. That's
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t he area where we have the Fal con Substation and all that
devel opment going on in that vicinity.

And then we've got two stops near the
intersection of the railroad tracks. So one, we'll be
able to see what's happening near the dive intersection,
the next one at the Litchfield Road intersection.

And then our next stop will be along Peoria and
127t h Avenue, which is near the Dysart Ranchettes
Subdi vi si on.

And then we will cone down EIl Mrage Road, we
wll turn to the east, and then we will go to the
Suncliff Subdivision. And although this star kind of
| ooks like it's on the north side, the only area to park
here is actually going to be pulling into the
subdi vision. W have a spot identified where we can pull
over, and then we'll wal k back to the edge of the road
and be able to do that safely again.

And then we woul d conti nue back out the
subdi vision. We'|l| cone over here to 111th Avenue.

We'll drive along the existing transm ssion |ine
corridor. And then once again, we'll stop at the south
end of the Suncliff Subdivision. And once again, the
only real safe place to park there is inside the

subdi vision. And then we'll wal k back out to the street
for review
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At that point, we'll continue west al ong
Nort hern Parkway. We will turn north, and we'll cone
into Butler Drive. And that is going to take us to the
south edge of the Mcrosoft datacenter property. And
we'll be able to | ook at the industrial devel opnent
that's along that corridor.

We' Il turn back out, head east, turn north on
El Mrage, and then take Alice Road to the Contrai
Subst ati on.

And that will be the final stop, and we'll be

i medi ately adjacent to the Contrail Substation on the

east side.
Q BY VR DERSTINE: M. Darr, you've nade
arrangenents for transportation. What tine wll the bus

or van be here? What can you tell us about the things to
bring on the route tour?
A (Ms. Darr) W' ve arranged for the vehicle to be
here at 9. And that's all the information that | have.
MR. DERSTINE: And | spoke briefly to the AV
team | think Peak Audio will broadcast a screen that
i ndicates that the hearing is adjourned while the route
tour takes place. And then the plan is to reconvene
after lunch at 1 p.m if that's acceptable to you,
M. Chai rman and Menbers of the Commttee.
CHWN. KATZ: 1It's acceptable.
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Any of the Conmttee Menbers that are going to
be on the tour have any objection?

(No response.)

CHWN. KATZ: W' re fine.

MEMBER CGENTLES: M. Chair.

CHWN. KATZ: Yes, sir.

MEMBER GENTLES: | will not be on the tour
tonorrow, so what tine should we reconvene via Zoon?

CHWN. KATZ: 1: 00.

M5. DARR: 1: 30.

CHWN. KATZ: 1: 30.

MEMBER CGENTLES: 1:30 it is. Thank you, sir.

CHWN. KATZ: That goes for anybody else that's
appearing virtually tonorrow and won't be here to take
the tour. So we'll resune at 1:30. Qur tour wll
probably take about three hours in the norning, and then
we'll break for |unch and get ourselves ready to go.

MR SIMPSON: M. Derstine, | know there's been
a |l ot of discussion about the datacenter, and | expect
there's sonme curiosity about what that is. You don't get
really get a direct feel fromit at this stop even though

we're very cl ose because you see the substation. You

wll see if fromthis stop.
But when we leave, |I'mgoing to exit back out
onto Adive and head west so that we wll drive right past
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the datacenter. And everybody wll be able to get a
front row seat of that facility. So | think that wll
just provide enough context so everyone can understand
what relationship that is to the substation.

MR. DERSTINE: All right. Thanks.

MS. DARR. M. Derstine, | just wanted to note
for everyone that we wll al so have breakfast here at 8
for you.

MR. DERSTINE: And then for nenbers of APS,
safety is always an inportant, critical consideration.
What instructions do you have for the Menbers of the
Commttee and those who wll be participating on the tour
in terns of footwear or what we should be wearing. Are
we wearing safety vests? Wiy don't you tell us what's
t he protocol.

MR. DUNCAN. |1'd be happy to, M. Derstine.

So prior to us heading onto the bus, I wll take
a couple mnutes to do a prejob brief, tal k through
safety. | would recommend sturdy shoes. W're going to
be on unstable surfaces. | will be providing reflective
vests for everyone that's on the bus. | can't nake you
wear it, but I will ask that you wear it so that we're as
vi si bl e as possi bl e.

Many of these stops are in agricultural areas,
and from previous encounters, these farners like to go
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pretty fast. So we will have those vests for you. W
will talk through safety. W need to be very careful as
we're entering and exiting the van not just for traffic
but our footing. W'Ill try to park in areas where there
is stable footing, but there are sone areas that are
chal |l engi ng terrain.

So to avoid any safety issues for any Menber of
the Commttee or staff or attorneys, let's just be
patient and be as careful as possible. And we wll go
t hrough these details again prior to headi ng out.

CHWN. KATZ: Sounds good.

MR. DERSTINE: Unless there's anything el se or
questions, M. Chairman, | think wear ready to adjourn,
gi ve Madam Court Reporter a break, and give the AV team a
chance to switch us over to the public comment feed.

CHWN. KATZ: And just one |last comment. Anybody
that mght be here in this roomthat wi shes to address us
needs to sign in on a sign-in form | think they're
avai |l able. W have a m crophone set up there, but we'l|l

steer you to the right place.

If you're appearing virtually, you'll need to
log in, and I'll get an idea of how many we have, and
we'll get an idea as to whether we need to limt tine.

Thank you. W are in recess.
(A recess was taken fromb5:14 p.m to 5:33 p.m)
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CHWN. KATZ: Sorry for the slight delay. W're
going to go back on the record, so |I'd ask everyone to
get seated and take your pl aces.

We're going to first take -- there are four
i ndi vi dual s woul d have been ki nd enough to show up here
in person, and we're going to take care of themfirst.

| believe we have a city council person present
fromthe Gty of Peoria. | don't know if there's another
person who works with the City that nay want to address
us. And we'll take care of the fol ks, though, that are
here in the roomthat have traveled to this hearing
first, and then we'll go through the |ist of the several
peopl e who are appearing virtually.

I'd ask you to try to keep your comments really
focused. | sonetines limt it to three mnutes. | don't
know t hat we need to do that, but | don't want
| ong-w nded speeches no nore than three to five m nutes
per person.

So |l think M. Derstine is going to read the
nanmes one at a tinme of the folks that wish to address us
in person. And we'll ask you to stand by the m crophone
or where that nusic stand is so we can get everybody in
the roomto hear you.

MR. DERSTI NE: Thank you, M. Chairnman.

I think that | ooking at the sign-in sheet for
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the menbers of the public who are here in the hearing
room the first nane on the list is Denette Dunn, Peoria
City Council. The address | have is 11311 West Law ence
Lane, Peoria, Arizona.

Ms. Dunn.

CHWN. KATZ: And just for those who are
participating, it isn't a question-and-answer situation.
It's a situation in which you are going to express to
us -- the mcrophone is -- it won't be question and
answer. W take very seriously any witten comments
we' ve received in advance or the course of this hearing
as well as what you have to say.

Pl ease feel free to go ahead and, agai n,
announce your nane on the record, please.

M5. DUNN:. M nane is Denette Dunn

CHWN. KATZ: Yes, ma'am Fill us in.

M5. DUNN: So | amthe Gty Council nenber for
the Pine District where sone of these |lines are being
di scussed.

And so one of the things -- actually, | have
about three or four points here. | was first nade aware
of this February 1st when | nmet with your governnment
rel ati ons manager, C ay Allsop, and he gave ne the
details of the project. And so this was February 1st,
2022. And this was the first tinme | was given the
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details of this. | had not received any notification to
nmy knowl edge to ny household prior or after that.

Al so, | had spoken to many of the Peoria Pine
District residents and have since made them aware of the
line siting project via personal conversations, social
media, and enmails to them To date, every resident that
| ' ve spoken with has conveyed to ne that they had not
been notified of this project as well. And |I do know
t hat we had sonebody that was supposed to be getting the
word out to the community. But, again, everybody that
| ' ve spoken to in that area has told ne that they were
not even aware of this project.

So far, | also do not believe that PUSD, Peoria
Uni fied School District, or the elenentary school Country
Meadows were notified or nmade aware of these plans for
t hese 230kV li nes.

If you go down the corridor on 111t h between
Adive and Northern, you'll see that there are many, nany
of these, the big lines with the three 230kV lines. And
| don't know all the correct term nology. |'ve been
getting a crash course here this |ast nonth.

So | am asking that the Menbers that are going
on tour tonorrow, that they do take a trip and maybe
drive down 111lth and see just how congested it is already
there. Again, wth Country Meadows School being right
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across the street and in between those two major streets
A ive and Nort hern.

I've heard a | ot about farmarea. There are
areas over there that are farm but not in that inmedi ate
Suncliff area. There's the Gendale landfill on the
ot her side and, as we heard earlier, the rock quarry and
sone of that off of Northern.

The first notifications that | believe went out
were in October of 2020 stating that this was taking
place in the mddle of the pandenmic. And this was froma
paper that | had seen cone across actually today. | saw
the date Cctober 2020. And it's concerning to nme that
the informati on was rel eased back then in the mddle of a
pandem c. And to date, again, all the conversations that
| have had with ny constituents over nmany different areas
over the last -- like |I said, emails, social nedia, and
in private conversations during the | ast week or so, it's
concerning to ne that if it's been that |ong, how cone |
didn't know and how conme they didn't know.

And so that -- | am addressing those concerns
because | think we could have done a nuch better job
getting the word out to the community.

So wth that, I'd like to thank you for your
time and letting me speak today.

CHWN. KATZ: W thank you very much for being
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here. The only comment | would naeke, it's not question
and answer, but this Conmttee wll be expecting APS to
advi se us as to what outreach they had to all the
affected jurisdictions, including the Gty of Peoria.

The other thing | would note is that the Peoria
Gty manager, whenever the Notice of Hearing went out,
was served with that notice, and it was his or her
responsibility to then notify counsel as well as the city
council of the pending hearing. So we don't serve
everybody in a city or town or county. So serve usually
the city manager or the county manager and rely upon them
to communicate with the appropriate people in their
jurisdiction.

We can now go to our next person who would |ike
t o address us.

MR. DERSTINE: Thank you, M. Chairman. The
next name on the list of individuals who would like to
provi de public conment here within the hearing roomis
Irene Charlez. It says Cty of Peoria. The address is
8401 West Mbnroe street, Peoria, Arizona 85345.

M5. CHARLEZ: |'m not speaki ng.

CHWN. KATZ: Okay. That's fine. The other
thing too is that we now -- | thought we had only about
four or five people virtual. There are 13. So unl ess
you' re speaking on behalf of a governnental entity, we'l]l
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| eave all the other public coments to about three
m nut es.

Pl ease call the next one.

MR. DERSTINE: M. Chairman, before we get to
the online nenbers of the public, we have here in the
heari ng room John Kelly, Triadvocates. The address |
have here is 40 North Central Avenue, Phoenix, Arizona
85004.

MR, KELLY: M. Chairman, for the record, ny
nanme is John Kelly with Triadvocates. |'m here on behalf
of our client Mcrosoft. Triadvocates has been
representing Mcrosoft for nearly 20 years in the state
of Arizona. W're the |lobbying firmthat represents
them [|'mhere tonight to convey sone comments and to
al so provide context to a letter of support that |
beli eve was submtted for the record fromBrian Jani ce,
who is the Mcrosoft general nmanager for energy,
sustainability, cloud operations, and innovati on.

Three years ago, M crosoft announced a maj or
econom c devel opnent initiative for the region. Its plan
is to construct three hyperscale conputing sites, we al so
call them datacenters, with two | ocations in Goodyear and
one in EIl Mrage. The construction of these datacenters
represents a nulti, nmulti, nmulti-mllion dollar
I nvest nent over a nunber of years.
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The project before you, the West Vall ey Central
Connection Project, is a vital elenent of the EIl Mrage
dat acenter project. And the design being proposed is
regarded as very advantageous to the project goals, which
i nclude, obviously, reliability of the power resources
conbined wiwth Mcrosoft's sustainability comm t nents.

The M crosoft hyperscal e operation centers w ||
yi el d enornous benefits to the regi on, including, but not
limted to, mllions of dollars in state and | ocal tax
revenues, including incone, TPT, and property taxes; nany
hundreds jobs through construction and operati on of the
dat acenter; sonmething that's already been conducted, a
$100 million investnent in renewabl e energy generation
which is going to be used as part of the energy profile;
and the establishnment of a G eater Phoenix Datacenter
Community Advi sory Board, which oversees contributions
fromthe Community Enpowernent Fund. The Advisory Board
is in the process of announcing its nost recent round of
conmunity grants to | ocal nonprofit organi zations.

The demand for M crosoft cloud services has
never been higher. M crosoft delivers over 200 uni que
cl oud services, including the ones you're probably nost
famliar with, Ofice 365, Dynam cs 365, and the
M crosoft Azure platformthat provides instrunental
infrastructure for our digital world.
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M crosoft cloud services are designed to be
secure, reliable, and flexible platforns to support any
ki nd of governnent and business entity. |'m personally
famliar with the critical applications in services used
by the government of the State of Arizona utilizing Azure
cl oud services, including those in use by the Arizona
Departnent of Education and the Arizona Departnment of
Transportation. These are just a few of the exanpl es of
critical infrastructure that this project supports.

But this infrastructure is dependent on ot her
fornms of infrastructure, including broadband
conmuni cati ons, water, and energy. Mcrosoft is
investing in this infrastructure not only for its own use
but for the community at | arge.

In 2020, M crosoft announced its commtnment to
be carbon negative, water positive, and zero waste by
2030. This datacenter project is a |living nonunent to
that commtnent. For exanple, the datacenter uses nobdern
cool i ng approaches which dramatically reduce energy and
wat er use. And |'ve tal ked about the renewabl e energy
piece. And Mcrosoft has also invested in water
infrastructure and approaches with the Col orado Ri ver
I ndian Tribe and the Gla R ver water storage to address
the current water crisis.

M crosoft is collaborating closely with APS on
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the design of the West Vall ey Connection Project and w ||
continue to work closely with APS on the community on the
final design.

On behalf of Mcrosoft, | want to thank you for
your tinme and request your favorable consideration of
this. Thank you for your tine.

CHWN. KATZ: Thank you very much for being here.

MR. DERSTINE: M. Chairman, | think that is al

of the public comment that we have here in the hearing

room
CHWN. KATZ: That's fine.
MR. DERSTINE: | think we're ready for the --
CHWN. KATZ: W can go ahead with those who are
appearing virtually. And we have a list. | can't read
it all that well, but if sonmeone wants to call off the

nanes. And | woul d be aski ng, when you do render your
comrents, you need to state your first and your |ast nane
and t hen nake your comments.

And while both the Gty Council representative
and the M crosoft representati ve went about a m nute over
the three minutes, |'"'mgoing to be alittle bit nore
strict because we have 13 or 14 of you, and we want to
make sure everybody gets a chance to speak.

MR. DERSTINE: M. Chairman, if we could get the
address for the nenbers of the public who are going to
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speak, | think we're required to have that information.
There are certain conditions or situations where we nay
be required to give notice to fol ks who provided public
comment .

CHWN. KATZ: Okay. Well, state your -- as we
recogni ze you, state your full nane and your current
ei t her busi ness or hone address.

Who do we want to have calling out those nanes?

MR. DERSTINE: Jason or soneone on the AV team
are you able to read off the nane and ask that the nenber
of the public state their name and address?

AV TECH MCELLER: Sure. 1'll go through those,
M. Chai r man.

First we have -- well, Fire Tablet is the first
on the list.

CHWN. KATZ: |If you're present, feel free to
again state your first and | ast nane and your residenti al
or busi ness address.

MS. JAMES: M nanme is Vicki James. | live at
10201 North 99th Avenue just south of Peoria.

' m highly concerned that no one was notified
about what APS plans to do and that APS is buying putting
all this in near an elenentary school in a popul ated
nei ghbor hood.

Again, they're saying that it's up to the Cty
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of Peoria to notify everyone. However, APS doesn't have
a problem you know, sending out their newsletters wth
their invoices or with their bills each nonth. Wy
couldn't that have been in there? APS doesn't have the
greatest reputation with residents here in the Wst
Valley as it is. So | think that naybe it needs to fall
nore on APS' s shoul ders to make sure the notifications go
out. And like | said, none of us received any of the
notifications.

So I'"'mreally concerned with that. [It's |ike
you're trying to sneak sonething in behind the residents’
backs.

Thank you for allowng ne to speak.

CHWN. KATZ: And, again, this isn't question and
answer, but | want to point out, it is APS s
responsibility to provide notice to people within the
affected areas and to their custoner base. And there
wll be testinony in these proceedings in ternms of
whet her or not that outreach was done. And if the
Commttee finds that it was proper and adequate outreach,
there won't be concern. If we find that there was
i nadequate notice given to the affected conmunities, we

may not issue their certificate of environnental

conpliance, but that's a bridge we'll cross.
Wien | made the conment about Peoria, | was
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tal king about internally with the Cty, their
representative. Wen the nanager gets served, it's up to
the Gty nmanager to notify the Gty attorney or to notify
engi neering, City planning and zoning and so forth. But
they're not responsible to notify the nenbers of the
general public. That is APS s responsibility.

Enough said. Go ahead with our next individual.

AV TECH MOELLER: M. Chairnman, next we have
Caren Img.

CHWN. KATZ: Ms. Img, please introduce
yoursel f.

MS. IMG H. M nane's Caren Img. |I'mthe
City of Peoria' s conmmunity business manager. And | am
just here to listen to the public coment and gauge what
our public is saying about this project so we can be
aware of how to better serve them And | have no public
comment .

CHWN. KATZ: Thank you very much. And, again, |
am appreci ati ve of you appeari ng here today.

Who' s our next individual?

AV TECH MOELLER: M. Chairnman, next we have
Chris Hallett.

MR. HALLETT: Thank you, M. Chair. Chris
Hal lett, Gty of Peoria energency services director. |
work with Caren and several others on this call. Sane
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capacity. No comment. Just here to observe. Thank you.

CHWN. KATZ: Thank you very much.

Next i ndi vi dual .

AV TECH MOELLER: M. Chairman, next we have Eva
Osuna.

CHWN. KATZ: Pl ease go ahead.

MS. OSUNA: Hello. M nane is Eva Gsuna, and |
live at 8592 West Malipi in south Peoria.

' mof the sanme opinion that I was not notified.
Never heard of this project until about a few days ago.
And it's been a rush to learn all about it and find out
where did it go wong, because we shoul d have been
notified. APS is a huge entity. So is Mcrosoft. |I'm
not agai nst econom c devel opnent, but we should have been
notified so we could have given i nput al ong the way.

|'"'mvery interested. | was there this afternoon
in person and listened to the person that was in charge
of your stakehol der neetings and getting ahold of the
public. | would be very interested to find out who that
I nput came from because she said it cane fromresidents.
| would be very interested to find out who the input cane
from because | certainly did not get the notice and was
not given the opportunity to give input on this.

The other issue for ne is if you can do
underground at Northern -- and | think it was line G [|'m
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not sure -- if you can do underground at Northern, then
really work hard to do underground over by the el enentary
school and 111th Avenue nei ghbor hood, which also there's
a public park there. You should really try to make an
effort to put everything underground. |If we're going to
have to take this project, then nake it as safe as
possi bl e.

Thank you very nuch for your time and letting nme
speak.

CHWN. KATZ: Thank you very nuch for taking your
ti me out today.

AV TECH MOELLER: M. Chairnman, next we have
Gven Garrett.

CHWN. KATZ: Onen Garrett.

M5. GARRETT: Yes. M nane is Gven Garrett. MW
address is 9165 North 97th Drive in Peoria. | don't have
a comment, but | amjust very concerned with all the
comments that no one has received notification. |I'm not
an APS custoner, so | wouldn't have recei ved anyt hing
directly fromthem but | amconcerned with what's goi ng
on in ny community.

Thank you for this opportunity to speak.

CHWN. KATZ: Thank you for your patience.

Next, pl ease.

AV TECH MOELLER: M. Chairnman, next we have
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Jean.

CHWN. KATZ: Jean. Soneone signed in as -- is
it J-e-a-n? |Is there a Jean present? |It's a person that
only gave a first nane.

(No response.)

CHWN. KATZ: No. We'Il cone back to that
i ndi vi dual at the end of the proceedi ngs.

Who is the next individual?

AV TECH MOELLER: M. Chai rman, next we have Kat

Gatr ost .

CHWN. KATZ: Please go ahead.

MS. GATROST: Hello, M. Chairman. M nane is
Kat -- Katherine Gatrost. M address is 8940 West dive

Ave, Unit No. 6, Peoria, Arizona 85345.

I concur with Eva Gsuna. Not agai nst econonic
devel opnment. | was there this afternoon. Just wasn't
notified. And if you could put it underground, that
woul d be great, especially by the elenentary schools, by
the park area that line Gright around Northern and dive
ar ea.

So if APS could | ook at that with M crosoft,
that would be fantastic. Just overhead power |ine by the
el enentary school and the park area, just concerning for
kids. But if they're able to put it underground, that
woul d be great.
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CHWN. KATZ: Ckay. Thank you.

AV TECH MOELLER: M. Chairnman, next we have
Kelly K

M5. K Hello. And | work with Chris Hallett
and Caren Img. |I'mhere with the Gty of Peoria, so,
again, just listening in and appreciate the opportunity
to do so.

CHWN. KATZ: Thank you very much.

AV TECH MOELLER: M. Chairnman, next we have L
Mat t ox.

CHWN. KATZ: M. or M. Mattox.

MS. MATTOX: Good evening. |I'mLisa Mattox. |
also work wwth the group fromCty of Peoria. Just here
to understand conmunity concerns and |isten to conments.
No comrent from ne this evening.

CHWN. KATZ: That's fine.

And next, pl ease.

AV TECH MOELLER: M. Chairnman, next we have Me
Shel | .

FEMALE SPEAKER: Hello. |I'mjust listening in.
| live in the nei ghborhood, and I was notified | think
back in October of 2020. This is ny first call. | just
wanted to listen in. That's all.

AV TECH MOELLER: M. Chairnman, next we have
Rebecca Gsuna.
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MS. OSUNA: Good evening. M nanme is Rebecca
Gsuna. | live at 8439 West Purdue Avenue in Peori a,
Ari zona.

I nyself, being a Peoria resident since 1965,
t hi ngs have al ways been pretty forthright in know ng
what's happening in the Gty of Peoria. | have to say
the |l ast couple years, there's been deeply serious
information that's gone out to certain people and not to
others. And this is just another exanple of that, that
we have not known that this was going to take pl ace.

So I'mvery concerned that children especially,
havi ng been an educator for 30 years, | have rea

concerns about all of this going up around an el enentary

school. So that's why I'mhere to voice that. And then,
of course, |I'm concerned for the nei ghborhood as well.
Thank you.

CHWN. KATZ: Thank you ki ndly.

AV TECH MOELLER: M. Chairman, that is the | ast
person that |I've seen on the list, unless |I've m ssed
soneone.

CHWN. KATZ: W have soneone that signed in as
Jean. |Is that person avail abl e?

(No response.)

CHWN. KATZ: And | don't see any new parties
t hat have joi ned us here.
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I just want anybody that's listening to
understand that as we go forward, APS is going to have a
detail ed presentation of the notice that they attenpted
to give to all of the affected cities, towns, and

jurisdictions. And sone of you nay have been ni ssed.

But we'll have to wait and see what they have to say.
But | do appreciate all of your concerns, and the
Commttee will take theminto consideration

Everybody have a good evening. W're going on a
tour tonorrow of the route, leaving fromthe C vic Center
here at 9:00 or shortly past 9 in the norning, and we'l|l
resune in the roomat the Gvic Center at 1:30. So
you're welcone to join us tonorrow at 1: 30.

If you want to take the tour, you're going to
have to follow in a private vehicle, and we'll have to
see how nany people mght be interested in doing that
because we m ght have sone traffic and safety issues that
we need to address.

MEMBER GRI NNELL: M. Chairnman.

CHWN. KATZ: Yes, M. Ginnell.

MEMBER GRI NNELL: | apol ogize. | just got a
chat nessage from Me Shell regardi ng her address. She
wanted to relay that. So I think if you have that on
your chat, you can forward that to the recorder here.

CHWN. KATZ: |If we have that in the chat, we
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wll certainly make sure that her address gets recorded.

MR. DERSTINE: For the record, the chat is
i ndi cating a nenber of the public identified his or
herself as Me Shell. The address was 11233 West Alice
Avenue, according to the chat.

CHWN. KATZ: Ckay. Thank you.

Does the Conmm ttee have any ot her concerns
before we recess for the evening? |If so, please speak
up. If not, those of you who are staying in Cty of
d endal e this evening, enjoy yourselves. Those of us who
are going hone, drive safely and nake sure we're back

here ready to go either for breakfast at 8:00 or our tour

at 9: 00.
Thank you. W are in recess.
(The hearing recessed at 6:01 p.m)
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STATE OF ARl ZONA

)

)
COUNTY OF MARI COPA )

BE IT KNOMN t hat the foregoi ng proceedi ngs were
t aken before ne; that the foregoing pages are a full,
true, and accurate record of the proceedings, all done to
the best of ny skill and ability; that the proceedi ngs
were taken down by ne in shorthand and thereafter reduced
to print under ny direction.

| CERTIFY that | amin no way related to any of the
parties hereto nor aml in any way interested in the
out conme her eof .

| CERTIFY that | have conplied with the ethica
obligations set forth in ACIA 7-206(F)(3) and
ACJA 7-206(J)(1)(9)(1) and (2). Dated at Phoeni X,
Ari zona, this 6th day of March, 2022.

@W%d Jutoon_

CARCLYN T. SULLI VAN
Arizona Certified Reporter
No. 50528

I CERTIFY that COASH & COASH, INC., has conplied
wth the ethical obligations set forth in
ACJA 7-206(J)(1)(g) (1) through (6).

Ao A cf’/i«//

COASH & COASH,
Ari zona Reglstered Flrm
No. R1036
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           1            BE IT REMEMBERED that the above-entitled and



           2   numbered matter came on regularly to be heard before the



           3   Arizona Power Plant and Transmission Line Siting



           4   Committee at the Glendale Civic Center, 5750 West Glenn



           5   Drive, Glendale, Arizona, commencing at 1:10 p.m. on the



           6   28th day of February, 2022.



           7



           8   BEFORE:  PAUL A. KATZ, Chairman



           9        LEONARD DRAGO, Department of Environmental Quality

                    DAVID FRENCH, Arizona Department of Water Resources

          10        JAMES PALMER, Agriculture Interests

                    MARY HAMWAY, Incorporated Cities and Towns

          11        RICK GRINNELL, Counties
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          23        Phoenix, Arizona 85004



          24
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           1   APPEARANCES:  (Cont.)



           2   For City of Peoria:



           3        OFFICE OF THE PEORIA CITY ATTORNEY

                    Mr. Saman Golestan

           4        Assistant City Attorney

                    8401 West Monroe Street

           5        Room 280

                    Peoria, Arizona 85345
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           1            CHMN. KATZ:  We're ready to go on the record.



           2            I have been asked by both our technical people



           3   as well as our court reporter to make sure you understand



           4   that the microphones are always live.  So if you want to



           5   whisper to your neighbor, do it away from the microphone.



           6   If you're going to cough or sneeze or clear your throat,



           7   you want to make sure you turn your head away from the



           8   microphone so we can get a good record.



           9            I would ask all of our witnesses to speak



          10   reasonably slowly.



          11            This is the time set for the hearing in the



          12   application of Arizona Public Service Company in



          13   connection with the West Valley Central transmission



          14   project.  And that is CEC Case No. 198.



          15            And I would ask, first off, the attorneys who



          16   are present and maybe participating in today's hearing to



          17   identify themselves for the record, and then we'll take a



          18   roll call of the Committee membership at well.



          19            MR. DERSTINE:  Good afternoon, Chairman, Members



          20   of the Committee.



          21            Matt Derstine of Snell & Wilmer appearing on



          22   behalf of Arizona Public Service Company.  Joining me as



          23   counsel is Linda Benally of the Arizona Public Service



          24   Company.



          25            CHMN. KATZ:  And last but not least.
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           1            MR. GOLESTAN:  Good afternoon, Mr. Chairman.



           2   Sam Golestan from the Peoria City Attorney's Office,



           3   intervenor on behalf of City of Peoria.



           4            CHMN. KATZ:  And starting to my far left -- to



           5   my far right, excuse me, I'd ask our Committee Members



           6   who are present here to identify themselves by name for



           7   the record.



           8            MEMBER DRAGO:  My name's Len Drago with the



           9   Arizona Department of Environmental Quality.



          10            MEMBER HAMWAY:  Mary Hamway representing cities



          11   and towns.



          12            MEMBER PALMER:  Jim Palmer representing



          13   agriculture.



          14            MEMBER FRENCH:  David French, designee for



          15   Arizona Department of Water Resources.



          16            CHMN. KATZ:  And before we go to the folks that



          17   are appearing virtually, David French is a new Committee



          18   Member, and he represents the Department of Water



          19   Resources.  Is that correct?



          20            MEMBER FRENCH:  Correct.



          21            CHMN. KATZ:  And he'll be hopefully joining us



          22   for a while and won't be leaving us too soon.



          23            I also see Member Little and Mr. Grinnell



          24   appearing virtually.  I don't know if there is anyone



          25   else that is online virtually at this time.
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           1            Well, it looks like we have seven of us.  We do



           2   have a quorum and can probably get started.



           3            Also, we can take a break every hour and a half



           4   plus or minus a few minutes.



           5            And I was wondering if we have any preliminary



           6   matters to take care of before we get going, and I'll ask



           7   the attorneys.



           8            MR. DERSTINE:  Mr. Chairman, you may have built



           9   this already into the matters you want to start with and



          10   as we get going, but I don't know if you want to address



          11   first the application to intervene on behalf of the City



          12   of Peoria.



          13            CHMN. KATZ:  Thank you for reminding me of that.



          14            And we also will decide -- it's my understanding



          15   that we are going to likely take a tour first thing



          16   tomorrow morning, which will likely take a half a day; is



          17   that correct?



          18            MR. DERSTINE:  Yes.  APS -- I think our view is



          19   that that would be beneficial to the Committee.  We have



          20   prepared a route tour.  We have marked it as an exhibit.



          21   We can cover that in some detail this afternoon or



          22   tomorrow morning.  But I think we have made arrangements



          23   to have suitable transportation to meet us here tomorrow



          24   morning at 9 a.m., which is the scheduled start time.



          25   And we'll  proceed on the tour, and we would expect that
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           1   that would take us up to the scheduled lunch break, and



           2   then the hearings would resume at 1 p.m. tomorrow.



           3            CHMN. KATZ:  Thank you.  I know that there has



           4   been a motion or application by the City of Peoria to



           5   intervene in these proceedings.  I also understand from



           6   our prehearing conference last week and some



           7   communications that APS has no objection to the



           8   intervention; is that correct?



           9            MR. DERSTINE:  That's correct.



          10            CHMN. KATZ:  Do any of the Committee Members



          11   want to hear any arguments from counsel regarding the



          12   intervention, or are we comfortable in moving forward and



          13   allowing the intervention?  And if we're comfortable



          14   moving forward, I would need a motion and a second.



          15            MEMBER PALMER:  Mr. Chairman, I would move that



          16   we grant intervention to the City of Peoria.



          17            MEMBER HAMWAY:  And I second.



          18            CHMN. KATZ:  Any discussion?



          19            (No response.)



          20            CHMN. KATZ:  All those on the Committee who are



          21   in favor of allowing the intervention, please say "aye."



          22            (A chorus of "ayes.")



          23            CHMN. KATZ:  Any opposed?



          24            (No response.)



          25            CHMN. KATZ:  No one is opposed, so the
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           1   intervention is granted.



           2            The other thing is we have a tour scheduled to



           3   leave from this site at approximately 9 a.m.  If there



           4   are any Committee Members in favor, I would like to hear



           5   a motion.  And if we have a second, we'll have



           6   discussion, if necessary.  And if not, we'll take a vote.



           7            MEMBER HAMWAY:  I move we take the tour.  Is



           8   that what I'm moving?



           9            MEMBER PALMER:  I'll second that.



          10            CHMN. KATZ:  Is there any discussion?



          11            (No response.)



          12            CHMN. KATZ:  All in favor, please say "aye."



          13            (A chorus of "ayes.")



          14            CHMN. KATZ:  Anyone opposed?



          15            (No response.)



          16            CHMN. KATZ:  We will then have that tour



          17   tomorrow morning.



          18            I've just got to get my notebook put together



          19   here.



          20            And I have received from both APS as well from



          21   the City of Peoria the summary of witness statements and



          22   the list of witnesses.  And I believe that we have all of



          23   the exhibits available as well.  And if we are ready to



          24   begin, I would invite you, Mr. Derstine or Ms. Benally,



          25   whoever is going to take charge.  You should feel free to
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           1   begin.



           2            (Off the record for audio issue.)



           3            CHMN. KATZ:  If you are ready, APS, feel free



           4   for make a focused opening statement.



           5            MR. DERSTINE:  I will.  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.



           6   I'll try to be as focused as I can.



           7            Good afternoon, Chairman, Members of the



           8   Committee.



           9            Phoenix is hot.  And I'm not just speaking about



          10   our balmy summertime temperatures.  Phoenix is hot in



          11   terms of growth.  Population growth, business growth.



          12   The city of Phoenix grew at the fastest rate of all big



          13   cities in the United States.  Over the past year, it's



          14   now the fifth biggest city in the country, surpassing



          15   Philadelphia.



          16            The metropolitan area of Phoenix has grown to



          17   4.9 million residents.  And the West Valley is a big part



          18   of that metropolitan growth.  The West Valley's



          19   population is currently 1.7 million, and projections are



          20   that the West Valley will reach 2.1 million by 2030.



          21            That rapid population growth is following



          22   business growth.  The business growth is attracting folks



          23   to the Valley.  The state of Arizona leads the nation in



          24   job growth.  The Phoenix Metropolitan area is a big part



          25   of that overall statewide job growth, job creation.  And
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           1   once again a big part of the job growth, business growth



           2   in Metropolitan Phoenix, is occurring in the West Valley.



           3            The West Valley is one of the top markets for



           4   datacenters, semiconductor manufacturing, logistics,



           5   healthcare, and high-tech industries.  A lot of that



           6   growth in logistics you're seeing along the Loop 303



           7   corridor.  The Loop 303 corridor is now being referred to



           8   as the West Valley Empire, taking the name from the



           9   Inland Empire where we saw so much growth in the Inland



          10   Empire in Southern California.



          11            There's millions of square feet of industrial



          12   and commercial space that are under development in the



          13   West Valley.  You simply need to drive around the West



          14   Valley, which we will do tomorrow, to see all of the



          15   development projects and the agriculture fields that are



          16   now being developed into industrial parks, logistics



          17   centers, commerce centers throughout the West Valley.



          18            This slide shows a couple of articles that we're



          19   talking about and alerting folks to the growth that's



          20   happening in the West Valley.  The first one says:



          21   Here's why the West Valley is exploding with economic



          22   growth.



          23            The center article says:  Here we grow.  The



          24   West Valley on the rise.



          25            The third one says:  Loop 303 corridor becomes
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           1   global center for development.



           2            That's what's happening in the Valley today.



           3            It won't come as a surprise to this Committee to



           4   say that you can't grow without power.  This growth



           5   that's occurring in the West Valley can't occur without



           6   infrastructure, without the transmission lines and



           7   substations that are needed to support and sustain that



           8   growth.  APS has a duty to serve customers with reliable



           9   and adequate power within its service territory, and that



          10   service territory covers much of the West Valley.



          11            Different customers have different needs.  Not



          12   every commercial customer is going to need a 230kV line.



          13   Not every project needs to come before this Committee.



          14   But, as always, the challenge is to site the new



          15   facilities needed for the growth and to do that in a way



          16   that minimizes the impacts on the surrounding community.



          17   And that's what this case is about.



          18            This project, the West Valley Central Project,



          19   addresses two needs:  First is the need to provide



          20   adequate, reliable power to a new Microsoft datacenter



          21   that is being constructed and developed in El Mirage.



          22            The second need that this project addresses is



          23   the need for 230kV infrastructure to support the



          24   industrial and the commercial growth that I just



          25   mentioned.
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           1            What does the project involve?  What are the



           2   components?  What needs to be built?



           3            First, APS will be expanding the existing



           4   Contrail Substation, which is currently the 69kV



           5   substation that is in place on the Microsoft datacenter



           6   campus.  And that substation will be expanded, the bays



           7   and the transformers needed for the 230kV



           8   interconnections.



           9            The other piece of the project is to construct



          10   three separate double-circuit 230kV transmission lines



          11   that are set out in the application.  And you'll see the



          12   routes for those three lines on the map on the right



          13   screen.



          14            What are the benefits of the project?



          15            First off, it allows us to serve the Microsoft



          16   datacenter.  The load for the datacenter is significant.



          17   I think it's in the neighborhood of 245 megawatts.  In



          18   addition, these three connection points, the three



          19   separate double-circuit 230kV lines, allow us to serve



          20   that high load while, at the same time, eliminating the



          21   need for diesel generation and the environmental



          22   considerations and concerns that diesel generation



          23   carries with it.



          24            The project does in many ways what the Northern



          25   Parkway is doing.  The project connects the 230kV system
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           1   on the east, which the El Sol-White Tanks line, and the



           2   230kV system on the west.  The Northern Parkway is



           3   connecting the parkway systems on the east to the freeway



           4   systems on the west.  This project allows APS to



           5   interconnect its 230kV systems that sit on either side of



           6   the West Valley, and that provides us with significant



           7   reliability benefits.



           8            As I mentioned, the project involves



           9   double-circuit 230kV lines.  The first circuit will be



          10   used to serve the Microsoft load, but there's additional



          11   capacity on that line to serve other datacenters that are



          12   being sited or are in the early stages of planning or



          13   consideration for the West Valley.



          14            The second circuit will then also be available



          15   to serve the future load growth, all the industrial and



          16   commercial customers that are moving to the West Valley.



          17            What was the planning process?  What was done to



          18   prepare us for the hearing today?



          19            It was an 18-month effort that involved



          20   environmental and engineering analysis combined with



          21   public outreach and stakeholder engagement over those 18



          22   months.  Analysis from an engineering and environmental



          23   standpoint covered a 41-square-mile area on the map you



          24   see outlined.  And throughout that 18-month time frame,



          25   the early analysis brought about numbered links.  And you
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           1   see those numbered links I think there on the map on the



           2   right, the routes that are on the application.



           3            Those smaller numbered links were then used to



           4   develop preliminary routes and those routes were



           5   presented to the public, and we sought feedback from



           6   stakeholder and residents in the area concerning those



           7   possible routes.  And, ultimately, Routes A, E, and G



           8   were selected as the final routes for this project.



           9            I mentioned the public outreach.  The public



          10   outreach campaign was detailed and thoughtful.  We



          11   engaged in numerous stakeholder briefings with the



          12   various jurisdictions that are shown -- in the project



          13   area, shown on the right screen.



          14            Newsletters went out at several stages of the



          15   process to encourage folks to join us for initially a



          16   virtual open house and then, later in the process, two



          17   live-stream open houses in which we discussed the routes



          18   that were being presented to the public for comment and



          19   consideration.  The outreach included social media ads



          20   that were used to publicize the virtual open house and



          21   the live-stream open house as well as the project itself.



          22            And customer emails.  To the extent customers



          23   within this project area have provided APS with an email



          24   address, they received direct emails concerning the



          25   project and the different open houses and milestones of
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           1   the project.



           2            Through that public outreach, we gained feedback



           3   and input from the various jurisdictions.  Luke Air Force



           4   Base, which is another stakeholder, on the right.  Those



           5   diagonal red and yellow lines are the Accident and



           6   Protection Zones for Luke which we had to work around and



           7   make sure we weren't creating conflicts with.  As well as



           8   the Maricopa County Department of Transportation, which



           9   is under way in terms of constructing the Northern



          10   Parkway.  As well as developers and residents in the



          11   area.



          12            In Exhibit J to the application, you'll see



          13   letters as well as I think we have separately marked one



          14   or two of these, letters from Luke Air Force Base, City



          15   of Glendale, City of El Mirage, City of Peoria, Plains



          16   Energy, Woolf Logistics.



          17            Those letters, some, Luke, in particular,



          18   indicates support for our final route selection, but all



          19   of them praise APS and its consultants for the siting



          20   process, the manner in which we engaged those



          21   stakeholders and asked for their feedback and considered



          22   their feedback.



          23            We do have the City of Peoria is here.  The City



          24   of Peoria has concerns with having routes E and G.



          25            Kevin, if you can identify those on the map kind
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           1   of generally for the Committee and the viewers virtually.



           2            Having those two routes that sit on the northern



           3   border and the southern border of the City of Peoria and



           4   are sitting on either side of a residential subdivision



           5   that sits kind of in a narrow path between those two



           6   routes within the City of Peoria jurisdiction.



           7            The City of Peoria has come to APS and asked the



           8   company to evaluate whether a portion of the northern



           9   route can be placed underground as it fronts along the



          10   City of Peoria.  Again, the Routes E and G that you see



          11   there are not being sited in the City of Peoria, but they



          12   are on Olive and Northern Avenue, cross and outside of,



          13   to our understanding, the City of Peoria itself, but they



          14   follow along the jurisdiction of the border of the City.



          15            So the City has asked APS to evaluate whether a



          16   segment of Route G that borders on Northern Avenue can be



          17   placed underground.  APS has agreed to do that.  That



          18   work is under way.  I think what we can say today is that



          19   APS has agreed to underground that segment that borders



          20   on the City of Peoria if it can be undergrounded.



          21            The current plan and the plan all along has been



          22   to place the northern line, the Route G, double-circuit



          23   230kV line within the City of Glendale landfill, which is



          24   on the south side of Northern.



          25            And so the issue here is can that double-circuit
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           1   230kV line be safely and reliably constructed underground



           2   in a duck bank within the retaining wall of the landfill



           3   and not be impacted by landfill operations where they're



           4   compacting trash and whatever else ends up in the



           5   landfill.



           6            Can we put the duck bank there?  Can we maintain



           7   it?  Can we reach it for repairs?  And will it not be



           8   degraded or impacted by the landfill operations?  That



           9   evaluation is under way, but we've committed to do that



          10   work, do that analysis and share it with the City.  If it



          11   can be done, APS is committed to do it.



          12            CHMN. KATZ:  And which segment have you already



          13   agreed or --



          14            MR. DERSTINE:  It's Route G, the southern piece



          15   along Peoria, where we're agreeing to do that.



          16            Olive was initially also considered.  So you



          17   have the landfill on the sound end there along Northern.



          18   And then you have a number of transmission lines and the



          19   substation on Olive to the north.  The problem with



          20   undergrounding on Olive as opposed to Northern as an



          21   alternative is that there are a number of underground



          22   conflicts along Olive and other issues with trying to



          23   underground the line on Olive.



          24            So the opportunity is there on Northern.  And,



          25   as I mentioned, we're studying that and investigating
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           1   whether that can be done, whether we can safely and



           2   reliably underground that circuit for the length of the



           3   City of Peoria.  It is our understanding that is the



           4   desire and the wish of the City, And we've agreed to do



           5   it if we can do it.  And, importantly, the cost to



           6   underground will be paid by Microsoft.  Again, if we can



           7   do that and underground the circuit there.



           8            I think the Committee probably knows more than



           9   me about the technicalities and the issues for



          10   undergrounding a circuit and the cost for undergrounding



          11   the circuit, other than our new Member French, sat



          12   through a long hearing in which the intricacies and the



          13   hurdles and obstacles of undergrounding were discussed



          14   and evidence was presented to the Committee.  So you



          15   folks understand those issues.  But, again, APS has



          16   agreed to do it if we can do it.



          17            So how are we going to present this case to you?



          18   We have a witness panel.  You see the four witnesses



          19   across from me in the hearing room.  We have Mr. Wiley



          20   and Mr. Duncan on behalf of APS, and we have Mr. Simpson



          21   and Ms. Darr.  Mr. Simpson represents the environmental



          22   consulting firm that was engaged to perform much of the



          23   siting studies and environmental analysis.  And Ms. Darr



          24   was responsible for the outreach campaign.  So those are



          25   our witnesses.
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           1            We will also the utilize the witness slides and



           2   various exhibits that will be projected here in the



           3   hearing room.  We'll also have a flyover simulation, in



           4   which the Committee will have an opportunity, as you have



           5   in every case, to see the routes through a simulated



           6   format and see where A, E, and G are, what is the



           7   surrounding geography, what is around there along those



           8   routes.  But I think you'll be best informed by the route



           9   tour which we've scheduled for tomorrow morning.



          10            And then you'll also hear from the City of



          11   Peoria in terms of whatever witnesses and exhibits they



          12   wish to introduce.



          13            So that's the case.



          14            At the end of the case, APS will request that



          15   you grant us the CEC for this project.  The CEC will



          16   request approval to construct the double-circuit 230kV



          17   lines on Routes A, E, and G.  The steel monopole



          18   structures, the heights of those structures, will range



          19   from 130 to 195 feet.  But included in the request of the



          20   approval, certainly for Route G, will be an option to



          21   underground along Peoria Avenue on Route G.



          22            And the only additional -- although the



          23   undergrounding portion is not, as the Committee knows,



          24   within the jurisdiction of the Committee, we do need you



          25   to call out and approve the use of the riser structures
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           1   which will take the 230kV lines underground along the



           2   Peoria segment and then bring the line back up once we've



           3   moved to the west past the boundary of the city of



           4   Peoria.



           5            So the alternative optionality for Route G will



           6   be overhead construction or utilization of the riser



           7   structures, which is a different type of structure, and



           8   we'll show what you that looks like as part of the



           9   approval and the request for Route G.



          10            We're requesting a ten-year term, which is the



          11   standard ACC and Committee term for the first circuit.



          12   But because that second circuit will be used to support



          13   growth in the future and we don't know how quickly that



          14   growth is going to come and how quickly we're going to



          15   need that second 230kV circuit, we're asking for a longer



          16   term, a 20-year term, for the second circuit.  And we're



          17   happy to discuss that with you further, and you can drill



          18   down on the need and the justification for that.



          19            So that's it.  That's the case.  I appreciate



          20   your attention and letting me give you an overview of the



          21   project and how we're going to present it to you.



          22            This is an important project.  It's an important



          23   project for Microsoft.  It's an important project for



          24   West Valley growth, the logistics centers, the commercial



          25   and industrial businesses.  All the growth that you're
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           1   seeing along the Loop 303 corridor and throughout the



           2   West Valley, this project is needed to support that



           3   growth, and we look forward to presenting the case to



           4   you.



           5            Thanks.



           6            CHMN. KATZ:  Mr. Golestan.



           7            MR. GOLESTAN:  Mr. Chairman, Members, City of



           8   Peoria would like to reserve its time for opening



           9   statement at the beginning of its intervention.



          10            CHMN. KATZ:  That's fine.



          11            Let me just ask you, Mr. Derstine, are you going



          12   to be calling all of these folks as a panel or one at a



          13   time?



          14            MR. DERSTINE:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  That is



          15   our intention, to call them as a panel.  And so they're



          16   ready to be sworn, and I'll introduce them as a panel



          17   when you're ready.



          18            CHMN. KATZ:  Let me just ask, I can do the oath,



          19   which would be swearing you in, or I can do an



          20   affirmation.  Is there any preference?  If you all agree



          21   one way or the other, we'll do it that way or take you



          22   separate.



          23            MR. DUNCAN:  I'd prefer an oath.



          24            MR. SIMPSON:  I think we all do.  We talked



          25   about that.
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           1            (David Wiley, Kevin Duncan, Randall Simpson, and



           2   Kristin Darr were duly sworn, en masse, by the Chairman.)



           3            CHMN. KATZ:  Our three witnesses have been



           4   sworn, and you may begin your examination.



           5            MR. DERSTINE:  Can we have the witness slides or



           6   our witness presentation slides cued up on the right



           7   screen.



           8



           9          DAVID WILEY, KEVIN DUNCAN, RANDALL SIMPSON,



          10                       AND KRISTIN DARR,



          11   called as witnesses as a panel on behalf of Applicant,



          12   having been previously sworn by the Chairman to speak the



          13   truth and nothing but the truth, were examined and



          14   testified as follows:



          15



          16                       DIRECT EXAMINATION



          17   BY MR. DERSTINE:



          18      Q.    Mr. Wiley, we're going to start with you.



          19            Can you state your name for the record and your



          20   address, please.



          21      A.    (Mr. Wiley)  My name is David Wiley.  My address



          22   is 2121 West Cheryl Drive, Phoenix, Arizona 85021.



          23      Q.    Mr. Wiley, your slide says you're the



          24   supervision for transmission planning and engineering.



          25   In that capacity, were you involved with the development
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           1   of the West Valley Central Project?



           2      A.    (Mr. Wiley)  That's correct.



           3      Q.    Using your background slides, why don't you



           4   summarize your education and your professional experience



           5   for the Committee.



           6      A.    (Mr. Wiley)  Certainly.  I received my



           7   bachelor's in electrical engineering in 2013 from Arizona



           8   State University.  I then received my master's in



           9   electrical engineering with an emphasis in power systems



          10   in 2014, also from Arizona State University.



          11            I've been with APS for seven years, four of



          12   which I was an engineer within the transmission planning



          13   and engineering group.  The last three years, I've been



          14   supervisor of the transmission planning and engineering



          15   group.  And I am a licensed professional engineer in the



          16   state of Arizona.



          17            I've held a variety of roles in the industry.



          18   On an interconnectionwide level, I've served as a member



          19   on various WECC committees.  I currently serve as the APS



          20   representative on the Reliability Assessment Committee.



          21            On a regional level, I currently serve as the



          22   chair of WestConnect's Planning Management Committee.  I



          23   was the APS subject matter exert for the 11th BTA.



          24            Also on a local level, I testified in the Line



          25   Siting Case 193.  And I served as the Phoenix Chapter
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           1   chair of the IEEE Power Energy Society from 2017 to 2018.



           2      Q.    Mr. Wiley, the slides that you're using for your



           3   background here are part of a larger PowerPoint deck that



           4   you and the other witnesses are using to augment your



           5   testimony in the hearing.  The PowerPoint slides are



           6   marked for us as APS Exhibit 6.



           7            You assisted in the presentation of the



           8   PowerPoint slides, APS-6, concerning the topics that



           9   you'll carry in your testimony, correct?



          10      A.    (Mr. Wiley)  Yes, that's correct.



          11      Q.    And your testimony and the slides that you were



          12   responsible for preparing include the APS service



          13   territory and transmission system, the purpose and need



          14   for the project, overview of the Contrail Substation, and



          15   the APS Ten-Year Plan filing.  Do I have that right?



          16      A.    (Mr. Wiley)  Yes.



          17      Q.    Do you have any corrections to the slides that



          18   cover the topics which I just identified?



          19      A.    (Mr. Wiley)  I do not.



          20      Q.    So the information within those slides on those



          21   topics is true and correct to the best of your knowledge?



          22      A.    (Mr. Wiley)  Yes, it is.



          23      Q.    Mr. Duncan, good afternoon.



          24      A.    (Mr. Duncan)  Good afternoon.



          25      Q.    You have been before the Committee as the
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           1   project manager on a number of projects.  At least



           2   certainly in 2021, you and I have had the pleasure of



           3   being here before the Committee.  But this was not



           4   initially your project.  Someone else was managing it



           5   through much of the 18-month time frame.



           6            But it's your project now, and you're



           7   knowledgeable and responsible for the project and



           8   presenting it to the Committee today, correct?



           9      A.    (Mr. Duncan)  Yes.



          10      Q.    Using your background slides, why don't you



          11   remind the Committee of your educational background and



          12   your work experience.



          13      A.    (Mr. Duncan)  Certainly.



          14            So I earned my Master of Business Administration



          15   from Benedictine University and hold a bachelor's degree



          16   in urban planning from the University of Utah.



          17            I have 20 years of combined professional



          18   experience, with 14 of those years as an environmental



          19   planner, consultant, and six years of experience at APS.



          20            I have testified in front of this Committee



          21   seven previous times in Cases 143, 157, 160, 163, 165,



          22   190, and the amendments for Cases 120 and 131.



          23      Q.    In your role as the project manager, you were



          24   involved with and supervised the CEC application for the



          25   West Valley Central Project; is that correct?
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           1      A.    (Mr. Duncan)  That is correct.



           2      Q.    As you sit here today, do you have any



           3   corrections to the CEC application which is APS



           4   Exhibit 1?



           5      A.    (Mr. Duncan)  No, I do not.



           6      Q.    Similar to the questions that I had with



           7   Mr. Wiley, you also participated in the preparation of



           8   slides that you'll use to support and augment your



           9   testimony before the Committee, and those witness slides



          10   are marked as APS Exhibit 6.



          11            The topics that you'll cover and the slides in 6



          12   that you were responsible for include the project



          13   description and development, the proposed routes,



          14   corridor and right-of-way for the project, structures



          15   that will be utilized to construct the project, as well



          16   as application and notice issues.



          17            Did I cover all the topics that you're going to



          18   cover with the Committee?



          19      A.    (Mr. Duncan)  Yes, you did.



          20      Q.    Okay.  Do you have any corrections to the slides



          21   that address those topics?



          22      A.    (Mr. Duncan)  No, I do not.



          23      Q.    Is the information presented in APS Exhibit 6,



          24   the PowerPoint slides on the topics that we've just



          25   identified, true and correct to the best of your
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           1   knowledge?



           2      A.    (Mr. Duncan)  Yes, they are.



           3      Q.    Mr. Simpson.



           4      A.    (Mr. Simpson)  Thank you.



           5      Q.    Will you state your name and address for the



           6   record.



           7      A.    (Mr. Simpson)  My name is Randall Lee Simpson,



           8   and I'm a project manager with Burns & McDonnell.



           9      Q.    Burns & McDonnell was engaged by APS to perform



          10   various tasks in support of the West Valley Central



          11   project, including the siting studies and environmental



          12   analysis.  Do I have that right?



          13      A.    (Mr. Simpson)  That is correct.



          14      Q.    Using your background slides from Exhibit 6, why



          15   don't you take a minute to summarize your education and



          16   your professional experience.



          17      A.    (Mr. Simpson)  Yes.  And to fulfill that first



          18   question, my business address is 1850 North Central



          19   Avenue, Phoenix, Arizona 85004.



          20      Q.    Thank you.



          21      A.    (Mr. Simpson)  I received two degrees from North



          22   Dakota State University.  One degree is in landscape



          23   architecture in 1993, and the first degree was



          24   environmental design in 1992.



          25            I've spent the last 30 years as a consultant for
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           1   numerous energy infrastructure projects.  Most of the



           2   work that I've done professionally is either transmission



           3   line-related, power plant-related, substation-related.



           4            I do have a few other projects in there for



           5   other types of industry, but the bulk of my career has



           6   been spent in energy infrastructure projects, and I've



           7   worked on a number of those facilities.



           8            In that capacity, I've been the business unit



           9   director for the groups that I've worked with.  I've also



          10   been a senior project manager and also advisor on other



          11   projects.



          12            Specifically related to line siting cases here



          13   in Arizona, I've been the project manager for a number of



          14   projects, and I've testified in those projects as well.



          15   Some of those cases included Case No. 116, 122, 127, 131,



          16   and 187.  And Cases 122 and 127 were cases that APS did



          17   immediately adjacent to the west side of this project.



          18            So I've worked a lot in this area.  I'm very



          19   familiar with the issues and the growth in the West



          20   Valley.  Those projects were permitted in early 2000



          21   period but have many of the same issues that we



          22   encountered there to consider.  And it gave me a lot of



          23   insight and knowledge in the working relationships with



          24   the communities as well as Luke Air Force Base, in



          25   particular, where we've worked with them before.
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           1      Q.    Mr. Simpson, you assisted in the preparation of



           2   the slides that we used to support your testimony.  That



           3   entire deck is marked as APS-6, but you, in particular,



           4   are responsible for the content in the slides that



           5   address the siting and environmental studies for the



           6   project; is that correct?



           7      A.    (Mr. Simpson)  That is correct.



           8      Q.    The information that's presented in the slides



           9   that address the topics of the siting studies and the



          10   environmental studies are true and correct to the best of



          11   your knowledge?



          12      A.    (Mr. Simpson)  Yes, it is.



          13      Q.    Ms. Darr, would you state your name and



          14   address for the record.



          15      A.    Yes, certain.  My name is Kristin Darr.  My



          16   business address is 24 West Camelback Road, Suite A479,



          17   Phoenix, Arizona 85013.



          18      Q.    This is your first opportunity to testify before



          19   the Siting Committee, but you have considerable amount of



          20   experience handling stakeholder and public involvement as



          21   the owner of your own public relations and outreach



          22   company, Creative Central -- or Central Creative.  Did I



          23   get it right?



          24      A.    (Ms. Darr)  Yes, Central Creative.



          25      Q.    Got it.
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           1            Introduce yourself to the Committee and give



           2   them an understanding of your educational background and



           3   your experience, please.



           4      A.    (Ms. Darr)  Certainly.



           5            I'm the founder and principal of Central



           6   Creative, LLC, which is located here in Phoenix, Arizona.



           7            I have 30 years of experience in stakeholder and



           8   public involvement, ten of which I spent working for



           9   larger engineering firms, and then I went out on my own



          10   in the year 2000.  So I'm here coming up on 22 years in



          11   business.



          12            I have a bachelor's -- Bachelor of Arts degree



          13   from Metropolitan State University in Denver, and I



          14   received that degree in 1991.



          15            My business focuses completely on the



          16   stakeholder and public involvement needs associated with



          17   the planning, design, construction, and operation of



          18   infrastructure.  I work in the areas of energy



          19   generation, distribution, and transmission;



          20   transportation; water; wastewater; recreation; and other



          21   flood control -- I think I've got them all.



          22            I am a certified public participation specialist



          23   with the International Association of Public



          24   Participation.



          25            In this particular study area, in the last five
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           1   years, I have been responsible for stakeholder and public



           2   involvement for the Arizona Department of Transportation,



           3   Interstate 11 Environmental Impact Statement, Maricopa



           4   County Department of Transportation Transportation System



           5   Plans for 2035 and then updated for 2040.  That's their



           6   long-range transportation plan.  I worked with MCDOT and



           7   with all of these stakeholders on the design concept for



           8   Northern Parkway.



           9            I'm currently working on the Maricopa



          10   Association of Governments Regional Transportation Plan,



          11   which involves all of these stakeholders.



          12            Within the last five years, I have been on call



          13   to the City of Peoria's Engineering Division to assist



          14   with public information for their construction projects.



          15            I'm currently on call with the City of



          16   Glendale's Engineering Department, again, for public



          17   information related to construction, their construction



          18   projects.



          19            I also conducted public involvement for the



          20   Glendale Transportation Master Plan.



          21            I have worked in various areas surrounding the



          22   study area for EPCOR Water, and I've been on call to



          23   Southwest Gas Corporation for 12 years and have worked



          24   all across the Valley, including in the West Valley.



          25            Some of my other clients of note would be the
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           1   City of Phoenix Water Department, City of Phoenix Streets



           2   Department, Arizona Department of Transportation, Flood



           3   Control District of Maricopa County, City of Mesa, City



           4   of Scottsdale, and the Bureau of Reclamation throughout



           5   the Western United States.  But most notably, I



           6   facilitated negotiations related to the closure of the



           7   Navajo Generating Station and also facilitated the public



           8   meetings on the tribal lands for that project, I guess



           9   you would call it.



          10      Q.    Thank you for that.  So the portions of the



          11   witness slides that address stakeholder engagement,



          12   public outreach, you assisted in the preparation of those



          13   slides.  Do I have that right?



          14      A.    (Ms. Darr)  Yes.



          15      Q.    Do you have any corrections to those slides that



          16   are contained in APS Exhibit 6?



          17      A.    (Ms. Darr)  I do not.



          18      Q.    The information in the slides that address



          19   stakeholder and public engagement are true and correct to



          20   the best of your knowledge?



          21      A.    (Ms. Darr)  Yes.



          22            MR. DERSTINE:  Mr. Chairman, that's it for the



          23   introduction of our witness panel.  I think Ms. Benally



          24   is now ready, when you're ready, to proceed with our



          25   first witness.
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           1            CHMN. KATZ:  That's fine.



           2            MS. BENALLY:  Thank you, Mr. Derstine.



           3



           4                       DIRECT EXAMINATION



           5   BY MS. BENALLY:



           6      Q.    Mr. Wiley, are you prepared to start?



           7      A.    (Mr. Wiley)  Yes, I am.



           8            MS. BENALLY:  Good afternoon, Mr. Chairman and



           9   Committee Members and Mr. Wiley.



          10      Q.    BY MS. BENALLY:  Let's start your testimony this



          11   afternoon with an overview of the APS service territory



          12   and the transmission system that it operates.



          13      A.    (Mr. Wiley)  Certainly.



          14            APS has been serving the state of Arizona for



          15   over 125 years.  We have approximately 1.3 million



          16   customers, and we reached an all-time peak demand of



          17   7,700 megawatts on July 30, 2020.



          18            APS has nearly 500 substations, roughly 300,000



          19   transformers, and more than 550,000 poles and structures.



          20            We have approximately 6,000 miles of



          21   transmission lines, 11,000 miles of overhead distribution



          22   lines, and 22,000 miles of underground cable.



          23            APS serves 11 of Arizona's 15 counties, covering



          24   a service territory of approximately 35,000 square miles.



          25            If you take a look at the map on the right-hand
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           1   screen, it is an outline of the state of Arizona.  Those



           2   areas outlined in white are APS's service territory.  We



           3   serve the area near Holbrook in Navajo County, Flagstaff



           4   on up to the Grand Canyon in Coconino County, the Verde



           5   Valley area in Yavapai County, Payson and the surrounding



           6   towns in Gila County, the areas east of Parker in LaPaz



           7   County, Yuma in Yuma County, Casa Grande and the



           8   surrounding areas in Pinal County, and the southern



           9   portion of Cochise County near Douglas.



          10            We zoom in a little bit closer to the Phoenix



          11   Metropolitan area.  APS serves the downtown Phoenix area,



          12   the north Phoenix, Paradise Valley, and Scottsdale area,



          13   as well as the West Valley.



          14            The gold star on this image represents the area



          15   surrounding the project.



          16      Q.    With that high-level overview that you just



          17   provided, would you please describe the transmission



          18   facilities and the substations in the area surrounding



          19   the new datacenter customer that you just pointed out to



          20   the Committee that's located on the map that's on the



          21   right side that's designated by a star.



          22      A.    (Mr. Wiley)  Certainly.



          23            So to orient you on the map on the right-hand



          24   screen, we have the I-17 running north-south, running



          25   through the middle of the diagram, and we have the I-10
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           1   freeway running east-west towards the bottom of the



           2   diagram.  The area of the project is located in this



           3   general area here.



           4            Surrounding the project area are two 500/230kV



           5   substations.  There is one north of the project, the West



           6   Wing 500/230kV substation, and one south of the project



           7   substation, the Rudd 500/230kV Substation.



           8            In addition, there are six 230/69kV substations



           9   serving as imports to the subtransmission network.  These



          10   are the Surprise, El Sol, White Tanks, Freedom, Palm



          11   Valley, and Trilby Wash Substations.  In addition, there



          12   is one planned substation, TS-2, that was sited in Case



          13   122.



          14            On this map here, you'll see a little bit closer



          15   zoomed-in view of the project area.



          16            To orient you on this map, you will see the 303



          17   running north-south and, again, the I-10 running



          18   east-west towards the bottom of the page.



          19            You'll see the Contrail Substation located in



          20   this area right here.  This is the substation for which



          21   the lines of this project will be connecting into and



          22   serving the load for the datacenter.



          23            There are four 69/12kV substations serving the



          24   load in the greater area surrounding the subject site.



          25   These substations are Litchfield, Falcon, Farney, and
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           1   Dysart Substations.



           2            Lastly, there are five substations under



           3   development to serve the datacenter load.  These



           4   substations are currently served off of a 69kV network



           5   but will be transitioning to the 230kV system.  These



           6   include the Contrail Substation, Three Rivers, Broadway,



           7   Runway, and Stratus Substations.



           8      Q.    Mr. Wiley, I'm going to have you go back to your



           9   prior map and just, in your testimony, illustrate a



          10   comment that Mr. Derstine made in his opening statements.



          11            Would you point out the 101 and the 303 and then



          12   the Contrail Substation for the Committee.



          13      A.    (Mr. Wiley)  Certainly.



          14            The 101 is running north-south in this location,



          15   and the 303 running north-south in this location.



          16            I'd also like to take the opportunity to point



          17   out the two lateral 230 lines that Mr. Derstine spoke



          18   about during his opening comments.



          19            We have one 230 corridor running north-south in



          20   this location and another 230 corridor running



          21   north-south to the west.  This project will be connecting



          22   these two lateral 230 lines with the new lines for this



          23   project.



          24      Q.    Thank you.



          25            So let's now transition to the purpose and need
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           1   for this project.



           2      A.    (Mr. Wiley)  Certainly.



           3            The purpose of this purpose is to serve a new



           4   datacenter for Microsoft.  At full buildout, the expected



           5   load of this datacenter is expected to be 245 megawatts.



           6   To put this into perspective, the combined loads of the



           7   cities of Glendale, Peoria, El Mirage, Surprise, Sun



           8   City, and the Town of Youngtown combined are



           9   approximately 1,100 megawatts.  This datacenter load is



          10   approximately a quarter of the combined load of all of



          11   those cities.



          12            So to serve this anticipated load necessitates



          13   service from the 230kV network.  Some initial load can be



          14   served by the underlying 69kV subtransmission network,



          15   but the load-serving capability of this system is



          16   limited.  To meet the long-term needs of the customer as



          17   well as the continued growth in the surrounding area,



          18   230kV service is required.



          19            So if I point your direction to the map on the



          20   right-hand screen, again, I'll point out the Loop 303



          21   running north-south.  We see Luke Air Force Base towards



          22   the center of the screen along with the Accident



          23   Prevention Zone, and we have Olive Avenue running



          24   east-west towards the middle of the screen.



          25            This project consists of three separate 230kV
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           1   lines.  One line originates at the planned TS-2



           2   Substation, generally following Olive Avenue running up



           3   and around the Accident Prevention Zone, and terminating



           4   in the Contrail Substation.  The second and third lines



           5   are created by looping in the existing El Sol to White



           6   Tanks line.  This location here is an existing



           7   transmission corridor, which, among other lines, contains



           8   the El Sol to White Tanks line.



           9            This project would cut this line in and out,



          10   cutting in here, looping in the Contrail Substation, and



          11   looping back into the existing transmission corridor.



          12   This effectively makes two new connections into Contrail,



          13   a Contrail to El Sol line, and a Contrail to White Tanks



          14   line.



          15            These three separate lines meet the reliability



          16   needs of our customer, and they also follow best



          17   practices when serving loads of this magnitude.



          18            With three separate connections, there is no



          19   loss of load for single contingencies.  Single



          20   contingencies such as the loss of a common transmission



          21   structure are considered credible planning events per



          22   NERC transmission planning standards.



          23      Q.    Mr. Wiley, let me have you pause there just a



          24   second.  You mentioned the TS-2 Substation.  Although



          25   that's a part of this project or one of the terminus
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           1   points for the line from Contrail to TS2, TS-2 is



           2   previously certificated in another case; is that correct?



           3      A.    (Mr. Wiley)  That's correct, Case 122.



           4      Q.    Okay.  Thank you.



           5            If you are complete in covering the connections,



           6   are we ready to move to reliability of the datacenter



           7   customer requirements?



           8      A.    (Mr. Wiley)  Yes.



           9      Q.    So with that, then, would you help us gain some



          10   perspective regarding a datacenter's reliability needs.



          11   I preface my question understanding that you are not an



          12   expert, necessarily, in this area.  So if you would just



          13   offer testimony in that regard.



          14      A.    (Mr. Wiley)  Certainly.



          15            Datacenters do require a high level of



          16   reliability.  Typical standards within the datacenter



          17   industry are to have what's called five 9's of



          18   reliability.  This is 99.999 percent reliable service.



          19            This reliability can be achieved in a couple



          20   different ways.  One is to have backup diesel generators



          21   on site.  Another way is to build in redundancy in the



          22   transmission system that is serving the datacenter.



          23            By having three separate connections on this



          24   project, our customer's needs are met and also allows



          25   them to meet their green energy goals by not having
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           1   diesel backup generation on site.



           2            MEMBER GRINNELL:  Mr. Chairman.



           3            CHMN. KATZ:  Yes, Mr. Grinnell.



           4            MEMBER GRINNELL:  Forgive my ignorance.  Did you



           5   say the Microsoft datacenter?  Is that the right



           6   datacenter?



           7            MS. BENALLY:  That is correct.



           8            MEMBER GRINNELL:  Where is that going to be



           9   located or where is the proposed location for that?



          10            MR. WILEY:  Yes.  Thank you for the question.



          11            The Microsoft campus is shown as shaded in



          12   purple on this map, and the yellow represents the



          13   substation that is located within Microsoft's campus.



          14            MEMBER GRINNELL:  Okay.  I've got the same map.



          15   Thank you.



          16      Q.    BY MS. BENALLY:  Mr. Wiley, so the location that



          17   you pointed out of the location of the Microsoft



          18   datacenter is at Dysart Road and Olive Avenue; is that



          19   correct?



          20      A.    (Mr. Wiley)  Yes, that is correct.



          21      Q.    And as you testified, the project or the three



          22   connections that you described are to bring 230kV lines



          23   to this location; is that correct?



          24      A.    (Mr. Wiley)  Yes, that's correct.



          25      Q.    Are there any additional transmission system





                  COASH & COASH, INC.                  602-258-1440



                  www.coashandcoash.com                 Phoenix, AZ

�



                       LS CASE NO. 198      VOLUME I      02/28/2022

                                                                      45





           1   benefits in addition to or beyond serving the Microsoft



           2   datacenter that you just described?



           3      A.    (Mr. Wiley)  Yes, there are.



           4            The area surrounding this project is a key



           5   location for economic development.  One developer in this



           6   area had noted that they're anticipating to build an



           7   incidental 12 to 14 million square feet of industrial



           8   space.  And this is in addition to the Microsoft



           9   datacenter.



          10            The City of Glendale has noted that economic



          11   development has surpassed their expectations for the



          12   area.  The target was to construct a few million square



          13   feet over the next 10 to 20 years.  They have already had



          14   14 million square feet of buildings with either active



          15   permits or that were recently completed.



          16            The proposed project could eliminate the need to



          17   build future 230kV lines.  As noted in our application,



          18   we are planning to build these lines as double-circuit



          19   capable.  So as the development in this area progresses



          20   and the load demands in the area increase, we can string



          21   or add a second 230kV line to the existing structures.



          22      Q.    Mr. Wiley, pardon me for interrupting you.  The



          23   illustration that you have up on the right-hand screen is



          24   titled Woolf Logistics Center Existing and Proposed



          25   Developments.
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           1            To orient the Committee, would you describe the



           2   general location of what you have on the map before you



           3   move into describing what you have up there on the



           4   screen.



           5      A.    (Mr. Wiley)  Certainly.



           6            You'll see on the left-hand side of the diagram,



           7   this is the Loop 303.  We have Olive Avenue running



           8   east-west on the map and near Litchfield Road running



           9   north-south.



          10      Q.    And is it fair to say, then, that to the west of



          11   that map and not shown on the screen is the datacenter



          12   site?



          13      A.    (Mr. Wiley)  The datacenter site would be to the



          14   east of this map.



          15      Q.    Okay.  Thank you.  It's to the east.



          16      A.    (Mr. Wiley)  Correct.



          17      Q.    And on this map, would you describe the



          18   development that is anticipated.  As Mr. Derstine



          19   indicated in his opening, there was quite a bit of



          20   development, and you just indicated that as well with the



          21   City of Glendale and other entities.



          22            Would you describe that a bit further using the



          23   map.



          24      A.    (Mr. Wiley)  Certainly.



          25            At the date that this aerial imagery was taken,
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           1   you'll see that the large portion of this is agricultural



           2   land.  As we go on our site tour tomorrow, you will see



           3   that some of this land has already been developed and



           4   there are existing facilities in place.  Some notable



           5   sites include Red Bull and Ball Corp and Mark Anthony



           6   Brewing.  So although you see agricultural areas here,



           7   these are existing facilities for these different



           8   companies.



           9            You also see a number of other parcels in the



          10   area.  These either have active projects or are



          11   anticipated to become active in the near term.



          12      Q.    Is there anything further you would like to



          13   provide regarding that map, or are you ready to move on



          14   to the next set of questions?



          15      A.    (Mr. Wiley)  I'm ready to move on.



          16      Q.    Okay.  Great.  Thank you, Mr. Wiley.



          17            So I'd like to have you speak a little bit to



          18   the three connections that you described earlier in your



          19   testimony.



          20            You explained, as I noted, that there are three



          21   connections.  Each one of these three connections is a



          22   double-circuit-capable 230kV line.  Did I get that right?



          23      A.    (Mr. Wiley)  Yes, that's correct.



          24      Q.    And is APS considering undergrounding any



          25   segment of the transmission lines?
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           1      A.    (Mr. Wiley)  Yes.  For this CEC, APS is



           2   requesting authorization for an overhead transmission



           3   corridor.  However, we are evaluating undergrounding a



           4   small portion along Olive Avenue.



           5      Q.    Along Olive Avenue?



           6      A.    (Mr. Wiley)  I apologize.  Along Northern



           7   Avenue.  That would be in this location here near the



           8   Glendale landfill, and that is link -- I believe that



           9   says 625.



          10            APS is currently performing engineering analysis



          11   to determine the feasibility and constructability of



          12   undergrounding at this location.



          13      Q.    And is it correct, then, that APS has -- based



          14   on the outcome of that study, if it is feasible to



          15   underground it, APS has agreed to underground that



          16   segment of the line that will be further discussed in an



          17   exhibit that we have upcoming; is that correct?



          18      A.    (Mr. Wiley)  Yes, that is correct.



          19      Q.    Are you able to speak to APS's standard



          20   construction approach to building transmission lines?



          21      A.    (Mr. Wiley)  Our standard approach to building



          22   transmission lines is to build them overhead.  This is



          23   for 69kV lines and above.  That would be our standard.



          24   We do have select areas where we have undergrounded



          25   facilities, but our typical standard is to build
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           1   overhead.



           2      Q.    Let's now move to the planned energization dates



           3   for the circuits.  As you indicated, these are going to



           4   be double-circuit capable.  Would you provide the



           5   estimated date to energize the first line.



           6      A.    (Mr. Wiley)  Yes.  The first line is expected to



           7   be energized in 2024, and that is for all three of the



           8   lines.



           9      Q.    And when is the estimated inservice date for the



          10   second circuit?



          11      A.    (Mr. Wiley)  The second circuit on all three of



          12   these lines is continuing to be evaluated.  We do not



          13   show the need or it has not been included in our current



          14   Ten-Year Plan.



          15      Q.    Would you explain to the Committee why APS is



          16   requesting a 20-year term for the second circuit.



          17      A.    (Mr. Wiley)  Certainly.  As I previously spoke,



          18   the area surrounding this project is a key location for



          19   economic development.  And with that economic development



          20   comes the need to have increased load-serving capability.



          21   When the need does arise, we can add on a second circuit



          22   to the existing structures.



          23            It is best practice to build new 230kV



          24   infrastructure capable of adding the double circuit or a



          25   second circuit when a second circuit is probable in the
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           1   future.  And although we do not include it in our



           2   Ten-Year Plan, we do expect the probable need to be in



           3   the 10- to 20-year horizon.



           4      Q.    And that testimony is premised on the



           5   anticipated load growth that you described earlier that



           6   is to the west of the project site as well as along the



           7   Loop 303 that Mr. Derstine included in his opening



           8   remarks.  Is that a generally accurate description?



           9      A.    (Mr. Wiley)  Yes.  Generally, to the west and



          10   some to the north as well.



          11      Q.    So let's now transition to your next slide.



          12            CHMN. KATZ:  If I might interrupt, one of our



          13   Committee Members has indicated that they were waiting to



          14   be admitted to the meeting via Zoom.  I don't know if



          15   that's Mr. Gentles.



          16            MEMBER GENTLES:  Yes, Mr. Chairman, I'm on.



          17   This is Member Gentles.  Thank you.



          18            CHMN. KATZ:  I figured it was you.  Okay.



          19   That's fine.  Thank you.



          20      Q.    BY MS. BENALLY:  So, Mr. Wiley, you testified to



          21   the transmission lines, the three connections, the fact



          22   that they are going to be 230kV double-circuit lines.



          23            Can you describe the substation that these three



          24   connections will terminate at.



          25      A.    (Mr. Wiley)  The lines will be terminating into
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           1   the Contrail Substation, and that is located on



           2   Microsoft's campus shown on this diagram.  Microsoft's



           3   campus is again outlined or highlighted in purple, and



           4   the substation is shown in yellow.



           5            At full buildout, this substation will contain



           6   three 230kV lines, three 230/69kV transformers, and seven



           7   69/34.5kV transformers.



           8      Q.    What is the status of the development of the



           9   Contrail Substation?



          10      A.    The Contrail Substation is energized today off



          11   of the 69kV subtransmission network.  This substation was



          12   energized in May of 2020.  Today the substation is fed



          13   via two 69kV feeds, one from the El Sol Substation and



          14   one from the Falcon Substation.



          15            This provides Microsoft enough load-serving



          16   capability for their first phase of their operations.



          17   But, again, the 69kV subtransmission network is limited



          18   in their load-serving capability.  So to achieve their



          19   long-term needs, 230kV construction is expected or



          20   planned to begin in 2023.



          21      Q.    Mr. Wiley, when you state "to meet their



          22   long-term needs," when you say "their," you're referring



          23   to the datacenter in this particular instance?



          24      A.    (Mr. Wiley)  That's correct, to serve the



          25   datacenter of 230 megawatts, as well as the continued
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           1   growth in the surrounding area.



           2      Q.    Thank you.



           3            MEMBER GRINNELL:  Mr. Chairman.



           4            CHMN. KATZ:  Yes, Member Grinnell.



           5            MEMBER GRINNELL:  Can I get a little clarity on



           6   something maybe I misunderstood.



           7            It was mentioned in -- Mr. Derstine had



           8   mentioned the ten-year application, and I believe the



           9   lady spoke of a 20-year.  Are we looking at two different



          10   requests?



          11            CHMN. KATZ:  It's my understanding, and I'll let



          12   Mr. Derstine or Ms. Benally clarify it, it's going to be



          13   double-circuit, but the first circuit will be built



          14   within the next ten years.  If the development down the



          15   road requires a second circuit along the same route using



          16   the same poles, I'm assuming, that would be added.  It



          17   might be five years, it might be ten years, but it could



          18   be 15 or 20 years.



          19            Is that substantially correct, Mr. Wiley?



          20            MR. WILEY:  Yes, Chairman Katz, that is correct.



          21            MEMBER GRINNELL:  Thank you.



          22      Q.    BY MS. BENALLY:  So the first circuit in the APS



          23   proposal is ten years.  The second circuit is 20 years.



          24            And, Mr. Wiley, the 20 years is based on the



          25   anticipated load growth that APS is evaluating and has
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           1   studied; is that correct?



           2      A.    (Mr. Wiley)  That's correct.



           3            And then I did want to point out on the



           4   right-hand screen, we have a photograph of the Contrail



           5   Substation as it is today being served off of the 69kV



           6   network.



           7      Q.    Do you have anything further you'd like to



           8   testify regarding the substation, Mr. Wiley?



           9      A.    (Mr. Wiley)  No, I do not.



          10      Q.    Okay.  So then let's move to the Ten-Year Plan.



          11            The line siting statute that applicants have to



          12   comply with requires that a Ten-Year Plan filing for any



          13   project that comes before this Committee has to be filed



          14   with the Arizona Corporation Commission.  Was this



          15   project included in APS's Ten-Year Plan filing at the



          16   ACC.



          17      A.    (Mr. Wiley)  Yes, it was.



          18            The project was first included in APS's



          19   supplemental filing for its 2019 filing, which was on



          20   June 12th of 2019.



          21            The project has also been included in all



          22   subsequent filings for our Ten-Year Plan.  These include



          23   the January 31st, 2020; January 29th, 2021; and January



          24   31st, 2022, filings.



          25      Q.    Thank you.
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           1            Does that conclude this part of your testimony,



           2   Mr. Wiley?



           3      A.    (Mr. Wiley)  Yes, it does.



           4            MS. BENALLY:  Mr. Chairman, Mr. Wiley is



           5   available for cross-examination at this point if that is



           6   the direction you would like to proceed.



           7            CHMN. KATZ:  Mr. Golestan, if you wanted to



           8   cross-examine this witness, you're more than welcome to.



           9            MR. GOLESTAN:  With the understanding,



          10   Mr. Chairman that should there be any subsequent



          11   testimony, the City reserves its right to cross-examine



          12   him on other subjects as they come up.



          13            CHMN. KATZ:  That's correct.



          14



          15                       CROSS-EXAMINATION



          16   BY MR. GOLESTAN:



          17      Q.    Good afternoon, Mr. Wiley.  A couple things I



          18   want to talk about that you've mentioned so far.



          19            First is that you've indicated that the primary



          20   purpose of this CEC is for providing -- meeting the needs



          21   of the Microsoft datacenter, right?



          22      A.    (Mr. Wiley)  Yes, that's correct.



          23      Q.    And do you know where that datacenter is located



          24   in terms of jurisdictionally, what city that in or town?



          25      A.    (Mr. Wiley)  It's located in El Mirage.
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           1      Q.    So no part of it is in Peoria as far as you



           2   know?



           3      A.    (Mr. Wiley)  Correct, it is not in Peoria.



           4      Q.    Okay.  You mentioned that at least initially, a



           5   69kV line could be sustainable but not obviously long



           6   term.  I'm just curious, how long could a 69kV line meet



           7   the needs of the datacenter?



           8      A.    (Mr. Wiley)  I'll frame it in terms of



           9   load-serving capability.  Where it would serve



          10   approximately 95 megawatts off of the 69 subtransmission



          11   system, the full buildout of the Microsoft datacenter is



          12   245 megawatts.



          13      Q.    Okay.  There was a discussion about economic



          14   development.  Let me say this:  As far as you know, there



          15   are no other direct and immediate purposes, obviously, of



          16   this transmission line?  Again, the primary purpose is



          17   the Microsoft datacenter?



          18      A.    (Mr. Wiley)  The primary purpose is the



          19   Microsoft datacenter.  However, this does allow us to



          20   continue to serve the growing area as the economic



          21   development in the area continues to grow.



          22      Q.    And you mentioned that while the standard is



          23   overheading -- excuse me -- keeping these lines above



          24   ground, there have been instances in which the lines at



          25   issue here, the 230kV lines, are undergrounded.  Could
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           1   you provide examples of those instances that you are



           2   aware of?



           3      A.    (Mr. Wiley)  That is correct.  APS's typical



           4   practice and standard is to build 230kV infrastructure



           5   overhead or above ground.  We do have a couple of select



           6   areas that 230kV is underground, but that is certainly



           7   not normal or standard for APS.



           8      Q.    Sure.  Could you opine on those areas at all?



           9      A.    (Mr. Wiley)  One area would be near Arizona



          10   State University near what they call A Mountain along Rio



          11   Salado.



          12      Q.    Are you aware of any others in the Phoenix Metro



          13   area?



          14      A.    (Mr. Wiley)  There is one other location that



          15   I'm aware of up in the northeast portion of the Valley.



          16   I don't have the particular cross streets, but I can



          17   provide that.



          18      Q.    And, to your knowledge, in those cases that



          19   you've just cited where the 230kV lines were



          20   undergrounded, what was the rationale for undergrounding



          21   in those cases?



          22      A.    (Mr. Wiley)  I do not have the specifics of



          23   those cases.



          24            MR. GOLESTAN:  I don't have any further



          25   questions for this witness at this time, Mr. Chairman.
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           1            CHMN. KATZ:  Any redirect?



           2            MR. DERSTINE:  No, Mr. Chair.



           3            CHMN. KATZ:  You may proceed with your next



           4   witness on the panel.



           5            MR. DERSTINE:  Mr. Chairman, we're at 90



           6   minutes.  Do you want to take a break at this point?



           7            CHMN. KATZ:  We started a little bit late.  We



           8   can either break now or in about 10 or 15 minutes.



           9            Do you recall, Carolyn, what time we started?



          10            THE REPORTER:  We started about 10 after.



          11            CHMN. KATZ:  We could either break now or in



          12   about ten minutes.  But if you think it's a good time to



          13   break, we can do it.



          14            MR. DERSTINE:  We're going to transition to a



          15   new witness, so this might be a logical place to take a



          16   break.



          17            CHMN. KATZ:  I'm fine.  I'm showing it's 2:30.



          18   I'd like to begin within the next ten minutes or so, so



          19   don't wander off too far.  I'd like to stay on track and



          20   get as much done today as we can.  We'll take a short



          21   break.



          22            (A recess was taken from 2:30 p.m. to 2:47 p.m.)



          23            CHMN. KATZ:  We're ready to pick back up, and



          24   Mr. Derstine is going to be questioning our next witness.



          25            MR. DERSTINE:  Ms. Benally, as I indicated
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           1   before the break, will be proceeding with this next



           2   chapter --



           3            CHMN. KATZ:  Okay.



           4            MR. DERSTINE:  -- with Mr. Duncan.  But before



           5   we do that, Mr. Chairman, with your permission, I wanted



           6   to circle back with Mr. Wiley on two questions that



           7   Mr. Golestan asked him prior to the break.



           8            CHMN. KATZ:  Sure.



           9



          10                      REDIRECT EXAMINATION



          11   BY MR. DERSTINE:



          12      Q.    Mr. Wiley, Mr. Golestan had asked if there were



          13   any examples of where APS has undergrounded 230



          14   facilities.  You indicated there were two that you were



          15   aware of.  Do I have that right?



          16      A.    (Mr. Wiley)  Yes, that's correct.



          17      Q.    One is some proximity to ASU or A Mountain?  Is



          18   that one of them?



          19      A.    (Mr. Wiley)  Yes, correct.



          20      Q.    And the second, you indicated, was in the



          21   Northwest Valley?



          22      A.    (Mr. Wiley) Northeast Valley, and that's the



          23   Desert Ridge area.



          24      Q.    At the break, did you get any additional



          25   information on the reason why the 230 line near
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           1   A Mountain or ASU was underground?



           2      A.    (Mr. Wiley)  I was not able to find anything for



           3   the line located near ASU in Tempe.



           4      Q.    What about the line that you now indicated is in



           5   some proximity to Desert Ridge?



           6      A.    (Mr. Wiley)  Yes.  That line was initially built



           7   overhead.  It was converted to underground sometime after



           8   the initial construction.  And the driver for that was a



           9   third-party funded the undergrounding of that overhead



          10   circuit.



          11      Q.    So, presumably, the desire to spend the not



          12   small dollars it would cost to underground was driven by



          13   the desire to remove an overhead line and improve the



          14   aesthetics of that area?



          15      A.    (Mr. Wiley)  Yes, that's correct.



          16      Q.    And APS did not pay those costs, it was paid by



          17   some third party?



          18      A.    (Mr. Wiley)  Yes, correct.



          19      Q.    And then to circle back with you on the question



          20   concerning how long the datacenter could be served off of



          21   the 69kV line, you indicated, I think, looking at my



          22   notes, that in terms of load, the 69 could serve up to 95



          23   megawatts?  Did I have that right?



          24      A.    (Mr. Wiley)  Yes, that's correct.



          25      Q.    Okay.  In serving the Microsoft datacenter from
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           1   the 69 system up to the 95 megawatts, does that create



           2   any sort of issues or constraints on the 69kV system?



           3      A.    (Mr. Wiley)  Yes, it would.  The 69kV



           4   subtransmission system is a looped or network system.  So



           5   the 95 megawatts would be not only the ability to serve



           6   Microsoft but also the surrounding growth in the area.



           7            To say that maybe a slightly different way, if



           8   we were serving Microsoft up to 95 megawatts, we would



           9   not have additional capacity to serve additional



          10   customers in the area.



          11            MR. DERSTINE:  I'll make Mr. Wiley available if



          12   counsel has any further follow-up on those two items I



          13   just covered on redirect.



          14            CHMN. KATZ:  I just had a question.  I know the



          15   Committee already knows the answer to this, but I'd like



          16   to put it on the record.



          17            Undergrounding costs about twice the amount -- I



          18   mean 10 times, excuse me, the cost of putting the lines



          19   above ground, 10 to 15 times higher, correct?



          20            MR. WILEY:  Chairman Katz, we evaluate each 230



          21   underground specifically as they are all very specific



          22   designs.  We have seen costs as high as 10 times that of



          23   overhead cost.



          24            CHMN. KATZ:  But it's significantly higher than



          25   overhead cost, correct?
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           1            MR. WILEY:  Yes.  And we have seen that up to 10



           2   times as much.



           3            CHMN. KATZ:  And is one of the reasons that APS



           4   requires either a governmental entity or a private



           5   company or perhaps a home owners association to fund the



           6   cost of undergrounding?



           7            MR. WILEY:  It is one of the things that we take



           8   into consideration, correct.



           9            CHMN. KATZ:  Thank you.



          10



          11                      RECROSS-EXAMINATION



          12   BY MR. GOLESTAN:



          13      Q.    Mr. Wiley, good afternoon.  Just following up on



          14   those couple series of questions.



          15            When factoring the cost, I assume one of the



          16   things that APS would -- let me rephrase.



          17            One factor in the undergrounding cost would be



          18   probably the length of the transmission line that needs



          19   to be undergrounded; is that fair?



          20      A.    (Mr. Wiley)  Yes, that's correct.



          21      Q.    Could you elaborate on any other factors that



          22   would be considered for undergrounding in terms of costs



          23   that may increase or decrease the cost.



          24      A.    (Mr. Wiley)  I just want to make sure I



          25   understand the question.  So in addition to length, what
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           1   other costs are considered?



           2      Q.    What else could contribute to the final cost of



           3   undergrounding in terms of -- what variables?  One



           4   variable is the length.



           5      A.    (Mr. Wiley)  Sure.  And with the length, we have



           6   added poles and cables.  Your cable length increases.



           7   That increases cost.  There's an additional cost for



           8   trench and conduit.  But in addition to length, we also



           9   have the dip or riser structures.  Those are very



          10   specific designs and much more costly than your standard



          11   overhead structure.



          12      Q.    Are you aware of the length of the underground



          13   portions of either of those other two lines that you had



          14   just talked about, the ASU line or Desert Ridge line, for



          15   lack of a better terminology right now?



          16      A.    (Mr. Wiley)  Yes.  I unfortunately don't have



          17   those lengths readily available.



          18      Q.    So can't compare it to what potentially it would



          19   be here.  We don't have that data for comparison?



          20      A.    (Mr. Wiley)  Not readily available.



          21      Q.    Okay.  You think you mentioned that the Desert



          22   Ridge line near Desert Ridge was undergrounded and funded



          23   by a third party.  Are you aware of the funding mechanism



          24   for the line that was undergrounded near ASU?



          25      A.    (Mr. Wiley)  I am not familiar with the line,
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           1   how it came to be undergrounded near ASU.  That has been



           2   there for some time, and I didn't find anything quickly



           3   on that.



           4            MR. GOLESTAN:  Okay.  Thank you.



           5            CHMN. KATZ:  That was fine.  As a general rule,



           6   though, I will have us do it in direct, cross, and



           7   redirect without recross.  But it was a new subject



           8   matter, and we're not all that formal, so I'm fine with



           9   what we've done so far.  But it would go the same when



          10   Peoria puts on its witness.  It will usually be one shot



          11   by either Ms. Benally or Mr. Derstine unless the redirect



          12   goes beyond the scope of the cross.



          13            With that being said, we can continue with our



          14   next witness.



          15            MS. BENALLY:  Thank you, Chairman Katz.



          16



          17                       DIRECT EXAMINATION



          18   BY MS. BENALLY:



          19      Q.    Mr. Duncan, are you prepared?



          20      A.    (Mr. Duncan)  Yes, I am.



          21      Q.    So you have already been introduced to the



          22   Committee, so let's move into your testimony.



          23            You stated earlier that you are the project



          24   manager for the West Valley Central Connection 230kV



          25   Project; is that right?
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           1      A.    (Mr. Duncan)  Yes, it is.



           2      Q.    And as the project manager, you're responsible



           3   for overseeing and coordinating all aspects of this



           4   particular project; is that right?



           5      A.    (Mr. Duncan)  Yes.



           6      Q.    So with that, let's move into an overview of the



           7   project.  I believe you have a map that you would like to



           8   use.  Please orient the Committee where you feel



           9   appropriate to do so.



          10      A.    (Mr. Duncan)  Yes.  This map has been shown to



          11   the Committee earlier and I think that has been described



          12   pretty well, but I'm just going to quickly orient again



          13   for those so we can be clear.



          14            The State Route 303 is north-south here on the



          15   west edge of the study area.



          16            The existing El Sol to White Tanks transmission



          17   line that serves as two of our points are interconnection



          18   is here on the eastern side of the study area.



          19            And then under construction, Northern Parkway



          20   here is east to west across the center.



          21            And, again, Luke Air Force Base here partially



          22   inside and outside of our study area along with the



          23   Accident Potential Zones extending here into the middle.



          24            So, Ms. Benally, do you want me to go ahead and



          25   to into the next part of the description?
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           1      Q.    Yes.  If you would describe the three proposed



           2   connections.



           3      A.    (Mr. Duncan)  Absolutely.



           4            So, as described, there are three segments to



           5   this project.  There is Route A, which begins -- and all



           6   three routes connect into the Contrail Substation, which



           7   is shown here at the center of the map in yellow.



           8            But this route begins just west of the Route 303



           9   north of Olive Avenue at the planned TS-2 Substation.



          10   Route A continues west along Olive Avenue following the



          11   railroad and then going up north here to Peoria Avenue to



          12   where it is outside or just at the edge of the Accident



          13   Potential Zones until it proceeds south directly into the



          14   Contrail Substation.



          15            Route E is shown here in purple.  It begins at



          16   the corridor that I described a moment ago, which is the



          17   El Sol to White Tanks 230kV transmission line that is



          18   going north and south and proceeding west along Olive



          19   Avenue into the Contrail Substation.



          20            And Route G also begins at a different location



          21   on the El Sol to White Tanks 230kV transmission line and



          22   proceeds west along Northern Avenue to where it then



          23   turns north into the Contrail Substation.



          24      Q.    Thank you for describing those three



          25   connections, Mr. Duncan.
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           1            In your experience, you indicate you've



           2   testified in a number of cases.  These projects evolve



           3   over a period of time.  They sort of have a life cycle,



           4   if you will, at the very onset up to the point where



           5   we're at today where we're before a Committee with the



           6   project.



           7            Would you talk about how this particular project



           8   evolved.



           9      A.    (Mr. Duncan)  Absolutely.



          10            So you are correct that projects, especially in



          11   rapidly developing areas such as our study area for this



          12   project, oftentimes slightly evolve as the project moves



          13   forward.



          14            So this project, at the time of its origination,



          15   was based on the combination of APS demand forecasting



          16   and a specific customer request.  In this case,



          17   Microsoft.



          18            With the customer request, we identified what we



          19   refer to as the service requirements or what the minimum



          20   that we need to provide to be able to serve them per



          21   their requirements, including redundant 230kV service.



          22            As the project developed through the siting



          23   process, which Mr. Simpson will speak about when he



          24   testifies, additional needs were identified as major



          25   projects that Mr. Wiley spoke about began developing
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           1   throughout the study area.  It's created a need to refine



           2   the project description as additional elements were



           3   anticipated to be needed.



           4      Q.    Mr. Duncan, earlier you indicated the study



           5   area.  Just for the record, would you identify on the



           6   right-hand side where the map is what the study area is.



           7      A.    (Mr. Duncan)  Yes, I will, and I apologize for



           8   not doing that earlier.



           9            The study area is indicated by the dashed black



          10   line that follows the outside of the area where it's full



          11   resolution versus a lighter resolution along the extreme



          12   edge.  This area is consistent with the study area that



          13   was identified for the full range of alternatives that



          14   were studied.



          15      Q.    Let's now move to the next stage of the process,



          16   if you will.  What was the siting process used for this



          17   project?



          18      A.    (Mr. Duncan)  Sure.



          19            I'm going to provide a high-level review of this



          20   information, but Mr. Simpson will provide an indepth



          21   discussion of this.



          22            But as an overview, it begins with the



          23   identification of a large study area encompassing



          24   potential routing alternatives that would meet the



          25   service requirements of the customer and future demand in
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           1   the area.



           2            We felt that this study area would include all



           3   reasonable and feasible alternatives that would still



           4   meet the project purpose and need.  Many potential



           5   preliminary alternatives were developed and presented to



           6   stakeholders and to the public for consideration.



           7            Through regular communication with



           8   jurisdictions, Luke Air Force Base, large land



           9   developers, smaller developers, and the public, along



          10   with preliminary environmental engineering and forestry



          11   reviews, many preliminary alternatives were eliminated.



          12            Detailed environmental and engineering reviews



          13   were performed on the remaining alternatives and



          14   consideration was once again given to jurisdictional and



          15   stakeholder constraints, including large land developers.



          16   And this resulted in the identification of the proposed



          17   routes that we present today.



          18      Q.    This line siting process that you provided an



          19   overview of, is that typical for line siting projects?



          20      A.    (Mr. Duncan)  Yes, it is.



          21      Q.    You've outlined the general planning process



          22   that the company used for this project.



          23            I'd like to now move to the proposed routes that



          24   you mentioned sort of were the outcomes for this project.



          25   And what I'd like to refer you to, I believe you have in
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           1   front of you an exhibit that is labeled APS-7.  It's a



           2   one-page map that is titled APS Requested Corridor Map



           3   dated February 2022.  Do you have that in front of you?



           4      A.    (Mr. Duncan)   Yes, I do.



           5            MS. BENALLY:  Mr. Chairman, this is an exhibit



           6   that was placed at each seat of the Committee Members,



           7   shared with Peoria counsel.  I'll proceed discussing it



           8   if the Committee Members have it available to them.  If



           9   not, we will make it available.



          10            CHMN. KATZ:  I don't have one.



          11            MS. BENALLY:  We are providing a copy,



          12   Chairman Katz.



          13            CHMN. KATZ:  That's fine.  You don't need to



          14   wait for me to get it to begin.



          15            MS. BENALLY:  APS also did provide it to Tod, so



          16   it should be made available to our Committee Members who



          17   are appearing virtually.



          18            CHMN. KATZ:  It's marked Exhibit A.  Is it



          19   Exhibit A to your application?



          20            MS. BENALLY:  It's Exhibit A to APS-7.



          21            CHMN. KATZ:  Okay.



          22            MS. BENALLY:  And APS-7 is the proposed form of



          23   CEC.



          24            CHMN. KATZ:  Right.  And at the break, I'll have



          25   to have somebody show me how to use the iPad.  I got the
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           1   exhibit list, but I don't -- anyway, go ahead.



           2            MS. BENALLY:  Okay.  Thank you.



           3      Q.    BY MS. BENALLY:  So with that map in front of



           4   you as a reference, would you describe the proposed



           5   routes for the project.



           6      A.    (Mr. Duncan)  Just to clarify, Ms. Benally, did



           7   you want me to continue with the description of the



           8   length or just move to the description of the corridors?



           9      Q.    Let's do the description of the lengths and then



          10   move to the corridor.



          11      A.    (Mr. Duncan)  Very good.



          12            So the total length of the proposed routes in



          13   combination with each other is about 12 miles.



          14            Route A is 7.1 miles in length.  Route E is 2.1



          15   miles in length.



          16            CHMN. KATZ:  A is how long again?



          17            MR. DUNCAN:  7.1.



          18            CHMN. KATZ:  Thank you.



          19            MR. DUNCAN:  Route E is 2.1 miles.  And Route G



          20   is 2.75 miles.



          21            Chairman, I can point out that the mileage is



          22   shown here on this table that's on the left slide.



          23            CHMN. KATZ:  Okay.



          24            MR. DUNCAN:  The proposed routes may span



          25   private, municipal, and state-owned land.  The proposed
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           1   routes avoid Luke Air Force Base operations and



           2   restrictions.



           3            The eastern routes provide the most direct and



           4   compatible connection from the El Sol to White Tanks



           5   transmission line to the Contrail Substation.



           6      Q.    BY MS. BENALLY:  Is there anything further that



           7   you would like to cover on the length of the routes?



           8      A.    (Mr. Duncan)  No, there is not.



           9      Q.    So now, then, let's move to the corridor and



          10   right-of-way.  I guess it's at this point that you'll be



          11   using APS-7; is that correct?



          12      A.    (Mr. Duncan)  Yes.



          13      Q.    And is the map that you have in front of you,



          14   APS-7, was that prepared by you or under your direction?



          15      A.    (Mr. Duncan)  Yes, it was.



          16      Q.    So with that, what is the size corridor and the



          17   right-of-way that APS is requesting for these



          18   connections?



          19      A.    (Mr. Duncan)  So we are requesting a



          20   variable-width corridor between 300 to 1,200 feet wide to



          21   accommodate specific areas of constraint while still



          22   providing the flexibility for a final design.



          23            The anticipated right-of-way width for the



          24   proposed route is between 100 to 120 feet if built



          25   overhead.
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           1      Q.    Thank you, Mr. Duncan.



           2            The map that you have up on the right, it's



           3   pretty far from me, so I can't see what's there.  Is that



           4   the APS-7 with the underground segment that's identified?



           5      A.    (Mr. Duncan)  No, it is not.  That is the



           6   exhibit without the underground segment shown on it.



           7            MS. BENALLY:  Could I ask our AV team to load



           8   APS-7 Exhibit A.



           9            MR. DUNCAN:  That is the correct version.



          10      Q.    BY MS. BENALLY:  When you say that is the



          11   correct version, Mr. Duncan, what are you referring to?



          12      A.    (Mr. Duncan)  I am referring to the map shown



          13   right indicates the potentially underground segment.



          14            There is hatching.  It's hard to see.  It's not



          15   coming through very well in the projection, but it is in



          16   this area.



          17      Q.    Okay.  Thank you.  It is very challenging to



          18   see.



          19            The copies that have been made available to the



          20   Committee Members are just slightly better to see that



          21   hatched section.



          22            So Mr. Wiley testified that APS is evaluating,



          23   as I mentioned, a short segment of Route G.  Would you



          24   point out Route G on the map, please, that's up on the



          25   screen.
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           1      A.    (Mr. Duncan)  Yes.



           2            Route G, again, begins at the existing El Sol to



           3   White Tanks 230kV transmission line, proceeds west and



           4   then north to the Contrail Substation.  This is Route G.



           5      Q.    Okay.  Thank you.



           6            So with that, as I mentioned earlier, Mr. Wiley



           7   testified that APS is exploring or investigating the



           8   feasibility of undergrounding a very short segment of



           9   Route G.  Would you point out that section on the map,



          10   please.



          11      A.    (Mr. Duncan)  Yes.  It is essentially from the



          12   corridor to a point just about where I'm pointing right



          13   now.



          14      Q.    Okay.  Thank you.



          15            Is there anything else you would like to discuss



          16   regarding the corridor and the right-of-way?



          17      A.    (Mr. Duncan)   No, there is not.



          18      Q.    Okay.



          19            MS. BENALLY:  At this point, Mr. Chairman, we



          20   would like to move into the virtual tour if that is what



          21   you deem appropriate at this point.



          22            CHMN. KATZ:  It's fine.  Whenever you think it's



          23   an appropriate time to present it, you may feel free to



          24   do so.



          25            MS. BENALLY:  Thank you.
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           1            Mr. Derstine --



           2            CHMN. KATZ:  Sorry to interrupt.



           3            This will probably help some of the members that



           4   will be unable to actually go on the actual physical tour



           5   tomorrow.



           6            MS. BENALLY:  Mr. Derstine is going to work with



           7   our witness Mr. Simpson to do the virtual tour.



           8            CHMN. KATZ:  That's fine.



           9



          10                       DIRECT EXAMINATION



          11   BY MR. DERSTINE:



          12      Q.    Mr. Simpson, I think you are going to -- do you



          13   have your laptop plugged in to project and run the



          14   virtual tour?



          15      A.    (Mr. Simpson)  I think we're ready.



          16      Q.    Let's start by having you provide the Committee



          17   an understanding of what they're going to see on the



          18   virtual tour and how it was prepared in terms of the --



          19   whatever the software, the mapping, the technology that's



          20   used to prepare a virtual tour of this type.



          21      A.    (Mr. Simpson)  What we're about to present is



          22   similar to some of the virtual tours you may have seen in



          23   the past.  We're going to be reviewing each of the



          24   routes, A, E, and G, and we'll be doing so using some



          25   aerial imagery.  And the flyover will be a little bit
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           1   above ground as though you were flying in a helicopter or



           2   something.  It will take us through the course of each



           3   route.



           4            I will be stopping at some select points to



           5   explain some of the key features in the study area.  And



           6   it's important to cover that because you're going to see



           7   some of these names of facilities not only in the



           8   application but in some of our testimony and perhaps be



           9   able to recall them tomorrow when we're in the -- doing



          10   the actual physical route tour.



          11            And I would really highly recommend anybody



          12   attending that route tour.  You heard a lot about the



          13   growth that's out there.  Some of the things that are out



          14   there today aren't showing in this video simply because



          15   it's happening so fast.  This imagery is from 2021, so



          16   it's pretty current, but it's probably about eight months



          17   or so behind.  And when you see the tour tomorrow, you're



          18   going to see things that aren't even on our aerial maps



          19   in the application or in the video.



          20            As Mr. Derstine mentioned, we used a series of



          21   software packages to produce the video.  The imagery is



          22   from a source called Nearmap Aerial Imagery.  As I



          23   mentioned, it's from 2021.  We did do some enhancements



          24   to that so that some of the larger buildings and things



          25   in the area have some vertical reliefs so we have some
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           1   context.  We're not able to do that with every piece of



           2   development out there, but I think that will help you to



           3   understand some of the features as you view the imagery.



           4            Also the, we used Autodesk 3D Studio Max, which



           5   is a popular CAD and rendering software.  We used Chaos



           6   Group V-Ray software and Adobe After Effects, and those



           7   are things that are used to actually produce the video



           8   itself.



           9            I know that sounds maybe a little unfamiliar,



          10   but they're fairly standard industry software that a lot



          11   of graphic artists and entertainment industry uses.  And



          12   it's something that we've used before.  But that's just



          13   some context in how it was created.



          14            So with that, I will go ahead and get started.



          15   We do have the ability to pause or rewind if you want to.



          16   I will be trying to stop quite a few times just to be



          17   sure I highlight some of the features in the study area.



          18   But if there's any need to rewind or replay this, we can



          19   certainly do that.



          20            So before we get started, just to orient you to



          21   the study area, as we discussed, Route A is shown in



          22   green, just like it is in all the maps that are included



          23   on the application.



          24            I guess that starts when I hit the laser.  I



          25   won't do that again.
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           1            So the green Route A is the route that connects



           2   the TS-2 Substation along the Loop 303 and Olive Avenue.



           3   That is going to travel to the west, and that is going to



           4   eventually connect with the Contrail Substation, which is



           5   essentially just to the east of Dysart Road and Olive



           6   Avenue intersection.



           7            And you can see again that that route travels to



           8   the north up along Peoria Avenue, and that's by and large



           9   a result of the Accident Potential Zones.  We're going to



          10   talk a lot about that in our testimony.



          11            Route E is shown here in the purple color, and



          12   that is the route that travels from the El Sol-White



          13   Tanks transmission line corridor back towards the west to



          14   the Contrail Substation.  And we'll talk about some of



          15   the features there.



          16            And then the blue route is the Route G, and that



          17   also starts at the 230kV Contrail --  or, excuse me --



          18   230kV El Sol-White Tanks line and also heads back to the



          19   Contrail Substation.



          20            So we'll do them in that order, and hopefully



          21   that will give you a pretty good sense of what's



          22   happening out there and gives you some perspective on



          23   some of the discussions so far today.



          24            CHMN.  KATZ:  Member Grinnell, I don't know if



          25   you wanted to say something.
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           1            MEMBER GRINNELL:  I just had a quick question.



           2            Does APS own or are they responsible for all the



           3   substations in this project?



           4            MR. WILEY:  APS will be both the owner and the



           5   operator of these substations.



           6            MEMBER GRINNELL:  Very well.  Thank you.



           7            MR. SIMPSON:  All right.  We'll begin with Route



           8   A.  You do see a compass in the right-hand corner.  And



           9   that will orient you to the direction of travel.  And it



          10   will change over the course of the video, but that will



          11   give you some sense of the direction we're actually



          12   looking at.



          13            So we're now approaching the TS-2 Substation



          14   area, which is shown in green in this area.  And this is



          15   the northwest corner of Olive Avenue, which is right



          16   here, and then you see the Loop 303 right here on the



          17   eastern edge of that.  So this substation was sited in a



          18   prior case.  There is a large transmission line that



          19   feeds into this that was also the subject of a prior



          20   case.



          21            You'll see that in the field on this particular



          22   imagery again.  The vertical structures like that don't



          23   always show up, but you're going to see that on the tour



          24   tomorrow.



          25            So one of the reasons the route crosses the
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           1   freeway where it does is because the design of the



           2   substation is such it will accommodate the existing line



           3   entering the substation as well as this future line.  So



           4   the future line is going to exit towards the north end of



           5   that new substation that will be built.  It will cross



           6   over top of the Loop 303 freeway and then turn



           7   immediately south until it intersects with Olive Avenue.



           8   And then it will turn east, and we're going to go to that



           9   area now.



          10            CHMN. KATZ:  Now, is the TS-2 Substation already



          11   built, or is it part of the project to be built?



          12            MR. SIMPSON:  It is not built.  That land was



          13   recently acquired by APS through negotiations with the



          14   prior landowner.  That happened about midway through this



          15   project.  At that point, APS was able to complete a



          16   preliminary layout of that substation, which allowed us



          17   to fine tune or route a little bit as it comes out of the



          18   TS-2 Substation.



          19            So it was all done as a part of that prior case



          20   I mentioned.  And part of that transmission line is now



          21   out there.  We'll see that this particular substation is



          22   not built, but other substations related to that project



          23   were also built.



          24            So now, as we travel easterly along Olive



          25   Avenue, one thing that you'll note is this entire length
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           1   along Olive Avenue follows an existing 69kV line along



           2   this location.  The video doesn't show that, but you'll



           3   see on our tour a line that is existing along this exact



           4   path.



           5            And we're continuing easterly now.  You can see



           6   a lot of agricultural land in this area.  This is an



           7   agricultural processing facility where they bring some of



           8   the crops in for processing.



           9            The area that is just to the right here, when we



          10   are out there on the tour, you'll see that that recently



          11   broke ground.  And there's a new industrial facility



          12   that's being built there.  And that's going to be a



          13   frequent occurrence through this area.  So this is no



          14   longer going to be agricultural and really is in



          15   transition as we speak.



          16            So we're going to continue along Olive Avenue



          17   till we get approximately the Reems Road intersection,



          18   and we'll take a pause and talk about a couple of things



          19   in that location.



          20      Q.    BY MR. DERSTINE:  Mr. Simpson, can I have you



          21   pause it there a minute.  You mentioned that there's a 69



          22   line that's in place on Olive Avenue, but we're not



          23   seeing it.  So the structures that we're seeing there on



          24   the simulation, are those the simulated 230kV structures



          25   for this project?
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           1      A.    (Mr. Simpson)  Yes, that is correct.  So these



           2   were the structures, the approximate conceptual



           3   structures that were included in Exhibit G, and they're



           4   also the same structures that you see in our simulations



           5   that were included in Exhibit E.  So it's just projected



           6   in this video the same way it was to create those other



           7   graphics.



           8            CHMN. KATZ:  Are these lines going to be running



           9   in parallel to the 69kV lines, or are they all going to



          10   be integrated onto the same pole structure?



          11            MR. SIMPSON:  The proposal is to integrate



          12   indemnify.  So what you will see is the 69kV lines will



          13   be built on these 230kV structures.  And we have examples



          14   of what those structures would look like in Exhibit G.



          15   And that is also exactly how we permitted the lines on



          16   the other side of the freeway that we've talked about.



          17   It has that same configuration.  You'll see some of that



          18   built out that way tomorrow.



          19      Q.    BY MR. DERSTINE:  Mr. Simpson, am I correct,



          20   then, that although we're not seeing the 69kV line here,



          21   that by collocating the existing 69 with the new 230



          22   structures that the span, the separation between



          23   structures will be increased, meaning we're going to see



          24   less poles along Olive Avenue in this area?



          25      A.    (Mr. Simpson)  That is correct.  These poles are
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           1   approximately 150 feet in height as they're modeled.  And



           2   the span length that's modeled here is approximately 750



           3   feet.  That can vary a little bit based on terrain and



           4   other features, but we use that standard dimensioning to



           5   represent this conceptually.  And a 69kV facility, you



           6   might only be able to span between, you know, 150 and 300



           7   feet, so you're almost doubling the length that these



           8   spans can go.  So you're going to have maybe half as many



           9   or less 69kV structures, so it does help with that in



          10   terms of the footprint of the project.



          11      Q.    I take it the new structures, the new poles, are



          12   taller than the existing 69kV poles?



          13      A.    (Mr. Simpson)  That's correct.  The 69kV may



          14   range, you know, in height up to 65 feet tall, give or



          15   take.  And as I mentioned, these structures at full



          16   buildout could be as high as 150 feet.



          17      Q.    Thank you for that.



          18            Proceed.



          19      A.    (Mr. Simpson)  So continuing east along Olive



          20   Avenue, we're coming up on another very interesting part



          21   of the study area.  This is the Reems Road intersection



          22   with Olive Avenue right here.  There's some agricultural



          23   facilities in this location.



          24            What you're seeing built right here in this area



          25   on the northeast corner of Reems Road and Olive Avenue is
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           1   the APS Falcon Substation.  The image here shows that



           2   about half built.  When we go out there tomorrow, we're



           3   going to be stopping in this area.  That substation is a



           4   69kV substation, and it's now fully built out and



           5   operating.  And that substation was added in this area to



           6   serve all the growth that is occurring north and south of



           7   Olive Avenue and this area along Reems Road.



           8            This giant white building on the left-hand side



           9   is owned by Mark Anthony Brewing.  They have another



          10   facility planned adjacent to the Falcon Substation.  That



          11   is the brewer of the beverages White Claw and Mike's Hard



          12   Lemonade, and they have some other facilities.



          13            To the north of that, you have the Red Bull



          14   energy drink facility and the Ball Corporation that



          15   actually manufacturers cans for those facilities.



          16            And in addition to that, you're going to see



          17   over on the east side of those buildings more new



          18   buildings that have been started.  So there's cold



          19   storage facilities, more industrial warehouses of that



          20   nature.  And it's quite impressive to see these



          21   buildings.  They're not a few thousand square feet.  They



          22   can range in size up to a million square feet of



          23   buildings.  And when you travel along the 303 now, you



          24   will see many, many of those types of buildings out in



          25   this area.  It's really unprecedented, at least as far as
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           1   my experience goes with those large of large buildings in



           2   this area.



           3            One other thing I want to point out here, it's



           4   not prominent in the imagery, but we will refer to the



           5   Reems Road Channel Flood Control Facility.  And that is



           6   located along Reems Road on the west side.  There's a



           7   large impoundment right here that is essentially designed



           8   to prevent flooding for the residential developments to



           9   the north/northwest of here.  We are going to be spanning



          10   over top of that.  We will not impact that directly.  But



          11   it does convey water from that area to the south.



          12            Continuing easterly along Olive Avenue, again,



          13   you see a lot of agricultural land.  They're making some



          14   improvements in the roadways and water and sewer along



          15   this area so that more development could come in along



          16   the south side of the road.  We're expecting some other



          17   developments to start soon there.



          18            One key feature I want to point out is the



          19   Plains Energy propane gas facility that is located along



          20   the railroad tracks that parallel Olive Avenue.  Plains



          21   Energy reached out to us very early.  They were one of



          22   the first people to get in touch with us.  They wanted to



          23   make sure that we understood how their facility worked



          24   and where their pipelines were going.  They wanted us to



          25   be on the south side of Olive Avenue, which also made





                  COASH & COASH, INC.                  602-258-1440



                  www.coashandcoash.com                 Phoenix, AZ

�



                       LS CASE NO. 198      VOLUME I      02/28/2022

                                                                      85





           1   sense there because of the 69 line that's there.



           2            And they have pipelines that run both on the



           3   north and south side of Olive here.  They travel east to



           4   Dysart Road.  They then turn south and go for a couple of



           5   miles to the Morton Salt facility.  The gas is offloaded



           6   at this facility.  It travels through the pipelines, and



           7   it's stored in the salt caverns at the Morton Salt



           8   facility south of here along Dysart Road.



           9            So they had to relocate some of those lines, and



          10   I believe they're expanding them to accommodate the road



          11   widening that's going here.  So they wanted to make sure



          12   that we understood that and that we stayed on the south



          13   side of the road where they would not be impacted by the



          14   project.



          15            Continuing along to the east, we are now going



          16   to be hitting what is essentially the turning point of



          17   the Burlington Northern Santa Fe Railroad.  And that



          18   railroad you can see here turns and heads north.  And,



          19   eventually, it's going to tie in up by Grand Avenue, well



          20   outside of our study area.  But that's where this line



          21   originates, is along Grand Avenue.  And this line



          22   historically was built to serve agricultural needs, so it



          23   was bringing in farm chemicals and farm fertilizers,



          24   things of that nature.  And then they would take the farm



          25   products out from there.
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           1            Now this rail line is becoming a key part of



           2   these large logistics centers and industrial facilities,



           3   so they're bringing raw products in and bringing finished



           4   products out that way.  So you may see new train traffic



           5   on this particular set of tracks that really was pretty



           6   slow for years.  There weren't a lot of trains on there,



           7   but you'll see more trains if you spend enough time out



           8   there.  But they consider that to be a really valuable



           9   component of this whole development and why we're seeing



          10   a lot of the types of projects out here.



          11            So we'll cross Olive Avenue and head to the



          12   north along the railroad, and we'll eventually get to the



          13   intersection of Litchfield Road.  Again, over here,



          14   you'll see some agricultural facilities.  There's a



          15   nursery.  And you'll see some residences here.  These



          16   residences do have frontage along that 69kV line.



          17            One of the potential advantages of this route is



          18   APS is considering underbuilding that route all the way



          19   along here, which may allow them to remove that 69kV line



          20   that exists today in front of those residences and put it



          21   on these new structures so that there would be some



          22   potential visual benefit.  As a result of this project,



          23   it would take that line directly from the frontage of



          24   those homes and move it away from there.



          25            That was largely a result of some discussions
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           1   with Luke Air Force Base more close to their Accident



           2   Potential Zones.  It wasn't as a result of these



           3   residences, but I did want to point that out.



           4            So we're going to continue north, as I



           5   mentioned, along the railroad tracks.  You're going to



           6   see a wood recycling facility here.  There's not a lot of



           7   permanent facilities in here or anything, but there are



           8   some out structures and some equipment that sits out in



           9   this area.  They essentially take wood waste from home



          10   developments and things that are being built, and they



          11   mulch that up.  They store it, they compost it, turn it



          12   into a valuable product.  And you can see some of that in



          13   the right hand side here.  You can see where the mulch



          14   piles are.



          15            The area to the left is another agriculture use



          16   facility.  They store a lot of irrigation pipe here.



          17   There are some buildings that are associated with the



          18   agricultural facilities in the area.  There is a



          19   residence which I believe is probably worker housing for



          20   that particular facility here.



          21            And similar to that, across the road along



          22   Litchfield Road is another large farm operation, lots of



          23   agricultural out structures, and then there are some



          24   isolated residences in here that I believe are probably



          25   worker housing for that farm.
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           1            So now we're going to turn north on Litchfield



           2   Road, and we will continue until the intersection of



           3   Litchfield Road and Peoria Avenue.  And that's coming up



           4   now.  So we'll turn and we'll head east along Peoria



           5   Avenue.



           6            And, again, one thing you'll note here is the



           7   significant amount of industrial, light industrial,



           8   commercial-type development that is along the north side



           9   of Peoria.  There is another large residence here.  I've



          10   seen some traffic pulling in there that I think this



          11   residence right also be part of the facilities that are



          12   across the street from it, maybe an owner of that



          13   facility.  But I've seen some traffic going back and



          14   forth between there one day.  I'm speculating a little



          15   bit, but I think that house was built there probably by



          16   the owners of that business.



          17            And, again, as we travel east, you're going to



          18   see agricultural development on the south side.  And it's



          19   fairly wide open south of Peoria.  But this is also an



          20   area where we've sat down with the developer called



          21   Dermody Properties.  It was previously owned by John F.



          22   Long up until the end of this year.  And John F. Long has



          23   conveyed that property through a sale to Dermody.  It



          24   encompasses about 910 acres, and they have plans to



          25   develop it similarly as that Woolf Logistics Park.
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           1            And the name of that development is called



           2   Copperwing Logistics Center, I think.  And we understand



           3   that that could include a large array of industrial and



           4   commercial business park-type developments south of the



           5   road in the near future.



           6            Some of the data they shared with us we can't



           7   specifically talk about as it was considered



           8   confidential, but they do have some projects that are



           9   going to be brought forward fairly soon, and they're



          10   moving through the City of El Mirage for that.



          11            So continuing east, again, you're going to see



          12   more of the light industrial and commerce park on the



          13   north side.



          14            We're going to get to the point where we have a



          15   residential subdivision, which is called the Dysart



          16   Ranchettes.  And that particular subdivision is located



          17   on the north side of Peoria.  These are large lot homes,



          18   so they're low density areas, but this community has been



          19   part of El Mirage for a number of years.  And we've had



          20   communications about that property with the City of



          21   El Mirage and spent quite a bit of time talking to them



          22   about some of the concerns, the visual concerns, across



          23   that street.



          24            And in our studies, we've kind of acknowledged



          25   the potential for impacts there, but we've worked quite
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           1   closely with the City of El Mirage to make sure we're



           2   doing what we can to stay far away from them and consider



           3   the impacts of those residences.  That is called the



           4   Dysart Ranchettes Subdivision.



           5            At 127th Avenue, we're going to turn and head



           6   south.  And, again, one thing I wanted to point out over



           7   here is the fairly new City of El Mirage complex that was



           8   built by the City of El Mirage.  It includes a park



           9   called Gateway Park, a YMCA, police department, the new



          10   city hall.  And I believe there's a couple other



          11   facilities in there associated with the recreation inside



          12   that park.



          13            This was a key part of our studies because



          14   El Mirage wanted to preserve the frontage along the road



          15   over on El Mirage Road and also east on Peoria here,



          16   because they recently had buried a number of smaller



          17   distribution power lines that served that area.  So it



          18   was really important for them that we didn't continue



          19   further east and they wanted us to stay to the west,



          20   which is kind of what we've done here.



          21            So at this point, we followed the future 127th



          22   Avenue alignment.  This is part of the development that



          23   I've mentioned, the Copperwing Logistics Center.  And



          24   that really, at full buildout, would include all of this



          25   land that you see between Peoria Avenue and then way off
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           1   in the horizon where it connects with Contrail.  So a



           2   very large tract of land with some pretty intense



           3   development proposed there.



           4            So, currently, we'll travel through the



           5   agricultural areas.  You can see some of the roads that



           6   serve the agricultural areas at some places.



           7            And then we continue south crossing over top of



           8   Olive Avenue.  And then it ties into the Contrail



           9   Substation, which is shown here in the yellow.  You've



          10   seen the picture that Mr. Wiley showed you what that



          11   substation looks like.  That is built out.  It's walled



          12   up.  The 69kV facilities are all in there.  And the 230kV



          13   facilities would be built at the north end of that.



          14            This large white building to the right is the



          15   Microsoft datacenter.  And their entire campus, as



          16   Mr. Wiley pointed out, is quite large and includes this



          17   whole quarter section of land.  So this is just part of



          18   what you're going to see in the future.



          19      Q.    Mr. Simpson, I wanted to -- I'm looking at



          20   Figure 1, which is the map, the static map that we had on



          21   the screens previously.



          22            Is there a reason why we turned up and followed



          23   the railroad and then moved up along Litchfield, and now



          24   we're up on Peoria Avenue, and then we're going to come



          25   back to the south?  Why didn't we just stay on Olive
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           1   Avenue all the way across from TS-2 over to the Contrail



           2   Substation?



           3      A.    (Mr. Simpson)  Yeah.  And we will talk very



           4   detailed about the Accident Potential Zones with Luke as



           5   well as their airspace management concerns.



           6            But, really, the only viable way that you could



           7   get to the -- around the Accident Potential Zones, the



           8   only way that Luke Air Force Base would support the



           9   project is to avoid crossing through their Accident



          10   Potential Zones, which extend approximately 2 miles from



          11   the end of the runway.



          12            Depending on what activity is happening with



          13   Luke tomorrow, you may see jets either landing or taking



          14   off in that area.  I've been out there at times where



          15   there's a lot of air traffic.  I was out there this



          16   morning.  They were taking off to the north.  And you can



          17   see exactly how they travel through that and where they



          18   raise up and where they come down.  And you can kind of



          19   see how the operational concerns that they express play



          20   out.  And I'm hoping that we see some of that tomorrow



          21   because I think it's a really good visual for people for



          22   see the concern there.



          23            We met with Luke Air Force Base many, many



          24   times.  They were the first people we talked to and some



          25   of the last people we talked to.  And we did a lot of
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           1   technical studies to resolve their concerns and get their



           2   support, and this is the route that they supported



           3   exclusively.



           4      Q.    And that's because we removed -- essentially



           5   adjusted the alignment off of Olive Avenue to the north



           6   to avoid those Accident Potential Zones and stay out of



           7   the red and the yellow area that's shown in those boxes



           8   on our corridor map which is on the right screen.



           9            MEMBER HAMWAY:  So I have a quick question.  You



          10   said that Luke supported A exclusively?  So they don't



          11   support G or F or whatever --



          12            MR. SIMPSON:  They do.  It had less bearing on



          13   their operations because it was far enough east.  They



          14   had some opinions on that, and they did review them to



          15   make sure they weren't going to have an impact.  So their



          16   letter mentions those routes.  But we had a -- we had



          17   considered a lot of other routes.  And in our Exhibit B,



          18   we have a number of other routes that we did study.



          19            So when I say "exclusive," they didn't want to



          20   support any of the other routes because they would have



          21   impacted the Accident Potential Zones to a greater



          22   degree.  So that was the reason that, after many meetings



          23   and a lot of technical studies, this is the only route



          24   that they would support.



          25            MEMBER LITTLE:  Mr. Chairman.
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           1            CHMN. KATZ:  Yes, Member Little.



           2            MEMBER LITTLE:  I have a question.  You



           3   mentioned crossing the propane lines where they turn



           4   south from that facility to the salt caverns.  The



           5   transmission line will actually go over the buried



           6   propane lines; is that correct?



           7            MR. SIMPSON:  In that area, there will be some



           8   paralleling of the propane lines.  You know, we haven't



           9   done a specific design there.  We were provided drawings



          10   from them so we know roughly where the propane lines are



          11   located, but we haven't done a final design to know



          12   exactly where the propane lines will be in relation to



          13   the transmission line.  But what we generally agreed is



          14   that we will be far enough and separated from them enough



          15   where we won't have a direct impact on them.



          16            MEMBER LITTLE:  I thought you said that they



          17   turned south to go down to the salt caverns, though, at



          18   some point.



          19            MR. SIMPSON:  Yeah.  So you're right.  I mean,



          20   just to illustrate on this graphic, so, technically,



          21   yeah, there would have to be a crossing of the lines



          22   overhead to go north here because the Plains Energy



          23   facility is sitting in this area here, and then the



          24   pipelines turn and they go all the way down here roughly



          25   to this area.
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           1            MEMBER LITTLE:  Okay.



           2            MR. SIMPSON:  So you are right.  There would be,



           3   I think technically, both a parallel situation and then



           4   one crossing to get --



           5            MEMBER LITTLE:  Okay.



           6            MR. SIMPSON:  So the idea would be, again,



           7   locating those structures so they are not in conflict



           8   with the lines, and then they would span them to get over



           9   top of them.



          10            CHMN. KATZ:  And I just had a question.  I know



          11   that little yellow box within the purple square is the



          12   existing Contrail Substation.  But there's also that



          13   TS-20 230kV substation.  Is that on the property of the



          14   little -- I mean, where -- who is -- where is that going



          15   to be or what is that going to be?  I'm sorry.



          16            MR. SIMPSON:  So the Contrail Substation was



          17   initially named such because it was the 69kV line.  The



          18   TS-20 is more of a system reference that stands for



          19   Transmission Substation No. 20.  So early in planning,



          20   that has a generic name.  So we had that on there because



          21   it's referenced in other documents.  But it's ultimately



          22   Contrail is going to be a 69 and 230kV substation



          23   combined.



          24            CHMN. KATZ:  So is it going to be expanded



          25   within that purple area?  Is that the idea?
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           1            MR. SIMPSON:  Mostly in the yellow.



           2            And if we could go back to the video, I can



           3   actually show you in a little bit better context what



           4   that's going to be.



           5            So the yellow box that is shown here is the



           6   walled area within the recently built Contrail 69kV



           7   substation.



           8            The 230kV substation is going to expand out here



           9   in the north.  So you can see some of the equipment in



          10   here.  You see those white structures.  And I think if I



          11   play this a little bit longer, it will actually disappear



          12   there.



          13            So, again, keep in mind this imagery was taken



          14   at an earlier date.  So when you go out here today,



          15   you're actually going to see a complete security fence



          16   around the whole Microsoft property.  It's kind of a



          17   metal screen fence around the entire property.  And then



          18   inside that, you're going to see the wall that APS has



          19   built specifically in this darker dirt colored area,



          20   which is actually rock I believe that constitutes the



          21   entire substation that we built out.



          22            And I'll let Mr. Wiley explain any more.



          23            CHMN. KATZ:  And in that view, where is the



          24   Microsoft facility going to be built?



          25            MR. SIMPSON:  Right here.  The first phase of it
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           1   is this large white building.



           2            Again, we'll try to get you by that facility on



           3   the tour so you can see the scale of it, but it is a



           4   very, very large building.  And this is Phase 1.  I can't



           5   be certain, but I believe the earthwork you're seeing



           6   here right now is another phase.  And you've got worker



           7   parking and construction activity, marked storage yards



           8   and things of that nature down here.



           9            But it really is this complex between the



          10   substation, and the Microsoft datacenter is a quarter



          11   section of land, which is roughly 160 acres.



          12            So that completes the route segment A.



          13            We will now go to G.



          14            So as I mentioned, this is the route shown in



          15   purple.  This is going to be along Olive Avenue.  I'll



          16   let the video catch up here a little bit.  We'll pause,



          17   and I'll get you oriented again.



          18            Excuse me.  I said Route G.  This is Route E.



          19            CHMN. KATZ:  The purple?



          20            MR. SIMPSON:  Yes.



          21            So a few key points about the takeoff point



          22   here.  We talk a lot about the existing White



          23   Tanks-El Sol 230kV line.  So that line exists at



          24   approximately 111th Avenue and Olive Avenue.  And there



          25   is a major transmission line corridor located at this
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           1   intersection.  One of them is the 230 line we'll be



           2   connecting in, and it looks similar to the one that we're



           3   proposing.



           4            But the other two lines are larger lattice



           5   structure lines that you see traversing rural areas more



           6   commonly.  We do have in the urban area many that were



           7   built years ago.



           8            What you'll notice here is this is a very well



           9   established transmission line corridor that's been here



          10   for many decades.  And right behind this, when the video



          11   starts up again and this label will go away, you'll be



          12   able to see the El Sol Substation.



          13            So this area that's in vacant land is all zones



          14   for utilities in the general plans.  This happens to be



          15   the Town of Youngtown on the north side of Olive Avenue.



          16   This residential subdivision here is also in Youngtown.



          17   It's called Agua Fria Ranch.  That's located on the north



          18   side of Olive Avenue.



          19            And then this subdivision is the Suncliff



          20   Subdivision, which is inside the boundaries of the City



          21   of Peoria.  And it is on the south side.  And this



          22   corridor, much like we talked about the south end of



          23   Olive Avenue, also has a number of 69kV lines built



          24   currently and front along this roadway on the north side.



          25   Many of them connect back directly into that El Sol
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           1   Substation.  So this area is heavily influenced by prior



           2   utility development projects, and you'll see that in some



           3   of our future testimony as well as the route tour.



           4      Q.    BY MR. DERSTINE:  Mr. Simpson, let me have you



           5   pause there just a second.



           6            In terms of -- so the purple patch is the



           7   proposed interconnection point with the existing White



           8   Tanks transmission line and then the El Sol Substation is



           9   a bit to the west on Olive Avenue.  Do I have that right?



          10      A.    (Mr. Simpson)  Yeah.  The label with the blue



          11   dot is showing approximate area that could be one of the



          12   connections.  I think the requested corridor that APS is



          13   asking for, that line actually runs along this area, and



          14   then it turns and goes into the El Sol.  So



          15   theoretically, that interconnection could be made



          16   coming -- you know, virtually anywhere from the north



          17   side of Olive Avenue back toward the El Sol Substation or



          18   into the transmission line.



          19            And, again, they've evaluated I think each one



          20   as feasible, but they need time into more detailed



          21   studies once the route is approved, and then they can



          22   make a final determination on that.



          23      Q.    And then the subdivision on the south side of



          24   Olive Avenue, that's the Suncliff Subdivision?



          25      A.    (Mr. Simpson)  That's correct.
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           1      Q.    That's in the City of Peoria?



           2      A.    (Mr. Simpson) Correct.



           3      Q.    And that Suncliff Subdivision, that's where the



           4   council member lives who has expressed some interest in



           5   opposition to the project who may show up today at public



           6   comment.  Do I have that right?



           7      A.    (Mr. Simpson)  I believe so.



           8      Q.    And that Suncliff Subdivision, how old is that



           9   in relation to the transmission lines that surround it



          10   and that you've identified?



          11      A.    (Mr. Simpson)  I went back and reviewed a lot of



          12   the historical data for this area.  And one thing that's



          13   really great about the resources we have today, I was



          14   able to pull aerial imagery up that was well over 20



          15   years old.



          16            And it appears as though the subdivision was



          17   approved sometime around the early part of the year 2000



          18   or so.  Could have been even earlier than that.  But it



          19   looks like construction on that subdivision started about



          20   2001, and then it was pretty well under way in 2002 and



          21   then continued to build out.



          22            So it's an interesting area.  It's fairly



          23   industrialized.  We're going to talk about this in a



          24   minute.  There's a very large scale sand and gravel



          25   operation to the west side.  There's quite a bit of
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           1   industrial facilities along Olive as you continue to the



           2   west.  You have the substation facilities, the



           3   transmission lines.  It is a bit of a unique area in that



           4   the community looks like it was approved within a very



           5   well developed industrial setting to begin with.  And it



           6   looks like that's how it started.



           7            MEMBER HAMWAY:  So real quickly, was the 69kV



           8   line there before the development of the community or



           9   after?



          10            MEMBER LITTLE:  230kV.



          11            MR. SIMPSON:  I can't speak to that --



          12            MEMBER HAMWAY:  What I'm saying is the 69 is



          13   there now, right?



          14            MR. SIMPSON:  Yeah, it is there now.  I can't



          15   say for sure if it would have been, but my guess is



          16   because the El Sol Substation has been there a long time,



          17   that some of the 69 lines that connect there would have



          18   been there also a long time.



          19            MR. GOLESTAN:  That's speculation on that,



          20   Mr. Chairman.



          21            CHMN. KATZ:  Again, he can render his opinion,



          22   I'm not going to -- it's not going to influence us, and



          23   we don't follow strict rulings of evidence.  I do



          24   understand -- I don't want you guessing.



          25            MR. SIMPSON:  Yeah.  And I think again APS could
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           1   find the construction data for that.  I went onto Google



           2   Earth, and you can see transmission facilities in those



           3   images.  It tells quite a story.  I think that's how I



           4   kind of determined what this area was like.



           5            MEMBER HAMWAY:  And what's the name of that



           6   community?



           7            MR. SIMPSON:  Suncliff Subdivision.  One sign on



           8   the north side says Suncliff.  The sign on the south side



           9   says Horizons at Suncliff.  So I think that was probably



          10   a second phase that developed later.



          11            MEMBER HAMWAY:  Okay.  Thank you.



          12      Q.    BY MR. DERSTINE:  Do you want to take us along



          13   now what will be the route on Olive.



          14      A.    (Mr. Simpson)  Yeah.  So continuing west now



          15   toward the Contrail Substation, again, we're following



          16   the direct path of an existing 69kV substation -- or 69kV



          17   transmission line.  We talked about the El Sol substation



          18   that is located here.  Again, you can see transmission



          19   lines.  There's two separate 69kV transmission lines that



          20   tie in from here.  And then they continue to go westerly



          21   along the north side of Olive.  One of them does cross to



          22   the south side and goes through the sand and gravel



          23   operation.



          24            You'll see as we travel through this area, many



          25   areas have been previously mined, and there are some
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           1   areas that are still actively being mined.  You'll see a



           2   series of pits and spoil piles and active mining



           3   operations all through that area.



           4            This is the Agua Fria River corridor.  You'll



           5   also hear us mention that quite a bit.  The area of the



           6   Agua Fria River corridor to the north is fairly well



           7   intact.  It's still got a lot of its national appeal and



           8   feel to it as far as vegetation and terrain goes.



           9   Everything south of Olive Avenue all the way well past



          10   Northern Avenue is very heavily mined.  It's got many,



          11   many years, decades of mining activity, so it looks very



          12   different than the north side, very industrialized.



          13            This particular complex here is a fast food



          14   restaurant and a gas station.  And, again, there's quite



          15   a bit of setback here where the existing 69 line runs



          16   along the north side of Olive, so we don't have any



          17   direct impacts to those areas.  And you can tell we'd



          18   probably be spanning, for the most part, the residential



          19   areas without having a lot of structures right adjacent



          20   to them.



          21            And, again, we continue to go west.  We get to a



          22   point where you can see the sand and gravel operation is



          23   both sides of the roads, and then there's a number of



          24   industrial facilities located along the northwest corner



          25   of El Mirage and Olive Avenue.
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           1            And then we have a short section about half mile



           2   between El Mirage and the 127th Avenue alignment that



           3   essentially is the turning point again where this line



           4   would turn and also head south and get to the Contrail



           5   Substation.



           6            Again, I'll orient you.  We have Olive Avenue



           7   here, we have the Microsoft Phase 1 facility located



           8   here, and then the yellow is the Contrail Substation



           9   built out with 69kV and the future 230 to be added.



          10            MEMBER LITTLE:  Mr. Chairman.



          11            CHMN. KATZ:  Yes, Member Little.



          12            MEMBER LITTLE:  So it looks like there's going



          13   to be one long span from Olive Avenue south to the



          14   substation itself where the two circuits are going to be



          15   parallel to one another or on the same poles?  Yeah,



          16   right there.



          17            MR. SIMPSON:  I'll let Mr. Wiley maybe address



          18   that.  I don't think that you're going to see the



          19   facilities consolidate here.  I think you're going to



          20   have some parallel sections of line from Route A and G.



          21            MEMBER LITTLE:  But they'll be on the same



          22   right-of-way?



          23            MR. SIMPSON:  Yes.



          24            MEMBER LITTLE:  Okay.



          25            MR. WILEY:  Again, we haven't gone to final
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           1   design yet, we would potentially have both of these



           2   circuits double-circuited on the same structures at this



           3   location for this single span that we're talking about



           4   here.  However, we wouldn't be double-circuiting the



           5   entire way, just the single span here.



           6            MR. SIMPSON:  So now we'll be moving on to



           7   Route G, which is the route that is shown in the light



           8   blue or cyan color.



           9            So we're about a mile south of Route E, and this



          10   is a similar takeoff point in that the transmission



          11   corridor that we talked about before that contains two



          12   230kV lines and a 345kV line.  Two large lattice



          13   structures and one single-pole structure is the takeoff



          14   point at this location as well.



          15            The homes that are located behind the takeoff



          16   point are also I believe part of the same development



          17   that this was originally connected to.  I mean, they're



          18   not exactly connected, but this is also I believe called



          19   the Horizons over this way.  The Suncliff Horizons



          20   Subdivision is located right here, so that's north of the



          21   Northern Parkway corridor.



          22            You'll still see some signage out here that



          23   still says Northern Avenue at this section, but you can



          24   see going all the way down to the west, this is the new



          25   Northern Parkway.  You can see where new construction has
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           1   been taken place, and that's a fully built out freeway



           2   heading to the west.



           3            This facility right here is the City of Glendale



           4   landfill.  And this is their northern cell, which is now



           5   under development.  They are putting in and installing



           6   liners for the landfill, and that consists of both the



           7   synthetic liner and also I believe a soil clay liner.  I



           8   can see some evidence of both those going in there.  It's



           9   hard to look over the wall that's there, but if you find



          10   strategic areas, you can get up high enough and look in



          11   there.



          12            Their development plans for that started



          13   changing over a couple years from the south cell.



          14   They're still landfilling the south cell.  But you'll



          15   notice the work now is trending north, and the south cell



          16   is getting closer to completion, where that particular



          17   landfill area is approximately 2- to 300 feet tall, so



          18   it's quite large.  Very visible in the landscape.



          19            And when you look at what the north cell is



          20   doing, it's actually below grade right now because this



          21   was located in a prior premined area.  So it's starting



          22   below grade but will eventually build up over the coming



          23   years as they landfill it.  So that landfill will



          24   eventually extend all the way to the south side of



          25   Northern Parkway.  And we'll again get a pretty good look





                  COASH & COASH, INC.                  602-258-1440



                  www.coashandcoash.com                 Phoenix, AZ

�



                       LS CASE NO. 198      VOLUME I      02/28/2022

                                                                      107





           1   at that tomorrow.



           2      Q.    BY MR. DERSTINE:  Could I have you pause there,



           3   Mr. Simpson.  Just orient me and the Committee to some of



           4   the key features there.



           5            So using your cursor, the Suncliff Subdivision



           6   is there where you're moving the mouse cursor; is that



           7   right?



           8      A.    (Mr. Simpson)  That is correct.



           9      Q.    So the entrance in and out of the Suncliff



          10   Subdivision onto Northern or what will become the



          11   Northern Parkway is where?  Right there?



          12      A.    (Mr. Simpson)  Yes.



          13      Q.    And if I'm driving out of the Suncliff



          14   Subdivision, what am I seeing as I look to the south?



          15      A.    (Mr. Simpson)  Essentially, you're looking



          16   directly at the landfill.  So you'll see both the view



          17   wall that I think was built both for security and



          18   aesthetics around the edge of the landfill.



          19            And then depending upon where you're at, you do



          20   pick up some elevation as you drive into the subdivision.



          21   So you'll see quite a bit of the south cell of the



          22   landfill.  And as you get lower to the intersection,



          23   you'll see a little bit less of that because it's a



          24   little bit of a low spot in the road right here.  But,



          25   essentially, where you are on the road right there,
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           1   you're looking essentially right into the landfill.



           2      Q.    Am I seeing dirt or a retaining wall or what am



           3   I seeing?



           4      A.    (Mr. Simpson)  You do see the south cell because



           5   it's well elevated above grade.  Some views, you will see



           6   predominantly the wall and then just the skyline above



           7   that.



           8            Again, it depends on where you're at.  When you



           9   get close to the intersection of that roadway entering



          10   the subdivision, it's in a low spot, so you see less of



          11   the landfill there.  But as you go back into it, you



          12   start to see more of it when you come from the north to



          13   the south.



          14      Q.    And then in that open desert area to the east of



          15   the Suncliff Subdivision, did you say that that's an



          16   existing transmission line corridor?



          17      A.    (Mr. Simpson)  That is correct.  That is the



          18   230/345kV corridor that's been there for decades.



          19      Q.    So by the imagery picked it up, I would be



          20   looking at what, lattice towers in that area to the east



          21   of the Suncliff Subdivision?



          22      A.    (Mr. Simpson)  Two lattice structures and a



          23   single-pole structure similar to the one that we're



          24   proposing.



          25      Q.    And then to the west of the Suncliff
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           1   Subdivision, what is that open area there?



           2      A.    (Mr. Simpson)  This area here is part of the



           3   sand and gravel operation that we talked about on the



           4   north side.  There's actually a corner of this right



           5   adjacent to the subdivision that is a materials yard,



           6   landscape materials.  So contractors who deliver rock can



           7   come in there, load their trucks up, haul material out to



           8   their landscape jobs.  Individual homeowners can also go



           9   in there and purchase and load rock there.  It's a pretty



          10   busy facility.  I was by there this morning.  It was a



          11   pretty busy facility, everybody picking up their loads



          12   for the day.



          13            The area around that is an area of previously



          14   mined areas and active mining areas.  So I don't know the



          15   full nature of how long that sand and gravel activity



          16   will be there, but the general plans show that area for



          17   future mixed-use development, so probably



          18   commercial/light industrial, similar to a lot of the



          19   other areas.



          20            And then the landfill I believe is going to be



          21   there for many, maybe years.  Landfills move pretty slow.



          22   They grow and, you know, it's economically beneficial for



          23   them to utilize all the space they can.  So I suspect



          24   that will be there a long time.  It's also been there



          25   approximately 20 years.  So it started about 20 years ago
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           1   according to the aerial imagery.



           2      Q.    And where is the proposed location for the



           3   double-circuit 230kV line?  Will it be on the north side



           4   or south side of Northern Avenue there?



           5      A.    (Mr. Simpson)  We're proposing it be on the



           6   south side, and that is largely because of the City of



           7   Glendale, and it is an industrial zoned area.  And the



           8   City of Glendale was supportive of us being along that



           9   facility.  In essence, their only concern was that we



          10   weren't too far into the landfill so that we could affect



          11   their operations or affect how much usable space they had



          12   for the landfill.



          13            So there's -- inside the wall, the retaining



          14   wall that's inside the landfill, there is a strip of land



          15   that's native material, so the transmission line would be



          16   located, in essence, inside that wall on areas that



          17   hadn't previously been mined or don't look like they'll



          18   be directly part of the landfill.



          19            MEMBER HAMWAY:  So these housing developments



          20   are in El Mirage or they're in Glendale?  I guess what



          21   I'm looking at -- who approved the zoning for these



          22   housing developments?



          23            MR. SIMPSON:  The ones on the north side is all



          24   City of Peoria, and we do have a map that shows the



          25   jurisdiction, so its current jurisdiction.  And we also
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           1   have a map that shows what is the long-term planning



           2   areas, which shows how each of the cities plan in their



           3   general plan, which most of the land and beyond this area



           4   is going to be City of Glendale and then some El Mirage.



           5            But this particular area where these residences



           6   here is Peoria.  So, again, I don't know the full nature



           7   of that, but it looks to me like when this development



           8   started, it was approved adjacent to all these prior



           9   industrial uses.



          10            MEMBER HAMWAY:  Right.



          11      Q.    BY MR. DERSTINE:  How far to the west does the



          12   City of Peoria jurisdiction go?  Does it extend beyond



          13   the sand and gravel operation or does it end at the



          14   subdivision?



          15      A.    (Mr. Simpson)  I believe that it includes this



          16   materials yard, so I would say another maybe 1,000 feet,



          17   approximately, to the west.  And then it turns and goes



          18   north back up to Olive Avenue and then heads back to the



          19   east.  So this is kind of an edge of the City of Peoria



          20   and extends into other jurisdictions.



          21      Q.    You mentioned that the plan is to put the



          22   Route G, the double-circuit 230kV lines behind the wall



          23   within the boundary of the City of Glendale landfill.



          24   That's also the location that APS has agreed to



          25   investigate and explore as the location to underground
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           1   the segment of Route G; is that correct?



           2      A.    (Mr. Simpson)  That's right.  That's the area



           3   noted on the existing corridor map, APS-7.  Mr. Duncan



           4   pointed that out in his testimony a few minutes ago.  But



           5   that is the exact segment opposite of this residential



           6   area where there's going to be consideration for



           7   undergrounding.



           8            CHMN. KATZ:  I'm a little bit -- I'm looking at



           9   that map, Exhibit 7, the cyan line.  And I see where it's



          10   contemplated at No. 12 on that map of that being



          11   undergrounded.  But where the heck does that connect to?



          12   I mean, I saw the other segment E, I think it was,



          13   connecting to the El Sol Substation.  Where does this end



          14   up going?  Because it's showing it deadends where it



          15   might be undergrounded.



          16            MR. SIMPSON:  Yeah.  In essence, again, if you



          17   were able to capture those structures in the aerial



          18   imagery, you would actually see the transmission



          19   structure that exists there today.  So the connection



          20   point is going to be with the transmission line that is



          21   currently built in this area.



          22            And we do have some photos of this area, and we



          23   have those included in our application.  And as we get



          24   through more parts of the testimony, we can elaborate on



          25   that.  And this will also be a stop on our tour tomorrow.
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           1   And I think when you physically are able to observe this,



           2   it's going to be much easier to understand.



           3            CHMN. KATZ:  So it will be connecting to



           4   existing power or transmission lines.  It won't be



           5   heading into a substation.



           6            MR. SIMPSON:  Correct.  Yeah.



           7            MEMBER PALMER:  Mr. Chairman.



           8            CHMN. KATZ:  Yes.



           9            MEMBER PALMER:  It might clarify, if you look,



          10   that dashed blue line is an existing transmission



          11   corridor that these lines are connecting to.



          12            MEMBER HAMWAY:  So just a point of



          13   clarification.  So I see the existing 230kV power line as



          14   it's heading south.  So it goes right now through this



          15   area that APS is thinking about undergrounding?



          16            MR. SIMPSON:  There are three lines that go



          17   north and south right at the point where they are



          18   considering undergrounding as the line would travel west.



          19            MEMBER HAMWAY:  So they're only going to



          20   underground one of them?  They're not going to



          21   underground everything?  Maybe?



          22            MR. WILEY:  To clarify, the transmission



          23   corridor is the area in the center of the screen where



          24   that blue dot is.  That's where there are existing



          25   facilities.  Where we would be undergrounding is from
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           1   that location heading west along Northern Avenue.  So



           2   this would be a new transmission line.  We are not



           3   undergrounding the existing lines in the transmission



           4   corridor that's there today.



           5            So this location right here is where you have



           6   several transmission lines located here today.



           7            MEMBER HAMWAY:  So that is this line here on



           8   this map that's that --



           9            MR. SIMPSON:  Yeah.



          10            MEMBER HAMWAY:  What you're pointing to right



          11   now is this dotted line that Mr. Palmer was talking



          12   about?



          13            MR. SIMPSON:  That's correct.



          14            MR. WILEY:  Perhaps if we could pull up APS-7,



          15   Exhibit A.



          16            MR. SIMPSON:  Let me do one quick thing.



          17            MR. WILEY:  The location that we were just



          18   seeing is this location right here on this map.  This is



          19   the existing transmission corridor.  This is the location



          20   where we would potentially be undergrounding.  And this



          21   hatched area right here is where those residents are for



          22   the Suncliff development.



          23            MEMBER HAMWAY:  But you said there were three



          24   lines?



          25            MR. WILEY:  In this transmission corridor,
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           1   correct.



           2            MEMBER HAMWAY:  So I guess are there existing



           3   lines and the transmission corridor running through those



           4   people's area where you're thinking of undergrounding the



           5   new 230?



           6            MR. WILEY:  Yes.  There's existing lines here



           7   today.  I believe there's three of them.  We will be



           8   adding one coming off to the west, and we would be



           9   undergrounding the portion that connects into those



          10   existing lines.



          11            MEMBER HAMWAY:  And how long is that corridor?



          12   Or did you say?



          13            MR. SIMPSON:  Potentially up to 2,000 feet is



          14   what the requested corridor ask is.  A quarter mile would



          15   be 1,320 feet.  So 2,000, you're getting closer to a



          16   third of a mile.



          17            MEMBER HAMWAY:  Okay.



          18      Q.    BY MR. DERSTINE:  And to clarify for Member



          19   Hamway, the existing lattice structures, the 230 and the



          20   345 transmission lines serve as the eastern boundary



          21   running north and south and long the Suncliff



          22   Subdivision.  Is that right, Mr. Wiley?



          23      A.    (Mr. Wiley)  Yes, that's correct.



          24      Q.    And they will be interconnecting to an existing



          25   230kV line that's connecting north and south as the
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           1   eastern boundary of Suncliff; is that correct?



           2      A.    (Mr. Wiley)  Yes, that's correct.



           3      Q.    And then our new double-circuit 230kV lines will



           4   then be traveling west along Northern -- that will become



           5   the Northern Parkway within the boundary of the Glendale



           6   landfill?



           7      A.    (Mr. Wiley)  Yes, that is correct.



           8      Q.    And then at some point, as it travels to the



           9   west, it then will head up to the Contrail Substation,



          10   and Mr. Simpson can show us that on the flyover as he



          11   completes Route G.



          12            MEMBER LITTLE:  Mr. Chairman, I have one more



          13   question.



          14            CHMN. KATZ:  Certainly.



          15            MEMBER LITTLE:  I know you told us before and I



          16   apologize, but can you tell me again why it's not



          17   feasible to underground any portion of the line that goes



          18   along Olive Avenue on the north end of that subdivision?



          19            MR. DERSTINE:  I don't know that we spoke to



          20   that, but I think Mr. Wiley can address that.



          21      Q.    BY MR. DERSTINE:  In terms of looking at



          22   undergrounding on Northern versus Olive, why is the



          23   consideration being given to undergrounding that portion



          24   on Olive -- I mean on Northern Avenue as opposed to the



          25   Route E along Olive Avenue?
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           1            MEMBER LITTLE:  Correct.  Thank you.



           2            MR. WILEY:  We did look at the possibility of



           3   undergrounding along Olive Avenue near the El Sol



           4   Substation.  However, constructability was not an option



           5   there due to the existing facilities in the area, some of



           6   which were existing electrical facilities.  Other include



           7   water facilities.



           8      Q.    BY MR. DERSTINE:  So you're referring to



           9   underground conflicts that would prevent you from placing



          10   the duct bank and the new proposed double-circuit 230



          11   lines underground along Olive?



          12      A.    (Mr. Wiley)  Yes, that is correct.



          13            MEMBER LITTLE:  Thank you.



          14            MR. SIMPSON:  And just for reference, I was able



          15   to identify in Exhibit A on page A-13, A-13, there is a



          16   picture of the corridor that you've been asking about.



          17   And it shows at the top of that page and has a picture of



          18   the location of the transmission lines right due east of



          19   the Suncliff Subdivision.  And it says, as a label,



          20   230/345kV Transmission Line Corridor.  So that's



          21   Exhibit A, page A-13.  And that will give you a very good



          22   idea what the existing corridor in relationship to the



          23   back side of that subdivision is.



          24            MEMBER HAMWAY:  A-13?



          25            MR. SIMPSON:  Yes.





                  COASH & COASH, INC.                  602-258-1440



                  www.coashandcoash.com                 Phoenix, AZ

�



                       LS CASE NO. 198      VOLUME I      02/28/2022

                                                                      118





           1      Q.    BY MR. DERSTINE:  If I'm looking at A-13,



           2   Mr. Simpson, which is in the CEC application which is



           3   marked as APS Exhibit 1, there's a photo that shows two



           4   separate lattice structure lines with a monopole line in



           5   the middle.  It's the top photo.  Am I looking at the



           6   right image?



           7      A.    (Mr. Simpson)  That is correct.  And I am



           8   viewing north in that particular image, and I am located



           9   approximately halfway between Olive Avenue and Northern



          10   Avenue.  And the subdivision, as I mentioned, is on the



          11   left-hand side of that photo.  So I took this in



          12   particular just to illustrate existing conditions in the



          13   area.



          14      Q.    Looking again at A-13 which is in Exhibit A to



          15   the CEC application marked as APS Exhibit 1, the bottom



          16   photo on that same page, the legend says it's El Sol



          17   230/69kV Substation.  Do you see what I'm looking at?



          18      A.    (Mr. Simpson)  Yes.



          19      Q.    So where would I see that photo of the El Sol



          20   230/69kV substation?  I assume that's on Olive Avenue?



          21      A.    (Mr. Simpson)  Correct.  The photo that's on the



          22   bottom of page A-13 is the El Sol 230/69kV substation,



          23   and I am standing right on Olive Avenue looking north



          24   into that substation when I took that photo.



          25      Q.    And where were you standing in relation to the





                  COASH & COASH, INC.                  602-258-1440



                  www.coashandcoash.com                 Phoenix, AZ

�



                       LS CASE NO. 198      VOLUME I      02/28/2022

                                                                      119





           1   Suncliff Subdivision looking north and taking that photo



           2   of the El Sol Substation?



           3      A.    (Mr. Simpson)  I am immediately north of the



           4   subdivision.  I'm on the north side of the road.  The



           5   subdivision is on the side of the road, so I'm probably a



           6   couple hundred feet from that.  But I am due --



           7   immediately across the street on the north end side of



           8   Olive Avenue looking north.



           9      Q.    So if I was leaving the Suncliff Subdivision



          10   heading onto Olive Avenue, so I'm leaving Suncliffs and



          11   turning onto Olive Avenue, if I'm stopped there waiting



          12   for traffic to pass on Olive Avenue and I'm looking



          13   north, is that in part what I would be staring at out my



          14   windshield?



          15      A.    (Mr. Simpson)  Yes.  There's a stoplight at that



          16   intersection.  So if you were stopped looking north, you



          17   would see this.  You'd actually see the complete



          18   substation.  I've just captured one part of that view,



          19   but -- and then to the right of that, you would also see



          20   the transmission line corridor that's in the photo above



          21   it.



          22      Q.    And both of the images that we're looking at on



          23   A-13 of the CEC application, the Committee will have an



          24   opportunity to see it out on the route tour tomorrow



          25   morning?
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           1      A.    (Mr. Simpson)  We have stops at these exact



           2   locations, and it will give a great perspective of the



           3   total environment of that area.



           4      Q.    Well, we've peppered you with a lot of questions



           5   on Route G.  Do you want to take us back to the flyover



           6   simulation and take us down that route.



           7            CHMN. KATZ:  And we've been going a little bit



           8   over an hour and a half.  I don't know whether it might



           9   be another time to break.



          10            MR. SIMPSON:  We're just about done on the route



          11   tour here.  I think I can close this out in about two



          12   minutes.



          13            CHMN. KATZ:  That's fine.  We'll then take a



          14   break and hopefully maybe get back started about 4:30 or



          15   4:35 and go to a little bit past 5:00.  We need to



          16   definitely take a break between that and the time of



          17   public comment, which is 5:30.



          18            MR. SIMPSON:  Thank you.



          19            CHMN. KATZ:  Go ahead.



          20            MR. SIMPSON:  Yeah.  Just to -- since we have



          21   the aerial imagery, I've backed the video up.  So the



          22   Suncliff Subdivision sits here.  That transmission



          23   corridor that we've been talking about is along this open



          24   space on the back side of it.  So we have a takeoff point



          25   here, and then the El Sol Substation sits up here, so you
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           1   potentially take off there.  We're in the corridor here.



           2   So that image is just on the east side of that Suncliff



           3   Subdivision.



           4            All right.  Back into the Route G.  We'll go



           5   back to where we left off.  And we'll just move through



           6   that east to west.  We're going to follow Northern



           7   Parkway easterly for about 2 miles.  And, again, we're



           8   going to be on the south side of the road initially



           9   starting off.  And then, eventually, you'll go through



          10   the Glendale landfill.  You'll get more into the sand and



          11   gravel mines.



          12            Then at that point, you're going to turn and go



          13   north back to the north side of Northern Parkway.  And



          14   that's so that we can avoid all these interchanges and



          15   crossing over the road there where we'd potentially be in



          16   the right-of-way, but we're essentially going to be on



          17   the northern side of Northern Parkway here, which you can



          18   see, here again, is quite a bit of industrial



          19   development.  And this industrial development goes all



          20   the way from Northern Parkway all the way back up to



          21   Olive Avenue or to the Contrail Substation area.  So



          22   we'll continue along that area, and you'll see the



          23   additional development there.



          24            So from Northern Parkway turning north along the



          25   future 127th Avenue corridor, again, heading towards
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           1   Contrail right here, you can see quite a bit of



           2   industrial development.  I'd characterize this as a



           3   little heavy industrial.  The buildings that you look at



           4   in these new logistics parks are pretty nice, very well



           5   organized, landscaped, the buildings are nice.  These are



           6   much heavier industrial, manufacturing, pipe, concrete,



           7   things of that nature.  So they're much more of an



           8   industrial feel, if you will.



           9            This particular area over here was also



          10   previously owned by John F. Long.  And now this property



          11   is also conveyed to Dermody Properties for development as



          12   a part of that overall Copperwing Logistics Center.  I



          13   don't know that they have specific plans yet to develop



          14   this area, but they showed it in their master plan.  They



          15   showed this as part of that development.



          16            So we're continuing north again.  We get back up



          17   to the Contrail Substation that exists today.  And so



          18   this is the same point of intersection for all three



          19   routes.  Again, you can see that we have the Microsoft



          20   facility over here and the Contrail Substation in yellow



          21   here.  So this will be the convergence point for each of



          22   the three segments that we reviewed.



          23      Q.    BY MR. DERSTINE:  Does that conclude the flyover



          24   simulation, Mr. Simpson?



          25      A.    (Mr. Simpson)  Yes, it does.
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           1            CHMN. KATZ:  I'm showing that it's about 4:25.



           2   I'd like to take maybe a ten-minute break.  But let's try



           3   to get started promptly by 25 to 5 and then maybe go to



           4   5:00 or maybe five or ten after.



           5            And if any of the members of the public have



           6   been following, if you end up coming here in person at



           7   5:30, you'll need to fill out a sign-in form.  Those of



           8   you who might want to address us virtually, you'll be



           9   able to do that.



          10            Depending on how many folks we have, if we don't



          11   have a lot of people wanting to address us in the public



          12   comment time frame, we probably won't set any time



          13   limits.  But if we have quite a few folks, we'll probably



          14   limit each speaker to three minutes.  And if we have any



          15   governmental entities such as a county supervisor or city



          16   council, they will be given priority to go first whether



          17   they're here in person or online.



          18            Let's take a short recess.



          19            (A recess was taken from 4:25 p.m. to 4:40 p.m.)



          20            CHMN. KATZ:  The one question that I have to ask



          21   is we did have cross-examination after I believe



          22   Mr. Wiley's testimony.  Do we want to go through the



          23   whole panel or how do we want to do this?



          24            MR. DERSTINE:  I thought it would make sense to



          25   make each witness available for cross as they kind of
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           1   finished a discrete area of testimony, but I'm open to



           2   doing whatever counsel would --



           3            CHMN. KATZ:  I'm happy to do that.  I just know



           4   that we did that with our first witness but not with



           5   Duncan, I don't think.



           6            MR. GOLESTAN:  Yes, Mr. Chairman, I think that's



           7   right.  I'm flexible.  I have no strong preference.



           8            MR. DERSTINE:  The only thing I would mention,



           9   Mr. Duncan had not completed his testimony.  The flyover



          10   did come in in the middle of his testimony, but he has a



          11   number of other topics to cover.  I don't think we'll get



          12   through them today, but we will make Mr. Duncan



          13   available --



          14            CHMN. KATZ:  The question is, is Mr. Wiley going



          15   to be doing anything else?



          16            MR. DERSTINE:  The only other thing Mr. Wiley



          17   will be doing is covering noise impacts as part of the



          18   environmental impact discussion.



          19            CHMN. KATZ:  Mr. Golestan, what do you feel most



          20   comfortable doing?  We have a panel, but sometimes we're



          21   going quickly from one to the other, and other times we



          22   have indepth discussion.



          23            MR. GOLESTAN:  And Mr. Duncan started.  I know



          24   Mr. Simpson came in with the flyover.  I know Mr. Wiley



          25   interjected once or twice when an opinion was asked.
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           1            I guess where are we with Mr. Simpson?  Are we



           2   going back to Mr. Duncan?  Because I can wait until



           3   tomorrow to do all the cross-examination if that makes



           4   more sense.



           5            CHMN. KATZ:  What might be easiest is just to



           6   finish with the whole panel.



           7            MR. GOLESTAN:  I'm okay either way,



           8   Mr. Chairman.



           9            CHMN. KATZ:  Why don't you talk amongst



          10   yourselves because you have a better idea of how you're



          11   going to be presenting your respective witnesses.



          12            I was just trying to iron things out.  But why



          13   don't you go ahead, Mr. Derstine, with your next set of



          14   questions.



          15            MS. BENALLY:  Thank you, Chairman Katz.



          16            CHMN. KATZ:  Sorry.



          17            MS. BENALLY:  That's quite all right.  I have a



          18   few more questions for our witness Mr. Duncan.  And I



          19   don't believe, based on the questions I'm looking at,



          20   that I'll complete his testimony tonight.  I'll



          21   transition back to Mr. Derstine after a few questions of



          22   Mr. Duncan to just kind of lay some framework.



          23



          24



          25
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           1                       DIRECT EXAMINATION



           2   BY MS. BENALLY:



           3      Q.    What I'd like to do, Mr. Duncan, is begin with



           4   the project cost.  I believe you've got a slide on that;



           5   is that correct?



           6      A.    (Mr. Duncan)  Yes, that is correct.



           7      Q.    So would you take the Committee through the



           8   tables you have up on the screen.



           9      A.    (Mr. Duncan)  Yes.  I will refer to the tables



          10   on the screen.  So the table on the screen breaks down



          11   the cost by route.



          12            So I'm just going to read the combined cost.



          13   But the anticipated right-of-way cost for the three



          14   combined routes is approximately $11.8 million.  And the



          15   expected cost for construction of the combined routes is



          16   $39.7 million.



          17      Q.    Mr. Duncan, do the costs that you have up on the



          18   left-hand screen include any costs for the potential



          19   undergrounding of the line?



          20      A.    (Mr. Duncan)  No.  These are overhead



          21   construction costs.



          22      Q.    Thank you.



          23            Do you have anything further that you're going



          24   to be covering on this table for the Committee?



          25      A.    (Mr. Duncan)  No, I do not.
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           1      Q.    Then let's move to transmission structures.



           2            Would you describe to the Committee what



           3   structures we'll be using to build the project.



           4      A.    (Mr. Duncan)  Can the slide on the right side --



           5   that's okay.  Thank you.



           6            So the proposed lines will use steel monopoles



           7   that are similar to existing structures in the vicinity



           8   of the project.  Mr. Simpson spoke about in the virtual



           9   tour the structures near the TS-2 Substation as well as



          10   some of the structures in the existing corridor on the



          11   eastern side that our structures will be similar in



          12   design to.



          13            The new structures will be double-circuit-



          14   capable 230kV structures with a double-circuit 69kV



          15   underbuilt design.



          16            The anticipated height of for the new structures



          17   is approximately 155 feet.  However, structures may be,



          18   for site-specific reasons, up to 195 feet tall.  And



          19   typical span lengths will be between 500 to 1,200 feet.



          20      Q.    Earlier in the day, in fact, this afternoon,



          21   there was testimony that APS is evaluating the



          22   feasibility of undergrounding a short segment on Route G.



          23      A.    (Mr. Duncan)  Yes.



          24      Q.    There is an exhibit that's been prepared as



          25   APS-21.  Do you have that in front of you?
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           1      A.    (Mr. Duncan)  Just a moment.



           2            Yes, I have it.



           3      Q.    Would you describe what APS-21 is and if it is a



           4   supplement to the Exhibit G's that were included in APS's



           5   application which is marked as APS-1.



           6      A.    (Mr. Duncan)  Yes.  This is what is referred to



           7   as a typical 230kV riser structure.  This is a structure



           8   that is used to transition with an overhead line, in this



           9   case, 230kV, to an underground conduit.



          10            And, I'm sorry, repeat your second question.



          11      Q.    Would you describe how many structures that APS



          12   would be using of this type if it was proceeding with



          13   undergrounding the line.



          14      A.    (Mr. Duncan)  Two of these structures would be



          15   required, one to transition it from overhead to



          16   underground west of the Suncliff Substation.  And then



          17   another structure would be required -- I'm sorry --



          18   Subdivision, not Substation.



          19            A second structure would be required adjacent to



          20   the White Tanks to El Sol 230kV transmission line to



          21   transition from underground to overhead since that line



          22   is an overhead line.



          23      Q.    Mr. Duncan, the other question I had asked was



          24   whether the APS structure, the typical 230kV riser that's



          25   on the right-hand side there, that is a supplement, if
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           1   you will, to your Exhibit G in APS's application; is that



           2   right?



           3      A.    (Mr. Duncan)  Yes, it is.



           4      Q.    And then, finally, was APS-21 prepared by you or



           5   under your direction?



           6      A.    (Mr. Duncan)  Yes.



           7      Q.    And is this particular structure also within the



           8   height limitations that you described of your monopole



           9   structures of 155 to 195 feet?



          10      A.    (Mr. Duncan)  Yes.  This structure would be



          11   consistent with those heights.



          12      Q.    Okay.  Thank you.



          13      A.    (Mr. Wiley)  Ms. Benally, if I may make one



          14   clarifying statement.



          15      Q.    Yes, please, Mr. Wiley.



          16      A.    (Mr. Wiley)  There will be two structures for



          17   each circuit.  So each 230kV line would require one of



          18   these structures to go down and another to come back up.



          19   We are planning this to be double-circuit capable, so



          20   there would be two structures to go down and then two



          21   structures to come up when that second circuit is



          22   energized in the future.



          23            MEMBER HAMWAY:  Two like this?



          24            MR. WILEY:  Four total, two on each side of the



          25   underground segment.
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           1            MEMBER HAMWAY:  If you didn't underground it and



           2   you had spans of 1,200 feet and you said it was like a



           3   2,000 area, so if you didn't underground it, you would



           4   have less equipment?



           5            MR. WILEY:  That is correct.



           6            MEMBER HAMWAY:  Makes sense.



           7            MR. SIMPSON:  And the spans are likely to be



           8   closer to 700 to 800 feet.  We modeled them at 750 in our



           9   imagery.  You would need a different type of structure to



          10   span that length, but 750 feet is realistic.



          11            MEMBER HAMWAY:  So you would need two?



          12            MR. SIMPSON:  Correct.  One at the start of the



          13   corridor and then one past the subdivision.



          14            MEMBER HAMWAY:  Okay.



          15      Q.    BY MS. BENALLY:  Thank you for that



          16   clarification, Mr. Wiley.



          17      Q.    So if I understood you correctly, the first



          18   circuit that APS is requesting a ten-year term for.



          19            If that short segment on Route G is



          20   undergrounded, two structures of this type would be



          21   required; is that right?



          22      A.    (Mr. Wiley)  Yes, that's correct.



          23      Q.    And in the future, for the second circuit which



          24   APS has requested a 20-year term, two additional



          25   structures will be needed if that segment is
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           1   undergrounded; is that correct?



           2      A.    (Mr. Wiley)  Yes, that's correct.



           3            MEMBER HAMWAY:  And what kind of spacing is



           4   there between these?  Are they right next to each other?



           5            MR. WILEY:  I don't have that information.



           6            MEMBER HAMWAY:  I just was curious.  It doesn't



           7   matter.



           8            MS. BENALLY:  Mr. Chair, if you'll give me just



           9   a moment to confer with counsel.



          10            CHMN. KATZ:  Sure.



          11            MR. DERSTINE:  One second, Mr. Chairman.  We're



          12   going to confer between counsel.



          13            MS. BENALLY:  Mr. Chairman, at this point I will



          14   conclude this part of the testimony for Mr. Duncan.



          15   However, tomorrow morning -- or maybe tomorrow afternoon



          16   when he returns, then we will pick up with the



          17   application and notice, the statutory requirements of the



          18   CEC application.



          19            CHMN. KATZ:  Okay.



          20            MS. BENALLY:  Thank you.



          21            Mr. Derstine.



          22            MR. DERSTINE:  Mr. Chairman, Mr. Golestan and I



          23   just conferred, and I think counsel's preference for the



          24   City is to defer his cross-examination until Mr. Duncan



          25   has completed tomorrow, and then he'll have a chance to
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           1   go back to present cross-examination questions not only



           2   to Mr. Duncan, but the additional testimony provided by



           3   Mr. Wiley as well as the testimony that was given by



           4   Mr. Simpson in connection with the flyover simulation.



           5   We could do that tomorrow morning if that's acceptable.



           6            CHMN. KATZ:  That's fine.  If you're both in



           7   agreement, that's fine.



           8            MR. DERSTINE:  Can I inquire of how much time



           9   the AV crew needs to switch over to the public comment



          10   section?  How much additional time do we have to do some



          11   work today?



          12            AUDIO TECH MOELLER:  Mr. Chairman, probably



          13   about 15 minutes to do so.



          14            CHMN. KATZ:  I want to make sure Carolyn is



          15   rested enough to deal with the public comments.



          16            How much longer do you think we should go?  It's



          17   five to 5.



          18            THE COURT REPORTER:  Can we go off the record.



          19            CHMN. KATZ:  Yes.



          20            (A recess was taken from 4:54 p.m. to 4:56 p.m.)



          21            CHMN. KATZ:  Okay.  We'll go back on the record,



          22   and you may go ahead with what you're planning to do with



          23   the tour and Exhibit 19.



          24            MR. DERSTINE:  Thank you.



          25            Mr. Chairman, looking ahead to tomorrow and the
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           1   short time that we have available today, I had mistakenly



           2   indicated that we'd start testimony tomorrow morning and



           3   counsel would be able to proceed with cross-examination



           4   tomorrow morning, but I overlooked the fact that we're



           5   going to have plans to make a route tour tomorrow



           6   morning.



           7      Q.    BY MR. DERSTINE:  So, Mr. Simpson, why don't you



           8   and I cover that.



           9            APS Exhibit 19 is a route tour itinerary and a



          10   map.  So could you discuss what tomorrow morning looks



          11   like.  Take us through, one, where we'll get on the



          12   transportation.  Two, where the tour will proceed and the



          13   stops we'll make along the way and how much time you



          14   anticipate that will take.  And then any safety



          15   precautions that the Committee and the parties need be



          16   aware of.



          17      A.    (Mr. Simpson)  Just give us a second to get that



          18   graphic up.



          19            We will conduct the route tour similar to how we



          20   did the aerial overflight video tour today.  There are



          21   some exceptions just because of road access, so we're



          22   trying to make this somewhat seamless and where we can



          23   park safely and turn around safely and things of that



          24   nature.



          25            As was mentioned earlier, we do have a fairly
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           1   large and nice passenger van that I believe accommodates



           2   over 20 people.



           3            MS. DARR:  27.



           4            MR. SIMPSON:  27.  So it is fairly roomy.  It



           5   looks to be a fairly nice van that should be comfortable



           6   if we want to get as many people in there as we can.  I



           7   know there may be some concerns about social distancing



           8   or masking.  We can discuss how we want to do that one



           9   way or another.



          10            I know there may be various participants coming



          11   along on the tour.  One thing I'm concerned about is



          12   having too many vehicles in a caravan-type situation, and



          13   that's because there's a lot of traffic on Olive Avenue



          14   and Northern Parkway.  And there are a lot of four-way



          15   stops without traffic lights.  And depending upon when



          16   you're out there, it can get really congested on the



          17   roads.  So I'd like to have fewer vehicles.  If people



          18   are willing to drive separately and try utilize the space



          19   in the van to some degree.  But that's purely because of



          20   safety.  In some of the areas we need to park in, we



          21   won't be able to park immediately adjacent to the route.



          22   We'll have to park off the route and walk 100 feet, 200



          23   feet in some cases and be in a space where we can view



          24   the route.  So if we could do that in a way that not only



          25   is safe but efficient, that would be helpful.  And,
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           1   again, I'm open to any suggestions.  I know there's a lot



           2   of different opinions about wanting jump in a van with 25



           3   people at this day and age.



           4            MEMBER HAMWAY:  You said "other participants."



           5   Who are you thinking of?



           6            MR. SIMPSON:  I believe that the Chairman had



           7   left that open if other parties as a result of the City



           8   of Peoria intervention wanted to attend, perhaps even



           9   members of the public following along the route tour,



          10   they would have that opportunity.



          11            MEMBER HAMWAY:  Members of the public wouldn't



          12   be on the van.



          13            MR. SIMPSON:  No.



          14            MEMBER HAMWAY:  But the attorney for Peoria



          15   might be.



          16            MR. SIMPSON:  Yeah.  If we're going to have



          17   people following along, we're going to need to manage



          18   that in a way that it's safe for people to do so.



          19            MR. DERSTINE:  So the van, it sounds like, is



          20   large enough to accommodate all the members of the



          21   Committee who wish to go on the route tour.  We have room



          22   to accommodate representatives of the City of Peoria,



          23   counsel, paraprofessionals, I think as well as, if any,



          24   representatives of the City as a part of the case.  And



          25   then we would have counsel for APS, and then we might
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           1   include one or more of our witnesses in terms of



           2   questions that may come up on the route tour.  But,



           3   obviously, the court reporter will be along on the route



           4   tour.  And as I understand the protocol from past route



           5   tours, although it's been a while since I've been on a



           6   route tour, I'm happy to go on a route tour again.



           7   There's no questions, comments, or anything that occurs



           8   on the route tour unless or until we are on the record.



           9            Do I have the right understanding, Mr. Chairman?



          10            CHMN. KATZ:  That's correct.  I've only been on



          11   one route tour, and it was the Coolidge Expansion Project



          12   a couple weeks ago.  And we had one bus for the Committee



          13   and another one for the staff and the lawyers because we



          14   want to avoid any communications.  But I wouldn't have a



          15   problem having the Committee, the two, three, or four of



          16   us, together with the attorneys.  I just want to make



          17   sure that we're all comfortable.



          18            MR. DERSTINE:  So I guess to the extent that the



          19   Committee is willing to allow counsel for the parties to



          20   join on the same bus, I guess it's with the understanding



          21   that -- the admonition that there's no communication on



          22   the bus between counsel or the parties and members of the



          23   Committee unless or until we are on the record, and that



          24   happens at the designated stops on the tour.  Do I have



          25   that right?
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           1            CHMN. KATZ:  Right.  I mean, we could discuss



           2   the weather or the pretty sights that we're seeing that



           3   have nothing to do with the project.  But I don't want us



           4   to violate the Open Meeting Law.  We won't have the



           5   entire Committee present on the tour because people are



           6   appearing virtually.



           7            MR. DERSTINE:  And Mr. Simpson will -- the stops



           8   that you have planned for us, do they allow for



           9   participants who are on the route tour to exit the bus



          10   and then stand safely in a location on the side of the



          11   road or whatever the designated stop is and the Madam



          12   Court Reporter to set up and then take down whatever



          13   information is communicated in a particular or give stop?



          14            MR. SIMPSON:  Yes.  The two stops maybe I'm a



          15   little concerned about are at the Suncliff Subdivision



          16   north and south.  We may need to have our discussion away



          17   from the actual roadway, so we may have to walk to the



          18   roadway, take in the sights, then walk back a ways to



          19   have any discussion because the roads are so busy that



          20   you do get a lot of noise, and it may be difficult for



          21   the reporter to hear and record that.  And that's, again,



          22   also kind of a bit of a safety concern.



          23            We're going to be able to be on sidewalks and



          24   stay on sidewalks.  But having a large group of people



          25   standing in a huddle along the edge of a sidewalk, I
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           1   don't want somebody to step off a roadway accidentally



           2   when they're trying to hear.



           3            So the other thing is parking areas.  We'll be



           4   able to get off and be a little bit more on our own.  So



           5   we meant to just kind of play it by ear.  I was out there



           6   this morning.  I wish we had been on the tour then.  It



           7   wasn't very busy at all this morning.  But I don't know.



           8   I've been out there when it's very, very busy.



           9            MR. DERSTINE:  And so I guess one accommodation



          10   that we can make is that, you know, we can give



          11   instructions on the record.  To the extent Madam Court



          12   Reporter is set up in the bus, the Chairman can give



          13   directions what we'll do at any given stop.  We'll exit



          14   the bus, and maybe that involves setting up on the side



          15   at the stop and taking down what I anticipate is that you



          16   or a representative of APS will narrate and point out



          17   points of interest, what the Committee should consider



          18   and see at any given stop.  If there's some limited



          19   questions and answers that can take place at that moment,



          20   that can be done.



          21            But, in general, there's not a lot of testimony



          22   or Q and A that occurs at any given stop.  It's a matter



          23   of taking on the record, pointing out what's important to



          24   see at that given location, answering any questions from



          25   the Committee that are relevant to that.  And then we get
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           1   back on the bus and we move to the next stop.



           2            And then once we're back here in the hearing



           3   room, we'll return to the record, get back on the record,



           4   and if there's a more detailed discussion that the



           5   Members of the Committee would have about things that



           6   they saw at a given stop or things that they saw on the



           7   tour, that can happen at that time.  Does that make



           8   sense?



           9



          10            MR. SIMPSON:  Yeah, I think so.



          11      Q.    BY MR. DERSTINE:  Do you want to take us through



          12   the tour and what you plan to show the Committee on the



          13   route tour.



          14      A.    (Mr. Simpson)  So what this map shows is the



          15   anticipated locations of the stops.  And we have I



          16   believe nine -- one, two, three, four, five, six, seven,



          17   eight, nine.



          18            So we will be starting with the TS-2 Substation,



          19   and we'll be traveling to the east --



          20            MS. DARR:  We're actually starting here.



          21            MR. SIMPSON:  We're gathering at this facility,



          22   and then we'll drive to the TS-2 Substation is the first



          23   stop.  So we'll get you oriented to the substation and



          24   the route, and then we'll head to the west.



          25            We've got a stop planned at Reems Road.  That's
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           1   the area where we have the Falcon Substation and all that



           2   development going on in that vicinity.



           3            And then we've got two stops near the



           4   intersection of the railroad tracks.  So one, we'll be



           5   able to see what's happening near the Olive intersection,



           6   the next one at the Litchfield Road intersection.



           7            And then our next stop will be along Peoria and



           8   127th Avenue, which is near the Dysart Ranchettes



           9   Subdivision.



          10            And then we will come down El Mirage Road, we



          11   will turn to the east, and then we will go to the



          12   Suncliff Subdivision.  And although this star kind of



          13   looks like it's on the north side, the only area to park



          14   here is actually going to be pulling into the



          15   subdivision.  We have a spot identified where we can pull



          16   over, and then we'll walk back to the edge of the road



          17   and be able to do that safely again.



          18            And then we would continue back out the



          19   subdivision.  We'll come over here to 111th Avenue.



          20   We'll drive along the existing transmission line



          21   corridor.  And then once again, we'll stop at the south



          22   end of the Suncliff Subdivision.  And once again, the



          23   only real safe place to park there is inside the



          24   subdivision.  And then we'll walk back out to the street



          25   for review.
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           1            At that point, we'll continue west along



           2   Northern Parkway.  We will turn north, and we'll come



           3   into Butler Drive.  And that is going to take us to the



           4   south edge of the Microsoft datacenter property.  And



           5   we'll be able to look at the industrial development



           6   that's along that corridor.



           7            We'll turn back out, head east, turn north on



           8   El Mirage, and then take Alice Road to the Contrail



           9   Substation.



          10            And that will be the final stop, and we'll be



          11   immediately adjacent to the Contrail Substation on the



          12   east side.



          13      Q.    BY MR. DERSTINE:  Ms. Darr, you've made



          14   arrangements for transportation.  What time will the bus



          15   or van be here?  What can you tell us about the things to



          16   bring on the route tour?



          17      A.    (Ms. Darr)  We've arranged for the vehicle to be



          18   here at 9.  And that's all the information that I have.



          19            MR. DERSTINE:  And I spoke briefly to the AV



          20   team.  I think Peak Audio will broadcast a screen that



          21   indicates that the hearing is adjourned while the route



          22   tour takes place.  And then the plan is to reconvene



          23   after lunch at 1 p.m. if that's acceptable to you,



          24   Mr. Chairman and Members of the Committee.



          25            CHMN. KATZ:  It's acceptable.
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           1            Any of the Committee Members that are going to



           2   be on the tour have any objection?



           3            (No response.)



           4            CHMN. KATZ:  We're fine.



           5            MEMBER GENTLES:  Mr. Chair.



           6            CHMN. KATZ:  Yes, sir.



           7            MEMBER GENTLES:  I will not be on the tour



           8   tomorrow, so what time should we reconvene via Zoom?



           9            CHMN. KATZ:  1:00.



          10            MS. DARR:  1:30.



          11            CHMN. KATZ:  1:30.



          12            MEMBER GENTLES:  1:30 it is.  Thank you, sir.



          13            CHMN. KATZ:  That goes for anybody else that's



          14   appearing virtually tomorrow and won't be here to take



          15   the tour.  So we'll resume at 1:30.  Our tour will



          16   probably take about three hours in the morning, and then



          17   we'll break for lunch and get ourselves ready to go.



          18            MR. SIMPSON:  Mr. Derstine, I know there's been



          19   a lot of discussion about the datacenter, and I expect



          20   there's some curiosity about what that is.  You don't get



          21   really get a direct feel from it at this stop even though



          22   we're very close because you see the substation.  You



          23   will see if from this stop.



          24            But when we leave, I'm going to exit back out



          25   onto Olive and head west so that we will drive right past
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           1   the datacenter.  And everybody will be able to get a



           2   front row seat of that facility.  So I think that will



           3   just provide enough context so everyone can understand



           4   what relationship that is to the substation.



           5            MR. DERSTINE:  All right.  Thanks.



           6            MS. DARR:  Mr. Derstine, I just wanted to note



           7   for everyone that we will also have breakfast here at 8



           8   for you.



           9            MR. DERSTINE:  And then for members of APS,



          10   safety is always an important, critical consideration.



          11   What instructions do you have for the Members of the



          12   Committee and those who will be participating on the tour



          13   in terms of footwear or what we should be wearing.  Are



          14   we wearing safety vests?  Why don't you tell us what's



          15   the protocol.



          16            MR. DUNCAN:  I'd be happy to, Mr. Derstine.



          17            So prior to us heading onto the bus, I will take



          18   a couple minutes to do a prejob brief, talk through



          19   safety.  I would recommend sturdy shoes.  We're going to



          20   be on unstable surfaces.  I will be providing reflective



          21   vests for everyone that's on the bus.  I can't make you



          22   wear it, but I will ask that you wear it so that we're as



          23   visible as possible.



          24            Many of these stops are in agricultural areas,



          25   and from previous encounters, these farmers like to go
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           1   pretty fast.  So we will have those vests for you.  We



           2   will talk through safety.  We need to be very careful as



           3   we're entering and exiting the van not just for traffic



           4   but our footing.  We'll try to park in areas where there



           5   is stable footing, but there are some areas that are



           6   challenging terrain.



           7            So to avoid any safety issues for any Member of



           8   the Committee or staff or attorneys, let's just be



           9   patient and be as careful as possible.  And we will go



          10   through these details again prior to heading out.



          11            CHMN. KATZ:  Sounds good.



          12            MR. DERSTINE:  Unless there's anything else or



          13   questions, Mr. Chairman, I think wear ready to adjourn,



          14   give Madam Court Reporter a break, and give the AV team a



          15   chance to switch us over to the public comment feed.



          16            CHMN. KATZ:  And just one last comment.  Anybody



          17   that might be here in this room that wishes to address us



          18   needs to sign in on a sign-in form.  I think they're



          19   available.  We have a microphone set up there, but we'll



          20   steer you to the right place.



          21            If you're appearing virtually, you'll need to



          22   log in, and I'll get an idea of how many we have, and



          23   we'll get an idea as to whether we need to limit time.



          24            Thank you.  We are in recess.



          25            (A recess was taken from 5:14 p.m. to 5:33 p.m.)
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           1            CHMN. KATZ:  Sorry for the slight delay.  We're



           2   going to go back on the record, so I'd ask everyone to



           3   get seated and take your places.



           4            We're going to first take -- there are four



           5   individuals would have been kind enough to show up here



           6   in person, and we're going to take care of them first.



           7            I believe we have a city council person present



           8   from the City of Peoria.  I don't know if there's another



           9   person who works with the City that may want to address



          10   us.  And we'll take care of the folks, though, that are



          11   here in the room that have traveled to this hearing



          12   first, and then we'll go through the list of the several



          13   people who are appearing virtually.



          14            I'd ask you to try to keep your comments really



          15   focused.  I sometimes limit it to three minutes.  I don't



          16   know that we need to do that, but I don't want



          17   long-winded speeches no more than three to five minutes



          18   per person.



          19            So I think Mr. Derstine is going to read the



          20   names one at a time of the folks that wish to address us



          21   in person.  And we'll ask you to stand by the microphone



          22   or where that music stand is so we can get everybody in



          23   the room to hear you.



          24            MR. DERSTINE:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.



          25            I think that looking at the sign-in sheet for
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           1   the members of the public who are here in the hearing



           2   room, the first name on the list is Denette Dunn, Peoria



           3   City Council.  The address I have is 11311 West Lawrence



           4   Lane, Peoria, Arizona.



           5            Ms. Dunn.



           6            CHMN. KATZ:  And just for those who are



           7   participating, it isn't a question-and-answer situation.



           8   It's a situation in which you are going to express to



           9   us -- the microphone is -- it won't be question and



          10   answer.  We take very seriously any written comments



          11   we've received in advance or the course of this hearing



          12   as well as what you have to say.



          13            Please feel free to go ahead and, again,



          14   announce your name on the record, please.



          15            MS. DUNN:  My name is Denette Dunn.



          16            CHMN. KATZ:  Yes, ma'am.  Fill us in.



          17            MS. DUNN:  So I am the City Council member for



          18   the Pine District where some of these lines are being



          19   discussed.



          20            And so one of the things -- actually, I have



          21   about three or four points here.  I was first made aware



          22   of this February 1st when I met with your government



          23   relations manager, Clay Allsop, and he gave me the



          24   details of the project.  And so this was February 1st,



          25   2022.  And this was the first time I was given the
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           1   details of this.  I had not received any notification to



           2   my knowledge to my household prior or after that.



           3            Also, I had spoken to many of the Peoria Pine



           4   District residents and have since made them aware of the



           5   line siting project via personal conversations, social



           6   media, and emails to them.  To date, every resident that



           7   I've spoken with has conveyed to me that they had not



           8   been notified of this project as well.  And I do know



           9   that we had somebody that was supposed to be getting the



          10   word out to the community.  But, again, everybody that



          11   I've spoken to in that area has told me that they were



          12   not even aware of this project.



          13            So far, I also do not believe that PUSD, Peoria



          14   Unified School District, or the elementary school Country



          15   Meadows were notified or made aware of these plans for



          16   these 230kV lines.



          17            If you go down the corridor on 111th between



          18   Olive and Northern, you'll see that there are many, many



          19   of these, the big lines with the three 230kV lines.  And



          20   I don't know all the correct terminology.  I've been



          21   getting a crash course here this last month.



          22            So I am asking that the Members that are going



          23   on tour tomorrow, that they do take a trip and maybe



          24   drive down 111th and see just how congested it is already



          25   there.  Again, with Country Meadows School being right
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           1   across the street and in between those two major streets



           2   Olive and Northern.



           3            I've heard a lot about farm area.  There are



           4   areas over there that are farm, but not in that immediate



           5   Suncliff area.  There's the Glendale landfill on the



           6   other side and, as we heard earlier, the rock quarry and



           7   some of that off of Northern.



           8            The first notifications that I believe went out



           9   were in October of 2020 stating that this was taking



          10   place in the middle of the pandemic.  And this was from a



          11   paper that I had seen come across actually today.  I saw



          12   the date October 2020.  And it's concerning to me that



          13   the information was released back then in the middle of a



          14   pandemic.  And to date, again, all the conversations that



          15   I have had with my constituents over many different areas



          16   over the last -- like I said, emails, social media, and



          17   in private conversations during the last week or so, it's



          18   concerning to me that if it's been that long, how come I



          19   didn't know and how come they didn't know.



          20            And so that -- I am addressing those concerns



          21   because I think we could have done a much better job



          22   getting the word out to the community.



          23            So with that, I'd like to thank you for your



          24   time and letting me speak today.



          25            CHMN. KATZ:  We thank you very much for being
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           1   here.  The only comment I would make, it's not question



           2   and answer, but this Committee will be expecting APS to



           3   advise us as to what outreach they had to all the



           4   affected jurisdictions, including the City of Peoria.



           5            The other thing I would note is that the Peoria



           6   City manager, whenever the Notice of Hearing went out,



           7   was served with that notice, and it was his or her



           8   responsibility to then notify counsel as well as the city



           9   council of the pending hearing.  So we don't serve



          10   everybody in a city or town or county.  So serve usually



          11   the city manager or the county manager and rely upon them



          12   to communicate with the appropriate people in their



          13   jurisdiction.



          14            We can now go to our next person who would like



          15   to address us.



          16            MR. DERSTINE:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  The



          17   next name on the list of individuals who would like to



          18   provide public comment here within the hearing room is



          19   Irene Charlez.  It says City of Peoria.  The address is



          20   8401 West Monroe street, Peoria, Arizona 85345.



          21            MS. CHARLEZ:  I'm not speaking.



          22            CHMN. KATZ:  Okay.  That's fine.  The other



          23   thing too is that we now -- I thought we had only about



          24   four or five people virtual.  There are 13.  So unless



          25   you're speaking on behalf of a governmental entity, we'll
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           1   leave all the other public comments to about three



           2   minutes.



           3            Please call the next one.



           4            MR. DERSTINE:  Mr. Chairman, before we get to



           5   the online members of the public, we have here in the



           6   hearing room John Kelly, Triadvocates.  The address I



           7   have here is 40 North Central Avenue, Phoenix, Arizona



           8   85004.



           9            MR. KELLY:  Mr. Chairman, for the record, my



          10   name is John Kelly with Triadvocates.  I'm here on behalf



          11   of our client Microsoft.  Triadvocates has been



          12   representing Microsoft for nearly 20 years in the state



          13   of Arizona.  We're the lobbying firm that represents



          14   them.  I'm here tonight to convey some comments and to



          15   also provide context to a letter of support that I



          16   believe was submitted for the record from Brian Janice,



          17   who is the Microsoft general manager for energy,



          18   sustainability, cloud operations, and innovation.



          19            Three years ago, Microsoft announced a major



          20   economic development initiative for the region.  Its plan



          21   is to construct three hyperscale computing sites, we also



          22   call them datacenters, with two locations in Goodyear and



          23   one in El Mirage.  The construction of these datacenters



          24   represents a multi, multi, multi-million dollar



          25   investment over a number of years.
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           1            The project before you, the West Valley Central



           2   Connection Project, is a vital element of the El Mirage



           3   datacenter project.  And the design being proposed is



           4   regarded as very advantageous to the project goals, which



           5   include, obviously, reliability of the power resources



           6   combined with Microsoft's sustainability commitments.



           7            The Microsoft hyperscale operation centers will



           8   yield enormous benefits to the region, including, but not



           9   limited to, millions of dollars in state and local tax



          10   revenues, including income, TPT, and property taxes; many



          11   hundreds jobs through construction and operation of the



          12   datacenter; something that's already been conducted, a



          13   $100 million investment in renewable energy generation



          14   which is going to be used as part of the energy profile;



          15   and the establishment of a Greater Phoenix Datacenter



          16   Community Advisory Board, which oversees contributions



          17   from the Community Empowerment Fund.  The Advisory Board



          18   is in the process of announcing its most recent round of



          19   community grants to local nonprofit organizations.



          20            The demand for Microsoft cloud services has



          21   never been higher.  Microsoft delivers over 200 unique



          22   cloud services, including the ones you're probably most



          23   familiar with, Office 365, Dynamics 365, and the



          24   Microsoft Azure platform that provides instrumental



          25   infrastructure for our digital world.
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           1            Microsoft cloud services are designed to be



           2   secure, reliable, and flexible platforms to support any



           3   kind of government and business entity.  I'm personally



           4   familiar with the critical applications in services used



           5   by the government of the State of Arizona utilizing Azure



           6   cloud services, including those in use by the Arizona



           7   Department of Education and the Arizona Department of



           8   Transportation.  These are just a few of the examples of



           9   critical infrastructure that this project supports.



          10            But this infrastructure is dependent on other



          11   forms of infrastructure, including broadband



          12   communications, water, and energy.  Microsoft is



          13   investing in this infrastructure not only for its own use



          14   but for the community at large.



          15            In 2020, Microsoft announced its commitment to



          16   be carbon negative, water positive, and zero waste by



          17   2030.  This datacenter project is a living monument to



          18   that commitment.  For example, the datacenter uses modern



          19   cooling approaches which dramatically reduce energy and



          20   water use.  And I've talked about the renewable energy



          21   piece.  And Microsoft has also invested in water



          22   infrastructure and approaches with the Colorado River



          23   Indian Tribe and the Gila River water storage to address



          24   the current water crisis.



          25            Microsoft is collaborating closely with APS on
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           1   the design of the West Valley Connection Project and will



           2   continue to work closely with APS on the community on the



           3   final design.



           4            On behalf of Microsoft, I want to thank you for



           5   your time and request your favorable consideration of



           6   this.  Thank you for your time.



           7            CHMN. KATZ:  Thank you very much for being here.



           8            MR. DERSTINE:  Mr. Chairman, I think that is all



           9   of the public comment that we have here in the hearing



          10   room.



          11            CHMN. KATZ:  That's fine.



          12            MR. DERSTINE:  I think we're ready for the --



          13            CHMN. KATZ:  We can go ahead with those who are



          14   appearing virtually.  And we have a list.  I can't read



          15   it all that well, but if someone wants to call off the



          16   names.  And I would be asking, when you do render your



          17   comments, you need to state your first and your last name



          18   and then make your comments.



          19            And while both the City Council representative



          20   and the Microsoft representative went about a minute over



          21   the three minutes, I'm going to be a little bit more



          22   strict because we have 13 or 14 of you, and we want to



          23   make sure everybody gets a chance to speak.



          24            MR. DERSTINE:  Mr. Chairman, if we could get the



          25   address for the members of the public who are going to
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           1   speak, I think we're required to have that information.



           2   There are certain conditions or situations where we may



           3   be required to give notice to folks who provided public



           4   comment.



           5            CHMN. KATZ:  Okay.  Well, state your -- as we



           6   recognize you, state your full name and your current



           7   either business or home address.



           8            Who do we want to have calling out those names?



           9            MR. DERSTINE:  Jason or someone on the AV team,



          10   are you able to read off the name and ask that the member



          11   of the public state their name and address?



          12            AV TECH MOELLER:  Sure.  I'll go through those,



          13   Mr. Chairman.



          14            First we have -- well, Fire Tablet is the first



          15   on the list.



          16            CHMN. KATZ:  If you're present, feel free to



          17   again state your first and last name and your residential



          18   or business address.



          19            MS. JAMES:  My name is Vicki James.  I live at



          20   10201 North 99th Avenue just south of Peoria.



          21            I'm highly concerned that no one was notified



          22   about what APS plans to do and that APS is buying putting



          23   all this in near an elementary school in a populated



          24   neighborhood.



          25            Again, they're saying that it's up to the City
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           1   of Peoria to notify everyone.  However, APS doesn't have



           2   a problem, you know, sending out their newsletters with



           3   their invoices or with their bills each month.  Why



           4   couldn't that have been in there?  APS doesn't have the



           5   greatest reputation with residents here in the West



           6   Valley as it is.  So I think that maybe it needs to fall



           7   more on APS's shoulders to make sure the notifications go



           8   out.  And like I said, none of us received any of the



           9   notifications.



          10            So I'm really concerned with that.  It's like



          11   you're trying to sneak something in behind the residents'



          12   backs.



          13            Thank you for allowing me to speak.



          14            CHMN. KATZ:  And, again, this isn't question and



          15   answer, but I want to point out, it is APS's



          16   responsibility to provide notice to people within the



          17   affected areas and to their customer base.  And there



          18   will be testimony in these proceedings in terms of



          19   whether or not that outreach was done.  And if the



          20   Committee finds that it was proper and adequate outreach,



          21   there won't be concern.  If we find that there was



          22   inadequate notice given to the affected communities, we



          23   may not issue their certificate of environmental



          24   compliance, but that's a bridge we'll cross.



          25            When I made the comment about Peoria, I was
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           1   talking about internally with the City, their



           2   representative.  When the manager gets served, it's up to



           3   the City manager to notify the City attorney or to notify



           4   engineering, City planning and zoning and so forth.  But



           5   they're not responsible to notify the members of the



           6   general public.  That is APS's responsibility.



           7            Enough said.  Go ahead with our next individual.



           8            AV TECH MOELLER:  Mr. Chairman, next we have



           9   Caren Imig.



          10            CHMN. KATZ:  Ms. Imig, please introduce



          11   yourself.



          12            MS. IMIG:  Hi.  My name's Caren Imig.  I'm the



          13   City of Peoria's community business manager.  And I am



          14   just here to listen to the public comment and gauge what



          15   our public is saying about this project so we can be



          16   aware of how to better serve them.  And I have no public



          17   comment.



          18            CHMN. KATZ:  Thank you very much.  And, again, I



          19   am appreciative of you appearing here today.



          20            Who's our next individual?



          21            AV TECH MOELLER:  Mr. Chairman, next we have



          22   Chris Hallett.



          23            MR. HALLETT:  Thank you, Mr. Chair.  Chris



          24   Hallett, City of Peoria emergency services director.  I



          25   work with Caren and several others on this call.  Same
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           1   capacity.  No comment.  Just here to observe.  Thank you.



           2            CHMN. KATZ:  Thank you very much.



           3            Next individual.



           4            AV TECH MOELLER:  Mr. Chairman, next we have Eva



           5   Osuna.



           6            CHMN. KATZ:  Please go ahead.



           7            MS. OSUNA:  Hello.  My name is Eva Osuna, and I



           8   live at 8592 West Malipi in south Peoria.



           9            I'm of the same opinion that I was not notified.



          10   Never heard of this project until about a few days ago.



          11   And it's been a rush to learn all about it and find out



          12   where did it go wrong, because we should have been



          13   notified.  APS is a huge entity.  So is Microsoft.  I'm



          14   not against economic development, but we should have been



          15   notified so we could have given input along the way.



          16            I'm very interested.  I was there this afternoon



          17   in person and listened to the person that was in charge



          18   of your stakeholder meetings and getting ahold of the



          19   public.  I would be very interested to find out who that



          20   input came from because she said it came from residents.



          21   I would be very interested to find out who the input came



          22   from because I certainly did not get the notice and was



          23   not given the opportunity to give input on this.



          24            The other issue for me is if you can do



          25   underground at Northern -- and I think it was line G, I'm
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           1   not sure -- if you can do underground at Northern, then



           2   really work hard to do underground over by the elementary



           3   school and 111th Avenue neighborhood, which also there's



           4   a public park there.  You should really try to make an



           5   effort to put everything underground.  If we're going to



           6   have to take this project, then make it as safe as



           7   possible.



           8            Thank you very much for your time and letting me



           9   speak.



          10            CHMN. KATZ:  Thank you very much for taking your



          11   time out today.



          12            AV TECH MOELLER:  Mr. Chairman, next we have



          13   Gwen Garrett.



          14            CHMN. KATZ:  Gwen Garrett.



          15            MS. GARRETT:  Yes.  My name is Gwen Garrett.  My



          16   address is 9165 North 97th Drive in Peoria.  I don't have



          17   a comment, but I am just very concerned with all the



          18   comments that no one has received notification. I'm not



          19   an APS customer, so I wouldn't have received anything



          20   directly from them, but I am concerned with what's going



          21   on in my community.



          22            Thank you for this opportunity to speak.



          23            CHMN. KATZ:  Thank you for your patience.



          24            Next, please.



          25            AV TECH MOELLER:  Mr. Chairman, next we have
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           1   Jean.



           2            CHMN. KATZ:  Jean.  Someone signed in as -- is



           3   it J-e-a-n?  Is there a Jean present?  It's a person that



           4   only gave a first name.



           5            (No response.)



           6            CHMN. KATZ:  No.  We'll come back to that



           7   individual at the end of the proceedings.



           8            Who is the next individual?



           9            AV TECH MOELLER:  Mr. Chairman, next we have Kat



          10   Gatrost.



          11            CHMN. KATZ:  Please go ahead.



          12            MS. GATROST:  Hello, Mr. Chairman.  My name is



          13   Kat -- Katherine Gatrost.  My address is 8940 West Olive



          14   Ave, Unit No. 6, Peoria, Arizona 85345.



          15            I concur with Eva Osuna.  Not against economic



          16   development.  I was there this afternoon.  Just wasn't



          17   notified.  And if you could put it underground, that



          18   would be great, especially by the elementary schools, by



          19   the park area that line G right around Northern and Olive



          20   area.



          21            So if APS could look at that with Microsoft,



          22   that would be fantastic.  Just overhead power line by the



          23   elementary school and the park area, just concerning for



          24   kids.  But if they're able to put it underground, that



          25   would be great.
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           1            CHMN. KATZ:  Okay.  Thank you.



           2            AV TECH MOELLER:  Mr. Chairman, next we have



           3   Kelly K.



           4            MS. K:  Hello.  And I work with Chris Hallett



           5   and Caren Imig.  I'm here with the City of Peoria, so,



           6   again, just listening in and appreciate the opportunity



           7   to do so.



           8            CHMN. KATZ:  Thank you very much.



           9            AV TECH MOELLER:  Mr. Chairman, next we have L



          10   Mattox.



          11            CHMN. KATZ:  Mr. or Mr. Mattox.



          12            MS. MATTOX:  Good evening.  I'm Lisa Mattox.  I



          13   also work with the group from City of Peoria.  Just here



          14   to understand community concerns and listen to comments.



          15   No comment from me this evening.



          16            CHMN. KATZ:  That's fine.



          17            And next, please.



          18            AV TECH MOELLER:  Mr. Chairman, next we have Me



          19   Shell.



          20            FEMALE SPEAKER:  Hello.  I'm just listening in.



          21   I live in the neighborhood, and I was notified I think



          22   back in October of 2020.  This is my first call.  I just



          23   wanted to listen in.  That's all.



          24            AV TECH MOELLER:  Mr. Chairman, next we have



          25   Rebecca Osuna.
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           1            MS. OSUNA:  Good evening.  My name is Rebecca



           2   Osuna.  I live at 8439 West Purdue Avenue in Peoria,



           3   Arizona.



           4            I myself, being a Peoria resident since 1965,



           5   things have always been pretty forthright in knowing



           6   what's happening in the City of Peoria.  I have to say



           7   the last couple years, there's been deeply serious



           8   information that's gone out to certain people and not to



           9   others.  And this is just another example of that, that



          10   we have not known that this was going to take place.



          11            So I'm very concerned that children especially,



          12   having been an educator for 30 years, I have real



          13   concerns about all of this going up around an elementary



          14   school.  So that's why I'm here to voice that.  And then,



          15   of course, I'm concerned for the neighborhood as well.



          16            Thank you.



          17            CHMN. KATZ:  Thank you kindly.



          18            AV TECH MOELLER:  Mr. Chairman, that is the last



          19   person that I've seen on the list, unless I've missed



          20   someone.



          21            CHMN. KATZ:  We have someone that signed in as



          22   Jean.  Is that person available?



          23            (No response.)



          24            CHMN. KATZ:  And I don't see any new parties



          25   that have joined us here.
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           1            I just want anybody that's listening to



           2   understand that as we go forward, APS is going to have a



           3   detailed presentation of the notice that they attempted



           4   to give to all of the affected cities, towns, and



           5   jurisdictions.  And some of you may have been missed.



           6   But we'll have to wait and see what they have to say.



           7   But I do appreciate all of your concerns, and the



           8   Committee will take them into consideration.



           9            Everybody have a good evening.  We're going on a



          10   tour tomorrow of the route, leaving from the Civic Center



          11   here at 9:00 or shortly past 9 in the morning, and we'll



          12   resume in the room at the Civic Center at 1:30.  So



          13   you're welcome to join us tomorrow at 1:30.



          14            If you want to take the tour, you're going to



          15   have to follow in a private vehicle, and we'll have to



          16   see how many people might be interested in doing that



          17   because we might have some traffic and safety issues that



          18   we need to address.



          19            MEMBER GRINNELL:  Mr. Chairman.



          20            CHMN. KATZ:  Yes, Mr. Grinnell.



          21            MEMBER GRINNELL:  I apologize.  I just got a



          22   chat message from Me Shell regarding her address.  She



          23   wanted to relay that.  So I think if you have that on



          24   your chat, you can forward that to the recorder here.



          25            CHMN. KATZ:  If we have that in the chat, we
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           1   will certainly make sure that her address gets recorded.



           2            MR. DERSTINE:  For the record, the chat is



           3   indicating a member of the public identified his or



           4   herself as Me Shell.  The address was 11233 West Alice



           5   Avenue, according to the chat.



           6            CHMN. KATZ:  Okay.  Thank you.



           7            Does the Committee have any other concerns



           8   before we recess for the evening?  If so, please speak



           9   up.  If not, those of you who are staying in City of



          10   Glendale this evening, enjoy yourselves.  Those of us who



          11   are going home, drive safely and make sure we're back



          12   here ready to go either for breakfast at 8:00 or our tour



          13   at 9:00.



          14            Thank you.  We are in recess.



          15            (The hearing recessed at 6:01 p.m.)
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           1   STATE OF ARIZONA       )

                                      )

           2   COUNTY OF MARICOPA     )



           3        BE IT KNOWN that the foregoing proceedings were

               taken before me; that the foregoing pages are a full,

           4   true, and accurate record of the proceedings, all done to

               the best of my skill and ability; that the proceedings

           5   were taken down by me in shorthand and thereafter reduced

               to print under my direction.

           6

                    I CERTIFY that I am in no way related to any of the

           7   parties hereto nor am I in any way interested in the

               outcome hereof.

           8

                    I CERTIFY that I have complied with the ethical

           9   obligations set forth in ACJA 7-206(F)(3) and

               ACJA 7-206(J)(1)(g)(1) and (2).  Dated at Phoenix,

          10   Arizona, this 6th day of March, 2022.
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